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SCHEDULE,
Number; .
in Number and Date. SUBJECT. Page.
Series.
DESPATCHES FROM THE GOVERNOR.
. 1‘ 20 August, 1869 - - | Requesting that the date of the Transfer may be ﬁxed for the lst
- |- {(Telegram.) December = -~ - 1
2 | 25 Aug. 1869-(No. 87.) | In explanation of the above Telegmm B
(Extract.)
17 Nov. 1869 (No. 132.) | Forwarding Copy of the Preliminiry Instructions -issued to Mr.
. - ‘McDougall, the future Lxeutenant—Govemor of the horth West
- Territory - - - 2
4 | 23 November, 1869 - | Mr. McDougall, Lieutenant-Governor, stopped on his read by
<+ |+ ATelegram:) - - Insurgents Appomtment of Provxsmnal Comimttee of Govern—
ment - - - - - - 3
& | 25 Nov..1869 (No. 134.) | Resistance by French Half-Breeds to Licutenant-Governor
McDougall’s entry into the North-West Terntory Lorre-
spondence up to the present date enclosed - - 3
6 | 27 Nov. 1869 (No. 138.) | Substance of a Telegram to the effect that Canada cannot a.ceept
R I ' Transfer unless qmet possession can be given - 12
7. | 27 Nov. 1869 (No. 139.)| Forwarding Copies of further Correspondence relating to the
R : difficulties in the North-West Territory - - - - 12
8 | 2 Dec. 1869 - - | Enclosing Extracts from Newspapers which contain the latest
(Confidentisl.) accounts of what is going on in the Red River Territory - 23
- (Extract.)
9 | 9 Dec. 1869 (No. 147.) | Enclosing Copies of further Papers showing the state of aﬁ’airs -1 29
10 | 11 Dec. 1865 (No. 148.) Transmitting Copy of the Instructions which had been issued on
the part of the Government of the Dominion, to Mr. Smith,
one of the chief Officers of the Hudson Bay Company, who was
proceeding to Fort Garry to assist Governor Mactavish, or, in
case of that gentleman being lncapa.cltated to take 'up the dis-
charge of his duties - - 46
11 | 17 Dec. 1869 (No. 156.) Transmlttmg Minute of Council in answer to the Secretary of
AR - . - - _ State’s views w1th revard to the Nego’uatlons about the
" Transfer - - - - 52
12 123 Dec. 1862 (No. 164.)| Enclosing Copies of the Letters and Reports by Telegram from
S the Red River, containing the information received from the
‘ 25th November to the present date - - - - -] 54
3 | 30 Dec. 1869 (No. 170.) Transmlthn« Coples of Despatches from Mr, McDougall, giving
: an account of his proceedings up to the 8th December. Ac-
cording to latest advmes, Mr. McDougall was on lns way back
- to Canada - 62
14 | 5 Jan. 1870 (No. 4.) Enclosing further Correspondence from Mr. McDougall reportmg
the state of affairs at the latest date - 70
15 | 8Jan.1870- - - | Forwards-Copy of a Private Letter from Sir J. Macdonald to Mr .
: (Confidential.) Smith, in reference to his Mission to Fort Garry - -~ -| 77
(Extract.)
16 | 2 Feb. 1870 (Telegram) | Rumours through American sources and private Letters from
- . Fort Garry say that Riel has been deposed, and the old Hud-
R , - son Bay Company’s Government re-instated - - - -] 82.
17 |9 Feb. 1870 (No. 30.)-- | Forwarding Copies of further Communications with reference: to
, . the North-West Territory, which complete the Gon'espondence
‘ . down to the present date - 82
18 |15 Feb. 1870 (No. 38.) Reporting the substance of a Telegram respectmg the Meetmg
: . which took place at which Mr. Smth the Cana(han Commm— ~
- sioner, was present - - -- - - 105




iv SCHEDULE.
N
m{:ber Number and Date. SUBJECT. Page.
Beriea,
19 |17 Feb, 1870 - - | Enclosing Copy of the Commission or Paper of Credentials, which
(Confidential.) was farnished 1o Mr. Smith on his setting out for Fort Garry,
(Extract.) showing that he was only empowered to make inquiries and
report the result - - - - - - - . <105
20 | 22 Feb. 1870 (No. 46.) | Forwarding Copies of Correspondence with reference to the stata
( ) of aﬂairf in 1:he North-West Territory, which ought to have
been enclosed in previous Despatch No. 30 - - - -] 107
21 {28 Feb, 1870 - - | Respecting the proposed Delegation from Fort i}arry - - -1 110
Telegram.
22 |28 Feg. 188'%a (Nc)>. 47.) | Further Correspondence on the North-Western affairs - -1 110
23 | 3 March, 1870 - - | Enclosing Extract from a Newspaper containing a correct account
(Confidential.) of recent transactions at the Red River; also a Summary of
: Telegraphic News - - - - - - . {113
24 | 9 March,1870 - - | Stating the substance of & Telegram sent to-day about the move-
(Confidential.) ment of Troops - e - - - - - -1 112
25 iS March, 1870 - - | Stating the substance of a Telegram sent to-day, to the effect
(Confidential.) that there was no news as yet of the Delegates starting - -| 115
26 | 81 Maxrch, 1870 - - | The substance of a Telegram sent to-day, to the effect that
(Confidential.) Smith was on his way to Ottawa. All quiet up to 14th.
Bishop Taché arrived, The Convention in Session discussing
plans of adjustment with Canada - - - - . <1115
27 |4 April,1870 - - 'Smith arrived from Red River, bringing bad news, Affairs wear
(Telegmmg & grave aspect I - - | 115
(Secret and Confidential.)
28 | 7 April, 1870 (No. 68.) | Sending the substance of a Telegram about the movements of the
Delegates - - - - - - - . . .| 116
20 | 11 April, 1870 - - | My Government will accept Transfer at once, if movement of
(Telegram.) Troops settled on. Canada will pay any reasonable cost of
Expedition. Delegates expected to-day- - - . .| 116
30 | 14 April, 1870 - - | With reference to composition of and arrangements connected
(Confidential.) with the Force to be sent to Red River - ~ - - - .| 116
(Extract.) )
31 | Received 19 April, 1870} Canadian Government did not authorise arrest of Delegates.
(Telegram.) Scott’s Brother laid the information. Government retained
‘ , ] . ‘ Counsel for the defence - - - - - -« -  -jl17
32 | 21 April, 1870 (No, 80.) | Transmitting Memorandum prepared in the Department of Jus-
tice, with Extracts of Newspaper Reports respecting the arrest
of the two Delegates, Pére Richot and Mr, Scott -~ - - 117
33 | 25 April, 1870 - - | Delegates discharged by order of Magistrates. Proceedings
(Telegram.) against thematanend - - - - - - o . 124
34 | 25 Apnil, 1870 (No.85.)| Transmits Report of Grand Vicar Thibault and De Salaberry and
" other Papers ofi the affairs of the Settlement - -~ - - 124
36 |28 April, 1870 - -} Substance of a Telegram about sending Tioops - « - -] 128
(Confidential.)
36 | 29 April, 1870 (No. 87.) Reports that the Delegates from the North-West Territory have
been in conference with Ministers - - - - < - 129
37 | 8 May, 1870 - - | Negotiations with Delegates closed satisfactorily. :
(Telegram.) A Province named Manitoba erected. Number of representatives .
and government of the Territory - - - - . -] 131
38 | 4May, 1870 - - |'Have jnst received instructions to pay Hudson Bay Company : - | 131
| (Telogram.) | | » |
39 |4 May, 1870 - - Sir John Rose will be instructed to pay over the 300,000
(Telegram.) Her Majesty’s Government at liberty to make transfer before
. ‘ ‘ the e'nd_ of_June, but to telegraph due notice <« - = w| 181
40 - - 131

. 6 M.Zae', i870

Confidential.)

Further correspondence on the affairs of the North-West Territory



SCHEDULE.

X
Number
, in - Number and Date. S8UBJECT. Page.
Series,
41 | 6May, 1870 - - |I presume 1 um now at liberty to issue final orders for the
(Telegram.) Troops to proceed to Red Rwer. General Lmdsay asks for
such orders from me - 161
42 | 12 May, 1870 - - | Bill for government of North-West passed sanctioning conditions
(Telogram.) agreed upon with Delegates. Parliament prorogued to-day - | 161
43 | 15 May, 1870 "« < | Mr. Archibald of Nova Scotm is to beLxeutenant—Govemor of the
(Telegram.) North-West - - 161
4 |19 May, 1870 (No. 97) | Act * To estahlish and provxde for the Govemment of the Provmce
. ¢ of Manitoba” - 162
DESPATCHES FROM THE SECRETARY OF STATE.
1 | 25Nov.1869 - - | Expressing surprise and regret of the Queen at the occurrences
(Telegram.) in the Red River, and calling upon the people to make their
complaints known with a view to their redress, and directing
Her Representative to exert the authority entrusted to bim for
the support of order and the suppressxon of unlawful dlB—
turbance - 170
2 | 30 Nov.1869 - - | Surrender to Tmperial Government would be void in law unless
(Tdlegram.) followed by transfer to Canada. Govemment by Canada ought
to be established prompily - - 170
3 | 30 Nov. 1869 (No. 214) | Acknowledging Telegrams forwarding information of disturbances
. in the Red River, and recapitulating the series of negotlatlons
about the transfer of the North-West Terntory, and descnbmg
the present state of the question - 170
4 | 9 Dec. 1869 - -~ | You may authorize Donald Smith to promulgate, as from the
(Telegram.) Queen, all or any part of the Proclamation telegraphed to you - { 172
5 | 13 Dec. 1869 (No. 229) | Stating that the Instructions issued to Mr. McDougall, the future
Lieutenant-Governor of the Nmth-West Terntory, appear to
bhave been well considered - - 172
6 | 8 Jan. 1870 (No,7) - Enclosmg, Correspondence with the Hudson Bay Company w1th
reference to the state of affairs - 173
7 | 26 Jan. 1870 (No. 21) - | Enclosing farther Correspondence with the Hudson Bay Company
with reference to the state of affairs - 174
8 | 1 Feb. 1870 (No; 29) - | Enclosing copy of a Letter from the Hudsom Bay Company
relating to the proceedmgs of the Insurgent o Rlel ? at Fort
Garry - - - - 174
9 | 25Feb. 1870 - .- | If Sir Stafford Northcote should go ont, when should he arrive - | 175
(Telegram,
10 |5 Marz:’hl@‘, l1870 - =1 Terms upon which Military assistance will be given - - - | 175
elegram.
11 | 11 March, 1870 - - | The General hopes to start on the 24th mstant, and to reach_
(Telegram.) Montreal about the 7th April - - - 175
12 | 17 March, 1870 - - | Telegraph when you know that the Delegates have started from
(Telegram.) the Red River - 175
13 | 23 March, 1870 - - | Approving steps taken as veported in (zovemor’s Confidential]
(Confidential.) Despatch 17 February, 1870 - - - - -« -1176
14 | 23 March, 1870 - - | Calling for information respecting the views of the Canadian
Government on matters which ought to be decided before Her

(Confidential.)

Majesty’s Government takes part in the expedition for the
- despatch of Troops for the Red River Settlement.
Announces the Mission of Sir Clinton Murdoch.
‘Instructions to Major-General Lindsay, who is proceedmg fo
Canada to take command of the Troops - -

176
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SUBJECT,

i
Number
< A Number and Date.
Series.
15 | 2Aprl, 18700 - -
{Confidential.)
- “(Extracty -
16 |9 April, 1870 - -
: (Telegram.)
a7 {18 April, 1870 -- -~
(Tglegram.)
‘18 | 23 April, 1870 - -
Telegram.)
" 19 | 30 Aprl, 1870 - -
(Telegram.)
20 | 6 May, 1870 - -
(Telegram.)
21 j 10 May, 1870 (No. 111.)
22 | 18 May, 1870 (No. 118.)
23 | 19 May, 1870 (No. 119.)
24 | 19 May, 1870 (No. 120.)
25 | 19 May, 1870 (No. 121,)
26- | 25 May, 1870 (No. 127.)
27 | 26 May, 1870 (No. 129.)
28 | 81 May, 1870 - -

(Confidential.)

ﬁespmﬁng the conditions upon which the Imperial Troops may
be allowed to co-operate with the Canadian Force in support-
- ing orderin the Red River Settlement - - - - -

Telegraph, as soon as you can, result of negotiations with Dele-
gates, and whether you accept our conditions as to the time of
transfer and apportionment of cost of troops - - - -

Pid Canadian Government authorize arrest of ‘Delegates ? | Full
information desired by telegraph - - - - - -

Abont the conditions upon which the Troops n;ay advance- -

Her Majesty’s Government accept your telegraphic proposal of
the 28th, if Canada accepts in other respects mine of the 23rd
instant - - - - - - - - - - -

Yes : the Troops may proceed. Who commands expedition and
who governs the Territory? - - - - - - -

Correspondence between the Hudson Bay Company, Sir John
" Rose, and this Department, relative to the payment of .the
300,000 due on the transfer - - - .- . - - .

Expressing the pleasure it afforded Lord Granville, in giving an
account of what had passed in the House of Lords, to acknow-

- ledge publicly the singular judgment, decision, and conciliation
with which the Canadian Government had acted since the
unfortunate outbreak - S . T

Aclmowledging with satisfaction the announcement that the Bill
for the government of the North-West Territory had passed
sanctioning ihe conditions agreed -upon with the Delegates
from the Red River Settlement - - - - - - .

Receipt by the Hudson Bay Company of the sum of 300,000L, paid
by Sir John Rose on account of the surrender- - -~ -
Correspondence with the Hudson Bay Company relative to the
proposal that a detachment of soldiers should be stationed at
York Factory T S TR

Acknowledging the Telegram stating that Mr. Archibald had
been appointed Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West - -

Correspondence with the Hudson Bay Company respecting the
despatch of stores to the Red River Settlement, and the claim
of the Company to indemnity in ease- of their suffering loss
with respect to those stores owing to the disturbances in the
Settlement - - - - - S

Acknowledging Governor’s Despatch éncloéing. Repérts' 'By Mr.
 Smith and the Rev. Mr. Thibaulf, and stating that the public
had derived much benefit from the judicious and praiseworthy

efforts of these gentlemen - -~ ~-- -- - -

177

177
177

1178

178
178
178

179
179
179

179

180

180

-

. CORRESPONDENCE BETWEEN THE COLONIAL OFFICE AND THE HUDSON

 BAY COMPANY.

(Extract.)

the surrender -

Number| . N , -
© in From whom, |Number and Date, SUBJECT. ~ Page.
Series. . ) :
1 | Colonial Office | 15 Sept, 1869 | Tranemitting Despatoh from the Governor-General of
Canada relative ‘to fixing .the date of the Transfer for
the 1st of December - - - - - - -} 181
2, | Hulion By | 23 Nov. 1869 Stating that the Deed of Swrrender isready - - - | 181
ompany. |- : :
' 8 | Hudeon Bay | 4 Dec. 1869 - | Hoping that no delay will take place in the acceptance of
Company. B £



SCHEDULE. it
Number :
in From whom, |Number and Date. SUBJECT. Page.
Beries.
4 .| Colonial Office | 8 Dec. 1869 - | Delay in the Transfer caused by the Disturbances - - | 182
Hudson Bay | 20 Deo. 1869- | Copies of Documents left at the Colomial Office, so as to:
Company. ‘ keep Lord Granville informed of what reaches the
N ‘Company -~ - - - = - = . .i183
6 | Hudson Bay | 28 Dec. 1869- | Urges completion of the Transfer - -~ - - -~ -} 186
Company. )
7 | Hudson Bay | 4 Jan. 1870 - | Enclosing communication from Governor Mactavish on the
Company. present state of Affairs - - - - - ]88
8 | Colonial Office | 8 Jan. 1870 - | In reply to the Company’s Letter of the 28th December
' urging that the arrangements for the Transfer may be
proceeded with without delay - - - - - 189
9 | Hudson. Bay | 15 Jan. 1870 - | Further communication from Governor Mactavish on the
Company. present state of Affairs - - - - - 1190
10 | Hudson Bay | 21 Jan. 1870- | Copy of a Proclamation dated 1st December, 1869, by the
Company. Hon. W. McDougall, transmitted - - - - -1195
11 | Hudson Bay | 21 Jan. 1870- | As to the proposed temporary delay in proceeding with the
Company, Trapsfer - - -« -~ - - - - -1106
12 | Hudson Bay | 22 Jan. 1870 - | The question of the Company’s pecuniary claims in con-
Company. nection with the pending Transfer of their Land to
Cenada - - - - - - - - .1198
13 | Hudson Bay | 25 Jan. 1870 - | Further communication from Governor Mactavish on the
Company. state of Affairts - - - - - - . _|199
14 | Colonial Office | 26 Jan. 1870 - | Acknowledging the Company’s Letters of the 21st and
25th instant. On the first of these Letters Lord Gran-
ville desires at present to withhold any observations
until he is made aware of the results of the Mission to
the Red River Territory of Mr. Thibault, Colonel Sala-
berry, and Mr. Donald Smith, which may render super-
fluous any discussion of the questions which it raises.
With regard to the second Letter respecting the pecu-
niary claim, states that it appears to be a reasonable
one - - - - - - - - - - | 200
15 | Colonial Office | 28 Jan. 1870~ | Acknowledging the Copy of the Proclamation which had
- been posted up-in the Red River Settlement, dated 1st | -
December, 1869 - - - - - - - -1200
16 | Hudson Bay | 28 Jan. 1870- | Enclosing further communications from Governor Mac-
Compeny. S tavish and the Hon, W. McDougall, and stating that
‘they view the state of Affairs at Red River with the
. . gravest apprehension -~ - - - - - -|200
17 | Hudson Bay | 2 Feb. 1870 - | Communications from Mr, Donald Smith and Mr, Kittsen
Company. to the effect that Riel was reported to be a prisoner, and
‘ Gavernor Mau.avish’s authority was restored at Red
River- - - - - - - - - .1203
18 | Colonial Office | 9 Peb, 1870 - | Acknowledging the above Letter of the 28th January - | 204 .
19 | Colonial Office | 10 Feb. 1870- | Acknowledging the above Letter of the 2nd instant -] 204
20 -| Hudson Bay | 17 Feb. 1870-
Company. Extracts of Letters from Governor Mactavish on the state
2! | Hudson Bay | 22 Fsb. 1870-|| ©ofafhis - - - - - - - 1205
Company.
.22 | Hudson Bay |26 Feb. 1870- »Comqying assurances of great satisfaction with which they
-] - Company. RSP 1 'had Jearnt of the megotiations the Canadian Commis-
sioners are now caxrying on at the Red River, but re-
- - - questing that Lord Granville will not give his assent to
. any arrangement until the Company have had an oppor-
. . . oo o s tunity:afiorded them of examination, &e. -~ - -] 206
23 | Hudson Bay | 25 Feb. 1870- | Contradicting the report that Governor Mactavish’s
Company. authority had been restored - - - - - -]2086




SCHEDULE.

viii
Ne!in;lber From whom. | Number and Date, SUBJECT. Pago.
Beries.
24 | Colonial Office | 28 Feb. 1870- | Acknowledging above Letter of the 17th instant - - | 207
25 | Colonial Office | 1 March, 1870 | In reply to the above Letter of the 25th February, and
suggesting that the Company should send some Repre-
sentative to Ottawa during the proposed negotiations - | 207
26 | Colonial Office | 8 March, 1670 Aeknowledgmg the Company’s Letterof tbe 22nd February 208
1870 -
27 | Colonial Office | 14 March, 1870 Acknowledging Company’s Letter of 25th uitimo, contra-
: - dicting the report that Govemor Mactavish’s authonty
had been restored - - - - 208
28 | Hudson Bay | 14 March, 1870, Sir Stafford Northeote to proceed to Ottawa, in conform1ty
Comrpany. Lord Granville’s suggestion - 208
20 | Hudson Bay | 17 March, 1870, Reporting the Substance of a Telegmm lately recexved
Company. from their Agent at St. Paul - 209
30 | Colonial Office | 24 March, 1870; Substance of & Telegram received from Sir John Young - | 209
31 | Hudson Bay | 29 March, 1870
Company. Substance of Telegrams recewed from the Company’s {209
Agent at St. Paul - 210
82 | Hudson Bay , 31 March, 1870
Company.
33 | Colonial Office | 4 April, 1870 | As fo Sir Stafford Northcote’s Missiom - - - -[210
34 | Colonial Office | 4 April, 1870 | Expressing Lord Granville’s concern at learning that one
Thomas Scott had been shot by the Provmonal Govern-
ment - - 210
35 | Hudson Bay | 8 April, 1870 | Announcing the arrival of two of tho Commissioners from
Company. Fort Garry, as reported per ’I'elegram by theu- Agent at
St. Paul 211
36 | Colonial Office | 9 April, 1870 | Acknowledging the Company's Letter of the 31st March - | 211
87 | Colonial Office | 18 April, 1870 | About the arrival of the Delegates - - - - -}211
88 | Colonial Office| 16 April, 1870 | Enquiring whether, upon the payment of the 300,000..,
P they will hand over the Deed of Surrender, and 'leave
the claim for interest or compensation to be dea.lt thh
separately, and at a future time - - 212
39 Hucdson Bay | 19 April, 1870 In reply to theabove - - - - - - .1212
ompany.
40 | Colonial Oﬁioe 5 May, 1870 - | About the payment of the 300, 0001 and the dehvery
of the Deed of Surrender - 213
41 | Hudson Bey 7 May, 1870 - | Enclosing the Deed of Surrender, dnly executed nnder
Company. the Sesl of the Company - - 213
42 | Hudson Bay | 7 May, 1870 - | With regard to placing a small detachment of Soldlers
Compauy. at York Factory - - 213
43 | Colonial Office | 9 May, 1870 - | Stating that Sir John Bose lmd been requested to pay over
. the 300,0001. - 214
44 | Hudson Bay | 11 May, 1870 | Reporting that the 300 0001. has this dey been pmd over to
Company. them - - - 1214
45 | Hudson Bay | 13 May, 1870 | Forwarding Extract of a Letter from Governor Mactavish
Company. on the state of Affairs, and enquiring whether Her
Majesty’s Government would give any engagement to
the Compeny to indemnify them aﬁ inst any loss or
damage i of certain Stoyes which the Company
contemplate sending to Rupert’s Land - - 214
46 | Colonial Office | 17 May, 1870 | In reply fo theabove - . - - - - -]1218
47 | Colonial Office | 19 May, 1870 | As to placing a smnll iiome at York Factory in Hudson 218
1

Bay - -



SOHEDULE.

ix
Number
in From whom, | Number and Date. SUBJECT. Paye.
Series.
48 | Hudson Bay | 20 May, 1870 | Further as to the liability of the Imperial Government for
Company. | loss or damage of Storec which the Compa.ny contem-
; plate sending to Rupert's Land - 219
i
4y | Colonial Office | 26 May, 1870 | In reply to the above, and stating that Her MaJestys
‘; Government do not accept the liability - 219
CORRESPONDENCE BETWEEN THE COLONIAL OFFICE AND
SIR JOHN ROSE, K.C.M.G.
1 Sll‘ John Rose | 22 Nov. 1869 | Reporting that Mr. McDougall had been stopped, while |
on his way to Red Rlver, by an armed force of Half- '
l breeds - - - - =220
2 ! Sir John Rose | 256 Nov. 1869 | Requesting that the acceptance of the surrender aund the |
. ‘ payment of the money may be deferred until the views |
of the Canadian Government, as to the effect which the °
‘ : late events may have, can be deﬁmtely ascertained -~ 220
8 ' Colonial Office, 16 Dec. 1869 | Enclosing Correspondence with the Hudson Bay Company ‘:
| relative to the delay in the Surrender - 221
4 1 Sir John Rose | 22 March,1869| Arrival of Delegates uncertain ; will send earliest news - 221
{ (Telegram.)
&  Sir John Rose | 4 May, 1870 | Awaits Lord Granville's ]nstmctlons for paymg over to ‘5
‘ the Company the 300,000L - . 221
6 Cclonial Office | 9 May, 1870 | Requesting him fo pay over the money - - - - l 222
7 ‘ Sir John Rose | 11 May, 1870 | Reporting that the money has been duly paid over - - ) 222
8 | Colonial Office| 17 May, 1870 | Acknowledging the abovo Letter, and stating that the “‘
3 Hudson Bay Company had mformed Loxd Granvllle of
i the receipt of the money - 223
REUTER'S TELEGRAMS.
] {
1 - - | 21 Dec. 1869 i ;
On the state of Affairs up to these dates - - - 1 223
2 )
I

- - 1 Feb. 1870 - !
)




CORRESPONDENCE

RELATIVE TO THE

RECENT DISTURBANCES IN THE RED RIVER
SETTLEMENT.

. ’ Despatches from the Governor.

No. 1.

Cory of a TELEGRAM from Governor the Rt. Hon. Sir Jory Young, Bart,,
to Sir F. Rogers, Bart., KCMG.

Halifax, August 20th, 1869.
(Received August 20th, 1869.)

Fix date of transfer of Hudson Bay Company for first December. _ Privy Council so
desire.

No. 2.

ExTrACT from a DESPATCH from Governor the Rt. Hon. Sir J. Youne, Bart., G.C.B.,
G.CM.G., to The EaArL GraxviLLE, K.G., dated Halifax, 25th August, 1869. (No.87.)

(Received 6th September, 1869.)
1. I beg to state that, on the 20th inst,, I sent ¢the following Telegram to Sir
Frederick Rogers at the Colonial Office :—

“ E(‘llx date of transfer of Hudson's Bay Company for 1st December. Privy Council
“so desire.”

2. It was deemed expedient to change the date from October 1st to December 1st, in
order to give more time to complete the financial and other arrangements consequent on
the transfer.

3. Although the Bill, guaranteeing the £300,000, has received Her Majesty’s
sanction, it will take some time (especially as the suggested interchange of money for
the Intercolonial Railway Loan cannot be admitted) to make the arrangements that
must be made for putting the Loan on the Market and raising the money.

» » ® » s = » » * -

Caxapa.
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. Excellency, on the state
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No. 3.
Copy of a DESPATCH from Governor The Rt. Hon. Sir J. Young, Bart,, G.C.B,,
G.C.M.G,, to The Earr GranviLLg, K.G. :
(No. 132, .-+ ..+, ¢t -Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
I : © " 17th November 1;369.
Received 3rd D ber, 1869,

My Loz, _ (Answergd?%?gezw,r 131:1?%181:!918;1)61‘, 18%39, page 173.)
1. I have the honour to forward herewith a Copy of an approved Minute of the

Privy Council for Canada, with reference to the _preliminary Instructions addressed to
the Honourable W. McDougall, C.B:, on proceeding ta the North-West Territory:: .

2. Mr’ McDougall ‘was: the'Minister for Public Works in the Dominion Government,
but will assume the office of Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territory, so soon

as the transfer takes place. T s
: I have, &c.,
The Earl Granville, K.G., (Signed) JOHN YOUNG.
&e. &e. &ec.

. | Enclosures in No. ,3.) | _ ‘
Cory of a ReroRT of a CoMMITTEE of the Honourable the Privy Councit approved by His
ExXCELLENCY the GOVERNOR-GENERAL in Council on the 28th September, 1869.

The Committee have had under consideration the annexed Draft of a Letter proposed to be addressed
by the Secretary of State for the Provinces to the Honourable William McDougall as his E‘e]iminary
Tnstructions on proceeding to the North-West Territorie. . and on the recommendation of the Honourable
the Minister of .}) ustice advise that the same be approved by your Excellency.

(Certified) Ww. H. Leg, Clerk P. C.

Office of the Secretary of State for the Provinces,
28th September, 1869,

1. As you have been appointed Lieutenant-Governor of the North-West Territories, in anticipa-
tion of the formal transfer of &ose Territories by Her Majesty to the Dominion-of Canada, and, as it is
expected that such transfer will be made within the course of the next two or three months, I have the
honour, by command of His Excellency the Governor-Geeneral, to inform you that it is desirable that
no time should be lost in making the necessary preliminary arrangements for the organization of the
Government of the Territories.
- 2. With this view, I am to instruct you to proceed with all convenient speed to Fort Garry, in order
that you may effectually superintend the carrying out of the preliminary arrangements indicated in
the preceding paragraph, and be ready to assume the Government of the Territories on their actual
transfer to Canada. _

8. On your arrival at Fort Garry, you will place yourself at once in communication with Mr.
McTavish, the Governor of the: Hudson’s Bay Company, and notify him ofmiour' appointment;: you
will at the same time offer seats in your Council to Mr. McTavish, and to Mr. Blaci,'

Sir,

or other Chief
Judicial Officer of the Hudson’s Bay Corspany now in the Territory. Should either or both of these
gentlemen decline to accept office, you will submit, for the consideration of His Excellency, the names
of one or two other Officersof the Company whom you consider eligible to act as Members of your
Council. You will at the same time submit -the names of several of the residents of character and
standing in the Terrifory, unconsected. with the Company, qualified to act as Councillors,- giving
particulars respecting them, and stating their comparative merits. o
4. You will have the %oodness to report with all convenient speed, for the information of His
of the Laws now existing in the Territories ; transmitting copies of any Laws,
Ordinances, or Regulations of the Company now'in force there, together with ‘a ‘%ull‘ eport as o the
mode of administering’Justice, the organization of the Courts, the number and mode of appointment of
Justices of the Peace, the Police arrangements, and the means adopted for keeping the peace, &c.-

5. In, preparing the Report on the matters referred to in the preceding paragraph, it will be well
that you should confer with the Chief Judicial Officer of the Company in the. Territories,, . = = -

6. You will'have the gooduess to report also upon the System of Taxation (if any) now in force in
the Territories, thé system of licensing shops, taverns, &c. ; the mode of regulating or prohibiting the
sale of wines, spirituous and malt liquors, and further as to the mode of: keeping up the roads, and
generally on the municipa.l‘orﬁa.n.ization (if any) existing in the Territories.

7. You will also mak? a full Report upon the state of the Indian Tribes now in the Territories, their
numbers, wants, and claims; the system heretofore: pursued by the Hudson’s Bay Company in dealing
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with them; accompanied by any suggestions you may desire to offer with reference to their protection,
and to the improvement of their condition,

8. You will have the goodness to report also on the nature and amount, of. the Cuxrency or circulating
medium now employed in the Territories, and of the probable requirements of the Territories in ‘that
respect in the future., . , . :

9. You will also regort on the System of Education (if any) which now obtains in the Territories,

“ 10. You will also please to report-as to such lands in the Territories as it may be desirable to open
up at once for settlement, transmitting a plan of such Survey as may be necessary, with an Estimate
of the cost of survey, & statement of the conditions of grants of land and settlememt; the Plan should
show the number of townships it is proposed to lay out at once, the size and aituation of the townships,
and the size of the lots, making the necessary reservation for churches, schools, roads, and other public
ages. - SRR o

Pmﬁ. You will also report upon the relations at present existing between the Hudson’s Bay Company
and the different religious bodies in the Territories.. - , '

12. You will also report as to the number of Officers now employed b& the Hudson’s Bay Com-
pany in the administration of the Government of the Territories, stating the duties and salaries of
such officers, and specifying those who should, in your opinion, be retained. You will also report as
to the number of persons whom it will be necessary hereafter to employ in the administration of the
Government ; and you will report generally on all subjects ¢onnecte£ with the welfare of the Territories,
upon which it may seem to you desirable to communicate with the Goovernment of the Dominion.

13. It is desirable that you should take immediate measures for the extension of the Telegraph
System from the Territory to Pembina, and for its connection at that place with the System of the
American Telegraph Company or Companies, making any provisional amnﬁemenfs for that purpose
that may be necessary, and forwarding a copy of such arrangements to this Department for con-
firmation by His Exeslleney.

The Honourable Wm. McDougall, C.B.

No.4.

Cory of a TELEGRAM from Governor the Rt. Hon. Sir J. Young, Bart., G.C.B,
G.CM.G,, to The Earr GranviLLg, K.G.

November 23rd, 1869, -

McDougall, who has been designated Lieutenant-G overnor of North-West Territory when
transferred, has been stopped on his way to Fort Garry by a small force of armed insur-
gent half-breeds. Authorities of Hudson’s Bay Company, with whom the Government
still rests, are apparently inactive and powerless. Provisional Committee of (tovern-
ment: John Bruce, President, has been appointed by half-breeds. MacTavish, the
Governor, is very ill, and reported to be dying.

No. 5.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor the Rt. Hon. Sir J. Youwa, Lart,, G.C.B,;-
G.C.M.G., to The EArL GranviLLg, K.G. _ .
(No. 134.)
Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
: 25th November, 1869.
My Lorp, (Beceived 8th December, 1869.)
(Answered, No. 7, 8th January, 1870, p. 173.)
I have the honour to transmit, for your Lordship’s information, copies of all' the
Correspondence up to this date, in the possession of the Canadian Government, relating
to the obstruction offered to Mr. McDougall’s (the designated Lieutenant-Governor)
entrance into the North-West Territory by a portion of the French half-breeds.

Affairs have, however, advanced since the dates given, and we have learnt from other
sources that the armed half-breeds, encouraged, as is alleged, by some of the French
Priests, have formed a- Provisional Government, defied the Hudson Bay Company
authorities, and taken possession of the Fort and Stores. '

The English and Scotch halfbreeds have taken no part in this movement, but are
unwilling to come info armed collision with the insurgents; even the French half-breeds
themselves are stated o be divided in opinion. ‘ ‘

There are no Indians near the place, and their opposition, in any case, to the French
half-breeds may, I am informed, be entirely relied upon. : o
iz The most extravagant misstatements ha]x;e been circulated about the intentions of the

Caxapa.

No.4. -

No. &.

Sec. of State
for the Pro-
vinces, 22nd
Nov., 1869.
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Caxapa.  Canadian Government, and misapprehensions created which there will be some difficulty
—— inremoving. The Ministers have, as a preliminary, decided upon sending up emissarjes
well known to, and personally liked by, these French half-breeds, to confer with them

and, if possible, disabuse their minds of the erroneous impressions that have been made

upon them.
PO I have, &c.,

The Earl Granville, K.G., (Signed) JOHN YOUNG.
&e. &e. &e. ’

P.S. I beg to enclose some Newspaper extracts, which contain a review of the

subject. ’
IJ also enclose copies of two Telegraphic Messages just received on the same subject.

_ Enclosarcs ~ (No. 995.) Enclosures in No. 5. ’
“‘:“ 5]"{ Sz, Ottawa, 22nd November, 1869.
“MeDoogall, I have the honour to transmit to you herewith, a Copy of the Correspondence between the

Pembing, 315t Honourable Mr. McDougall and this Department since the arrival of the former at Pembina en routs

0ct, 1869.  for Fort Garry. : .

Hon, Mr. The Enclosures mentioned in Mr. McDougall’s Letter of the 31st ultimo are also transmitted.
McDougall. In addition to the Ofiicial Correspondence, I send a Copy of a Letter from Mr. Sanford, of Hamilton,
Izimbligg,g 4th giving further details about the matters referred to in Mr. McDougall’s Letters.

I have, &e.,,
" ?‘i%:{,s‘“‘" (Signed) JOSEPH HOWE,
vinoes, F, Turville, Esquire, Governor’s Secretary. Secretary of State.
19th Nov,,
1869,
18th Nov., .
1863, ‘ Hudson Bay Post, Pembina,
SiR, . ) October 31st, 1869.

I have the honour to report my arrival at this place last evem'nf, where I have determined to
remain for a short time, in consequence of the events hereinafter detailed.

Rumours of hostile movements on the part of the French half-breeds against the authority of the
Canadian Government, reached me at several points between St. Panl and Pembina, but they were so
wild and contradictory that I gave little heed to them., ’

I met the Hon. Joseph Howe on his return from Fort Garry, about half a day’s journey south of
Georgetown, in the open prairie. As the weather was stormy we had only a velzashort interview. He
stated that the people of Red River Settlement were well-disposed towards the Canadian Government,
but, from some circumstances of which he would advise me by Letter from Fort Abercrombie, the
feelings of a certain section of the population had been excited, and that delicate handling would be
necessary to allay them. He did not state, and apparently did not anticipate, that there was any
danger of an armed insurrection before my arrival at Fort Garry.

At a point about thirty miles from this post.where I camped for the night, I met & Mr. Lanford, of
Hamilton (Ontario), who };ut into my hands Despatches, of which the enclosed are copies (marked
A, B, C, D). He stated, also, that he was stopped at Scratching River (about fifteen miles from  Fort
Garry) by a body of armed men, who had thrown a barricade across the road, and who expressed their
-determination to prevent me from passing that point. He had no doubt of their intention to, carry
-out their threats by force, if necessary. - o
_ His Report of the state of feelings among the French half-breeds, and of the movements of the
Insurgents, confirmed generally the statements in the enclosed Papers.

' On my arrival at the American Customs House at Pembina, a half-breed, who had been waiting
there for the last three or four days, put into my hands a Letter, of which the Paper marked E is a
LCopy, and immediatel disapgearéd.‘ I paid no attention to his Letter, but, as soon as. the proper
entries had been.made by the Collector, proceeded to the Hudson Ba); Company’s Post about.two
miles distant, and within the “Territory of the North-West.” Here I found another Despatch
(marked F), with a Note from Colonel Dennis (marked ~ ). ’

This morning I determined to send Mr. Provencher (who with Mr. Richards and Captain Cameron
accompanied me from Port Abercrombie to this place) to Fort Garry, if permitted to go so far, with a
verbal message to Governor McTavish announcing my arrival within his jurisdiction, and claiming his
protection for myself and party. Mr. Provencher was instructed to ascertain from the Insurgents by a
friendly conference, if possible, their object, and the extent of the force at their command. He was
instructed to assure them of the determination of the Government to deal justly with all classes, and
to respect existing rights without reference to race or religion. But he was to explain to them that
until the New Government was organized, and so long as they remained with arms in their hands, no
Official communication could be had with them by me or any one-on my behalf. Mr. Provencher left
this morning about 8 o’clock; with a reliable guide who is well acquainted with the country and the
‘half-breeds of the Settlement. . L . , :

- X shall remain here with Mr. Richards and the balance of my party until I hear from Mr, Provencher, :
or learn from other sources that the Insurgents have dispersed. ' ' :
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1 have further to report that Captain Cameron of the Royal Artillery, who accompanied me in his  Cawapa.
.own conveyance for the greater part of the way from St. Cloud, and who expects to hold an appoint- ~ ~——
ment under the Government, determined this morning to proceed to Fort Garry on his own responsi-

bility. I endeavoured to dissuade him from making the attempt until we had some assurance that

the road would not be obstructed, but he persisted in making preparations for the journey, whereupon I

¢ addressed him the following Note, (marked G).

:  After reading my Note he said he would take all risks, and proceeded on his journey, taking with

“‘him his wife and two servants,

¢ I have just heard that I am to have a visit to-morrow from the Chief of a band of Chippewa Indians,

# who claim title to a large tract of country, extending from the boundary line at Pembina towards Fort

{ Garry. I have agreed to ¢alk with him, and will report the result of my interview in due course.

I have, &c.,
(Signed) WILLIAM McDOUGALL.

 The Hononrable the Secretary of State
for the Provinces, Ottawa.

November 1st, 1869.

i+ PostscripT.~Colonel Dennis and Mr. William Hallett have just arrived from Fort Garry, having
‘ made a detour over the Prairie, in order to avoid the armed party at Scratching River. The situation
{ 38 but little changed, excegt that the attempt of the Insurgents to rally the Indians to their side has
failed. Two Chiefs who obeyed their summons returned home, refusing to take part in the movement
when they had ascertained its nature, : :
I have just bad a long talk with the Chief of the tribe who claim the country in this neighbour-
hood. They repudiate all sympathy with the ?altl";breeds who are in arms.
n haste, )
(Signed) WILLIAM McDOUGALL.

( A )

Memoranpun of Facrs and CIRCUMSTANCES connected with the active Opposition by the FrENcH
HaLr-BREEDS in this Settlement to the prosecution of the GOVERNMENT SURVEYS.

Fort Garry, October 11th, 1869.

This day about 2 P.M. 8 messenger arrived, Mr. Farmer, Chairman of Mr. Webb’s party, employed
in surveying the base line, or parallel of Iatitude, between townships 6 & 7 east of the meridian, on
which service the party left a week ago to-day, bringing the unwelcome information from Mr, Webb
that his further progress with the Survey had been stopped by a band * of some eighteen French half-
breeds, headed by a man named Louis I{iel. ‘

Mr. Webb had projected the line to about the Fourth Section in Township 7, Second Range East,
and being within, say, two and a half miles of the Red River, when this occurrence took place.

He was ordered by the leader of the party at once to desist from further running the line, and in
fact notified that he must leave the country on the south side of the Assiniboine, which country the
party claimed as the property of the French half-breeds, and which they would not allow fo be
surveyed by the Canadian Government.

No arms were seen with the party, but by standing on the chain and using threats of violence if the
Survey was -persisted in, it became evident that to go on with the Survey would probably have led to

& collision, and Mr, Webb, in accordance with written instruciions which I had previously given him,
to provide for any such contingency, discontinued his work, and as the half-breeds would not allow him
to remain encamped where he was, moved his camp out to the main road on the Red River, waiting
for orders, having sent off in the mean time Mr. Farmer, as above stated.

I at once waited on Dr., Cowan, the Chief Magistrate in the Settlement, and laying the facts of the
case before him, reqluested that he would consult with the Governor, or such other Magistrate as he
might think desirable to call in, and take such further steps with regard to this outrage as he and they
might think called for under the circumstances. '

I remarked to Dr. Cowan, at the same time, that I questioned whether, owing to the unsettled
telation of the land tenure as regarded the half-breeds and Indians, and the peculiar irritation or
sensitiveness that existed on the part of the French half-breeds in view of the transfer of the Territory
and the assumption of the Government by Canada, it would be politic to take harsh measures towards
the offenders in this case; but stated that, as he and his brother Magistrate knew the temper and

_feelings. of the Yleople in the Settlement generally, I left the matter in their hands, satisfied that
th%r would do what would seem most advisable under the circumstances. '
efore I Jeft Dr. Cowan it was settled that he would call in another Magistrate, Mr. Goulet, and
consult with him as to what course to take. :

: . A Tuesday, 12th October.
I waited on Dr. Cowan this morning about 11 o’clock, and was informed that he and Mr. Goulet had
thought it best to send for Riel the leader, and ascertain what the party meant by this proceeding, and

* Names of Band:—~Louis Riel, leader, De Saugré and Son, Baptiste Nona, Baptiste Treuau and three

Sons, Frangois Charest, Bideau Non, Edward Morin, Mannin Non, Janvive Richot, Benjamin Non; three
others, names not known,
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explain to him and them the serious character of the offence of which they had been guilty, and
engeavour quietly to obtain a promise that no further opposition should be made to continuing the
Survey.

Thcg7 Magistrates had done so accordingly, but had failed either to extract from him any rational
excuse for their proceeding (beyond the assertion that the Canadian Government had no right to make
Surveys in the '%erritory without the express permission of the people in the Settlement) or any
promise that their oppesition would be withdrawn.

Dr. Cowan stated further that Riel was to be back at 2'o’clock, when he, the Doctor, if Riel still
refused to listen to reason, would bring in the influence of Governor McTavish, whose health being in
a critical condition, he had desired should not be troubled, if it could be avoided.

Wednesday, October 13th.

Dr. Cowan informed me this morning that the interview of himself and Governor Mc¢Tavish with
Riel in the interview which had taken place yesterday had been in no respect satisfactory; that Riel
still persisted that injustice was being done by the Canadian Government, and utterly refused to with-
draw from the position he and those under him had taken,

Dr. Cowan said he should now apply to the Father Superior Lestane, in charge of the diocese during
the absence of Bishop Taché, and that he felt sanguine that the Reverend Egather—if so disposed—
could put a stop to the trouble at once.

It being important that I should no longer delay visiting another of my parties under the charge of
Mr. Hart, engaged in projecting the meridian up near Shoal Lake, on which service, had this trouble
not occurred, I should have left on the afternoon of the 11th instant, I determined to leave to-day,
desiring Dr. Cowan, after consulting with Father Lestanc, fo send a note to my office stating the
result, and, instructing Mr. Webb accordingly, I started on the service above-mentioned.

____ October 14th to 20th, both inclusive.
Absent at Shoal Lake, and examining country between that lake and Lake Manitoba.

October 21st. *

Having returned to the Settlement late last night, I found Dr. Cowan’s efforts with Father Lestanc
had been without avail, the Reverend Father declining to attempt to use any influence with the party
of half-breeds.in question. » : :

Dr. Cowan informed me that the Reverend Father, in explanation of his refusal, said that any such
atteropt, in consequence of an idea which possessed the half-breeds that the Company was in co{lusion
with the Canadian Government, would bave a tendency to impress them with the idea that the Church
also was in sympathy with the Government, and so might lead to weakening their influence over their
people in a religious point of view.

Dr. Cowen had written a note (see same, dated 15th October), announcing the entire failure of his
endeavours to get over the opposition of the French Settlers to the Survey, in consequence of which
M. Webb, according to- my instructions in such event, had withdrawn his party to the north side of
the Assiniboine, and was proceeding with the surveying of the Settlement north.of Fort Garry, to
which no opposition was offcred.

-Such: is the present condition. of affairs. : :
' Same day, 4 o’clock, ey, .
* The High Constable, Mullinan, has: just.come in to inform me, as a matter of duty, that a-meeting
took place yesterday at the house of a French half-hreed named Bruce, on the other side of the river,
by a number of the disaffected French party, among whom the man Riel was conspicuous.

That at such meeting it was resolved to send an armed party to meet the Governor, whom they
expected to come in to-morrow, and to prevent, at all hazards, his entering the Settlement..

nder these circumstances, not wishing to. identify myself with any ane of the three parties into
which the people in the village are evidently divided, and. who have no sympathy with each other,
either socially or politically, I.called in the counsel of two Canadian gentlemen, Messrs, Sanford and
Turner-of Hamilton, who had accompanied Mr. Howe on his visit, and. remaining behind that gentleman,
werestill in the.Settlement. , A . o -

He considered that the circumstances called for immediate and. vigorous action on the part of the
authorities, and it was arranged that Mr, Turner and I should wait upon Judge Black, and inform him
of the. intended opt‘rslz%re. : . j A o

We found Judge Black at his residence some four miles down the Settlement, and laid the matter
before: him,, and it was arranged that he should wait upon the Governor and. Dr. Cowan early
to-morrow mornir;;;gi1 to concert measures to defeat the object of the refractory half-breeds. -
~ On our return there were reports confirmatory of the statements we had heard.

' : Friday, October 22nd.
‘T met Judge Black, Governor McTavish, and Dr. Cowan this m‘ominE ‘at the Fort by appointment,
when the matter was fully discussed in all its bearings; and, in view of the serious t of affairs, the
Grovernor thou%ht it only proper that a meeting of the Council of the Colony should be convened with
the least possible délay, and upon their advice and action su_ch_further-stegs'should be promptly taken

- as should effectually prevent the perpetration of the gross outrage intende
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. i the object intended by this armed y, reference is called to the Affidavit of
:MrI.n s wgenge gf a Cop)"] of which is theto annexed%ich was made during the afternoon, the
original having been sworn to before Dr. Cowan, and remaining in his possession.

This Affidavit was further corroborated by a statement made about 4 P, by Mr. Lyons, merchant of
the village, who on his way from Pembina to-day found a body of armed men in possession of the
roadway near the crossing of the River Sale across which they had thrown a barricade, through which
barricade they were not allowed to pass without explanation, and giving satisfactory assurances that a

" stranger who formed one of the party was not connected with the Canadian Government. . .

The Meeting of Council Governor McTavish called for Mondqy, the 25tb instant, it being

stated that some of the members resided at such a distance that it could not be convened at an

" earlier date.
I have, &c.,
Red River Settlement, (Signed) G. Dexxs.
October 23rd, 1869.
( B. )
DEeAR SIR, Fort Garry, 15th October, 1869.

I very much regret to say that we have failed entirely in our endeavours to get over the
opposition of the French Settlers to the Survey. .
Governor McTavish has done all in his power in the present state of his health, and every effort has
been made by Mr. Goulet and myself to persuade these men, but to no purpose. )
I believe that they are now of opinion that we are influenced unduly in favour of the Canadian
Government, so that it is in vain for us to have any ﬁirther qongi;erences with them at present.
' remain &e.,
Col. Dennis, (Signed)  Wirnuiam Cowaw. :

i

( C)
My DEar Cor. Denxis, - Monday afternoon.
Your note has just been handed me, and of course, if you wish it, I will be very glad to see you
after the meeting of Council, which will probably not be over before two o’clock, but I will send down
and let you know. Matters, from information that Las reached me, look serious, but it is very difficult
judging of affairs of this kind here, and sometimes when the case looks bad the whole thing subsides.
I have seen too many difficulties here got over quietly, to despair until the worst has taken place, but
1 must allow there are incidents in the present case thut bave not been in former troubles.
' ' Yours truly,
(Signed)  W. McTaviss.

Rep Rrver Snmnmr,} - ( D)
To Wit

# * » DMaketh oath, and saith

During the afternoon of yesterday, some twenty men or thereabouts, fully armed, made their
appearance at the crossing of River Salé, on the road between here and Pembina, near the Tannery of
t]I;e Deponent ; and other and smaller parties of men, also armed, kept coming in during the afternoon
and evening, till as many as forty were in the party. A :

That the said party. of forty men are now billetted (or were when the Deponent left home this ..,
at which time they had sent off some men for more provisions) round in the adjacent houses.

That the men composing the said party, deponent believes, all belong to the parish of St. Norbrot
above mentioned, and St. %ital, and that the avowed object of their meeting in arms and waiting at
the said point was to turn back ‘the new Governor Mr. McDougall, and not al%ow him to enter further
into the Colony. One of the men, in conversation with the Deponent, who was naturally anxious to
find out the meaning of such an assemblage with arms in-their hands, told the Deponent the above
wag their object, and further said that if the Governor (Fersisted in attempting to come further than
that point, i.c. the crossing of the River Sal4, they would shoot him.

The Deponent saith further that he was informed by this party, and believes the same (inasmuch as
he saw a number of horsemen passing previously), that another party mounted, supposed to consist of
twenty men or more, are now in advance somewhere about Scratching River, accompanied by a man
named Riel; whese intention it is to stop the Governor and submit to him several questions or rather
demands, in the event of refusing which l;Je is to be warned not to proceed.

There is a further and third party between the two points mentioned; which this Deponent, from
information received, believes to number forty men, '

Should the Governor persist in coming forward, notwithstanding repeated warnings, these parties
will fall back on the reserve at the River galé, and there final action will be taken as above mentioned,
should he still further endeavour to force his way on to the Settlement.

" The Deponent further saith, that among other houses in the vicinity where certain of the forty men
at the River Salé are billetted, ten of the armed’ party find quarters at the house of the'curé, Rev.
Peére Ritchot. L ‘ -

Finelly, that this Deponent seriously believes that the said men are truly in earnest, and that,

without prompt action be taken by the ‘Authorities to avert the same, s serious calamity is about to

Caxaba
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ensue in an outrage which may be of a fatal character on the person of the honourable gentleman now
about entering the Colony to assume the charge of the Government. . e s e

Sworn before me at Fort Garry, . :
this 22nd day of Oct., 1869, (Signed) ~ Wiiriax Cowax, J.P.

( B )

MoNsIEUR, Datée  St. Porbert, Riviere Rouge, ce 21*=¢ Jour d’ Octobre, 1869.
Le Comité National des Metis de la Rivitre Rouge intime a Monsieur Wm. McDougulk
Tordre de ne pas entrer sur lo territoire due Nord Ouest sans une permission spéciale de ce Comité.
Par ordre du President John Bruce,

A Monsieur . MacDougall. Louis RikL, Sécrétaire.

( F) .
Wednesday, 27th October, 1869.—(Noon.)

Have just returned from a visit to the lower part of the Settlement on the west side of Red
River, baving left yesterda! afternoon.
Called upon * *

and others,
From the conversations had with these different gentlemen, I am satisfied that the general disposition

is in favour of receiving the incoming Government with respect, but there is no enthusiasm.

The attitude of the English-speaking portion of the Colony may, I think, be fairly stated as
follows : )

They say, We feel a disposition to extend a sincere welcome to the Hon. Mr. McDougall, as the
gentleman who has been selected for our future Governor. .

We regret sincerely that the good name of the Colony should be prejudiced by any such action as
that we are told is contemplated by a portion of the French half-breeds. ‘

We consider it a most outrageous proceeding on their part, and one that we would be glad to see,
if possible, put & stop to. At the same time, should an appeal to arms be necessary, we could hardly
justify ourselves in engaging in a conflict which would be, In our opinion, certain to resolve itself into
one of nationalities and religions, and of which we could hardly at present see the termination.

We feel this way ; we feel confidence in the future administration of the Government of this country
under Canadian rule, At the same time, we have not been consulted in any way as a people, inr
entering into the Dominion.

The character of the new Government has been settled in Canada without our being consulted. We
are prepared to accept it respectfully, to obey the laws and to become good subjects; but when Xou
present to us the issue of a conflict with the French garty, with whom we have hitherto lived in
friendship, backed up as they would be by the Roman Catholic Church, which appears probable by the
course at present being taken by the priests,—in which conflict it is almost certain the aid of the
Indians would be invoked, and perhaps obtained by that party,—we feel disinclined to enter upon it,
and think that the Dominion should assume the responsibility of establishing amongst us, * “which
it and it alone has decided upon. ,

At the same time we are ready, should the Council make an appeal to the Settlement, to prevent
the gross outrage contemplated by a large mounted deputation, unarmed, to meet and escort the
Honourable Wm. McDougall to Winnipeg, and thus show to the Settlement * of the Epglish-speaking
Eoﬁon of the Colony is entirely ogfosed to the present threatening movement by a portion of the

rench half-breeds; we will cheerfully and promptly respond to the call.

* * »* * * . -

7pM,

Mr. * * * has just come in, and reports that about eighty of the French party who are opposed to
the views of the Insurgents, met by invitation at the camp of the disaffected to-day, but that their
remonstrances and appeals to get them to disband were entirely without avail. ‘

Several priests were present, among others Pére Lestanc, the Father Superior.

Pere Lestanc took little or no part in the proceedings one way or another; some of the others were
less scrupulous, Pere Richot declaring in favour of the stand taken, and called upon the insurgents to
maintain their ground.

The appeals of this priest,* and of the leaders of the Insurgent party, had the effect of even with-
drawing, then and there, some twenty, or thereabouts, of Mr. Dease’s party over to their side.

Mr. * * * thereupon withdrew his party from the ground, and they accordingly went into camp s
short distance nearer to Fort Garry, where they are at present.

Mr. * * * previous to coming to me, states that he had an interview with Governor McTavish, in
which he expressed the determination of his party to remain together, and, if possible, to overawe the
others, with which view he requested a supply of arms and ammunition.

He proposes, if these are granted to his party, to escort the Governor in.

His proposition is for a number of his men, say fifteen, to ride down towards Pembina and meet Mr.
McDougall, and escort him straight to his residence on the Assiniboine, passing by the “0ld Crossing ” over

¢ * * ¢ another leader of the Dease party, testifies that on this occasion the priest raved and tore his

_gown, addresaing the assemblage in the most frantic and excited manner.
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the River Salé, possession of which, as it is understood that there are a few men of the Insurgents now
at that point, should previously have been taken by another party of his men. »

He does not fear that Mr. MeDougall will be interfered with at any other point.

He thinks that once on the north side of the Assiniboine at his own house, or at the Fort, five miles
lower down, Mr. McDougall would not be subjected to any indignity.

I accompanied Mr. Dease to the Tort, and had an interview with Governor McTavish, at which Dr.
Cowan was present, when Mr. Dease’s proposition was discussed.

The Governor, who was very feeble, and is evidently feeling the responsibility and delicacy of his
position, determined to consider the matter to-night, and to call in the aid of some Members of the
Council to-morrow morning, and decide what course was best to be pursued.

Tt is worthy of remark that Mr. Dease expressed his conviction, from what had fallen from the lips
of the Insurgent leaders, that it would not be a matter of much regret to them,—implying that they
would feel it a relief rather than otherwise, owing to the evident division among the French element,
—vere the Governor to find his way into the Settlement by another route.

Mr. Dease remarked to me that as his party were entirely without provisions, and he feared that if
they were obliged to go home it might be difficult to get them together again, and so prejudice the
position in favour of the Insurgents, and I agreed to send him a small supply to-morrow morning for
their sustenance, until the Council should have decided on the course to be taken,

There was no determination come to by Governor McTavish as to furnishing his party with arme.

I understood that there was three or four hundred stand of arms—the old « %rown Bess,” with
ammunition, at present in the Fort.

I may say further that I sent * * * a man of influence among the French half-breeds and
Indians—himself a French half-breed, but favourable to our cause, up to the French Settlement on the
4 White Horse Plains,” on the Assiniboine,—yesterday to use his influence to prevent the pcople there
from coming down to help the Insurgents. He returned to-day, and the result of his mission is given
in the annexed Paper,

(Signed)  J. S. DEnnIS.

MEMORANTCUM RESPECTING * * * Visir 1o THE WaHITE HoRrse PrAINs.

Tuesday Evening, October 26, 1869.

Came from the road—from Magan’s, Buston’s, and go to bring the horse from the church to the
water, The nuns see him water his horse; they run to him ang ask him “Did you come from St,
“ Vital,” they said to him, “to join the people? and do not let the Governor cross the lines or come
¢ into the country—he will speak and say many things to please you, fill his mouth with sugar, but he
¢ will do you much harm when he gets in.” :

They told the people to get their arms and "take them with them, supplied them with provisions,
bags of pemican, &e.  They got arms from Cowley—about twenty-eight or forty people.

Pr{est Cabina spoke against * * * letter to Buston, saying that Sherman wanted to blind the
people.

_Note—* * * knows about this—ask him.

Heard the priests and nuns declare, both, that the Bishop had sent letters from Canada, that the

Governor was not to be allowed to come into the Territory.

My pEaAR MR. McDoUGALL, ‘ October 27, 11 A.M.

The enclosed will bring matters up to last evening. This morning Mr. Dease has been with
me to say that Governor McTavish has decided to make an appeal to the people to obtain a large
unarmed party to go down and escort you through; in which case it will, no doubt, be responded to
generally. But this may take two or three days, as some parts of the Settlement are so distant.

In the mean time, till further fully advised to the contrary, you would only prejudice the chances of a
quiet settlement of affairs by endeavouring to force your way on. ‘

I will endeavour to keep you informed every day in some way or other, and you need only be
patient, if you can. '

The bearer, who is reliable, will give you an accurate account of the state of things on the road.

Most truly yours,
(Signed) J 8. DeNws.
If I find T can be of less use here than with you, I will at once go down to meet you.

J. 8. D.
Hon, William McDougall, 5 D

SD?, 4 Pembina, October 31, 1869.

I have the honour to inform you that information has reached me, of the truth of which I have
1o doubt, that the road to Fort Garry is barricaded, and in possession of a party of Insurgents, who
threaten to arrest and turn back the Representatives and Officials of the Canadian Government. I
have determined to await at this place communications from the Local Authorities at Fort Garry, who

adv:’lge that any attempt to force a passage under present circumstances would embarrass their pro-
ceedings.

As you will probably be regarded as an Official of the Canadian Government, I am of opinion that

C
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you will incur some personal risk, and may cause some embarrsssment to the loyal and peaceably
disposed in their efforts to quell the outbreak, by provoking a collision at the present moment.

fdo not make any order in your case, a8 I have no authority to direct your movements; but I wish
to relieve myself of ‘all responsibility for the consequences of your attempt to proceed immediately to

Fort Garry.
I have, &g.,
Captain D, R. Cameron, R.A. (Signed) W. McDovgALr.
MY DEAR SIR, ' Pembina, 4th November, 1869.

Having been engaged during the day in arranging for a temgomry residence on the American
side of the Line, and in writing to the Authorities at Fort Garry, I find I have only a few minutes left
to catch the Mail of to-day. Important events have occured since_my Report of the 31st instant.
On the 2nd instant a body of armed half-breeds galloped up to the Hudson Bay Post and demanded
an audience with me, 'T'wo of the leaders were admitted, and told me they had been sent to order me -
out of the North-West Territory. When I asked who sent them, they replied, the Government. To
my question, What Government? they said, “The Government they had made.” They said I must
leave by nine o’clock next morning. I explained my position ; but they were evidently very ignorant,
and had come for one object, viz, to compel me to leave the Territory. In the morning they
appeared at the gate with arms in their hands, and loudly demanded that we should leave, as after
nine o’clock they would not answer for our lives. We accordingly put our horses to our waggons, and
drove across the Line, accompanied by a portion of the party with arms in their hands.

We are now encamped on American territory, waiting the issue of events. As soon as I hear from
the Authorities at Fort Garry what action they or the people have taken on hearing of this outrage, I
shall determine my course, The weather is still fair, but winter may set in at any moment. Mr.
Provencher and Captain Cameron were sent back from the barricade under escort, and are now here.
There is a strong sympathy among the peogle here with the Insurgents. We are not free from peril ;
but will not run away so long as we see that any purpose can be served by our presence here. In

haste.
The Secretazy of State for the Provinces. Very respectfully,
(Signed)  'W. McDouearL,
Six, Ottawa, 19th Noveinber, 1869.

I had the honour to receive this morning your Despatch of the 31st ultimo, covering Colonel
Dennis’ Report and other Papers relating to the obstructions opposed to your progress through the
country lying between Pembina and Fort Garry.

Those Papers were promptly submitted to the Privy Council, and I am instructed to convey to you
their entire approval of the judgment and prudence displayed by you in the trying circumstances in
which you were placed.

At this distance from the scene of disturbance any instructions that could be sent to you would only
embarrass you, and restrain your freedom of action. You will therefore exercise your own judgment,
and decide on the instant, as circumstances change, what is best to be done.

The Government entertain the hope that the opposition presented will be withdrawn when the
prejudices aroused have been allayed by frank explanations; and in the mean time they would deeply
regret that blood should be shed, or that any hasty or intemperate exercise, even of lawful authority,
should, in the transfer of the Country, array the feelings of any large portion of the people against
your administration.

As matters stand you can claim or assert no authority in the Hudson Bay Territory until the
Queen’s Proclamation, annexing the Country to Canada, reaches you through this Office. It will
%robably be issued on the 2nd of December, and will be forwarded by a safe hand as soon as received.

ou had better inform Governor McTavish that you are only proceeding to ;Fort Garry on the
assumed consent of the Company and its Officers, and, having state(I) the facts, await his answer. If he
eiith_egd declines to admit you, or is powerless to give you safe conduct, stay were you are till further
advised. :

In due time, no doubt, when all peaceful means have been exhausted, should it be necessary, the
power of the Crown will be exerted, and the authority of this Government maintained. In the
mean time let me hear from you by every Mail, and inform me by what safe means we can com-
municate with the least possible delay.

I have, &e.,

Hon. Wm. McDougall, ' (Signed)  JoserE Hows,
Secretary of State for the Provinces.

My pEAR WHELOCK, ‘ Ottawa, November 19th, 1869,
Send this by a safe hand as quickly as you can, so that it may not be stopped or tampered
with by the way.
Yours truly,

- o ( (Signed)  Joserr Howe,
L ' ecretary of State for the Provinces,
Say nothing of this; the expense will be paid.
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Copy of a TELEGRAM from MR, Josepn Howg, Secretary of State for the Provinces, to
Mz. W. E, Laxrorp, Hamilton.
‘ November 20th, 1869.
Letter received, thanks; telegraph any new facts.
Need not come here.

Copy of a TELEGRAM from Mr. Josern HowE, Secretary of State for the Provinces, to
MR. JosepE WHELOCK, St. Paul, Minesota.
November 20th, 1869.

Letter for you mailed to-day. Should Governor McDougall return to St. Paul, request him to
remain there till he hears from me, Telegraph any authentic news from frontier. They will charge
tolls to this Office.

My pear Mr. Hows, ‘ Hamilton, 18th November, 1869.

T am in reccipt of your kind Letter of the 16th respecting Telegram, which was sent with the
conviction that matters were in a more serious state than Mr. McDougall or you supposed. Imme-
diately after your departure the Insurrection began to develop itself. Armed men immediately took
possession of the roads entering Fort Garry. A meeting of the Council was at once called, and the
wildest excitement followed. The leader of the insurgents, “Riel,” was before the Council from
10 A till 7 P, and concluded by convincing them that he was correct and they wrong. We
purposed leaving the Friday following your departure, but were detained, by order of Governor
McTavish, four days to hear the decision of the Council, that he might send by me verbal advice to
Governor McDougall, The Council, finding itself powerless, broke up without taking any action,
while the Insurgents were gathering fresh material howly. Governor McTavish was unable to attend
the Council, and is failing rapidly. ~ Shall not be surprised to hear of his death by any Mail. When
leaving Stinking River, we found an encampment of the Rebels thirty strong. They had barricaded
the roads, and were patrolling on both sides of the barricade, all armed with rifles.  They seized our
horses by the heads, and we had to dismount. It was very generally known they had a force out to
intercept the Government supplies for Dennis and Snow, also the rifles being brought forward by
Governor McDougall. I, however, sent messengers to him, and learned, when I met him, the rifles
had been carefully stored below, so they are safe. Mr. McDougall, not having been in the Settlement,
can only have a general idea of the true position, and I felt that affairs were assuming so serious an
- aspect that I thought I would at once hurry down to Ottawa and enter fully into detail ; but afterwards
_thought it better to telegraph, and, if you thought it necessary, you would telegraph, for more
- particulars, On my arrival in St. Paul, and when passing through St. Cloud, and other of those

villages, I found a great many rough men collecting and preparing for the Prairics, just the class who
- would only be too ready to ﬁﬂibuster, and, knowing that in a week they would be out of the way, 1
; put into the paper the account of Mr. McDougall’s safe arrival.
. At Fort Garry you saw telegraphed from St, Paul, which I have to confess had not one word of
‘truth in i¢, *  * % % *x % % Thinog are not healthy, and I am afraid it
" will cost money and blood yet.
q If there is anything more you may wish to know, write me; or, if you think necessary, I will run
: AOW1L

I am &c,
Mr. J. Howe, Secretary of State for (Signed)  W. E. SANFORD.
the Provinces.

Copy of a TELEGRAM from * * * to Sir JonN A. MACDORALD.

Dated at Toronto, November 24th, 1869,
: Letter reccived at St. Paul’s to-day, dated Pembina (10th), says Governor McDougall has rented a
- house there for the winter, other members of his Cabinet are boarding in Pembina. The Letter says
-object of the Insurgents is not to throw off allegiance to Queen, but to oppose annexation to Canada.
¢ Nothing new from Fort Garry or McDougall.
{

Copy of a TELEGRAM from * * * to Sir Joux A. McDovALD,

Toronto, November 24th, 1869,

¢ A gentleman from Fort Garry arrived at St. Paul’s yesterday, says that the English half-breeds and
iwhites are taking little or no part in the demonstration, it being made chiefly by French half-breeds,
“A system of passes has been adopted, and strict surveillance exercised. The Insurgents have taken
. possession of Hudson Bay Store House, and dealing out themselves daily rations from the Company’s
supplies. Dr. Brown, the Editor of the ‘Nor-Wester, refused to print rebel proclamation, but
printers were forced at mouth of the musket to issue the revolutionary document, which was posted in
various parts of rebellions Districts. A Red River trading house in St. Paul’s learns that there is a
strong organization, including wany half-breeds, waiting favourable opportunity to declare in favour
of Governor McDougall. A Fenian Priest is said to be the directing mind of the disturbance,
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Oavana, . No. 6.

No. .
Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor The Rt. Hon. Sir J. You~a, Bart.,, G.C.B,,
G.CM.G., to The EArL GranviLLE, K.G.

(No. 138.) Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
27th November, 1869.
My Lorbp, (Received 13th December, 1869.)

I sent, on the 2Gth instant, at 4 o’clock p.x., a Telegraphic Despatch to you
in the following words:—

“ Your Telegram reccived and considered by Privy Council.”

“On surrender by Company to Queen, the Government of Company ceases.
¢ The responsibility of Administration of affairs will then rest on Imperial Government.
¢ Canada cannot accept transfer unless quiet possession can be given—anarchy will
“ follow. Rebels have taken possession of Fort Garry, and it is said are using
‘““ the stores of Company. A change of fecling is hoped for, and till then the
“ governing power should remain with present authorities. My advisers think
“ Proclamation should be postponed. Mr. McDougall will remain near Frontier
“ waiting favourable opportunity for peaceable ingress.

“Parties having influence with Indians and half-breeds, are proceeding to join
¢ McDougall.”

I have, &ec.,
' (Signed) JOHN YOUNG.
The Earl Granville, K.G.,
&e. &e. &e.

No. 7. No. 7.

CorY of a DESPATCH from Governor the Right Hon. Sir J. Youxe, Bart,, G.C.B,,
G.CM.G., to The EArL GraNvVILLE, K.G.

(No. 139). Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
27th November, 1869,
My Lorb, (Received December 13, 1869).
* Poge 3, In continuation of my Despatch, No. 134,* of date the 25th instant, I have the

honour to forward, for your Lordship’s information, copies of the further Correspondence
up to this date in the possession of the Canadian Government, relating to the difficulties
in the North-West Territory.

I have, &c.,

(Signed) JOHN YOUNG.

P.S.—I send a Newspaper, with which the Secretary of State for the Provinces has
supplied me, with the caution that it is American.

The Earl Granville, K. G., - J Y.
&e. &c. &c.

Enclosures Enclosures in No. 7. -
in No. 7.

Sz, Ottawa, 27th November, 1869.

Referring to my Letter to you of the 22nd instant, transmitting copies of certain Despatelies received
_ 5th Nov, from the Hon. William McDougall, I have the honour to encloseg hegewith, for the information of His
1869, Excellency the Governor-General, copies of the Despatches received by this Department since that date
from Mr. McDougall, together with copies of the Enclosures therein mentioned.
I have, &e.,

F. Tarville, Esq., Secretary to Governor-Geeneral. V Joserr Howe.
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Dakotah Territory, U.S., Pembina,
SR, Hth November, 1869,

I have the honour to report, for the information of His Excellency the Governor-General in Council,
the events which have occurred in this vicinity since my communication of the 31st October. I
expected to have been able to send this Reportlay the Mail which left Pembina this morning; but, in
consequence of the unexpected closing of the Mail last evening at six o’clock, which the Postmaster
said was “ contract time,” I was able to write only a short note, which, for prudential reasons, I addressed
unofficially to Mr. Meredith. I now proceed to give you the details of the important events which have
prevented me from remaining in the North-West Territory.

On the first day of November, about eleven o’clock, A.M., while I was talking with a Chippewa Chief 4

and some of his band who had met me by appointment, Coloncl Dennis and an English half-breed,
Mer. Hallet, arrived from Fort Garry, havin ﬁft the Fort carly in the morning of the previous day.
They rode over the prairie some miles to the West of Red River, and were not observed by the rebel
scouts. Colonel Dennis brought a Despatch from Governor McTavish, of which the Paper marked A
is a copy. He also handed me the papers marked B and C, bringing down his own narrative to the
day previous to his departure.

As the Governor and his Council concurred with Colonel Dennis in the opinion that it would be
imprudent for me to proceed to Fort Garry under present circumstances, and as no steps had been
taken towards-organizing a force to support the Authorities, I had no alternative but to remain at the
Hudson’s Bay Company’s Post. The furniture, &e., for Government House having arrived at Pembina
from St. Cloud, the person who had undertaken to deliver it at Fort Garry called upon me to know if he
was to proceed with his freight, suggesting that it might be stopped on the way and perhaps destroyed. I
told him that, as he had bargained to deliver it at Iort Garry, e must complete his contract. I had
reason to believe that he was aware of the designs and movements of the Insurgents, and was in their
confidence, if not in their plot. I took pains to impress him with the belief that it was no child’s play
his friends had begun, and that all the consequences of rebellion against Imperial authority must follow
in this case as in others. I told him I had been sent as a Civil Governor, and was prepared to treat sil
classes and parties in the most friendly and impartial manner; but if they preferred a Military regime
and martial law, they were taking the proper course to secure it. 1 knew that lic would report my
remarks as he passed through the Rebel camp, and I thought it would be {;olitic, since they had gone
so far, that they should understand the view I took of their proceedings. I knew that Mr. Provencher’s
Mission must end either favourably or otherwise, before my interlocutor could see his friends. He
told me that a party of twenty mounted men would pay me a visit in a day or two. As evidence of
the earnestness and patriotic spirit of the Insurgents, he showed me a song in French, copied partly
from the Marseillaise, and which was being circulated among the half-breeds of the neighbourhood. He
proposed to buy some &)ortion of the property in his charge—the stoves especially—in order to save it
from destruction. I declined his proposal, with the remark that the rebels might as well destroy the
stoves as anything else; but I would hold him responsible, in the first place, for their safe delivery at
Fort Garry, and fthought the farms and cattle of the half-breed Settlers would ultimately be found
sufficient to Xay any damage they might inflict on public or private property. I told him he could do
as he pleased with his freight, as I had no directions to give him until he arrived at Fort Garry. Upon
this he 1éft the Post, convinced at all events that he lmg not succeeded in frightening me into a sale of
the Government property at his own price. His carts, in & few minutes, were on their way to the
Settlement. I have not up to this moment (4 o’clock P.M.) been able to ascertain whether they have
passed the barricade unmolested or not.

The interview with the Chippewa Chief, Kewetaosh, and his band, which 1 stated in my previous
Report was fixed for this day, was interesting to us and apparently satistactory to him. His pipe-bearer,
after filling the pipe with tobacco mized with dry willow-bark, and placing a live coal upon it, rose
with the pipe in his hand and waited for an observation from the Chief. He, with the dignity of his
race and class, rose slowly from his seat, and pointing to a large silver medal on his breast, which had
been given to his grandfather in the time of George IIL, said he was glad to see me as the English
Governor. Pointing to the fumes of the pipe, he said there was no harm in that smoke—it meant peace
and friendship between us. He then sat down and the pipe-bearer presented me the pipe, which 1
smoked for & little, and then returned to him. It was then handed to Mr. Richards and the other
members of my party, each in turn. It was next smoked by the Indians, and last of all by the Chief,
This ceremony being over, the Chief drew himself up for his speech. He is a pure Indian, about fifty
years of age, with a stately figure and an agreeable and intelligent countenance. He repeated his
fnendl{' %reetmg, and said he had waited some time to see me. He was sorry to hear of the proceedings
of the half-breeds in the Settlement, and wished me not {0 go there. He had not much to say, but
would ask me a question. Had I bought their (his) land from the Hudson Bay Company ? He then
proceeded to lay claim to the country from Pembina to the Assiniboine, and from tﬁe high lands on
the West to the Lake of the Woods.  He said his ancestors had never sold their title to any part of it
—they had only Zent as much as a man could see under a horse’s belly on both sides of the River to the
Company, and he now wanted to know what I was going to do with his land, He repeated his desire
to be on good terms with me, and said that neither he nor his band had anything to do with the
movements or designs of the French half-breeds.

I replied to his speech through an interpreter, a French Canadian Settler, who spok: a little
Chippewa and about as much Englisk. I reciprocated his friendly greeting, and expressed 113 regret
that, from the length of the journey I had travelled, and the time required for preparation for it. Uhad
not reached Pembina as soon as was expected. I was glad to see %im and his }Iz;and, and his; T we
would be able to make a satisfactory agreement about any land of his we might require. I explained
the nature of the arrangement with the Hudson’s Bay Company, which I assured him left his rights,
whatever they might be, just as they stood before. With respect to his remark that I ought not to go to
Fort Garry—if he meant it as a friendly warning, I thanked Elm for it, but I told him I must obey, not
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the wishes of othersbut the requirements of duty. I wassentto govern the country in the Queen’s name,
and would do it unless prevented by force. I then produced a map of the Territory, and asked him to
point out the bounds of the land to which Le and his band laid claim. This proposal was evidently
something he did not expeet, and a good deal of consultation took place between him and his com-
panions. I told them I mcrel?r wished to find out the extent of the country they clatmed ; that I was
not prepared cither to admit their claim or deny it, but, before we could negotiate, I must know what
it was they pretended to own; that there were other Indian bands, especinlly towards the Lake of the
‘Woods, who would probably claim some part of the territory he had described as belonging to his band.
It then came out that threc Chiefs—“Pequis,” near Lake Winnipeg, “Iox,” of Prairie Portage, and
« Gros Oreille,” of Ouk Puint, towards Lake of the Woods, and himself, agrced last winter upon a
division of the country betwcen them, and that his claim was to be_limited to the country bounded by
Scratching River and the Government Road on the North, Pembina Mountain on the }Vest, ‘White
Mouth River on the East, and the American Boundary on the South. I questioned him as to the
bargain with Lord Selkirk; whereupon he appealed to an old man who said he was present on the
occasion, and remembered that “ My Lord,” as Ee was called, only borrowed the land along Red River,
as far as he could sec under a horse. I asked him how long it was understood the loan should continue ?
Another consultation took place among the Indians, and they answered twenty or twenty-five years.
To my question—whether any written record of the agreement was preserved, they said they had never
seen any. He said his band numbered about six hundred souls, and that he could not make any
cession of their rights without consultation with the other Chiefs. He mentioned the month of May as
the most convenient time to meet them at Fort Garry for o Conference with me. As I learned that
his band, excluding half-breeds, did not probably exceed half the number he had stated, I told him it
would be necessary, when he came to Fort Garry, to bring a list of the number of families, and their
names and places of residence who acknowledged him as their Chief, excluding American Indians and
half-breeds. This he agreed to do. I directed the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Agent to give them some
tobacco, flour, and tea, according to custom on such oceasions. We all shook hands and the Conference
was at an end.

I then had a private interview with Colonel Dennis and Mr. Hallett, who had taken some rest in the
mean time, and endeavoured to ascertain the precise object of the insurrectionary movement, and the

robability of its present success. T confess that their verbal account of the condlition of things at Fort

arry—the indecision and infirmity of the Governor, the hesitation and indifference of the Merchants
and Tinglish half-breeds—more than confirmed the impression I had derived from the correspondence,
that there would be no measures taken to arrest the progress of the Rebellion or resist any government
the French half-breeds might set up.  Colonel Dennis expressed the opinion that the “ Canadians” in
the country could be relied upon; that they were fretting under the inactivity of the Authorities, and
would at once rally under any vigorous leader who appealed to them in the name of law and order and
the anthority of the Crown. But unfortunately their number was small as compated with the Tnsur-
gents, and they were much scattered over the country. The Local Government had not even published
a warning to the malcontent portion of the population of the consequences which would be likely to follow
their threatened resort to arms.  No official statement of the nature of the arrangement with the Hud-
son’s Bay Company and of the authority under which it was made had been published to remove the
misapprehensions created in the minds of the half-breeds by designing men in the Settlement. It was
well known at Fort Garry that American citizens had come into the country ostensibly for purposes of
trade, but in reality to create disaffection, and, if possible, 2 movement for annexation to the United
States. Thesc men and their sympathizers, had been actively engaged in circulating stories, absurd as
they were unfounded, to alarm the fears of the half-breeds and excite their hostility against the Cana-
dian Government. It was known that these stories had produced the desired effect, yet nothing appears
to have been dome by the Government to counteract them, beyond explanation and remonstrance
verbally and to a few individuals, some of whom it was believed had entirely misrepresented to the
ignorant half-breeds the purport of their conversations with members of the Council. ~Neither Colonel
Dennis nor Mr. Hallet could suggest anything better than a policy of inaction on my part until I heard
the result of Mr. Provencher’s Mission.

The next day (Tuesday), about five o’clock in the afternoon, fourteen horsemen were scen approaching
us from the direction of Fort Garry. It was soon evident that they were armed and moving rapidly
forward. As they approached they slackened their pace and dismounted at the gate of the stockade
which surrounds the Post, with their guns cocked an(i) in military order. In a few minutes two of their
number demanded an interview with me. They left their arms with their comrades at the gate, and
were at once admitted. Iinvited them to a seat, and asked them what they wished to say to me.
They replied that they had been sent to tell me I must leave the North-West Territory—I must go
back before nine o'clock to-morrow morning. T asked them who had sent them with this message ?
They said the Committee—the Government. I asked, what Government ? They said, “ The Govern-
“ment we have made.” I asked what they were instructed to do if I declined to go back? They said
they did not know—they had no order. I then told them I was sent to assume the Government of the
country under the Queen of England and by her authority, and I could not obey the orders of their
Committee. T at the same time produced my Commission under the Great Seal, and Landed.it to the
Captain for his perusal. He evidently could not rcad it, but the parchment and seal scemed to convince
him that it was what I deseribed it to be. He handed it baclk, saying that if his leaders had seen that
he thought they would not have opposed me—they did not wish to take up arms against the Queen,
He added that I ought to have come on as far as the Barricade, which I might have done without
molestation. I told him, in reply, that I was going on as fast as I could when I was stopped by a
written order from his Committee, which I handed to him. He read it, and remarked that he was not
Ppresent whep it was written, put admitted that it came from the National Committee, whose orders he
obeyed. His companion having left the room, he seemed impatient to end the conversation, and rose
to retive. I bad asked their names, which they gave without hesitation as Lepine and Lavaillo. They
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were very respectful in their bearing, and scemed ashamed of the business they had on hand. T sent
out to ask if they wished to eat, which they said they would be glad tov do, and 1 accordingly ordered
rome pork and Eread and tea to be given to them. Hearing of their remarks to one another that if
they had known I was coming to represent the Queen as well as the Government of Canada, and that
I was not sent to interfere with their religious or private rizhts, they woull not have joined the insur-
gent party; and having observed tho effect of the Great Scal upon the Captain of the band, T resolvel
to send for the whole party and cxplain my position and authority to them in the sami manner as T
liad done to the two leaders. They replied to my invitation that they were tired, and that some of
their party had gone to the village and could not sce me until morning. About six o'vlock the same
morning Mr, Provencher and Captain Cameron made their appearance at the Post, eseorteld by six
horsemen, who bad conducted them as prisoners all the way trom River Salé. These gentlemen had
not been allowed to go beyond the Barricade, or to hold any communieation with the authorities at
Vort Garry. Mr. Provenclier's Report of his Missinn and its result is cnelosed herewith, marked E,
Abont ¢ight o'clock in the morning of Wednesday, the Swd instant, ol talking wus heard at the
gateway. and on going out I found the Rebel party, with their arms in theiv hands, drawn up in o half
civele, gestienlating tiercely, and threatening that if we were not oft' by uine o'clock they w.uld not
angwer tor onr lives, [ fonnd that they had made a prizounr of Mr, Hallett, who went ont to r peat my
invitation of the eveninzx Lefore, and that he was then tied to a cart and not allowed to epeak to any of
my party. Secing their temper, and thinking it wonld not he prudent to give them an exeuse fur any
further ontraze, 1 onlered the horses to be barnessed and we drove away from the Hudson’s Bay
Company’s Post towards Pembina, eseorted by a portion of the party on foot. When I reached the
post which Las been set up to mark the 49th parallel, the Captain of the bund stopped, and aldressing

* me in French, said, “ You must not retnrn beyond this line,” pointing tn the I»onm{;\ry monuwment. e
further remarked that he did not know me as Governor, Lut only as Mr. McDougall,  As three or four
persons had joined ns on the way, but had no other conneetion with us, I askerd it they ulso were inter-
dieted from ~oing on. He shrugged his shoulders and said he did not know—he would not prevent
them, but perhaps they would be stopped at River Sal¢, I then drove on, and my escort returnad to
the Hudson's Bay Company’s Post.

*  We encamped on the farm of Mr. Peter Hayden, an old Irish settler, who had been forty years in the
territory, and had married the sister of the Indian Chief Kewetaosh. He was very friendly to us, and
strongly British in his fecling. though living on the Amertican side of tho boundury line. Here we
have remained until to-day. The weather beinz cold and stormy, I bave directed Colonel Dennis to
hire a house for our protection and stables for our horses, if they can be found in the neishbourhood,
of which I huve some doubt. The village of Pembina consists of the house of the Post-master, and
another in which the Collector of Custows Las his office.  All the others, four or five in number, are
mere huts, and afford very poor accommodation for their present oceupants.  Our pusition is beset with
difficalties. 'We cannot go forward without an armed furce, which is not at our commaud. We cannot
immediately return, for our horses require rest und grain before we eaun undertake so loug n journcy.
The snow may overtake us on the way, und render further progress with wagwons impossible.  There
are no houses or supplies between this place und Georgetown, a distance of 150 miles.  With the
Canadians who joined me on the way, and wlho are now afruid to go forward, my purty numbers
twenty souls, Colonel Dennis is also with me, and will probably follow wmy fortun: s, 23 he was
ordered out of the country at the sume time. and Ly the samn authority. After surveying the situation,
and deciding in 1y own miud upon the course whick it was my duty to udupt, I held a Council with
Messrs, Ricliards and Provencher and Colunel Deunis, Cuptain Cameron Leing at some distance from
us at the moment, and having ucted on his owu judgment on more thau one ovcasion against 1wy
advice, much to his own disadvantage as well as ours, T did not wait to consult him: 1 hal previously
_sent Colonel Dennis to ascertain what supplies coulll be procured in the neighbourhoud for our horses

-and party. He reported thut the supply of tea, suzar, salt, flour, and beef (1resh), which could be obtained
at the Hudson’s Bay Company's Post was sufficient for our wants, if the Rebels did not seize them,
or prevent us from getting possession of them. Only a few bushels of outs (about 20) could bLe
procured on either side of the Line: but he heard that barley wux more plentiful, althvugh even that
grain might be difficult to procure, if the farmers on the American side of the line proved to be, as
we more than suspected they would, friendly to the Insurgents and inimical to us.

Under this state of facts we decided, Ist, to get, if possible, the 20 bushels of oats alrcady
:bargained for, as our horses were much in need of them. 2nd, To sccurc all the barley that we
-could hear of, for future use. 3rd, To send down to the Hudson’s Bay Company's agent for all the
- groceries, flour, and beef, we would require for three or four weeks at lcast. 4th, Having secured
:8 sufficient supply of provisions to enable us to reach St. Cloud. if we found it necessary to return
o that point, we would then make ourselves as comfortable as possible under tents, or in houses if
“they could be had, until we could hear from Fort Garry, and learn the effect of our expulsion upon
the loyal portion of the people. We all agreed that it would be discouraging to our friends, and a

cat triumph for the Rebels, if their first demonstration resulted in my return to Canada before I
ad assumel the reins of Government. Wo tlerefore resolved to remain at Pembina for a week or
two longer, if we could get supplies. [ may remark that 1 was shown to-day a written evidence

.that residents of the American villaze of Pembina are in constant commuuication with the leaders of
what they call the “Patriot Army,” at River Sale. A Mr, Stuttsman, an ex-ofticial of the Treusury
-Departuent, who has resided here some time, now doing business as a sort of village lawver, and

sreputed to be a man of considerable influence, met the Insurgents as they rode up to the Hudson's

3Bay Company’s Post on Tuesday, and held a short parley with them. 'Wo ascertained also that the
leaders ot the party went down and consulted with him and others at the village as soon as they had
delivered their message to me. This person now grants passes, addressed to the Commanding
Officer of the «Patriot Army,” vouching for the good faith of his friends, and expressing his
onviction that they were hostile to Mr. Wm. McDougall. I have entrusted to one of my party,

Oaxapa.
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—~—  obtained a pass from him, two communications addressed to Governor McTavish, copies of which

s herewith, marked F and G. A slight disagreement with this person on the journey, which
gaizggzzmzr:;?k in our party, had reached Stuttsman’s ear, and made him the more ready to take
this man into his confidence. I have, on the other hand, no doubt of his loyalty to me, and that,
if Colonel Stuttsman’s pass is recognised by the Rebels, my letters will reach their destination.

Caxava.  who got into the confidence of Stuttsman, both being members of the same secret society, and

Larose’s Farm, 1 mile south of Pembina River,
7th November, 1869,

We were successful in obtaining our supll)llies,. enough for two or three weeks, from the Hudson’s
Bay Company’s Post. We got them over the Line in the night, with the aid of our Irish friend,
who sent an ox-cart for them. The enemy’s scouts, who were lurking a})out to wutqh our movements,
were apparently deceived by this move, and allowed the cart to 1Iiass without examination. As soon
as this point was gained, I ordered the tents to be struck, and the party removed to a position about
o mile to the south of Pembina River, on the farm of one Larose, a Canadian fr_om Sault Ste. Mam_:.
He is one quarter Indian, but intelligent and friendly. He has consented to give us the use of his
lhouse, a new one, and will build a shanty for himself and family. He has also a stable for our
horses, which, with a little improvement, can be made to answer our purpose. The house requires
some alterations to accommodate the females and children of our party, even for a short time,
which we have bargained to have made. Messis. Richards, Provencher, and Begg have found fem-
porary lodgings in the village, and Captain Cameron and his party are still under the shelter of the
Irishman’s cabin, which they share with a numerous family of half-bree! children.

I have had no further communication from Fort Garry of later date than those brought bfr Colonel
Dennis and Mr. Hallett. The mails have been stopped and opened by the Rebel force, and I have no
doubt that all letters to me or any of my party have been opened and detained. I am now hourly
expecting a_messenger from Fort Garry, who will either pass the barricade as a friend of the Rebels,
or go round them as Colonel Dennis did. Rumours of all kinds reach us, as may be supposed. The
Inst is that Fort Garry has been taken by the Rebels, and Governor McTavish compelled to quit his
house and the Fort ; that sentries are posted through the Settlement, and at the house rented for me
on the Assiniboine ; and that there is no attempt at resistance from any quarter.

Sunday, 6 o’clock, p.M.

A messenger has just arrived from a point about forty miles down the river. He brings a letter
without signature, but understood to come from Dr. Schultz and other Canadians (see Paper marked
H). This letter confirms the story of the surrender of Fort Garry, and the continued inaction and
helplessness of the Authorities.

I replied in a short note, without signature, by the same messenger, apprising the writer of the letter
that it was my intention to remain here for the present, that I could not assume or believe that the
Hudson’s Bay Company’s agents desired the success of the Rebels, or gave them any assistance except
under compulsion, that I had opened communication with the Authorities, and had suggested a
Proclamation by them explaining the change of Government, and the character in which I was sent,
and warning the malcontents of the consequences of their acts; that, at the proper time, I would
issue a Manifesto or Proclamation myself, await the effect, and be guided by circumstances. I re-
quested the same parties to communicate with me as often as they found opportunity, but to act
rather than recriminate. I at the same time addressed a short note to Governor McTavish, fearing °
that my previous letters might have failed to reach him gsee Paper marked I). I arranged with the -
messenger, who is an intelligent and loyal German half-breed, to keep open a private channel of -
communication, if possible, with the Settlement during my stay here.

From the foregoing narration, and the Papers enclosed, his Excellency will be able to appreciate the
difficulties by which I am surrounded, and the grave questions which may soon present themselves for
his consideration. While I hope to receive a message that the “emeute ” is at an end, and that the
authority of the Crown will be recognized in my person by those who are now in arms. I confess there -
are facts in the case which point strongly to a different result. :

I may observe, in conclusion, that, apprehending the possibility of some such interruption as I have -
encountered, I arranged at St. Cloud for the transport of the arms and ammunition to Georgetown,
there to await my order. They are now in possession of the Hudson’s Bay Company’s agent at that -
post, and not likely to fall into the hands of the Rebels. If I hear of any attempt on their part to get
possession of them, I shall take steps to remove them, if possible, to Fort Abercrombie.

I am, &e.,
The Hon. the Secretary of State for the (Signed) WiLtiaM McDouGALL.
Provinces, Ottawa, Canada.
(A )
MY DEAR Sin, Fort Garry, Red River, 80th October, 1869. &

I.t is with much concern I have to say that among a certain portion of the half-breed 55
population. here there prevails a degree of excitement at the prospect of your arrival in the country,
wluf:h seems 1o make it necessary that in coming into the Settlement you should use great circuin. i

[
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spection; and it is for the purpose of pointing attention to that apparent necessity, that I send you this
communication,

For some weeks past rumours have been reaching me, through more or less reliable channels, of dis-
satisfaction among the French half-breeds with the recent arrangements; but believing, as I then did,
that these feelings had no-very deep root, I indulged the hope that they might pass away. Bat in this
respect, I am deeply pained to say, I have been disappointed, and that, within the last few days, the

* feeling of discontent has manifested itself in such a manner as to create serious apprehensions for the

result. After interfering with the surveying operations of Colonel Dennis, these people, in considerable
numbers, have combined for the avowed purpose of stopping your entrance into the Settlement, and
with that view they have actually taken up permanent positions on the road by which, in the usual
course of travel, you would advance.

Ever since matters began to assume a serious aspect, the conduct of these people has been, I may
say, constantly engaging the earnest deliberations of the Local Authorities, but although every effort
has been made which the Council deemed prudent or practicable for bringing these misguided people
to reason and for procuring their peaceable dispersion, yet I am sorry to say that hitherto all has been
without effect, and that the difficulty—the serious and now somewhat alarming difficulty—still

_ remains unsolved, as to how you are to be effectually protected from molestation in approaching the

Settlement.
From Colonel Dennis I learn that, by different hands, he has been lately sending you Reports upon

" the state of matters here, and that in his last communication he had advised you to remain at Pembina

unt you should have ascertained through reliable intelligence from this, that, by some means or other,
the course had been cleared so as to make it prudent for you to come on. It appears to me that, under
the circumstances, the advice so tendered by Colonel Dennis was sound and judicious, and it relieved my
mind from much anxiety to hear that Officer express so confident a belief that you would be inclined
to act upon it; although I cannot but add that I fully share in his feeling of mortification at being so
circumstanced as to be constrained to counsel such a course.

I have not myself seen Colonel Dennis’s communications to you on the subject of these unfortunate
occurrences, but he has been kind enough to read them to some Members of the Council, for the
purpose of enabling them to judge of the accuracy and completeness of his information ; and upon their

. assurance, I have no hesitation in’saying that the contents of the Colonel’s communications to vou
. may be relied upon as conveying in the main a correct narrative of the occurrences to which they
~ refer, and a fair representation of the popular sentiment throughout the Settlement.

The question which now presses itself upon every mind is, what is to be done to secure your

* peaceable entrance into the Settlement, So far, all our expedients have failed, and unless the

efforts of a temporizing character which are still being earnestly used for the dispersion of the

- malcontents succeed, it is to be feared that your coming into the Settlement at the present moment

would not be free from considerable danger.
From Colonel Dennis’s Despatches and this Letter you will derive as full and accurate a know-

+ ledge of the position of affairs here as, I believe, can very well be given in writing, and having
. satisfied myself that you are acquainted with all the material circumstances of the case, I think that
- you are now in possession of the principal data for enabling you to determine the important question

of your movements, and I need not say that I shall most anxiously await your decision.
Baut, without of course, in any way meaning to prescribe the line to be pursued, I may be permitted to

~ add that to those who with myself have been deliberating upon the most advisable steps to be taken in

circumstances of so embarrasing and so critical a nature, there have been suggested three courses for
meeting the difficulty as it now stands. -

The first is that there happily being, among even the French half-breeds, a considerable element of
well-disposed persons, there should be carefully selected from that section a body of from twenty to
thirty men, who, mounted and armed, should proceed to Pembina and escort you to your residence in the
Settlement by a round-about road, which would keep you entirely clear of the roads on which the mal-

- contents are known to have taken up their positions.

The second is that of making a public call upon the whole loyal portion of the Settlement to turn
out in the cause of order, and to the number of say 300 unarmed able-bodied men—if such a force
could be mustered—proceed to Pembina, and escort you into the Settlement by the usual route, whether
the malcontents remain upon it or not.

And the third is, that you should remain at Pembina and await the issue of conciliatory negotiations,
with a view of procuring a peaceable dispersion of the malcontents.

Now, with respect to the first of these courses, it is in my opinion open to the grave objection, that,

. even if it were to issue in your safe arrival amongst us, it would obvionsly involve a virtual acknow-
~ ledgement of the ascendancy of these lawless people, and would have a direct tendency to inspire them
. with fresh courage in the prosecution of their designs; and, besides, I am strongly of opinion that, under
- present circumstances, your personal safety could not be sufficiently provided for by the attendance of

~ 80 small a body of men as that proposed ; ‘a body large enough to provoke a collision, but probably far
-~ from strong enough successfully to meet it.

The second is one which the Local Authorities have all along been pondering, but one which, as in

- somewhat similar emergencies on former occasions, they have hitherto shrunk from adopting, partly

from a misgiving as to the extent and the spirit of the response to such a call as that proposed, and
partly also, but principally, from an apprehension of precipitating a collision between different sections
of the people, which might plunge, not only the Settlement, but the whole Territory, into all the
disasters of a war of races and religions—a war in which the legitimate object for which it had been
begun :lvo.ulc.llﬁ probably soon be lost sight of, and passion and prejugice alone animate the minds of those
engaged in it. A

%.‘o the Council and myself it appears that, under present circumstances, the third proposal is the

only one that can be regarded as prudent or practicable; and it is therefore our opinion that you should

D
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remain at Pembina and await the issue of conciliatory negotiations, in the hope of procuring a peaceable
dispersion of the malcontents. ) ) ) .

fhave only to add that, although this Letter proceeds ostensibly from myself, it embodies the
views of the Council of Assiniboia, and that at & Meeting of the Council to-day, held for the express
purpose, it was unanimously adopted as to the communication which I should immediately make

ou. . - - .
Y Earnestly hoping that ere long some peaceable solution of all these difficulties may be arrived at,
I remain, &e,,

The Hon. William McDougall, C.B. : (Signed) W. McTavisH.

( B )
TaURSDAY, 28th October.

The situation remains unchanged. I sent down, about 9 o’clock, provisions for Mr. Dease’s party,
consisting of one bag flour, a quarter of beef, and a small quantity of tea and sugar. Called upon
Dr. Cowan about 11 o'clock, and found with him Judge Black. Was informed that the Governor,
having written a note for Pére Ritchot to come down and see him, that Priest was there with him. Mr.
McBeth, a Member of the Council, called at Dr. Cowan’s while I was there, and the conversation
turned upon the necessity of advising Mr. McDougall, from the Council or some other official source,
as to the situation of affairs here; so that that gentleman would receive it before he came to
Pembina. I stated that I had prepared from day to day a statement of facts and circumstances
connected with the outbreak, which I had taken the opportunity to send forward so as to meet Mr.
McDougall, I thought, in good time; and that, in order to let th_e Council see to what extent I
had put Mr. McDougall in possession of the facts, I had no objection, although I had no intention
when writing of making it public, to show them the statement referred to. They expressed a desire
to that effect, and I accordingly sent for the statement, and read it. "I was glad to find that the
feeling was unanimous that the statement of facts and views which I had sent forward to Mr.
McDougall was, without exception, truthful and reliable—Judge Black remarking that the Council
could add nothing to the statement calculated to give Mr. McDougall a more accurate description of the
state of affairs,

5 p.m.—Judge Black has just called to say that the Governor failed, after some three hours’ interview
with Pare Ritchot, to bring him and his party to reason. He says, also, tha!: Mr, Dease bas informed
him that the Insurgent party have made an overture to the effect that, if they the Peace party
will join them in turning Mr. McDougall out of the Territory at a subsequent time, should he refuse
to accede to their present demands, they will allow him to enter in the mean time. This, however,
Mr. Black mentioned that he had advised Mr. Dease could not be consented to, as it might involve
precisely the same outrage as that at present contemplated. It was understood, then, that Mr. Dease
would see the refractory l]))mvty again this evening, and endeavour to get them to consent to make their
proposition less objectionable. .

RIDAY, 29th October.—The negotiation, spoken of last evening, ended in nothing. Mr. Dease
reports that, based upon the statements which he had reason to believe emanated from Pére Ritchot
Iast evening, the assertion is made by that party that Governor McTavish is favourale to their designs.
I am not sure, from Mr. Dease’s manuer, that I succeeded in convincing him of what I am convinced
myself, that nothing is further from the fact. If Mr. Ritchot made any such assertion, he has
stated it for the purpose of intentionally misleading his party, and maintaining his control over them.
Sent another day’s supply of provisions down for Mr. Dease’s party. Was invited to meet, at the T'ort,
at 9 o'clock this morning, some Members of the Council; these were Mr. Sutherland, Mr, Fraser,
Dr. Cowan, Mr. Dease, and Judge Black. After some conversation, it was arranged that Messrs, Fraser
and Sutherland should visit the camp of the disaffected, and endeavour to impress them with the fact,
that the English-speaking element in the Settlement was entirely opposed to their views and their

roceedings, and see what they could do to bring them to reason. I have provided Mr. William
allett and the Cree Chief Fox with conveyance, and they have also gone up to have an interview with
the Insurgents for a like purpose.

3 p..—Charles Donald, an English half-breed, resident in Mapleton Parish, down below the Lower
Fort, who bad been instructed by Mr. Dease to notify all of the well-disposed half-breeds in his part
of the Settlement to be in readiness to turn out, if called upon to join his party, has just arrived
from below, on his way up to the Insurgents, to deliver them a letter, of which that on page 458
is a copy. Complaining that his horse, having been carrying him for the last two days and one night,
was exhausted, he left his horse and I Ient him another.

9 p.M.—Messrs. Fraser and Sutherland have called, bringing the accompanying note from Dr, Cowan.
These gentlemen state that, on their visiting the Insurgent camp, they were met by Pere Ritchot, who
took them into a private room in his own house, in fart of which was the Chapel, and, declining for a
long time to bring them face to face with the Leaders in this movement, used every effort to
g‘ersuade them that it would be impossible to get them to withdraw from the stand they had taken.

he gentlemen insisted, however, and at length were shown by the Priest upstairs in the same building,
into what he termed the Committee Room. Here were sitting, in a very formal way, the Committee,
consisting of ten Members. The gentlemen announced the purpose of their visit ; but were told that no
business could be done in the absence of the Chairman, who came in shortly after, and proved to be the
man formerly mentioned, named John Bruce. Messrs. Fraser and Sutherland then proceeded to put
several questions as to the object and purposes of the party. Not a single reply could be obtained to any
of these, and at length it became difficult for them to get a hearing at all; it seeming as if the leaders,
Bruce and Riel—the latter also being in the room—were afraid to allow these gentlemen to speak, for
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fear their arguments might lead to a defection in their camp. Mr. William Hallett was also present,
and commenced addressing the Committee, most of the Members being well known to him, in the Indian
language ; but they refused to allow him to go on, the voice of the Priest being heard from the room
below, where he had been evidently listening to the proceedings, calling out, “ Why do you not speak
“in French?” After spending the whole day there to no purpose, Messrs. Fraser and Sutherland
returned. They report the strength of the party, every member of which, so far as they saw, was
completely armed, at about one hundred and fifty men. Mr. Hallett and the Chief have also returned,
and corroborate in every way the statements made by Messrs. Fraser and Sutherland, Mr. Hallett
tells me that the Chief Fox spoke effectively in his native language to the Insurgents outside. They did
not leave the camp until some time after the gentlemen named, and Mr. Hallett tells me that he saw
signs of wavering among some of the subordinate leaders of the refractory party, and thinks there
is good reason to believe that the feeling will increase, with all the influences that are being brought
to bear in its favour by the other halt-breeds, that it will lead to the enterprise Leing abandoned.
Mr. Hallett informs me, also, that the Insurgent party had sent out to get in the Chief “Gros Oreille”
and his people to join their side; and the Chief, with ten of his men, came in accordingly. On
learning, however, the character of the proceedings, the Chief declined to identify himself with it at
all, and he and his men withdrew from that party, and were at a housc near there, where he (Hallett)
and the Chief “Fox” had an interview with him last night. These men sent a written paper to
me by Hallett, conveying sentiments with regard to this_movement. (See Memorandnm attached, in
French.) I have every reason to believe that all the Indians, cognisant of the designs of the Insur-
gents, are_entirely opposed to them. Whether in the future, should the affair take a more serious
furn, the Priests will be able to take them over, remains to be seen. Hallett says, and his statement
is corroborated by Messrs. Fraser and Sutherland, that the Priest Ritchot remarked that Mr.
MecDougall might perhaps come in by some other route, and indicated by his language that in such
case they would not follow him, as to their present intentions.

SaTURDAY, 30th October.—At Fort, at 9 aM. Met Dr. Cowan and the Recorder. The Pere
Lestane, the Red River being difficult to cross on account of the ice forming, had remained all night
with the Governor, and had jJust left with the promise to the latter, that all the efforts and influence
that his position could bring to bear would be applied to putting a stop to the disturbance. I was
informed that all the Members of the Council, that could be got together by 11 o’clock, were being
sent for to attend a Special Meeting called for that hour. The Chiefs “Gros Oreille” and the « Fox”
being both in town, I made a point of seeing them, and presenting them each with a new blanket, some
provisions, and some other trifling articles.

5 p..—Saw Dr. Cowan and the Recorder at the Fort; the result of the meeting of Council was the
drawing up of a letter to Mr. McDougall, which was read to me, in which he was informed of the

osition of affairs and different courses of action suggested for his consideration. That letter goes
?orward to-night, and, for fear of miscarriage, a duplicate will follow by the mail on Monday. Pére
Lestanc, in accordance with the promise which he had made this morning, came over to the Fort this
evening to the Governor, and found it necessary to express his regrets—as I understand—that all efforts
he had been able to bring to bear had been of no avail. The party under Pére Ritchot as yet show not
the slightest inclination to give way; but, on the contrary, by their language, and the fact of their
having stopped some of the carts with goods and detained them unnecessarily, are creating annoyance
in the minds of those who have been disposed to stand aloof, which annoyance may yet take shape and
tend fo increase the difficulties.

(Signed) J. 8. DExNIS.

( G )

ADDRESS to CoLoNEL DENNIS from RESIDENTS in the Town of WinNIpEG.

To CorLoNEL DENNIS, Fort Garry, October 27, 1869.

. We, the undersigned British subject, members of a meeting held at the Garrett House, town
of Winnepeg, this evening, in accordance with a Resolution passecf to that effect, beg to inform you

that we are ready at your call to proceed to Pembina to escort Governor McDougall into this
Settlement.

(Signed) »* * * *

* * * * * * * * * * *

( E )

Letter from Mr. J. A. N. PRoVENCHER to Governor WirLiay McDougarz, C.B.

Siz, : Pembina, 3rd November, 1869,

I have the honour to report that, according to your instructions of the 80th ultimo, I left the
Fort of Pembina, with the intention of going as far as possible in the direction of Fort Garry, and there
to meet the leaders of the so-called half-breed party. After I had proceeded a few miles from Pembina,

D2
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I noticed that all my movements were closely watched by scouts constantly communicating from one
oint to another. These scouts were on horseback. At about 5 P.M., one of these mounted scouts
egan to follow my waggon. He refused to give his name, but said it was his intention to accompany

me as far as Salé River, where the barricade was established. Not being able to go as far as that
oint that evening, I put up during the night at a house near the road. Hvery precaution was taken
y the proprietor of the house, who appeared to be connected with the Insurgent movement, to

prevent my escape during the night. They were especially afraid of my going to Fort Garry, as one
of their first objects was to prevent every communication between the Authorities there and yourself.

In the morning I went to the place called Sal§ River, where I found a fence across the road, and a
gnard of about thirty or forty footmen. I immediately got out of my waggon and asked for the chief
officer in command. The answer was that I would be conducted to him at the house he occupied.
Tt was about four or five minutes’ walk beyond the fence alluded to. I told my driver to wait for me,
but they told him to follow with the waggon. I was accompanied by a guard of ten or fifteen men,
all armed with guns, rifles, and pistols of various kinds. I was asked to assist at the church service
just beginning, to which I assented. I talked with several men whom I had reason to believe were
leaders of the Insurgents or in some way connected with them. I was surprised to hear that they did
not know anything about what had been done either in the Canadian or Imperial Parliaments relating
to'the North-West Territory. They only knew that Canada had paid to the Hudson's Bay Company
£300,000 for their rights in that country.

I explained to them that the Imperial Parliament had authorized the transfer of the North-West
Territories to Canada, and that the Canadian Parliament and the Hudson’s Bay Company had agreed
upon the terms of transfer. I insisted that the new Government, when established by the issuing of
the Proclamation to that effect, would represent the Crown of England and the Government of
Canada; but that Canada only being substituted to the rights of the Crown and the Company, could
not and would not interfere with the religious or private rights of citizens. I added also that many
members of the new Council would be taken from the amongst the population of this country, so as to
represent as faithfully as possible all the various interests of the people, and that the policy of the
Canadian Government could be ascertained by their general dea}l)ings with other Provinces, and by
the speeches of Ministers on this very question. The people of Canada would only be too glad to
be relieved of o portion of their responsibility by granting to those people free political institutions and
self-government as soon as practicable,

They immediately seemed to see the matter in quite another light, but they uniformly answered
that it was too late, and that the insurrectionary movement had taken such precautions as to prevent
any peaceful settlement at present. I was told in the mean time that a new Government was already
organized, that a new Constitution had been drafted, that elections had taken place, and that they
were in negotiation with the English and Protestant half-breeds to arrange all matters relating to
language, nationality, or religion. The same Committee, I was told, had also to decide what they
would do in relation to my mission.

The general complaint of these men, as far as I could ascertain, was that they had not been consulted
on the new political changes about to take place. They said they tolerated the Government of
the Company from the mere fact of its existence, and because in reality the charges were so light,
that they had no reason to ask for a change, though for many years they had agitated the question of
electing their Representatives in the Council of Assiniboia, and now they were resolved to take advan-
tage of the recent changes to realize that desire. They said, moreover, that they had been greatly
abused by a few people, looked upon as representing the views of the Canadian Government, and that
they had been led to fear that great danger would arise to them from the establishment of the new
contemplated Government. Under these circumstances they decided to prevent at once any possibility
of establishing that new form of Government, by not allowing the newly-appointed Governor to come
into the country. ‘

At about (4) four o’clock p.u. I was introduced to the President of the so-called Special Committee
of the Half-breeds, who began by asking me in what capacity I was there? I explained what was
your mission and my own. When he told me that, as the newly-appointed Chief of the Half-breeds
could not acknowledge the validity of any proceedings of the Canadian Government towards them,
nor our appointment, nevertheless, if the Canadian Government was willing to do it, they were ready
to open negociations with them, or with any person vested with full powers, in view of settling the terms
of their coming into the Dominion of Canada.

I was told, moreover, that they would only receive such persons as representatives of the Canadian
Government as they approved of for the purposes of negociation, and that certain persons would be
peremptorily objected to. Imnmediately after that interview, which lasted about twenty minutes, I was
told that I must leave at once for the Iort at Pembina. I heard afterwards that the crowd had been
calling for me for two hours, and that they were very anxious to see me away. I left with a guard of
thirteen armed men on horseback; seven of them left next morning, and six came along with me as
far as Fort Pembina, where I arrived the 2nd day of N ov]e:nlllber agz 6 o’clock P

ave, &c.,
The Hon, William McDougall, C.B., (Signed) J. A. N. PROVENOHER.
&e. &e. &e.
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o ( F)
From Governor McDotaaLL to Governor Mo avisy.

My pEAR SIR, Pembina, 2nd November, 18G8.

I hLave the honour to acknowledge the receipt, by the hands of Colonel, Demnis, of your
Letter of the 30th October, announcing the assemblage of a body of armed men upon the public road
near Fort Garry, for the avowed purpose of preventing my entrance into the Settlement. Colonel
Dennis had already apprised me of the movements and designs of these people, and as you state that
his communications to me had been shown to, and approved, as to the statements contained, by the
members of your Council, I have no doubt that I am now in possession of sufficient information to
enable me to understand the origin and nature of the outbreak which your Government has been
unable to prevent, and which obstructs for the %rescnt my further progress into the country.

I have acted on the suggestion of Colonel Dennis (rvepeated and confirmed by you) that I should
delay a few days at Pembing, in the hope that the measures you have taken may result in the with-
drawal of the armed parties from their present position. As you are aware, the transfer of the Territory
and the powers of Government entrusted to you is to take effect on a day to be named in Her Majesty’s
Royal Proclamation. TUntil that day arrives {(which I am informed will be about the 1st of December
next) you are the Legal Ruler of the country, and responsible for the preservation of the public peace.
My Commission authorises and commands me to assume and exercise the powers of Government from
and afterthat day. I am instructed to proceed in the mean time to the Territory and report on certain
subjects, and make preparations for the new state of things.

In these circumstances you will see that the legal authority to resist any lawless exhibition of force
which may occur previous to the actual transfer of the powers of Government is in other hands than
mine. You have not, it appears, felt justified in calling upon the loyal and well-disposed inhabitants
of the country to aid you in the suppression of the outbreak, of which you have notified me. I must
therefore conclude that your better knowledge of the disposition of the people, and of the means at
your disposal to enforce your authority, convinces you that such a call would prove ineffectual; but I
cannot help thinking that a Proclamation from your Government explaining the provisions of the late
Imperial Act respecting the Territory, and the authority under which the new Government will exercise
its powers, at the same time warning the malcontents of the serious nature of the crime they meditated,
and the grave consequences to all concerned that must result from its commission, would have been
well timed and perhaps sufficient to prevent the designing men at the head of this movement from
accomplishing their purposes. I understand from Colonel Dennis that no Proclamation or warning has
as yet been published at Fort Garry under official sanction,

I am unwilling, at this distance from the scene of action and in the circumstances by which I am
surrounded, to make any other suggestion. Perhaps the measures you have taken may prove successful.
I sincerely hope they may, and remain, my dear Sir,

Very faithfully,
Governor McTavish, (Signed) Wat. McDoueALL.
&e. &e. &e.,
 Fort Ganry.

( G )
From Governor McDougaLL to Governor McTavisH,

My DEAR SIR, Pembina, 4th November, 1869,

Since my Letter of the 2nd instant was written, and before I found an opportunity to send it
forward, events have occurred which alter somewhat the situation of affairs. In the afternoon of that dayv
a body of horsemen (armed), to the number of fourteen, galloped up to the Hudson’s Bay Company's
Post, at which I was quartered, and demanded an interview with me. Two of their number, appa-
rently recognised as leaders, who gave their names, at my request, ss Lepine and Lavaille, stated that
they had been sent to tell me to go back—that I must not remain in the Post later than nine o'clock
the next day. I asked them who sent them, and by what authority? They said their leaders sent
them, and the authority was the Government. I asked, what Government? The replied, ¢ The
“ Government we have made.” I told them I could not obey the orders of their éovernment, as I
was sent by the authority of the Queen, to administer the Government in her name, at the same time
exhibiting my Commission under the Great Seal, and. explaining its terms. The Captain of the band
looked at the Seal and parchment, and made an effort to read the document ; but soon handed it back,
with the remark, that if I had come on and shown the Queen’s Commission to his leaders, he thought,
they would not have opposed me—that they did not wish.to oppose the Queen’s authority ; he added
that I could have done 8o without any risk.” I replied that I was going on as fast as I could, when I
was notlﬁgd by his so-called leaders not to proceed further, showing him at the same time a Letter from
the “ National Committee;” by order of John Bruce, President, and Lewis Riel, Secretary, which was
put into my hands at Pembina immediately on my arrival. He seemed a little nonplussed by this, but
merely said that he was not present when the Letter was written. I asked him what he was ordered
to d_o in the event of my refusal to quit the Territory ? He said he had no orders, and, his companions
having left the room a few minutes before, took his leave somewhat abruptly.

Caxana.
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Noticing the effect of the exhibition of my Commission and the remark that his party did not wish
to oppose the authority of the Crown, I determined to invite the whole party (by this time increased
to twenty by the arrival of those who escorted Mr. Provencher and Captain Cameron) to a friendly
conference, in order to make known to them the truth as to my position and their own. But they
excused themselves to the messenger by saying that the party was scattered and tired, and would see
me in the morning, As it drew near eight o'clock in the morning, they seeing no preparatlpns f;or our
departure, surrounded the gateway and vociferously demanded that we should leayve before nine o’clock.
The leader stated that his orders were positive, and he would not be answerable for our lives if we
remained. They had in the mean time made a prisoner of Mr. Hallett, who went out to speak to them
preparatory to the proposed conference; and seeing that they were not disposed to hold any parley
and might  possibly commit some further outrage, I ordered my horses to be got ready, and without
waiting for breakfast proceeded across the Line towards Pembina, escorted by a portion of the party,
with arms in their ha.n(i)s. On reaching the post which marks the international boundary, they stopped
and warned me not to return beyond that point, remarking that they did not know me as Governor,
but only as Mr. McDougall. . ) .

Colonel Dennis was told that he must accompany me, which he accordingly did, and remains with
me. Mr. Hallett, who had for some time been tied to a cart and was forbidden to speak to any of my
people, was sent off towards Fort Garry under armed escort.

I am now encamped a short distance from the Boundary Line on the farm of Mr. Hayden, and
intend to remain in the neighbourhood till I learn what action your Government and the loyal people
of the Territory may have taken on receiving intelligence of these events. I need only say that if
the people now in the Territory tamely submit to the Government these balf-breeds have, or pretend
they have established, I have no force at my command, and at present no authority to assist it or
them. The operations, military and otherwise, which must ensue, you can guess without any sugges-
tion from me. I have reported the facts as they have reached me to the proper authorities.

I may add, for your information, that I have good reason to believe that there are persons on the
Axerican side of the line actively engaged in fomenting these disturbances, and that there are also
persons of some influence in the Settlement in correspondence with them. Their avowed object is to
bring about the annexation of the Territory, or some part of it, to the United States. I cannot learn
that the French half-breeds have contemplated this as the result of their movement; but it is well to
know all the influences and motives at work.

I trust you will take measures to keep me advised of what is going on beyond the Barricade, and
whether, in your opinion, any useful purposc will be served by my rewaining here for any length of
time.

I leave many details for verbal communication, which you will no doubt receive from reliable
quarters, not being sure that this will reach you unread by others.

1 have, &e.,
Governor McTavish, (Signed) Wit McDougALL.
&e. &e. &e,
Fort Garry.

( H )
"o the Honourable Wi, McDougarr, C.B., &c., Pembina.

‘Winnipeg, 5th November, 1869.

We, as friends, would advise you by the bearer, who is a reliable man, as to the position of affairs
here. The Insurgents have taken possession of Fort Garry, and established sentries at its gates. No
opposition offered by the Officers of the Company, although informed that such an event would take
place twelve hours before. Fhe town is also occupied by the Rebels. So farno disturbance has occurred.
Considerable wavering among the half-breeds of Riel’s party, on account of Mr. Provencher not being
allowed to address them in public, and many would be glad to go quietly to their homes. The Rebels
call a general meeting about Monday next, and will then demand an expression of the whole Settlement,
which we shall take care to have present, and have no doubt that a large majority will be in your
favour, and advise you strongly to await the result at Pembina.

The Hudson’s Bay Company are evidently with the Rebels, and their present role is to prevent your
having any official intercourse with them. It is said that the Rebels will support the Government of
the Hudson’s Bay Company as it now exists. All the subordinates in the party say that if you have a
Commission from Her Majesty to enter here as Governor, they will lay down their arms. Riel and
the other leaders allow them to know nothing. If the Proclamation can be issued here, and the
Hudson’s Bay Company’s Government officially called on to act, they (the Hudson’s Bay Company)
would be forced to suppress the Insurrection, and they can easily do it.

The actual number of the disaffected do not exceed 250 men, all told, and the slightest opposition
would reduce that number to the original 40, including the priests at their head.

The supporters of the Rebels in town begin to manifest considerable anxiety. Our opinion is that
the Proclamation should be forwarded by the bearer, and we will see it placarded here. Send duplieate
copies to Portage La Prairie by a trusty man to * * * On no account leave Pembina till you
have established official communication with the Hudson’s Bay Company. Any such sent by the
bearer will be duly handed to them.

‘We are friends of the Canadian Government.
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( L)
From GOVERNOR McDougairL to GoverNor McTavisi.

My DEAR SIR, Pembina, November 7th, 18369,

I avail myself of this opportunity to inform you that I have been compelled, by an armed party
- of twenty men, o leave the Hudson Bay Company’s Post here and recross the Line. I am now in
- American territory, and shall remain here for the present. I wrote you two Letters, both in one
" envelope, detailing the proceedings and position of things here, and suggesting a Proclamation from
" your Government explaining the nature of the change in the Government, and warning the malcon-
"tents of the consequences of their acts. I was disappointed to hear from those who met me that they
had not been informed by any one in authority that the change of Government was an Imperial Act,
and had the sanction of the Queen. I also reminded you anit your Council that until the actual
transfer and Proclamation you are the legal rulers, and responsible for the preservation of the public
eace. Iam surprised to learn, by a communication brought by the bearer of this, that a few Rebels
Eave been allowed to take your Fort, unopposed even. by a public protest. Of course I am not in the
best position to judge or advise in such a crisis; but, in the hope that by some means the people will find
out what it is they are doing, and will shrink from the consequences of war, and bloodshed, and
. confiscation, which are sure to follow, I shall remain here until I hear officially of the transfer of
" authority, and shall then be guided by circumstances as to what I shall say and do.
Hoping to hear from you full details of what has occurred, and what you advise to be done there as
" well as here, .
‘ I remain, &e.,
Governor McTavish, (Signed) Wirrtan McDouGALL.

From ALEXANDER BEGG, Collector, to the Hon. the MINisTER of CusToMs, Ottawa.

. Stz Pembina Village, U.S., 11th November, 1869,
: I have the honour to report that I reached Pembina on the 30th ult., en route for Fort Garry,
. in company with Governor McDougall and party. :
:  You are, doubtless, aware of the circumstances which prevented us from proceeding onward, and how
{ we were driven from the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Post back across the Boundary Line into the United
+ States by an armed party of twenty half-breeds.
< The Governor wilFremain here for some time yet, to await results. Of course I have no alternative,
" but remain with him, and will be guided by his movements and advice.
i Expenses have been, so far, very heavy. Everything at war prices. By the time I can hear from
. your Degartment, in answer to this, my funds will be exhausted. Please send remittances to be
aceounted for.
I have, &e.,

The Hon. the Minister of Customs, (Signed) ALEXANDER BEGG,

Ottawa. , Collector.

.
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i Extacr from a DESPATCH from Governor the Right Hon. Sir J. Younc, Bart,

R R T B2 Tt Wy - 2 2

G.CB., G.CM.G, to The EarL Graxvirie, K.G., dated Government H
% Ottawa, Canada, 2nd December, 1869. (Confidential.) ot Hotse
RMY Lorp, (Received December 17, 1869.)

,_ I have the honour to enclose for your perusal extracts from newspapers, which
contain the latest accounts we have of what is going on at the Red River. ’

.~ We have not received any authentic confirmation of the robbery or seizure of the
sarms which Mr. M.cDougall took up with him, but we fear the statement is correct
gThe place to which the arms were sent back, Georgetown, is a hamlet, consisting o}'
-three small wooden houses and a wooden depdt for storing goods in transit. It is in
¢ the Stat.e of Minnesota, 160 miles away from the frontier of Canada, but-the country
Earound is thinly peopled, wild and lawless. '

H
] * * » * P »

Cavapa.

No. 8.



CANADA.

* 330 in all,
A. D,

24 RECENT DISTURBANCES IN THE

FROM TEE ¢OTTAWA TIMES.
Rep RIVER.

[London Prototype.]

We publish below a very interesting letter from a gentleman well known in this neighbourhood,
Mr. Gardiner Ellwood, who, it will be remembered, left London during the present year for the North-
West. His letter is of a recent date, and is addressed to Crowell Wilson, Esq, MP.P. It gives a
glowigg a;:lcoung of the Territory, but being written before the late troubles began, of course no mention
18 made thereof :—

Dear Sir, Town of Winnipeg, Red River Settlement, 10th Oect,, 1869.

_ I arrived safely in the newly-founded town of Winnipeg on the 1st ultimo, after a long and rather
tedious journey over the plains, and now think that I have been long enough here to give you my
opinion of the country, its people and productions. The soil throughout the whole country, wherever
I have been, cannot be surpassed, consisting of rich black loamy clay, very deep, and capable of pro-
ducing very great crops. Harvesting was going on when I arrived, so I had an opportunity of witnessing
their yield, The wheat is excellent, both in quantity and quality, the samples all over being as fine,
if not finer, than any I have seen in Canada, and, as near as I can lean, will be from twenty-five to
thirty bushels per acre ; barley equally good ; oats not so much grown; potatoes are very fine, and
give enormous yields. There is no occasion for meadows, as the prairie turnishes the hay, and all a
farmer has to do is to go back two or three miles from the Settlement, cut and stack his hay, leaving
it to be drawn during the winter. Cattle are numerous, some settlers having very large herds. The
beef is excellent, and commands a good price—from 5d. to 6d. sterling per Ib. ghee and hogs are
rather scarce. The climate is very healthy, and I am in better health than I have been for years;
and I have heard of several invalids coming here who have been completely restored to health. The
great bulk of the population are half-breeds, partly of French and partly of English and Scotch origin,
the principal settlements of Canadians being at the Portage (about sixty miles up the Assiniboine}, and
in the town there are & good many Americans. I like the people very well, and have been generally
well treated, having plenty of employment ever since I arrived, and more before me, principally in
helping to build up the town, which is fast growing, and I think a few years will see it no mean city.
My general impression of the country is, that any industrious manu, with a small capital, coming here,
can, in a few years, secure a competency ; but the great thing wanted is a railroad, and, in my opinion,
the quickest way to secure it would be by building one to Pembina, on the Boundary Line, to join the
St. Paul and Pacific road, and which couid be done at a comparatively trifling cost. ' The Hon. Joseph
Howe arrived yesterday. Governor McDougall has not arrived, but is espected within fourteen days.
I will write you further particulars before long. I &

am, &e.,

GarpINER Errnwoop.
Crowell Wilson, Esq., M.P.P.

Ax AmERICAN VIEW OF THE DIFFICULTY.
(From the Minneapolis ¢ Tribune,” November 24.)

The latest news from Winnipeg is dated October 10. They indicate that the Insurgents are increas-
ing their strength, having enlisted over 1000 men. They are commanded by Louis Riel, and the
discipline maintained is remarkably perfect. A Republican form of government is to be instituted,
and a Congress of all parties was to have met for that purpose on the 16th. -

Five Indian Chiefs arrived at Fort Garry on the Tth, and tendered the services of their bands. These
were accepted, and the force of the Insurgents is thus increased by thousands.

Twelve cases of rifles,* imported for McDougall’s use were captured en route. These are a portion of
the 1000 stand of arms that the would-be Governor was reported to have sent to the country.

Although Governor McTavish and Recorder Black, the only representatives the Red River country
has in the new Government, are Members of the Hudson’s Bay Company, that body find no fault with
the proceedings ; on the contrary, they offer them every facility for maintaining their position, and
furnish the garrison with supplies.

While the ¢ Buffalo Express’ is humorous enough (under care of Mr. Mark Twain) to talk as under :—
“ We have reason to believe that the Fenian organization is at the bottom of the Red River move-
“ ment ; that the Fenian leaders have been secretly at work for several months to bring it about, and
# that their later plans have been chiefly directed to their consummation. The present occurrences in
¢ the Red River country form the beginning of the execution of an entirely new Fenian programme,
¢ for which it is claimed that the organization has more means in hand, and better preparations, than
“ it ever had before. Should it be the fact that their plans have taken the direction of such an
“ initiative, the Fenian leaders are certainly to be credited with more shrewdness than has hitherto
“ been evinced by them. The fertile British territory beyond Lake Superior is absolutely indefensible
“ by Canade or England. Neither troops nor supplies can be conveyed to it in the winter season
 except through the United States. A small Fenian force will suffice to wrest it from the Dominion
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“ and the Crown; and the territory is of immense extent and value. Its Fenian capture wonld be a
“ decidedly hard blow, both morally and materially, to the powers, Iinperial and Colonial, at which
“ Fenian hostility is aimed. Whatever further direction the operations of the Fenian Brotherhood may
*¢ take, it is expected, in their own ranks and by both the Canulian and Awmcrican authorities, that the
‘ coming winter will see active undertakings of some sort.”

Rep RUvER.

Red River Settlement, Dritish North America, Gth November, 1869,

The past week has been one of great excitement here, in consequence of the scrious action taken by

. the parties opposed to the entrance of Licutenant-Governor MeDougall aud his Staff. The events
connected with this movement will doubtless have reachied Cunada Lefore this letter; but as the world

. outside the Settlement cannot be expected fully to understand the motives or relative position of the

; parties implicated in the lawless proceedings of lute occurrence, I shall endeavour to throw what light

" my observations on the spot enables me to collect upon what might appear to an outsider
unintelligible.

The active opponents of the incoming Government are all of what is termed the *“Fremch half-
breed ” pOﬁulation. Their total number is ubout five thousand. of whom between six and eight hundred
appear to be fighting men. In these numbers I inelude only the local population of the Settlement at

* Red River,—Lut scattered up and down the territory of Rupert’s Land there are great numbers of the
saie class, regarding the gross number of whom 1 possess no means of forming an idea.

The whole nation has its origin between the traders and servants, Eurupean and Canadian, of the
< ITudson’s Bay Company, and the Indian women whom they have marricd. Born at the different
~trading posts in every part of the country, the children of these people have settled at Red River, and,
i while still largely supporting thewselves by the buffilo Lhunts and vtber roving modes of life, have

Lrought certain limited portions of land in the Colony under rude cultivation.

" As a class, they are quiet and civil wlien not excited, but when roused aro quite destitute of self-

control. Their Lionesty and trustworthiness are well known, their hospitality, more especially to each

other, is great according to their means, Their extravagance is also, generally speaking, much
observed, and their want of perseverance in sedentary pursuits is as remuiwable as any of their
characteristics.

They claim to be a nation, already, along with the Eunglish half-breeds, whom they cluim a3 their
.brethren, in possession of this country, and entitled, under the Act of Confederation, to a vuice similar
‘to that ccded to the other Proviuces respecting their entrance into the Confederation. They have
always claimed a commanding interest in the country, and are now indignant at the Hulson's Bay
Cogpan for not having more effectually protccted their assumed rights at the period of the transfer
to Canada.

The English half-breeds Lave altogether abstained from taking sny part in the demonstrations now
being made. They, however, will not actively oppose them, and “profess mo sentiments of loyalty
whatever to the Canadian Autlorities. The entire population of lted River, in fact, with the
exception of thoso now in arms, and a few Canadians lately arrived, are anxivus only to preserve
the tranquillity of the Colony, aud destitute of any enthusiasm in the matter.

This state of matters would, however, I belicve, be much modified in the event of bloodshed, even
on a small scale. The disaffectcd are connected letween each other and the English halt-Lreed
.population by so many ties of kindred, race and friendship, that the death of any ome would Le
brevenged by further blood. The clement of religion would also enter forcibly into the disturbance.

. The interest of the French population in the opening up of the country to civilized life is, however,
‘directly the reversc of the English interest. To the former, the cultivation of the prairies means the
expulsion of the buffalo, which form their mainstay ; the lutter would merely feel the effects of increased
competition in farming. Even, therefore, supposing considerable political influence to be conferred on
ithe half-breeds as a class, those among them who would not obtain equal infuence, as a matter of
eourse among a settled population, would be compelled to malke a ralical change in their mode of life,
3or permanently leave the Settlement. In speaking of the different sections of tho people, I, of course,
idescribe them in bulk. There is a large section of the English half-breeds who wilf undoubtedly sink,
Mhrough idleness and other causes, into a very low situation of society, while the French are not
Jithout men of intelligence and capability in various walks of life.

It has been reported of late, with some degree of assurance, though I know not on what authority,

at encouragement has been given to the half-breeds by parties resident in the Settlement, of Fenian
«proclivities. A considerable number of immigrants from the States also profess a strong sympathy with
the project of Aonexation. At present the half-breeds liold themselves aloof from both these parties,
although, in the event of hostilities, it is probable they might receive active aid from both,

: I 'mentioned in & former letter that on the occurrence of events which gave a serious air to the
disaffection of the half-breeds, the Council of Assinibois, held a meeting on the 25th ult, at which
the two leaders of the party of action were present. Attempts bad previously been made by efforts at
:persuasion on the &art of Governor McTavish, and others, to induce these people to abandon their
iopposition to the Governor's entrance, and the Council of Assiniboine, on the occasion in question,
enewed these efforts with similar poverty of effect. Their arguments were useless.

The sense of the Conncil was then taken as to the course the Authorities ought to pursue. It is
nderstood outside that three courses were debated,—one was to arm a select band of loyally disposed
rench half-breeds, and send them to force their compatriots to give way. A second plan was to
vite a counter demonstration on the part of all the loyal population, in order that an overpowering
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force of numbers might be drawn forth to go out to Pembina, unarmed, and escort Mr. McDougal_ in.
The third proposition was, that Mr. McDougall should remain at Pembina until the force of persuasion,
or the effect of the cold weather about to close in, might prevail on his opponents to break up their
camp and disperse. ) ' .

An attempt made forthwith by some of the French Members of the Council to ascertain how many
of that section would arm themselves, showed conclusively that not even twenty or thirty could be
jndnced to do so, and that such a step would only result in ridicule, .

The propriety of the second course was_discussed and finally settled at the Council itself. It was
agreed by all representative men at the Board that the great bulk of the Settlement was quite in-
different about Canadian rule, and the grevailing feeling was that, as the business had not yet
practically come before them, they would decline to encounter danger at the hands of their fellow
settlers in defence of a body of officials, in the appointment of whom they had po voice, and in support
of a Government hiberto known to them only by report. Colonel Dennis, whose efforts to ascertain
the true feeling of the people generally regarding this matter, have been skilful and unremitting, is
understood to have agreed with the Couneil in its estimate of the popular feeling, and the propriety of
calling for such general counter demonstration as that proposed. .

The third course, by which Mr. McDougall should remain for some time at Pembina until public
excitement should abate, was therefore the only visible outlet of escape from the dilemmn; but as its
adoption lay entirely with the Lieutenant-Governor himself, the present Courcil had, of course, no
voice in the matter.

No direct communication had yet passed between the Government of Canada or Mr. McDougall, and
the Governor of Rupert’s Land or the Council of Assiniboia. It is, however, generally understood
that such a communication was opened by the Authorities here sending a Despatch to meet Mr.
McDougall on his arrival at Pembina, acquainting him with the demonstration in course of preparation
by the half-breeds. Colonel Dennis himself started early on the morning of the 31st ultimo, intending
to reach Pembina by a round-about route, by which he would escape the. obstructions placed upon the
usnal line of travel.

On the evening of the 30th October, Mr. McDongall reached Pembina, and was immediately
advised by the advanced guard of the half-breeds of the impossibility of his rcaching Fort Garry, He
is said to have remained at Pembina quite satisfied that advance was impossible for a time. The
gentleman in charge of the Company’s frontier trading post was instricted to assist him to the utmost
of his power ; but the post of Pembina is one of the worst appointed stations in the country, and there
is little doubt that, under even the most favourable circumstances, Mr. McDougall and his party must
experience much personal hardship.

Mr. Provencher, one of the incoming Councillors, believing possibly that the obstacles to his progress
might be less serious than was reported, proceeded on his journey, but, after coming as far ag the
head-quarters of the half-breeds at St. Norbert, he was forced to return to Pembina under armed
escort. :

Just as he was preparing to return, quite a commotion was excited at the barrier by the arrival of
Captain Cameron, R.A., who, seeing only the regular guard of fifty men at the Barricade, determined
to carry it by assault single-handed. 1t is reported to be only two or three feet high, and the Captain,
urging the magnificent black horses which he drove to a gallop, was heard to make some remarks

-about *being accustomed to such matters.” Luckily, he did not succeed in foreing his way through the

Barricade, but, after driving over an Insurgent, his horses were seized by the others and brought to a
halt without bloodshed.- Meanwhile the mass ‘of the disaffected, numbering perhaps five TFiundred
armed men, who :had been engaged at the moment at a little distance, in seeing g\Ir. Provencher
commence his return journey, hearing a disturbance at the Barricade, rushed forward in great excite-
ment, believing Mr. McDougall to have arrived. Captain Cameron requested permission to enter
the Settlement for supplies, promising, if necessary, to return as soon as he couk‘p get them ; but he
was peremptorily refused, and compelled to return to Pembina with Mr. Provencher under armed
eccort,

Such is the account I have received of the details of this attempt to force a way through the
Barricade. I believe the facts to be substantially true. It will, at least, show what people say here.
Had Captain Cameron once passed the Barrier, he surely would bave been shot.

On the 2nd instant, an armed party of one hundred of the Insurgents came to Fort Garry, of which
they have since held possession.  Armed sentries stand at the gates and patrol the platform. They
serupulously, however, respect property, and have forcibly stopped the sale of liquor both in the Fort
and the village of Winnipeg. Parties entering and leaving the Fort, when unknown to the sentries,
atretegulelstioned, and the watch is maintained day and night, the guard being regularly relieved at
stated hours.

Outgoing and incoming mails are detained and subjected to examination at St. Norbert.

The organization formed by the Insurgents is called the “Republic of the Half-breeds,” and is
goIveéned dy a Council. A form has been gone through, which professes to be a “Preclamation of -
« Independence.”

It is generally expected that movements will take place, to enable the inhabitants of the Colony
generally, to concur with the French population in the formation of a temporary Government.

(ExTrACTS FROM PRIvATE CORRESPONDENCE.)

Fort Garry, Red River Settlement, November 2nd, 1869, ;

Mr. Provencher was selected to confer with the Insurgents, as being able to speak their language, |
As Mr. Provencher was being turned back, Captain Cameron, R.A., who is appointed to some posiftlx%nfg
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in the Government here, and Dr. O’Dounnel, of Montreal, both of whom were on their way to the
gettlement, arose up, and, after being questioned, were put back alonz with Mr. Provencher. The
gentlemen left their wives at Pembina, and were pushinz on to the settlement for provisions, their
upward journey having extended over a greater length of time than they bad calculated on when
setting out. None of the half-breeds having seen the Governor, they suspect every well-appointed
person, and Captain Cameron came under their strongest suspicions, He was ready to come on kere
for supplies, but the decrce was inexorable, The muster-roll yesterday was answered by 402 men, all
bearing arms; and, while Mr. Provencher was present, about 100 more cante into camp an:d took the
cath. There are, besides, scouts out on the prairie, fears being entertained that Mr. McDougall may
seck to come in by a round-about way. ‘The mail in which my last letter was cariicd was intercepted,
and the Postmaster had to ‘zo out to open it, in order that, if letters for the Goverument were con-
tained in it, they might be scized. The inward mail duc yesterday hus also been detained, and the
Postmaster is now trying to release it. The eamp is daily attended by one or more of the Roman
Catholic clergy. The letter of Mr. Cartier to Bishop Taché has been cousidered as an offence both to
the Bishop and to themselves, They take an oath to abstain from intoxicating liquors until they have
this matter settled, and, so far, have strictly abided by it. They have allowed large (uantities of
liquors to pass through their camp on their way here without touching any of it. In some cases they
have opened boxes to search for rifles, but if they were not found they do not touch the contents. The
- Council of Assiniboia are doing nothing, but I understand hsve at last agreed upon an Address to be
presented to the new Governor when he arrives. Governor McTavish is still very ili, and umable to
take any part in the informal meetings of the Coun:illors, which are, I understand, held every day.
The Cauadian party claims to be able to bring together between 200 and 300 men, including Scotch
- and English hall-breeds, and those among them who are looked upon as authorities, say this force can
be at once commanded by the Council, and grumble that they have not been called upon to escort
Mr. McDougall iuto the Settlement. Colonel Dennis, the Chief of the Surveying party, is the only
Rerson having any authority from the Camadian Government, aud he has goue to see Governor
fcDougall at Pembina, so that there appears to be no danger of an opposition force being raised. The
party under Mr, Willism Dease has, I believe, dwindled away, the men having mostly gone back to
their homes, Will the Hudson’s Bay Company be entitled to the 300,000/ now that they are unable
to deliver over the Territory in peace?

Sy AU USG5 O VG U

Fort Garry, Red River Settlement, Gth November, 1869,

On the afternoon of the 3rd, about 100 of the Insurgents came in from the encampment at Stinking
River, and marched into Fort Gairy to take possession. The gates of the Fort were open, and no
attempt was made to defend the pf;ce. The men have since remained there, They levy upon the
Company for supplies of flour and provisions. The Secretary of the new Republic gave instructions to
the officer in charge of the Fort to close the store in which the liquor is contained, and I believe has
had the key handed to him. hile the detachment was on its way to the Fort, wild rumours were
spread abroad s to the designs of the approaching party. One of these rumours was to the effect that
n party was to be despatched to fire the store of Dr. Schultz, and take the Doctor and Dr. Bown,
proprietor of the ¢ Nor-Westcr,” prisoners. These rumours were carried back to the party at the Fort,
and their truth indignantly depied. They state they will molest no property, nor injure any individual.
A rumour prevailed yesterday that an oath of allegiance was to be administered to all foreigners; but
this I have also found to be false. Indeed, the discipline hitherto maintained has been quite wonderful.
There has been no drinking, and the men are civil to all strangers who meet them. A night watch of
about ten men is put over the town. The chicf constable of the Council of Assiniboia has been super-
seded, and his work performed by the guard. Drunken men and women have been put into the
Council gaol, and released by order of the new Authorities. The Government, so far, is generally
acknowledged to be an improvement upon that of the Company.

A new flag has been adopted, which is composed of a ngte ground, upon which are displayed three
crosses—the centre one large and scarlet coloured, the side ones smaller and gold coloured. A golden
frm%:a binds the white gronnd. '

T hear that there is to be a Proclamation, and that the reasons assigned for rising will be that their
consent was not asked by the Canadian people—that they were “sold like 50 many sheep;” that the
Cunadian Government should, before entering into negotiations with the Hudson’s Bay Company, have
consulted the Natives of the country, and, if this had been done, they would have listened to w{at the
Commissioners of the Government had to say; but, having been transferred in the way they were,
nothing was left to them as brave men but to resent the insult. My informant was not sure that it will
not be stated that if the Canadian Government still sends a Commissioner they will hear him, but
will listen to no one sent in the capacity of Governor. As to their future intentions, they are, I believe,
to stato that they mean to administer the Government of the country in a republican form, only until
they can communicate their position to the Imperial Government. They are anxious that it should be
clearly understood that their actions have been solely directed against the Canadian, and not at all
against the Imperial Government. They will net submit to be the “Colony of o Colony.” Colonel
Dennis, the Chief of the Surveying party here, went to Pembina to meet the Governor. He evaded
the Insurgents in going, but, in coming back, was discovered and sent over the Line to join McDougall,
His %;ude, an lnmﬁlﬁgﬁn English half-breed, was captured, and held a prisoner for a day or two, but has
now been released. The principal Officers of the Canadian Government here now are Mr. Snow, Super-
intendent of the road, and Mr. Grant, in charge of Colonel Dennis’ office. They are both, 1 believe,
without any instructions. The Conncil of Assiniboine is doing mnothing, and we are all waiting for
“something to turn u " Mr. Charles Mair, the author of *Dreamland,” and Paymaster of the road, is
supposed to be in the hands of the Insmgents,asﬁzegmd.le&&mbina, and has not since been heard of.

Caxana,
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~ but for the Hon, William McDougall himself, whom we hereby nominate as the first
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No fears are entertained of his safety; but he mdy be either detained for a few days and searched, or
sent back over the Line. Dr. Schultz has been in the habit of hoisting on Sundays and holidays the
British flag, with the word Canada written on the red ground. I hear it is the Doctor's intention to
hoist it as usual to-morrow, and there are predictions of evil if 1his should Le the case, Mr. McDou-
gall’s party had a cold and very long journey over the plains, and I fear they will suffer on their return
from bad roads and unsettled weather,

P.S.—Mr. Mair has just arrived, having been kept prisoner for two days.

Tue MixNesotA Press vroy THE RED River Arrair—A CHoAxcE ror GOVERNOR
McDoUGALL TO GO AS WELL AS LOOK TO WASHINGTON.

(Correspondence of the St. Paul Press.)

iy Pembina, November 8.

On Tuesday, the 2nd inst.,, the Red River Troops took quiet possession of Tort Garry and the
Government House, Winnepeg is under martial law., No soldier is permitted to take a drop of spirits.
The most stringent discipline is observed. If a citizen or outsider is found drunk or disorderly he is
promptly arrested and confined until sober and quiet. '

The Governor has called upon the Canadian Government for troops, and inasmuch as it is impossible
to import them by any other route, permission to pass them through United States territory will be
requested. But it is to be hoped that our Government will not bring civil war upon the Red River
people by granting such a request. The people being united, no civil war can exist until coercion be
attempted, and if our Government declines, coercion is out of the question; and so long as civil war
does not exist, the rights of person and property will be respected. The American residents remain
non-committal, but should it unfortunately come to blows, they to a man will be found in the front ranks
of the citizen troops. Captain Cameron, one of the Governor’s law-makers, a half-witted unfortunate,
Woposes to head 400 Canadians (when they arrive) and penetrate the territory as far as Lake

inﬁxepeg! Should those 400 soldiers be as brainless as the proposed “ head,” the penetration would
not be great.

I am sorry to inform you that Governor McTavish is very ill, and not expected to recover,

- SPECTATOR,

(From the ¢St. Paul Pioneer,” November 21.)

The distinguished Canadisn gentleman now sojourning at Pembina, will probably have leisure in his
winter quarters to consider the best means of establishing his authority at Selkirk upon sure founda-
tions. * And it must now be apparent to a politician of his astuteness, that it would have been wiser,
simultaneously with the negotiation between the Hudson Bay Company and the Earl of Granville, to
have consulted, in some form, the wishes and feelings of the party most interested—namely, the
Eeople who have occupied the Red River country for the last fifty years. Such a plebiscite would

ave had only one result: the declaration would heve been almost unanimous for the Canadian
counection ; and, in that case, Mr. McDougall would have gone forward with all the sanction and
prestige of the popular voice.

The Legislature of Minnesota were not wanting with a word of excellent advice on the subject.  We
find by reference to the general laws of the tenth Session, under date of March 8, 1868, that the
following Resolutions were adopted and communicated to the Government at Washington :—

Resolved,—By the Legislature of the State of Minnesota, * * * * That we regret to be
informed of u purpose to transfer the territory between Minnesota and Alaska to the Dominion of
Canada by an order in Council at London without a vote of Selkirk and the settlers upon the sources
of the Saskatchewan River, who largely consist of emigrants from the United States; and we would
respectfully urge that the President and Congress of the United States shall represent to the
Government of Great Britain that such action will be an unwarrantable interference with the
prinei lgs of self-government, and cannot not be regarded with indifference by the people of the

nited States. -

That the Legislature of Minnesota would rejoice to be assured that the cession of North-West
British America to the United States, accompanied by the construction of a Northern Pacific Railroad,
are reﬁsarded by Great Britain and Canada as satisfactory provisions of- a treaty which shall remove all
grounds of controversy between the respective countries. o :

These friendly suggestions failed to change the Anglo-Canadian policy, and it now remains for the
Ottawa Ministry to determine whether it is not still expedient to authorize some formal expression by

.the inhabitants of Selkirk. Perhaps, also, the Canadians might find in the proposition of a cession of

the North-West Territory to the United States a potent agency to secure access to American markets
on terms even more satisfactory than by the ab‘ro%ted treaty of June, 1854. At present;' even
orth-West acquisition, with its half-breed and

States will assist to a commercial union with the United States, will it not be better, not only for Canada
Jnited States

Senator from Selkirk ?
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Tuae NorRTH-WEST.

Some Letters which appeared in the ¢St. Paul Press, in Selkirk Settlement, indicate that the
American residents in that Territory are far from being uninterested spectators of recent events. They
warn and entreat the American Government not to permit Canadian Troops to pass through the
United States. A Meeting is also to be held at St. Paul, designed to influence the Washington
Authorities to take that course.

There is nothing, however, in the actions or Proclamations of the Insurgents to indicate that they
have any desire to bring about the Annexation of the Territory to the United States. The Catholic
Clergy, by whom they are influenced, will certainly do everything in their power to prevent any
such result, and we do not doubt that any attempt on the part of Fenian Sympathisers to reach the
Territory would be met with stern resistance by the present Insurgents. 'T'he last news from the
Territory indicates a desire on the part of the French half-breeds to join themselves to the English
population in the formation of a Government. The French cannot control the Territory alone, and
the proposal is an indication of returning moderation of feeling, which will undoubtedly be welcomed
by the rest of the population. When a rapprochement takes place between the two classes, an
opportunity will be presented for the opening of negotiations, which will probably lead to the
conclusion of peace. It is said, that a very strong prejudice has been excited by Mr. McDougall’s
appointment. It remains to be seen whether it can be removed. We hope that it may, for a change
of Governor will be a sign of weakness which we should regret; but no personal considerations
ought to stand in the way of a peacable settlement of the issue which has becn mainly raised by the
errors of our Government.

We observe that it is reported in Oitawa, that inquiries are being made as to the feasibilty of sending
troops to Red River by the Fort William route. A much more reasonable proposal would be to enlist
the French half-breeds themselves as the preservers of order in the Territory. We have not the least
doubt that, when the causes of dissatisfaction, which at {n'esent exist, are happily removed, they will
be loyal supporters of Canadian Authority, and admirably qualified to act as Frontier Police. They
are excellent horsemen, accustomed to the use of arms, and to obey the leaders whom they themselves
select, when they traverse the plains in search of buffalo. Give them leaders of the right sort, and
neither Fenian Sympathisers nor marauding Sioux will be able to stand before them.

No. 9.

Copry of a DESPATCH from Governor the Right Hon. Sir J. You~g, Bart., G.C.B,,
G.C.M.G,, to The Earr. GranviLLE, K.G.

_(No. 147) Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
9th December, 1869.
(Received December 25th, 1869.)

My Lorp, (Answered No. 7, January 8th, 1870, page 173.)

I have the honmour to forward herewith a number of Papers, which bring

the accounts received from the North-West down to the present date. I beg, also,

to enclose a copy of a Letter which I addressed to Governor McTavish. I sent similar

letters to the Lord Bishop of Rupert’s Land, and to the Reverend Father Lestanc, who,

in the absence of Bishop Taché, is the head of the Roman Catholics in the Settlement.

These letters I entrusted to the care of Grand Vicaire Thibault and Colonel de Salaberry,

who have been selected by the Dominion Government to act as envoys and represent
matters in their true light to the inhabitants of the Red River Settlement.

The Grand Vicaire Thibault lived and laboured amongst the people in the North-
West until recently, for more than thirty-six years. He has much influence, being greatly
beloved, and holding a high position in the Roman Catholic Church.

Colonel de Salaberry is a son of the officer who commanded at the victory of
Chateauquay ; he has passed several years of his life in the North-West Territory, and is
looked up to as a leader and friend by the French half-breeds. :

Gove:-lnor McTavish’s illness has been a serious drawback, and much to he
regretted. .

Mr. Smith, the Hudson Bay Company’s second in command, leaves Ottawa on
Moniay next, in order to assist, or, in case of emergency, replace, Mr. McTavish.

I am very sanguine that success will attend the Mission we have despatched, and
trust your Lordship will approve of the instructions which have been given, and the
measures which-have beén adopted, after anxious deliberation, with the hope of restoring
order and tranquillity, and conquering, without menace or resort to force, the opposition

Caxapa,
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Farm, Pem-
bina, 13th
Nov.,, 1869.
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which has been engendered at the Red River by false rumours and mistaken anticipations

of evil.
I have, &c.,
(Signed) JOHN YOUNG.

The Earl Granville, K.G.,
&e. &e. &e.

P.S. Your Telegram, of December 9th,* reached me after the above Despatch was
written. You will see I had alrecady made the first Telegram the base of a Procla-
mation, of which copies will be forwarded.

Enclosures in No. 9.

Sir, Ottawa, 29th November, 1869.

I had the honour te receive, on Friday, your Despatches of the 5th and 7th November ; the former
dated from Pembina, and the latter from Larose’s Farm. Eight enclosures, including your Corre-
spondence with Governor McTavish, and the Reports made to you by Colonel Dennis and Mr. Provencher
afso came safe to hand.

These Papers were at once laid before the Governor-General and Council, and were anxiouasly con-
sidered by the Privy Courcil. The crisis was grave, as it was unexpected, and might, if dealt with
rashly and unwisely, lead to a civil, if not a National War, the end of which no man could foresee.

Yt was the first duty of the Government to acquaint Her Majesty’s Ministers with the facts reported,
and a cable message was sent at once by the Governor-General to the Secretary of State for the
Colonies, and copies of all the Papers have been forwarded by the mail for England, which left Ottawa
this morning. : ;

The Insurrection you describe is not merely an expression of dislike to the Government of the
Dominion, but an open violation of Imperial Legislation and defiance of the authority of the Crown.
All the negociations for the transfer of the country had proceeded with the sanction of Her Majesty’s
Government, and the purchase money had been raised under an Imperial Guarantee. It was assumed
on both sides that the Queen’s right of Sovereignty was indisputable, and that Her power to protect
Her subjects even in that distant part of Her Dominions would be asserted with firmness and decision.
It therefore appeared to the Privy Council unwise to complicate matters by any hasty action until the
policy of the Queen’s Government was known.

The Governor-General is still in telegraphic communication with the Secretary of State, and I may
be able, before closing this Despatch, to convey to you, with some degree of clearness and accuracy, the
views of Her Majesty’s Government.

In the mean time I have it in command to cxpress to you the anxious desire of the Governor-General
in Council that all collision with the Insurgents may be avoided, and that no violation of the Nentrality
Laws of the United States shall give a pretext for the interference of their Government.

This will be conveyed to you by a special messenger, who, as he speaks French fluently, and is a
gentleman of some experience, may be of service. . :

You will for the present remain at Pembina, cheered by the conviction, which animates us here, that
Her Majesty’s Ministers will duly estimate the gravily of the facts reported, and take such steps as will,
while carefully providing for the good government of the North-West, maintain the authority and
vindicate the honour of éxe Crown. :

I have, &c.,

Josern Howe. |
P.8.—~The messenger cannot leave for a day or two. Duplicate will be sent by him,

The Hon. WirLiax McDovagary, C.B.
&e. &e. &e.

Sir, Ottawa, 4th December, 1869,
Adverting to my Letters of the 22nd and 27th ultimo, I have the honour to transmit to you herewith,

for the information of His Excellency the Governor-Geeneral, a copy of a Despatch received at this

Department, yesterday, from the Hon. Mr. McDougall, together with copies of the Enclosures therein

mentioned.
I have, &c., ‘
, : .~ Josern Howg, . ,
F. Turvélle, Esq, governor’%z Secretary, a - Secretary of State.for the Provinces.
c. C, c
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S1R, La Rose’s Farm, Pembina, 13th November, 1869.

I have the Lionour to state, for the information of His Excellency that I am still without any further
communication from the Hudson’s Bay Company’s authorities at Fort Garry. Ihave received, through
private channels, notice that my Letters of the 2nd and 4th instant to Governor McTavish were placed
in his hands on Monday morning last, and that a Meeting of Council was ecalled for that day. DBut
though a week (nearly) has elapsed, and private persons have found means to send letters to me, and to
other members of my party, written at Fort Gairy as late as Thursday (the 11th), the Government have
either had nothing to communicate, or found themselves unequal to the task of reaching me. I learn
also that they have issued no Proclamation or warning to the Rebels, and those vho, believing the
stories now current that the Hudson’s Bay Company is opposed to the Government of Canada, may be
inclined to join their ranks. I cannot account for this cxtraordinary reticence and hasty surrender of
authority by the legal rulers of the country upon any theory but that of the weakness and imbecility of
the Governor, and the complicity of some }\)[embers of his Council with the Insurrection. I have
evidence that one of his Councillors, at whose house some of the first meetings of the malcoutents were
held, is in correspondence with the American plotters at Pembina, and trying to find out through them
what my intentions and movewments are! This treason within the Council will also account for the
stopping of supplies which were ordered by the Hudson's Bay Company’s Agent here, for our use as
well as his own, and which the Rebels could have known nothing about, unless some of the Hudson’s
Bay Company’s employés had disclosed their destination. The Rebels had not previously interfered
with the Company’s carts or trade operations.

I enclose a printed Paper (A) issued by the Rebels at Fort Garry on the Gth instant. It was printed
at the office of the ¢ Nor-Wester’ by the Rebels, who seized the office for the purpose, the proprietor
and his employés refusing to have anything to do with it. The type was set bya Yankee in their ranks,
and the proof corrected, as I am informed, by Mr. Ross, late of the ‘Globe’ Office, Toronto. This
< Call” was enclosed in a letter under cover to the Postmaster at Pembina, which he delivered after
some hesitation, and stating that he would not, in future, deliver letters to me which might come
addressed under cover to him. The Post Office here is very loosely conducted, and is entirely at the
gervice of the Insurgents and their sympathisers. Many letters appear to have-been opened, and the
general opinion is that this accidenf occurs at Pembina. It might not be amiss it Mr. Thornton
re%uested the United States Postmaster-General to instruct his subordinates here to show more care
and courtesy in the conduct of his office than he has hitherto done. .

My information from the Settlement, verbal and written, leads me to believe that this “call” of
the French half-breeds will not be responded to by the English-speaking part of the population, cxcept
a few traitors who have been in the plot from the beginning, and who may take this opportunity to
declare themselves.

Sunday, 14th,

The Letter (B) which reached me to-day is without signaturc; but from the hand-writing I know it
to be from Mr. Snow, Superintendent of the Government Road. It merely confirms information which
has reached me by various means for the last two or three days. The recommendation that I should
issue a Proclamation at once, is not made for the first time; but I have uniformly replied that until the
transfer of the Territory has taken place, and T am notified of the fact, I shall not assume any of the
responsibilities of Government. Messrs, Richards and Provencher concur with me in this policy.

apers C and D are extracts from Letters received during the week. The one, marked “C,” is from
Mr. Mair, who was at St. Paul when the outbreak occurred, but was allowed to pass the Barricade after
some delay, on his return to Fort Garry; and extract “D” is from a Letter written by a young
Englishman who was on his way to Fort Garry to see the country, with a view to settlement. He
travelled of the way with Mr. Begg, and was allowed to pass the Barricade in charge of one of the
Hudson’s Bay Company’s waggons.

I enclose also a communication “E,” just received from the “friends of Canada,” through the same
channel as the one marked “ H” in my Report of the 5th instant. It apprises me, as will be seen, of
a state of things'in the Rebel ranks which, if true, gives hope of a more easy solution than a few days
ago seemed possible. :

I directed Colonel Dennis to. answer this Letter by the-same messenger, to the effect that I was still
here and intended to remain, advising that any action by the loyal inhabitants should be taken with
deliberation and as much unanimity as possible, and promising that they should hear from me officially
very shortly. They were asked to report promptly the result of the “Call” on the 16th instant. A
notice posted at the foot of one of the printed « Calls,” fixing a place of meeting in the parish of Kil-
donan, is in the handwriting of one of Governor McTavish’s Councillors. This Paper is now in my

ossession.
d The last Mail from Canada brought me no official Letters. I expected to hear by this time that the
% Transfer” had been agreed to and the Imperial Order in Council passed. If I do not receive notice
of this “ Order” in a few days, I shall be much embarrassed in my plans, and the leaders of the Insur-
rection will be emboldened and strengthened. They understand perfectly that I have no legal authority
to act or to command obedience till the Queen’s Proclamation is issued.

" The weather is still mild for this latitude. The earth is not frozen on the prairie to a greater
depth than four inches; the snow barely covers the ground, and yesterdey it rained for two or three

hours.
‘ I have, &ec,,
The Hon. the Secrciary of State for the Provinces, . (Signed) Wu. McDovgarL.
» Ottawa, Canada.

Canapa,
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( A)
PUBLIC NOTICE.

To the InaaBITaNTS of RUPERT'S LAND.
Winnipeg, 6th November, 1869.

The President and Representatives of the French-speaking population of Rupert’s Land in Council,
“ the invaders of our rights being now expelled,” already aware of your sympathy, do extend the band
of friendship to you our friendly inhabitants, and in doing so invite you to send twelve Representatives
from the following places, viz, :— ) ,

St. John’s 1, St. Margaret’s 1, Headingly 1, St. James 1, St. Mary’s 1, Kildoman 1, St. Pauls 1, St.
Andrew’s 1, St. Clement’s 1, St. Peter’s 1, Town of Winnipeg 2, in order to form one body with the
above Council, consisting of twelve members, to consider the present political state of this country, and
to adopt such measures as may be deemed best for the future welfare of the same.

A meeting of the above Council will be held in the Court House at Fort Garry on Tuesday, the
16th day of November, at which the invited Representatives will attend. :

By Order of the President,
Louis Rier, Secretary.

B. )
( “ Fort Garry, 9th November, 1869.

“ Council in deliberation to-day on yours. Received all right. Decision not known. Saddle will
“ fall on right horse. “Call’ made on the different parishes by Manifesto of Riel, who seized ¢ Nor-
« Wester’ Office, and by force used the press. English and Scotch parishes will not respond.
«Issue Proclamation, and then you may come fearlessly down. Hudson’s Bay Company evidently
“ shaking.
“ By no means leave Pembina.”

( C)
“ Winnipeg, 8th November, 1869,
* * «The Company, beyond all question, are deeply concerned in the matter. Half-breeds

* « themselves declare that they have received assistance. Insurgents in quasi possession of Fort Garry

“ receive their supplies there. Yours received all right. Council in deliberation to-day. On mo
« aecount leave. 'E‘he English have not risen, hecause they have not been called upon by the autho-
« rities—otherwise they would have tisen. Issue your Proclamation, and it will be responded to by
% 500 men.

% Mr. Snow was told by Mr. Riel to-day that the road would be stopped. Last night they took
“ possession of ¢ Nor-Wester’ Office and printed off a ¢ Call, of which a copy is enclosed. The types
“ were set by a Yankee whom they brought with them, and the proof was revised by Mr. Ross. All
«“ tl;iiYankeeS'here are openly concerned in it, including certain merchants. Will write at length
¢ to-day. .

“ Mo)mlay evening.— There is a rumour that Fenian aid has been invoked, through the agency of
 Donaldson, probably. The Company are at nonplus regarding your determination to remain at
“ Pembina. A meeting of Council held this afternoon, which, the Archdeacon informed ns this evening,
« resulted, he understood, in nothing.

“The Pointe de Chene half-breeds are opposed to the stoppage of the road, which is a great benefit
“ to them, but have made their boasts that they will only allow it to be built so long as matters go
“ on to suit them. Mr. Snow thinks it would have a good effect to stop the works for a time, to.
“ bring want as a pressure upon them. They are all off the works you may say, and it would be
« folly to hire one-half of them to feed the other half.

«If the Company shut down upon the Insurgents, which they can do at any moment, they cannot
« gubsist for any length of time upon their own means. I think, with many others, that your best
“ course is to remain at Pembina until further developments.”

D.
«My DEAR* * * ] ( ) “Fort Garry, November 11th,
«T write you these few lines, hearing that you are still on the borders of this pleasant land, I
“ got in all right thanks to * * *and am rather pleased with the place. The Government now
« cstablished 1s a Republic, with, of course, French half-breeds for its officers. The English half-
“ breeds are perfectly loyal, and will continue so if there is a chance of the Government coming

“in, I believe that as soon as the Proclamation is received that they .will rise and ‘lick’ the

“ French ; of course we shall all go in, that is, the Canadians and English now in the Settlement.
¢« The French have the Fort guarded by 140 men, and have taken possession of the artillery and
« other arms stored there. They are making the Hudson’s Bay Company find them without pay,
“ which serves them right, as when they had cash they did not mind letting them into the Fort,
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« which, with the help of the loyal, they might easily have held ; but it is evident, between you and me,
<« that they at first were well pleased at the way things were working, and even since { was here,
« when the half-breeds heard that Mr. McDougall left for Ottawa, they gave up the Fort, but
« returned next day and got it again. My firm opinion is, that the affair will not be settled until
« forces are brought from Canada. No blcod has yet been shed, but it is impossible to say the
“ day that it may be, All property is respected at present but the Hudson Bay Company, which is
« used pro bono publico ; of course we are all doing nothing. Send me a line of what you are doing,
¢ and what is being done to bring this miserable affair to a conclusion.
“ Believe me, &c”

( B )
Friday, 12th November, 1869,
CoLoNEL DENNIS, DEAR SIR, Town of Winnipeg.

The communication to “friends” of the Canadian Government “Town of Winnipeg,” and to
Governor McTavish, under cover to Mr. Grant, arrived this morning, and were at once delivered by
Mr. Grant. The mail of Tuesday contained letters for his Excellency and for yourself, under cover
to Charles Cavelier and Colonel Stuttsman respectively, but we believe they have been taken out,
as the mail-bag was brought back to the Post-office and there examined. In future all mail matter
is to be examined both ways. Riviere Salé is now guarded by half-a-dozen, Fort Garry being head-
quarters, and particular pains are taken to see that no communication reaches the Governor, who
is still said (?) to be very sick. Reports of yesterday speak of a split between Riel and Bruce, and
o determination on the part of the former to oust the latter apart from the Mission influence. Bruce
has the largest personal following, and the result will, of course, be good. Indications show things
to be shaky in their camp, more especially since they have heard that the English half-breeds have
taken all the ammunition from the magazines at the Lower Fort and secreted it. This information
led to a demand the day before yesterday from Riel, for the keys of the bastions at Fort Garry,
where the guns are, and they have since been guarded at night. The shot and shell, however,
belonging to them were at the iower Fort.

Indians, to the number of fifty, had a grand meeting in this neighbourhood the day before yesterday,
“ Pegwis” (Prince) presiding, highly ing;guant with half-breeds; result, & letter from them to the
Governor, entrusted to Mr. Grant, to forward their interests in this matter, being so directly antago-
nistic to the claims of the half-breeds, that coupled with the fact that Indians are, as a rule, on the
side of the provisions and pay, there is not the slightest cause to apprehend danger from them, but
ratlaer powerful support at any moment, having the sanction of Government, and English half-breed
heading.

We %vi]l have a strong protest into the Authorities here at once against their inaction, and embodying
the suggestions made in the Letter. We believe that time, a short time, backed by anything ofticial
from Governor McDougall, will bring about a solution of the difficulty, and that, if something comes
in the way foreshadowed in the Letter, we will guarantee the result.

In most of the parishes no answer will be made to Riel’s Proclamation, oz, if acted on at all, will
be simply to send a letter, protesting against their past and present action. They are trying to get
an election of * * * and McK. (McKenny) from the town, but will, I think, be able to frustrate
that, if the Americans do not turn out too strong.

This method of communication may be trusted, and is being paid for in full here. Mr. * * *is
at Oak Point, and stops all contracts to Pointe du Chene half-breeds. The effect will be to turn their
influence against those who have rendered it necessary for the Government to withhold its hitherto
liberally spent money.

We want ﬁliidance at once, force, if necessary, is available ; but we believe that patience and proper
authority will force the present Government to action. Town people are beginning to tire of feeding
and encouraging their-guard, and the guard in turn resent the falling off of attention. One of the
Captains told us he was forced into the affair, and wished our good offices to clear him when the time
of examination in the affair came.

The cause is quietly and surely advancing with the English element, and gaining ground even
with tho French, and we feel sure that all will be well. * * * *

ExTracts of a LerTeR addressed to the SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE PROVINCES, by a GENTLEMAN
resident at St. Paul, Minnesota, dated November 26th, 1869.

I sent your letter by mail to Mr. McDougall, under cover to a trusty friend at Pembina, with
instructions to deliver it in person to that weatﬁer—bound gentleman,

I am in frequent receipt of letters by mail or private hands, three or four times a week from
Pembina. Mails to that point are safe; beyond it, all, both ways, are ransacked, and the contents
cxamined, and nothing is allowed to pass without the countersign of some Insurgent inspector.

‘The events occurring at. Red River naturally excite a good deal of interest %ere, and though there
is, of course, a generul desire that the affair may result in the annexation of the country to the
United States, the main anxiety here is that bloodshed should be avoided, or anything like war, for
our. people are very apprehensive that such a conflict would. draw the Indians of boti sides into if,
and involve our own border in the horrors of an Indian war. I have mot, of course, the slightest idea

F
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what your Government are going to do about it, but to us here it seems the height of imprudence to
attempt coercion. . . o

From what I can learn there is at present very little, if any, annexation sentiment in the couniry ;
but coercion would be likely to force that alternative. There is a little dash of the Fenian in the
leadership. A young Irish priest named O'Donahue, attached o Bishop Taché’s establishment, being
said to supply the brains of the movement.

From the GOVERNOR-GENERAL to GovERNOR McTAvisH.

SIR, Government House, Ottawa, 6th December, 1869.

I have the honour to address you in my capacity of Representative of the Queen and Governor-
General of Her Majesty’s British North-American Possessions, and to enclose, for your information a,
Copy of the Message which I received from Earl Granville, in reply to the accounts which I had sent
officially of the events which have taken place at the Red River. ,

This Message conveys the matured opinion of the Imperial Cabinet. The Proclamation I have
issued is based upon it ; and you will observe it refers all who “ have desires to express or complaints
“ to make,” to me as invested with authority to act on behalf of the British Government. Every
claim or complaint which may be put forward will be attentively considered, and the inhabitants of
Rupert’s Land, of all classes and persuasions, may rest assured that Her Majesty’s Government has no
intention of interfering with, or setting aside, or allowing others to interfere with or set aside, their
religious rights and the franchises which they have hitherto enjoyed or to which they may hereafter
prove themselves equal. '

You will please to make what use you think best of this Coxlnﬁunicgltion, and of the Enclosure.

ave, &o.,

William M*Tavish, Esquire, (Signed)  Jomx Youxe..

&e. &e. &e., Governor of Assiniboine,

Copy of a. TELEGRAM from The EARL GRANVILLE to Sik JoHN YOUNG. |

Make what use you think best of the following:

The Queen has heard with rise and regret that certain misguided persons have banded together
to oppose by force the entry of the future Lieutenant (?) Governor into Her Settlements on the Red
River. Her Majesty does not distrust the loyalty of Her subjects in these Settlements, and can only
ageribe to misunderstanding or misrepresentation their opposition to a' change which is plainly for
their advantage. She relies on your Government for using every effort to explain whatever is mis-
understood, to ascertain the wants and to conciliate the good will of the Red River Settlers. But
meantime She authorises you to signify to them the sorrow and displeasure with which She views these
unreasonable and lawless proceedings, and Her expectation that if any parties have desires to express
or complaints to make respecting their condition and prospects, they will address themselves to the
Governor-General of the Dominion of Canada. -

The Queen expects from Her Representative, that as he will always be ready fo receive well
founded grievances, so he will exercise all the power and authority with which She bas entrusted him
in the support of order, and for the suppression of unlawful disturbance. . ‘

- (Signed)  GRANVILLE,

Copy of & TELEGRAM from Mg, DwreHT to Stk JoEN McDoNavp.

Dated, St. Paul’s, Minnesota,
) , 6th December, 1869.

Mr. Thomas Boddy, a reliable man, who left Fort Garry November 22nd, gives following intelli-
gence :—The Scotch and English half-breeds are disgusted with the course of the French half-breeds
in the disturbance, and utterly refused to join with them, and it is believed the Insurrection is dying
out—only about fifty Insurgents remain under arms. The remainder s disbanded, and a large
portion of them have gone to the plains upon their winter buffalo hunt. . 4 Do

~ The Insurgent Council met 10th and adjourned to 22nd. Result of their deliberations unknown;
but it is thought probable, by the inhabitants of Settlement, they will decide to abandon insurrectionary
movement, and invite Governor M‘Dougall te come in and assume reins of Government. The Indian
Tribes, the Crees and Bungeis, are both favourable fo McDougall. Mr. Boddy says, so strong was
opposition of English and Scotch inhabitants to course pursued by the French element, that had the
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time arrived for the Hudson Bay Company to turn over the Government to Dominion, when Governor
McDougall reached the border they would have risen in arms, and have conducted him to Fort Garry ;
but until 1st December Governor McDougall would have no authority there, nor would they be justified
in taking measures to bring him within the Settlement. They therefore let things take their course,
biding their time until December 1st, at which date McDougall will issue Proclamation, and probably
find little or no opposition to his entry. Governor McTavish was lying very ill, with no hopes of
recovery, yet his authority is respected in Civil matters. Since his Proclamation, mails have not
been tampered with nor have travellers been molested.
(Signed)  H. P. DwigHT.

Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
Ottawa, December 7th, 1869.

T had the honour to address to you Despatches on the 19th and 29th November, which, in
view -of the insecurity of the mails, were enclosed to a friend at St. Paul, to be sent forward,
if possible, by private hands. For fear that they may have miscarried, duplicates are annexed
to this

Your Despatch of the 13th ultimo, with its Enclosures from A to E, reached me on the 3rd
instant, ia;nd was immediately laid before the Council. Copies will be sent to the Colonial Secretary
this week.

I have now the honour to inform you that the Very Reverend M. Thibault, accompanied by Charles
de Salaberry, Esq., proceeds to-morrow, vid St. Paul and Pembina, to Fort Garry, for the purpose of
assisting in putting down the unlawful assemblage of people on the Red River, and obtaining access
for the Canadian Authorities into the North-West. .

M. Thibault has had great experience in that country, having been for thirty-seven years a priest
there, and having only left it last year.

Mr. de Salaberry has also had considerable experience in dealing with the French half-breeds.

After consulting with you, they will take such action with these people as they think most
calcunlated to carry out our objects, and it may perhaps be politic that they should have as little open
communication with you as possible.

It is, of course, advisable not to arouse the suspicions of the Insurgents, who would be very likely to
view with disfavour any persons coming directly as agents from you, and acting under your
instractions. You will, however, be good enough to strengthen their hands as much as possible.

‘With them we send you a Proclamation issued by the Governor-General by the direct command of
Her Majesty. This should be widely disseminated, in such a manner and at such a time as you think
most expedient. It has also been thought well to print copies of your Letter of Instructions, which
will of itself show how unfounded is the charge that the North-West is to be governed without the
interposition or aid-of the residents, but by Canadians solely.

Messrs. Thibault and de Salaberry will be followed by Donald A. Smith, Esq., the Hudson’s Bay

t at Montreal, who now occupies the position formerly held by Mr. Hopkins. In his capacity as
an officer of the Hudson Bay Company he will obtain ready access to the country, and to (Governor
McTavish, and it is hoped that he will be able to strengthen that gentleman in his attempts to restore
law .and order at Fort Garry.

In order to give his representations due weight and importance, Mr. Smith has been asked to act as
a Commissioner holding confidential relations with the Canadian Government. In that capacity,
having once reached Fort Garry, he will be able to speak autheritatively as to the beneficent intentions
of the Government.

‘We hope that calmer counsels will soon prevail, and that these misguided people will disperse.
So soon as they do so, you will, I presume, proceed to Fort Garry and carry out your instructions.

It will be well for you to arrange for sending messages to St. Cloud, so that we may know by
telegraph that order has been restored. On receiving this information, His Excellency will commum-
cate the fact, by cable message, to the Colonial Office, and the Proclamation will be at once issued.
It has been hitherto delay:E, so that the authority of the Hudson’s Bay Company might continue
unimpaired, until it was replaced by the Canadian Government, as represented by you.

I have the honour also to send you an Order in Council, passed this day, on the subject of Customs
Daties. You will now be in a position, in your communications with the residents of the North-West,
to assure them :—

1. That all their civil and religious liberties and privileges will be sacredly respected.

2. That all their properties, rights, and equities of every kind, as enjoyed under the Government of
the Hudson’s Bay Company will be continued to them.

3. '].}xatin granting titles to land now occupied by the Settlers, the most liberal policy will be

ursued. : ‘

4, That the present Tariff of Customs Duties will be continued for two years, from the Ist
Jﬁngaay next, except in the ease of spirituous liquors, as specified in the Order in Council above
alluded to, ,

8, That in forming your Council the Governor-General will see that not only the Hudson’s Bay
Company, but the. other classes of the residents, ave fully and fairly represented.

6. That your Council will have the power of establishing municipal self-government at once,
and in such a manner as they think most beneficial to the country.

F 2
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7. That the country will be governed, as in the past, by British Law, and according to the spirit
of British justice. . .

8 That the present Government is to be considered as merely provisional and temporary, and
that the Government of Canada will be prepared to submit a measure to Parliament granting a
liberal constituiicn so soon as you as Governor and your Council have had an opportunity of
reporting fully on the wants and requirements of the Territory. . :

You had, of course, Instructions on all the above-mentioned })oints, excepting as regards the
Tariff, before you left Ottawa, but it has been thought well that I should repeat them to you in
this authoritative form. R ) i )

Trusting that ere long you may be in a position to carry these liberal propositions practically
into the Administration of the affairs of the North-West,

I have, &e,,
The Honourable William McDougall, C.B. (Signed) Josern Howe.

‘ Ottawa, 9th December, 1869.
T have the honour to transmit to you herewith, for the information of His Excellency the
Governor-General, a Copy of a Despatch, with Enclosures, marked from A to C inclusive, from the
Honourable William McDougall, giving a detail of the occurrences in the North-West Territories since
the date of his Despatch of the 13th ultimo, a Copy of which was enclosed to you in my Letter of the

4th instont.
I have, &e,

F. Turville, Esquire, Governor’s Secretary. (Signed) Joserr Howe.

S,

Larose’s Farm, Pembina, U.S,
SIr, 20th November, 1869.

I have the honour to enclose, for the information of His Excellency, the Reply of Governor
McTavish to my communications of the 2nd and 4th instant, which only reached me last night.
Copy “A.”

( AIiZo Cop)y of Correspondence which has passed between certain “loyalists” in the town of
Winnipeg and Colonel Dennis, who is still with me, and writes under my direction. (Copy “B.”)

Also a printed Copy of a “Protest,” or “ Appeal,” of these Loyalists to Governor McTavish,
and of the “ Proclamation ” which at last he was induced to issue. (Paper «C.”)

I have not yet made any reply to the lengthy and somewhat extraordinary communication
which the representatives of the Hudson Bay Company at Fort Garry have thought themselves
called upon to address to me, nor have I made any arrangements with a view to the “movement”
which they have recommended in its concluding paragraph. As the main object of my corre-
spondence with them has been accomplished; to wit, the issue of a Proclamation against the
Insurgents, I shall await for a few days the effect of this proceeding before determining upon the
course of action which I ought to adopt myself or recommend to others. I am sure His Excel-
lency will acquit me of indifference to the just claims of Canada, and the reputation .of its
Government, or to the duties of the position I have the honour to hold as its Representative, if
I abstain, in the presence of the grave events now transpiring, from all controversy with Governor
MecTavish, or any other employé of the Hudson Bay Company, as to the propriety of the political

-arrangements with respect to the North-West Territory, which the Imperial Government has

authorised and sanctioned, and the Government of Canada undertaken to carry out. With respect
to Governor McTavish, I may observe that the report is current that he is still seriously ill, and that
Mr. Black is the writer of the communications which have reached me over the signature of the
Governor. How far the personal views and private feelings of Mr. Black, who lately informed Colonel
Dennis that he was about to quit the Territory, may have influenced the policy of the Local Authorities
and found expression in their Official Correspondence, may hereafter appear, but I shall not assume
that either the policy adopted by these gentlemen, or the opinions entertained by them of the. acts
of Her Majesty’s Government in Englang, as well as in Canada,. has received, or is likely to receive,
the sanction of the Hudson Bay Company. ‘
Except the supply of a few articles of food and clothing, for which the prices charged are on the
average higher than those of the American traders in the neighbourhood, and the two Letters from
Governor McTavish, of which Copies have been forwarded, I have received no assistance, or suggestion,
or communication of anf7 kind, from the Company’s Agents in the Territory since my arrival at this
lace. I have been obliged to organize an independent private means of communication with the
ettlement in order to ascertain the movements of the Rebels, as well as of the Loyalists, and I may
add of the Government itself. Iven the Protest or Proclamation issued by the Governor has not yet
been forwarded to me by him or any of his agents, although for the last five days it has been in the
hapds of the ublic at Fort Garry. But for the private channel of communication referred to, of the
existence of which the Company’s Officers have not been made aware, I would not have been able to

forward this document by the present mail, ‘ o
I have felt it my duty to mention these circumstances, to enable His Excellency to understand the



RED RIVER SETTLEMENT. 37

difficulty that meets me in attempting to organize, in connection with the Local Authorities, any
resistance to the conspiracy which has already made such head in the Settlement. The confirmed
belief of every person {have seen, or whose testimony has reached me (whether in the confidence of
the Rebels, or friendly to Canada), is that the Hudson Bay Company’s employés, with scarcely an
exception, are either actively or tacitly encouraging the Insurrection. It was the prevalence of this
belief that determined me to force the Authorities into a public declaration of some kind that would
dispel this illusion, if such it should prove to be, or compel them to show their hand as abettors of the
Inswirection. The “ Appeal” of the loyal inhabitants &see Paper «“ C”) who had previously opened
correspondence with me, was the last screw applied, and seems to have accomplished the purpose,
notwithstanding the « peculiar circumstances” so strongly insisted upon in the enclosed Letter, to show
that the issue of such a Proclamation “ might affect injuriously the future as well as the present
Government.”

I feel bound also to state, with reference to the “serious occurrence” detailed in the 10th and 11th
paragraphs of Governor McTavish's Letter, that I have the positive assurance of Major Wallace, who
has just returned from Fort Garry, as well as the statements of the “friends of Canada,” that the
Company’s Officers in charge of Fort Garry were told of the intention of the Rebels to take the
Tort the day before it occuired, and that Chief Constable Mulligan, who is an old soldier, offered
to raise a force partly composed of  pensioners,” with which he declared he could hold the Fort
against all the Rebels who would be likely to attack it, but he was told by Dr. Cowan, the Officer
in charge, that his services were not wanted.

The communication from Winnipeg of the 17th instant (marked “B”) is from a well-informed
correspondent, who has access to the Council Room of the. malcontents, and is in confidential relations
with certain Members of the Convention opposed to the aims of the French half-breeds. I thought it
prudent to strengthen the hands of the loyal portion of the community by enabling them to -deny,
on the authority of Colonel Dennis, known to be with me and in my confidence, the story about
my Council, which is still industriously circulated in the Settlement. Canadian newspapers are
quoted to prove that all the Members of the new Government have been chosen from Canada ;
and Mr. Howe's remarks, while at Fort Garry, are repeated from mouth to mouth, and construed
into an approval of their present attitude of “resistance to tyranny,” and “ defence of their rights.”
The best way, as it appeared to me, to contradict these false and pernicious reports, was to
authorise the statement contained in the “reply” of Colonel Dennis. I have thus far avoided
direct communication with unofficial persons; but the extraordinary policy adopted by the Local
Authorities, and the difficulty and delay which I have experienced in my attempts to communicate
with them, compel me to seek the aid of loyal men wherever I can find them. It will not surprise the
Government to hear that I have had to incur considerable expense that was unforeseen when I left
Ottawa, and that private persons will not risk their lives and property in the service of a Government
unable to assert ifs existence, either de jure or de facto, without immediate and adequate remuneration,
and o very unequivocal promise of indemnity. I have hitherto exercised great caution on this point;
but I can foresee that affairs may soon take such a turn as to render a bolder and more costly policy
indispensable for the protection of life and property, as well as for the establishment and maintenance
of authority.

Messrs.tly%ichards and Provencher are still in the neighbourhood, and see me daily. As soon as the
result of the meeting of so-called « Representatives” is known, we shall take counsel together, and
determine upon the course which prudence and duty may then point out,

have, &e.,
The Honourable Joseph Howe, Secretary of State, (Signed) W. McDoueaLL.
&e. &e. &e. :
( Copy A. )
Fort Garry, Red River, 9th November, 1869,
My pEAR SIR, (Received previously from the H. B. Co., in No. 14037, 1869.)

Yesterday, about 10 A3, 1 had the honour to receive your two Letters, dated respectively the
2nd and 4th instant; and, deeming it advisable that in answering these important communications I
should be advised by the Council of Assiniboie, I at once called a meeting of that body for to-day,
and with their concurrence have now to forward you this Reply. '

In the first of your Letters you mention that, in conformity with the suggestion of Colonel Dennis,
and the opinion of the Council, you had decided upon remaining a few days at Pembina, in the hope
of the withdrawal of the disaffected parties from tgeir positions; and we cannot but think that, in the
circumstanées, your decision in that respect must be considered wise. But it has not been without
feelings, to which we should find it difficult to give adequate expression, that we have heard of your
having been disturbed at the Company’s Post while you were there waiting the course of events, and
of your having been compelled to retire beyond the International Line.

It ap]i:ea,rs you are under the belief that a Proclamation from this Government, explaining the late
Imperial Act regarding the Territory, and warning the people of the consequences of steps tending to
impede any action that might be taken under its provisions, would have had a salutary effect in
checking the present unlawful movement on the part of the French population. It is difficult, if not
impossible, to say with any degree of certainty, how far that measure might have produced such a
result; but if due consideration be given to the peculiar circumstances in which the Local Authorities
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- asked what they meant by such 2 movement upon the
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bere stood, there will, perhaps, appear to be but little ground for surprise at a measure of that kind
not having been adopted. )

The Act in question referred to the prospective transfer of the 'Territory; but up to this moment
we have no official intimation from Englfmd{’ or the Dominion of Canada, of the fact of the transfer, or
of its conditions, or of the date at which they were to take practical effect upon the Government of
this country. In such a state of matters we think it is evident that any such action on the part of the
Red River Authorities as that to which you point would necessarily have been marked by a great
degree of vagueness and uncertainty’; it was felt that it might affect injuriously the future as well as
the present Government, and we therefore deemed it advisable to await the receipt of official
‘igell‘i)gence of the actual transfer of the country, and of all the details which it concerned us to

OW. ‘
But having every reason to believe, from semi-official sources of information, that the transfer of the
Territory would soon take place, I have not failed to take every proper opportunity of putting the
matter before the public in that light, and although we have net seen the expediency of issuing any
such Proclamation as that suggested, yet we have been incessant in our efforts to impress upon the
leaders of these disaffected people a just sense of the illegality and danger of the course upon which
they had entered, and to dissnade them from the further Erosecution of their unlawful purposes.
Measnres, it is true, of a positively coercive nature, have not been resorted to, for the simple reason
that we have had no reliable force to insure their safety and success; and we are strongly impressed
with the belief that there is great, if not overwhelming weight in the reasons given in my former
Letter for the Authorities hesitating to adopt the perilous step of deliberately calling upon one portion
of 80 peculiar a community as this to confront the other in an attitude of determined hostility.

With regard to that Fart of your Letter in which you make such express reference to my position
as the present legal Ruler of the country, and to my responsibility for the preservation -of the public
peace, permit me to say it is because I so deeply feel that responsibility that I have hitherto been
restrained from sanctioning a course so likely, I may almost say so certain, to engender a strife which,
for years to come, might prove fatal to the peace and prosperity of the whole country, and make all
government impossible. It is unquestionaﬁle that the preservation of the public peace is the
paramount duty of every Government ; but, while in ordinary circumstances it might be reasonable
enough to cast upon us the exclusive responsibility of preserving the public peace, it may, perhaps, at
the same time, admit of doubt whether some degree of responsibility did not also rest upon others in a
case of so exceptional a character as this—a case in which not merely a whole country is transferred,
but also, in a certain sense, a whole people, or where at least the political condifion ef the people
undergoes such a great change; and it may, moreover, be a question whether, on the part of the
Dominion, the preliminary arrangements for introducing that change have proceeded upon such a
Just and accurate appreciation of the condition of the country, and the peculiar feclings and habits of
its people, as, on such an occasion, was desirable, if not absolutely essential, and whether the
complications by which we are now surrounded may not to a great extent be owing to that
circumstance. )

But at a time like this, when it is felt that all our energies ought to be directed to the possible
removal of the obstacles that oppose the peaceable inauguration of your Government, it would be out of
place here to go into the discussion of such points as relate to the responsibility of the concerned in
the introduction of the new order of things, and I shall therefore proceed to deal with matters of a
more practical, as well as more pressing nature,

_Whnt the ultimate object of the malcontents may be, it is difficult to ascertain; but if they are
aiming at establishing a Government of their own, as the leaders whom you met on the 2nd instant
rather prematurely said they had already done, I doubt very much whether the rest of the Settlement
are at all likely to submit to such a domination ; but whether they may think it best tacitly to ignore
such a usurpation of power, while it consisted merely in a name, or actively resist it, or take part in
the movement in the hope of moderating and directing it, will, I apprehend, greatly depend upon
circumstances.

It seems by no means improbable that on both sides of the Line there may be persons who are
looking with a degree of sympathy upon this movement of the French population : their motives it is
not difficult to imagine; but it seems to be nothing short of infatuation for the leaders of these
disturbances to encourage the idea of annexation to the States; for it is highly .improbable that
whatever might be the influence of such a chance upon other portions of the community, its effect
upon the French population generally could hardTy fail to prove unfavourable to them.

Excepting in one respect—but that, I am sorry to say, a serious, if not formidable sense—little
change, so far as we can learn, has since my last, come over the arrangements or the spirit of these

" people. The prevention of your entrance into the Settlement was the object they first proposed to

themselves, and upon that object they appear to be as fully bent as ever—being still, as I am
informed, collected at several points in numerous armed bands, in readiness, as we may presume, to
obstruct your approach to the Settlement, should that be attempted ; and they ave, of course, aware
that so long as you remain in the neighbourhood, such an atterpt is always possible, -

The occurrence to which I have alluded in the preceding paragraph as being serious is this, that
on the afternoon of Tuesday, the 2nd instant, & number of these daring people suddenly, and without
the least intimation of their intention to make such a move, took possession of the gates of Fort
Garry, where they placed themselves inside and outside the gates to the number, in all, of about 120,
and where, night and day, they have constantly kelii; a pretty strong armed guard. On being

1 ort, they said their object was to protect it.
Protect it from what ? they were asked. Their answer was, From danger. Against what danger?
they were asked. To this question they replied that they could not now specify the danger, but that
they would do so hereafter, and obstinately took up the position they have since kept, in spite of all
our protests and remonstrances at such a bold and high-handed proceeding.
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On coming into the Fort they earnest(liy disclaimed all intention of injuring either person or
property within it—and it must be allowed that in that respect they have kept their word ; but it is
an inconvenience and a danger, next to intolerable, to have a body of armed men, even with professions
of peace toward ourselves, forcibly billetted upon an establishment such as this. Their jnfentions in
coming to the Fort they have never definitely expressed, nor have they yet specified the danger from
which their presence was meant to protect the place. We are therefore left in some measure to
* conjectures, and by these we are strongly led to believe that you were expected to come to the Fort,
and th:t by thus having previous possession of the gates, they felt that they would be sure of keeping

ou out.
d It is needless to ask why their presence was submitted to, as I presume you already know enough
of the circumstances fully to understand that it was only borne, as being apparently, with respect to
immediate results, the less formidable of two very serious evils.

Towards the end of your last Letter you desire my opinion as to whether any useful purpose is
likely to be served by your remaining for any length of time at Pembina; and, feeling the importance
that may be attached to any expression from me on that point, I have taken care to test my own ideas
very closely by the opinion of the Couneil.

In compliance with your wishes let me say, as the substance of our opinion on this point, that we
perceive there is as little chance as ever of these people receding from opposition to your coming into
the Settlement; that the attempt might be productive of the most disastrous consequences; and that
while you remain at Pembina, the effect, so far as the Settlement is concerned, is likely to be the
perpefuation, and possibly even the aggravation, of the state of disturbance and danger. You can,
therefore, yourself judge whether any good purpose would be likely to be answered by your remaining
at Pembina; and perhaps your own view of the matter will be such as to prepare you for my adding,
as’L assure you I do, with a feeling of inexpressible regret, that to the Council and myself it appears
that your early return to Canada, is not only essential for the peace of the country, but also advisable
in the interest of the establishment in the future of the Canadian Government.

It is, uo doubt, fgossible that a little more time may change the minds of the men; and public
meetings are notified which may somewhat alter the present state of affairs. Your immediate
departure ought not, therefore, perhaps to be at once determined upon. Xt might be advisable a few
days longer to wait the course of events, or at any rate until I can again communicate with you; but
at present, I confess, I see but very little reason to expect the occurrence of anything thatis likely
materially to change the opinions I have expressed with regard to your movements.

I remain, &e.,
The Hon. W. McDougall, C.B,, (Signed)  'W. McTavism.
Pembina.

( CopyB. )

Winnepeg, Wednesday Evening, 11 p.n.,
17th November, 1869.

Council met at 12 yesterday; English Delegates, all staunch, except the two from the Town of
Winnepeg. The English parishes, considering & meeting, such as proposed by the French, illegal, sent
representatives with written instructions, and these were to explain, first, that they disapproved of all
the acts committed ; and, secondly, that they would not join in forming an Independent Government,
The French Delegation consisted of their Council of twelve, before formed, and the President and
Secretary. Riel caused a salute of a number of field-pieces to be fired ; and the meeting took place
in the Court House, which was at the time, and since, guarded. Yesterday was consumed in the
expression of the views of the English Delegates; and it was expected that to-day the French were
to show their hand.

Late in the afternoon of yesterday the MSS. of Governor McTavish’s Proclamation was handed
in to the Assembly; and much discussion as to the propriety of doing so preceded its reading.
The English Delegation, with the exception of the two from the Town, worked well together, and
wished to make special use of this document ; but its want of general publication and translation into
French prevented. An interview with three of the principal English Delegates, just before this
writing, informs us that they this morning demanded of the French Delegates their policy, but they
refused to give it. Riel argued that Hudson Bay Company’s Government was a very weak one, and
that a better one was necessary. This was met by the counter argument of the consequent necessity
of a strong Government, and shown, by reference to the different published papers, that the Canadian
one was the only one possible. Riel evidently pointed to a Republic, but would not say so directly.

Priest. O'Donobune at one time became very much excited, an %uoted the wrongs of Ireland, and

stated that the British Government was now shaking to its foundation, &c. They affect to despise
the Proclamation of Governor McTavish, herewith enclosed. We have no faith in the sincerity of
that Proclamation ; but believe that the pressure brought to bear upon them here by the loyal party
was such that they could no longer resist, and their own conviction of the utter helplessness and
impossibility of further resistance compelled them to issue it, as much for their own safety as for the
‘continuance of their authority, if any portion remains. Delegates thanked Governor in writing for
the Proclamation. General Court of Assiniboia is to be held to-morrow as usual; and, in consequence,
the meeting of Delegates and French put off till Monday, when English insist on knowing the ¥rench
policy. English Delegates, except those from Town, very determined, and will have meetings of their
EeOple in the interim. A report reached here yesterday of 2000 Troops being on the way, and is

elieved by the French—hence the quietude of to-day in comparison with yesterday. Riel alluded
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- number of most respectable inhabitants, and on the 17th a reply was issued, which will
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indirectly to it, and said that all routes were alike impossible. The three principal Delegates we
have just conversed with say, “ that they think that as it is believed the Governor has it in his power to
“increase the number of Councillors to fifteen, and that only six are said yet to be appointed, the
“concession of the remainder to the people here will be what the claims may be whittled down to.”
Result of Monday meeting of Council will be duly reported. We think that the Insurgents will back
down. Probably a deputation to you will be decided upon at next mecting; any concession made
will do good. gan we inspire Delegates in regard to what is possible? Answer by bearer.

(To which the following Reply was sent.)

Pembina, 19th November, 1869.

The information given in yours of Wednesday is very satisfactory. Monday’s proceedings will
be looked for with much anxiety. The efforts of the Loyalists to maintain order and the authority of
the Crown, in a difficult crisis, will not be forgotten or go unrewarded. The Proclamation of Governor
McTavish seems judicious, and ought to impress all but the leaders of the conspiracy, who must know
the nature of the crime they have committed, and cannot be expected to listen to his admonitions,
Labour to detach the ignorant and, so far, the innocent dupes of these men, from their treasonable
association. It is thought here that if the majority now deliberating decides for a Republie, or other
illegal form of Government, the loyal inhabitants should withdraw from all association and discussion
with the Insurgents, and be prepared to rally in support of law and order, and the rights of the
British Crown in this part of tﬁe ominion the moment a call is made by competent authority.

Most of the stories told to deceive and excite the half-breeds and others against the Government,
which the highest Authority in the Empire has ordered to be established, and will support with all its
force, are known to be false by many persons now in the Territory, especially by those who are still
its legal rulers. One statement, that seems to be believed by many, and may have tended to abate
the loyal zeal of some otherwise well-disposed persons, is, that “ all the Members of the New Council
“ are to be sent from Canada.” This may be contradicted at once. The only person mentioned in
the Governor’s Instructions, to whom he is is directed to offer seats in his Council, are residents, and
have long been residents within the Territory. :

Three gentlemen only have come from Canade, with the expectation of appointment in or under
;cl.le govenlnment; but the Governor’s hands are so far untied, except as above stated, in the matter of
iis Council. :

This is not an official announcement, or for use in any public way, but to enable you to correct the
false statements which are current, and to assure the loyal and well-disposed.

The Governor remains here for the present.
‘ J. S. D.

( Copy C. )
‘THE NOR-WESTER AND PIONEER.
ExTrA.

Winnepeg, Wednesday, November 17, 1869.

Tue Crisis! LovALTy TrIuMPHANT !—THE GOVERNOR'S PROCLAMATION!

On the 12th instant the following Address was presented to Governor McTavish, signed bly)r a large
e found

below.
Town of Winnepeg, November 12, 1869.

We, the undersigned, residents of the Town of Winnepeg, and loyal subjects of Her Majesty th
Queen of Great Bri%n and Ireland, Peg Y g Jesty RS

Beholding with great alarm the unsettled state of feeling existing in this Territory, and the
threatening position assumed by a portion of its French-speaking population towards the Crown,
in the person gf H.er Majesty’s Representative, the future Governor of this Territory, and believing, as
we do, that this disaffection or dissatisfaction is the result of various slanderous interpretations having
been, from time to time, disseminated among the people by persons unknown;

We do, therefore, now demand that you, as the Representative of Her Majesty in this Territory, do
proclaim among the people, either by convening a public meeting for that purpose, or posting in con-
spicuous places throughout the county a full and correct exposition of the nature of the transfer of this

e%lto to the Dominion of Canada.” ‘ ’
e also request that you will explain, so far as lies in your power, the policy likely to be adopted
by the Canadian Authorities relativlt)a to the governing of tl};e TezPritory; P y y P

Also, that you deny the numerous libellous slanders which are in circulation regarding the purposes
for which the Territory was acquired.. That you warn them of the danger they are incurring to them-
selves by persistence in their present violent course, thereby imperilling the future welfare of the
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Country ; and that you do cntreat them to lay down their arms, and return peaceably to their
homes.
To William McTavish, Yisq.,
&e. &e.  é&e.
Governor, Hudson’s Bay Company, F'ort Garry.

Here is the Proclamation drawn from Governor McTavish on the present state of affairs : —

Whereas I, William McTavish, Governor of Assiniboine, have been informed that a meeting is to be
Jield to-day of persons from the different districts of the Settlement, for the ostensible purpose of taking
into consideration the present political condition of the Colony, and for suggesting such measures as
may appear to be best adapted for meeting the difficulties and dangers connected with the existing
state of public affairs; and whereas, I deem it advisable at this juncture to place before that meeting,
.as well as before the whole body of the people, what it appears necessary for me to declare in the
interest of public order, and of the safety and welfare of the Settlement: Therefore,

I notify all whom it concerns, that, during the last few weeks, large bodies of armed men have
taken positions on the public highroad to Pembina, and contrary to the remonstrances and protests of
the Public Authorities have committed the following unlawful acts :— ¢

1st. They have forcibly obstructed the movements of various persons travelling on the public high-
way in the peaceable prosecution of their lawful business, and have thus violated that personal liberty
svhich is the undoubted right of all Her Majesty’s subjects.

2nd. They have unlawfully seized and detained on the road at La Rivibre Salé, in the parish of St.
Norbert, goods and merchandise of various descriptions, and of very considerable value, belonging as
well to persons coming into the Colony, as to persons already settled here, and carrying on their busi-
niess in the Settlement, thereby causing great loss and inconvenience, not only to the owners of these
goods, but, as has formally been complained of, also to the carriers of the same, and possibly involving
the whole Colony in a ruinous responsibility.

3rd. They have unlawfully interfered with the public Mails, both outgoing and incoming, and by their
tampering with the established means of communication between the Settlement and the outside world,
have shaken the public confidence in the security of the Mails, and given a shock to the trade and
commerce of the Cs)lony, of which the mischievous effects cannot now be fully estimated.

4th. Not only withont permission, but in the face of repeated remonstrances on the part of the
Hudson Bay Company’s Officer in immediate charge of Fort Garry, they have, in numbers varying
{rom about 60 to 120, billetted themselves on that establishment, under the plea of protecting it from
a danger which, they alleged, was known by themselves to be imminent, but of which they have
never yet disclosed the particular nature; they have placed armed guards at the gates of an establish-
ment, of it which every stick and stone is private property, in spite of the most distinct protest against
such a disregard of the rights of property; they have taken possession of rooms within the Fort, anl
although they have there, as yet, committed no direct act of violence to persons or property beyond
what has been enumerated, yet, by their presence in such numbers, with arms for no legitimate pur-
pose that can be assigned, they have created a state of excitement and alarm within and around the
Fort, which seriously interferes with the regular business of the establishment.

5th. A body of armed men have entered the Hudson Bay Company’s Post at Pembina, where certain
gentlemen from Canada, with their families, were peaceably living, and under threats of violence, have
-compelled them to quit the establishment at a season of the year when the rigours of winter were
at hand, and forced them to retire within American Territory. And,

In the last place, they have avowed it as their intention, in all these unlawful proceedings, to resist
arangements for the transfer of the Government of this Country, which have been made under the
sanction of the Imperial Parliament, and of virtually setting at defiance the Royal Authority, instead
of adopting those lawful and constitutional means, which, under the enlightened rule of Her Most
Gracious Majesty our Queen, are sufficient for the ultimate attainment of every object that rests upon
reason and justice. .

The persons who have been engaged in committing these unlawful deeds, have resorted to ccts
which directly tend to involve themselves in consequences of the gravest nature, and to bring upon the
Colony and the country at large the evils of anarchy and the horrors of war.

Therefore, in the interests of law and order, and in behalf of all the securities you have for life and
propersy, and, in a word, for the sake of the present and future welfare of the Settlement and its in-
habitaats, I again earnestly and emphatically protest against each and all of these unlawful acts. I
charge: those engaged in them, before they are irretrievably and hopelessly involved, immediately to
disperse themselves, and peaceably to depart to their habitations, or to their lawful business, under the
pains and penalties of the law; and whatever in other respects may be the conclusions of those who
meet to deliberate upon the present critical and distracted state of public affairs, I adjure you, as
citizens having the interests of your country and kindred at heart, to ratify and proclaim with all the
might of your united voices this Public Notice, and Protest, and so avert from the country a succession
of evils, of which those who see the beginning may never see the end.

You are dealing with a crisis, out of which may come incalculable good or immeasurable evil; and
with all the weight of my official authority, and all the influence of my individual position, let me
finally charge you to adopt only such means as are lawful and constitutional, rational and safe,

Given under my hand and seal, at Fort Garry, this 16th day of November, 1869.

(Signed)  WirLiam McTAvisg,
‘ Governor of Assiniboine.

" N.B.—The Fifth paragraph appears to have been added on second thought, as it appears in an
official copy which has since been printed.

Signed)  W. McD.
November, 22, 1869. ( gn )
G i
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: Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
S, Ottawa, December Tth, 1869.
I had the honour to receive this morning your Despatch of the 20th November, covering

Enclosures A, B, C.
These Papers have been laid before the Privy Council, and will be forwarded by His Excellency the

Governor Greneral to England.
I have, &e.,

(Bigned) JoserH HOWE,
The Hon. Wm. McDougall, C.B., Pembina. Secretary of State for the Provinces.

THE NORTH-WEST. :
(Correspondence of the ¢ Montreal Gazette.”) .

Pembina Village, U.S., 15th Novenber, 1869.
Since my last letter, news has been received by private channels from Fort Garry that the
Insurgent party has taken possession of Upper Fort Garry with the arms and ammunition, except the
shot and shell belonging to the large guns, which happened to be stored at the Lower Fort, and have
been removed and secreted by the loyal and English and Scotch half-breeds. Instead of the public
meeting which was to have been held this week, the Secretary has issued the following Marifesto or
«Qall,” a copy of which found its way to Governor McDougall :—

[A copy of this, calling a Council, received by telegraph, appeared in ¢ The Gazette.’]

Trom a letter which reached the Governor last night, I learn that there is some prospect of a more
speedy settlement of the difficulty than was anticipated a few days ago. The letter states that the
ecretary has become jealous of the President, Mr. Bruce, and desires to get rid of him. The President
has the greater number of followers; but the Secretary is more gifted as a stump orator, and is rather
too much for Mr. Bruce in debate. It is expected that the parishes settled by the English and Scotch
half-breeds will not respond to the “call” for a Representative to be sent to the new Council. There
is no question that the English and Scotch half-breed element in the Settlement is loyal, and that the
dissatisfaction which prevails amongst the French half-breeds is caused by imaginary fears and
exaggerated and groundless statements of designing men. Amongst the latter it is pretty well under-
stood that settlers from the United States, as well as some Yankees from the Boundary Line not far
from this village, have done much to foment this Insurrection, and are in continual communication
with the leaders, giving them counsel and encouragement. Even the Postmaster at Pembina has
stated that he will not deliver in future any letters to Governor McDougall should they come enclosed
to his care, as one did, for safety against the espionage of the Insurgents. The mails are said to be
entirely under the control of the Rebel party, both here and at Fort Garry, and suspected letters are
detained and opened. ‘

One Pembina sympathiser with the Rebels refused to deliver a letter addressed under cover to bim
to Col. Dennis, and said he intended to return it to the writer.

Such is the state of things here at present. Governor McDougall takes things coolly ; he writes
his Despatches with an “eight-shooter ” on his table, and a repeating rifle close at hand. All our
party go armed to the teeth, as we don’t know what sort of “varmint” we may meet at any moment;
I think we will fight our way in as soon as the Queen’s Proclamation arrives.

The weather fortunately is very mild; the ground barely covered with snow. The frost has not
penetrated the soil on the prairie more than three or four inches. All the working men belonging
to the Governor’s garty, including Col. Dennis, sleep under tents; but expect to have the addition to
the house occupied by the Governor finished this week, when they will be able to have shelter inside.
Cattle feed on the prairies yet; and the Governor’s horses, which were greatly used up by the fourteen

days’ journey here, are rapidly recruiting on the prairie hay, cut and cured in the proper season.
! C- Bt

A Special Despatch from St. Paul’s, Minnesota, says:—“ A letter just received, dated Winnipeg,
¢ 16th Nov., says—The Council called by the half-breeds met to-day. The attendance was not large.
“ After a short time, spent mostly in private consultation,.it adjourned till Nov. 18. Copies of
“ Governor M‘Tavish’s Proclamation were issued at Winnipeg on the 16th Nov., in the French and
‘ English languages, and were circulated among those present, and .produced a marked effect.
“ Business is at a standstill ; but little trade is going on, and there is a great scarcity of money among
“ the people, who begin to think seriously on the consequences of the Insurrection.” The letter pro-
cceds: “ A careful estimate shows only five hundred men engaged in the Insurreetion, three. hundred
“of which are armed. They have ceased to interfere with the mails or private business, and the
“ majority of the people await a decisive movement on one side or the other.” In answer to an
address, signed by a large number of the influential inhabitants, asking him to warn the Insurgents
against their present course, Mr. McTavish issued a Proclamation; dated Nov. 16th, denouncing the
seizure, by the Insurgents, of public and private property, their interference with the mails and
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ravellers, and other acts against the %eace of the country, and charges those engaged in the Insur-
rection, before it be too late, to peaceably disperse under the penalties of the law, and calls upon the
citizens to ratify and proclaim this Protest with all their voice and power, in order to avert the
threatened danger. -

LATEST.

ARMS AND AMMUNITION PLACED IN SECURITY.

St. Paul, Afternoon, December 6th.
A large amount of arms and ammunition belonging to the Canadian Government, stored at
Georgetown, en route under bond to Fort Garry, was recently removed across the borders to Fort
Abercrombie for safe keeping, it being understood a conspiracy was on foot to seize it.

RED RIVER.
A HupsoxN Bay View.

‘The Globe’ publishes a long letter, under the above heading, and dated from Winnipeg,
18th November, from which we make the following extracts :—

For the last two or three years sundry attempts have been made to get up public meetings for
the purpose of raising sympathy in favour of Annexation to Canada, as it was called, and at the
same time to throw discredit on the Hudson Bay Company’s rule. These meetings, as they actually
took place here, were miserable failures. The men engaged in getting them up were unauthorised
in their attempts, at least, as far as was known in the Settlement. = The consequence was, that
Anpexation to Canada became a bye-word of ridicule. The meetings hel y

. . A : a d were scenes of uproarious
merriment instead of sober, orderly gatherings for the public weal. ~ But how were those ebullitions
of a few reported abroad? Why, as large and influential meetings held, important resolutions

adopted and so forth, intended to lead the public of Canada and the rest of the world to suppose
that we were a people tyranrized over, and that we were eagerly seeking for a milder and more

enerous Government to step in and free us from our thraldom. Now this was all erroneous.
%Vha.tever may have been the faults of the Hudson Bay Company’s rule, they were light ones, and al-
thongh I admit there was a feeling in the minds of the Settlers that the Hudson Ba? Company were
not powerful enough to enforce the laws when required, yet there never was to my knowledge a general
feeling of discontent towards them or their actions in the

, ! Véovernment of the Settlement. On the
contrary, we felt ourselves a free people in every respect.

e had privileges that in other countries
were not enjoyed by the people. Our Government was by a Council a o

¢ ) " ) ppointed from amongst ourselves.
It is true, we had no direct vote in their election, but the Hudson Bay Company invariably consulted
the opinions of a neighbourhood before choosing & Councilman from™ that part. 'We, therefore, to a
certain degree, had a voice in our own Government, and were content therewith, Our laws, as adminis-
tered, savoured more of arbitration than law, and in that resp

. ) espect suited our requirements better than
if a pack of lawyers had been amongst us, urging us, with

all the 'quibbles best known to th )
to eat each other up in useless suits. - While speaking of law A that in the histry

: ) ,» I may add bhere, that in the history
of the past few years of this Settlement, it was found that one jail has twice been broken open
and prisoners liberated. The first, a clergyman, condemned by twelve of his fellow settlers for a
crime unmentionable here; the second, a prisoner for resis

ting the officers of the law. And
liberated by whom? By a small party who, in justice to the 1 ng of the law n

. S aw-abidine people of this Settlement,
be it said, have not to this day recovered froin the stigma the actbotP jaill)-breaking has cast on

their characters. And who were those engaged in the above acts? Principally Capadians—who
have railed most- against the existing laws of our Settlement, and trie

2 I : d to set them at defiance.
Can you wonder, then, that for a time Canadians were generally looked upon with suspicion in
this_quarter? Be it known now, however, that, although for a time the feeling was—Can anything

good come out of Canada? since the advent of better men from vour country—sin
specim.ens of what Canadians generally are, have.visited this Settlemeng the reactigi i: alct%ggﬁg
in their favour, and the feeling now is that it is not fair to judge the whole flock from there
being one or two black sheep in it. We have many good men here from Canada, and I would
be sorry to cast a slur on them. Those for whom my remarks are intended peed not take offence
at their truthfulness, and those to whom they do not refer need not apply them to themselves.
We now come to another epoch in the tide of events that did much towards causing the
present troubles. Our Settlement was suddenly devastated, by means of a plague, in the shape
of the gra.sshc:ippers. It is needless here to give the already oft repeated tale of how our crops
were utterly destroyed; how the buffalo disappeared ; the fish failed; in fact, how utterly we were
besieged by famine. England came to our aid ; the United States assisted us; private contributions
from Canada flowed in upon us; and the ].:Im(i_;on2 Bay Company did more thau all the others put

CaNaDa,
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together. At this time, the Government in Ottawa, no doubt for praiseworthy reasons, sent in a
puty to commence the road to the Lake of the Woods; the idea being to pay for their labour
in provisions to those from amongst the Settlers who were willing to work. The Ontario Legisla-
ture voted 5000 dollars towards the relief of the Settlement, but John Sandfield MeDonald
conld not see it in the same light, for we never received the amount, and Ontario is that much
vicher to-day. It will be well, however, to allow the appropriation to stand good, as it 18 likely to be
required next year to assist in feeding those emigrants from Canada who may be hardy enough to
sottle in Red River next summer; there being every reason to look forward to the grasshopper
calamity then, and there is not more than enough in the country to feed the people already
here for one year without crops. The two parties sent in charge of this end of the Govern-
ment Road may have acted wisely, but not too well. They employed a certain number of men
from amongst the Settlers; and when flour was selling &t three pounds sterling per batrel in
the stores, they charged the poor men, their employés, three pounds twelve shillings, and four
pounds sterling per barrel, and, at the same time, only poid them three pounds per month in that
ratio for their work—this created dissatisfaction. The next thing, which caused still more dis-
content amongst the people, was a concerted plan of a few, in which the Government Officials.
in charge of the road were implicated, to buy up from Indians (who had no right to sell) parcels
of land, on part of which people were actually living, in and around Qak DPoint, the headquarters
of the Government works.  This raised such a feeling of indignation against the parties con-
cerned, that the head men in charge of the road summarily received notice from the neighbowrs around
to quit the premises forthwith ; and, afterwards, oue of the principal actors in the affair (a Governinent
Official) was fined by one petty court ten pounds sterling for giving liquor to those same Indians. These
and similar actions on the part of the Government employés, whilst making them unpopular, seriously
injured the cause of Canada in the minds of the people lere; and matters were not afterwards.
improved by the doings and writings of the poet, Mr. Charles Mair, who, after having received
the hospitalities of many families in the Settlement, saw fit to ridicule in public print those who
had entertained him—to speak and write disparagingly of the Settlers as a body, and the ladies
in particular. These, you may say, are minor matters, but I only point them out to show the
gradual feeling those ‘actions” of a few individuals caused of dislike to the Government, who-
would send such men as samples of their employés. On the top of all these unfortunate
occurrences, in comes Colonel Dennis, with his party of surveyors, to divide and subdivide the
laud inte sections as they saw fit. This, at all events, was premature on the part of the rulers.
at Ottaws. before any arrangements had been made with the people here regarding the incoming
Governmeni. And although Colonel Dennis acted in a_gentlemanly and proper manner in the
discharge of his troublesome duties, still the people looked on the act of his party going to
work before the establishment of the mew order of rule, as arbitrary and presumptuous. 1 can
believe, nowever, that if the minds of the Settlers had not been prejudiced beforehand by the
previous ucts of Government Officials, there would have been no interruption offered to_the Colonel
and his party in their surveying operations; for everywhere Colouel Dennis was received favourably
by the majority of the Settlement, although he, too, unfortunately fell into the same trap as.
his predecessors, and (if I may use the expression) was gobbled up” by the men who all along
have been the principnl cause of trouble in the Settlement. As if everything was fated to be
to the disadvanfage of Canadian interests, a clique of men, unpopular through their own deeds.
in this Settlement, have all along taken up the cudgels (it may be unasked) for Canadian
Annexation, These men have professed themselves as autbority on all subjects concerning the
new Government, and have invariably endeavoured to throw discredit on the Hudson Bay Company
abroad and at home. Now the fact is, the Hudson Bay Company have been misrepresented.
Tt is not, nor hes for the past twenty years, been unpopular to the majority of the Settlement.
Indeed, it has been the best friend to the Settlers, many of whom have reason to feel grateful
to_our grandmother, as the Company has been called by those desirous of being facetious on the
subject. The Capadian Government, too, will do well to not throw aside the advice and assistance
the Hudson Bay Company will surely bave in its power to give; that is, if it wishes to become
popular as a Goverment with the present inhabitunts of Red River. Let the public of Canada
beware of report touching the injuries of the Hudson Bay Company to the people here, for
such is mot the general feeling in the Settlement. I assure you, though I am sorry to say it,
the prestige of the men who have figured so far in connection with the Canadian Government.
here, has tended to make it dreadfully unpopular with the majority of the Settlement. ‘
While feeling was rife we had a visit from the Hon. Joseph Howe; and on his arrival the first act of
the clique already mentioned was to invite him to become a guest in the house of one of them, who
had made himself singularly conspicuous in Canadiaw affairs here. The old politician, however, was
not to be caught with such chaff, and declined the invitation. Fatigued by his hard trip over the
plains, Mr. Howe kept & good deal in his quarters at the hotel. He, however, made a couple of trips
up and down the Red and Assiniboine Rivers seeing enough to satisfy himself, I am sure, what the
Country was like. Had he come earlier in the season he would have seen the Settlement to much
better advantage than he did, as everything while he was here looked bleak and miserable, preparatory
to the change from autumn to winter. Many of the principal Settlers visited the Hon. gentleman, and
the universal opinion formed of him was, that he was a fine old gentleman, one who could see and act
for himself. A great deal of satisfaction was felt throughout the Scttlement at Mr. Howe's visit,
although it was understooq that he merely visited us in the capacity of a private individual irrespective

of his public character. This will go to show how much good might have been done bad delegates

been sent to prepare the way for Mr. McDougall's coming. Although Mr, Howe never favoured us.

with a speech, or in any other way made a public demonstration, and although he would receive

nothing of the latter from our bands, I am of the opinion that he left the Settlement with a pretty

correct idea of the people and the situation of affairs as they then stood. I may say, indeed, that he

did much in his short visit here to counteract the evil influence that was abroad ; but T am sorry to

:zy the seeds of discontent had been too deeply sowii to be rooted up so easily, and after his departure
e crisis came.
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- Some idea can be formed of the earnestness of the French people when you learn that mauy of
them have, at the moment I am writing, been out on guard eighteen days; sleeping at night on the
snow, with no tent or other covering except their ordinary clothes—and this without the least prospect
of pay. The food they eat is the only thing they get, and that is furnished them by the more wealthy
of their own people. A meeting is called for the 16th inst., at which delegates from all parts of the
Settlement are to meet to discuss the present state of affairs, and the best method of providing for the
future. Freight cars were watched for guns, which it is reported the Canadian Government are trying
to run into the Settlement.

And now for the future. Who can tell what that may be? It rests altogether on the policy of the
Canadian Government, in the adjustment of the present difficulties. It will be useless to split the
Settlement on the point of rcpresentation. Would it be wise, as we are situated, to endeavour to raise
one side of the Settlement against the other? God knows where such a course would end. Exter-
mination on one side or the other would follow ; the Indians, heretofore tractable, would be roused,
their worst passions inflamed, rapine and massacre would be the result; and, for all this, who would
be answerable but the Canadian Government? It will be the same if it is attempted to coerce the
Settlement by force. Such an action would be unwise and uncalled for, and the result would be that,
instead of a profitable acquisition to the Dominion in this Country, you would have an expensive and
unsatisfactory Government to support here for the next five or ten years at least. I would advise, if
so humble a person as myself may be permitted to do so, that proper Delegates be sent to this country
to find out the exact views of the people. Thut could be done during the present winter. In the
mean-time, let Mr, McDougall return to Canada, to await the decision of the House at Ottawa on
the Report furnished by these Delegates. Give the people here their just rights, and no more faithful
adherents to the canse of Canada will be found in the Dominion than these same Settlers of ours.
Take a new start in the spring in a proper direction, and all will be well; but, for the sake of the
fearful consequences that will ensue—a rising of the people generally, united with the Indian troubles.
throughout theé whole North-West—let your actions be those of peace. At present, we are in the
greatest uncertainty as to the result of the present difficulties. As long as McDougall remains at
Pembina, the Country will be in a state of excitement, especially as he has not vouchsafed to send any
message as yet to the people as to what his intentions are. If blood be shed in this cause, may God
hhelp thlose who have been the cause of it! I will write you with further particulars as they develop
themselves, .

PROCLAMATION.
V. R.

By His Excellency the Right Honourable Sir Jonx Youxa, Baronet, a Member of Her Majesty’s
Most Honourable Privy Council, Knight Grand Cross of The Most Honourable Order of the Bath,
Knight Grand Cross of The Most Distinguished Order of St. Michael and St. George, Governor
General of Canada.

To all and every the Loyal Subjects of Her Majesty the Queen, and to all to
whom these Presents shall come

GREETING :

THE QUEEN has charged me, as Her Representative, to inform you that certain misguided
persons in Her Settlements on the Red River, have banded themselves together to 0£pose by force
the entry into Her North-Western Territories of the Officer selected to administer, in her name, the
Government, when the Territories are united to the Dominion of Canada, under the authority of
the late Act of the Parliament of the United Kingdom; and that those parties have also
forcibly, and with violence, prevented others of Her loyal Subjects from ingress into the Country.

Her Majesty feels assured that She may rely upon the loyalfy of Her Subjects in the North-West,
and believes those men who have thus illegally joined together, have done so from some misrepre-
sentation.

The Queen is convinced that in sanctioning the Union of the North-West Territories with Canada,.
She is promoting the best interests of the residents, and at the same time strengthening and consoli-
dating Her North American Possessions as part of the British Empire. You may judge then of
he sorrow and displeasure with which the Queen views the unreasonable and lawless proceedings
which have occurred.

Her Majesty commands me to state to you, that She will always be ready through me as Her
Representative, to redress all well founded grievances, and that She has instructed me to hear and
consider any complaints that may be made, or desires that may be expressed to me as Governor-
General. At the same time She has charged me to exercise all the powers and authority with
which She has intrusted me in the support of order, and the suppression of unlawful disturbances.

By Her Majesty’s authority I do therefore assure you, that on the Union with Canada all your
civil and religious rights and privileges will be respected, your pr:)iperties secured to you, and that
your Country will be governed, as in the past, under British laws, and in the spirit of British justice.

I do, further, under Her authority, entrust and command those of you who are still assembled
and banded together, in defiance of law, peaceably to disperse and return to your homes, under the
penalties of the law in case of disobedience. :

CAnaba..
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And I do lastly inform you, that in case of your immediate and peaceable obedience and disper-
sion, I shall order that no legal proceedings be taken against any parties implicated in these
unfortunate breaches of the law.

Given under my Hand and Seal at Arms at Ottawa, this Sixth day of December,
in the year of Qur;Lord One Thousand Eight Hundred and Sixty-nine, and in
the Thirty-second year of Her Majesty’s Reign.

By Command,
JOHN YOUNG.

H. L. LANGEVIN, Secretary of State.

No. 10.

Copy of a DESPATCH from Governor The Rt. Hon. Sir J. Young, Bart,, G.C.B,,
G.C.M.G., to The EArL GraNVILLE, K.G.

(No. 148.) Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
11th December, 1869.
(Received 27th December, 1869.)

My Lorp, (Answered, No. 7,-8th January, 1870, page 173.)

I have the honour to transmit a Copy of the Instructions which I have given,
on the part of the Government of the Dominion, to Mr. Smith, one of the chief Officers
of the Hudson’s Bay Company, who is proceeding to Fort Garry, to assist Governor
McTavish, or, in case of that gentleman being incapacitated, to take up the discharge of
his duties. I have, &c.,

(Signed) JOHN YOUNG.

P.S.—Since the above was written, the other Papers have reached me. They contain
all our Advices to the most recent date.

The Earl Granville, K.G.,
&e. &ec. &e.

Enclosure 1 in No. 10.

- The SECRETARY of STATE for the PROVINCES to the GOVERNOR (GENERAL'S SECRETARY.
(No. 1074.)

Sig, ’ Ottawa, 11th December, 1869.

I have the honour to transmit to you, herewith, for the information of His Excellency the
Governor-General, a Copy of a Despatch, with two Enclosures, from the Honourable Wm. McDougall,
C.B., giving an account of the transactions which have occurred in the North-West Territories since
the date of his last Despatch.

I also enclose Copies of three Letters addressed to Mr. McDougall, and of a Letter addressed to Mr.
Donald A. Smith, a Special Commissioner appointed to enquire into, and report upon, the causes and
extent of the obstructions offered to the ingress of Mr. McDougall into those Territories.

I have, &e.
Governor General’s Secretary. (Signéd) JoserH HowE.

Copy of a RePORT of a CoMMITTEE of the Honourable the Privy Councir, approved by His
¢ .o Bxcellency the GOVERNOR-GENERAL in Council, on the 11th December, 1869, -

The Committee of Council, on the recommendation of the Honourable the Minister of Finance, and
for the reasons given in his Memorandum of the 11th December inst., advise that the Minute in
Council of the 7th instant., having reference to the policy to be adopted in Rupert’s Land, in the event
of that Territory being added to the Dominion, be cancelled.

The Minister of Finance submits that, in his opinion, it is inexpedient. to make any material changes
in the Customs duties in Rupert’s Land until the means of access to the Territory shall have been
greatly improved. : ‘
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* He therefore suggests that the present Tariff should remain in force for, at least, two years from the
1st of January next. .

That, if the above suggestion be concurred in, he would further recommend that an announcement
of the intention of the Government be made to the people resident in the Territory, who may possibly
feel some alarm on the subject of increased duties.

The Committee concur in the foregoing recommendation, and submit the same for your
Excellency’s approval. ~
: Certified,

(Signed) W, H, Leg, C.P.C.

Inelosure 2 in No. 10.

The Honourable Wx. McDouGALL to the SECRETARY of STATE for the PrROVINGES.

Siz, Pembinsa, United States, 25th November, 1869.

I have the honour to forward a Confidential Report by Major J. Wallace, of Whitby, Ontario,
who was sent from this place on the 4th of November on a Special Mission to Fort Garry, and who
returned on the 22nd inst. He is the person mentioned in my Report of the 5th inst., as being in the
confidence of some of the conspirators here, so far as to obtain a “Pass” from them. Major Wallace
was employed by Colonel Dennis in his surveying operations last summer; he is & shrewd Scotchman,
has been many years a resident of Canada, and, though a little hot-tempered, may be regarded as a
trustworthy reporter of what he saw and heard.

. Ireceived, through an employé of the Hudson Bay Company sent by Governor McTavish, infor-
mation that the Rebels had resolved to send an expedition of horsemen to Georgetown, to burn the
Hudson Bay Storehouse there, in order to destroy the arms and ammunition which I had stored at
that place. This was to be done af once, if the result of the “Convention” was in favour of the
Insurrection. As there was no time to lose, I took immediate steps to have them removed to Fort
Abercrombie, some forty miles distant. I wrote a note to General Hunt (Copy A), requesting him to
allow them to be stored in the Fort, which I have no doubt he will readily comply with, I caused it
to be rumoured, or rather to be stated, as a fact by our party, in their conversation with the conspirators
at Pembina, that the arms, &c. had been removed to Fort Abercrombie. This will be reported at
Head-quarters, and will probably put a stop to the “raid.” DBut, in any event, the arms, &ec., will
be at Fort Abercrombie before the raiders can overtake them.

I have received a private Note from Governor MeTavish, informing me of his having issued a
Proclamation, more, he observes, in deference to my opinion, than from any expectation of a favourable
result; and, at the same time, he expresses his satisfaction that I have remained here. He enclosed
to me Letters he had received for me from Sir Curtis Lampson and the Secretary of the Hudson Bay
Company, and expressed his desire to be of service. I infer that he has received instructions from the
Company, and notice of the date of Transfer. I am still without any official notice of the Imperial
Order in Council, and must act, if at all, upon the information contained in the private letters from
Six] Curtis Lampson, which announces the date of Transfer agreed to by the Imperial Government
to be 1st December next.

There is a rumour among the Rebel sympathizers here this afternoon, that the French half-breeds
have demanded the “ Public Money ” from the Treasurer at Fort Garry, and that he had refused, and
was thereupon made prisoner—that English and Scotch half-breeds and the Canadians were arming,
and that a 7ow was expected. The “ Convention,” the same rumour informs us, has been adjourned
for some days. I expected a private message from the Settlement of the result of Monday’s and
Tuesday’s deliberations, in time for this post, %ut it has not yet xie%ched éne.

ave, &c.,
The Honourable J. Howe, (Signed)  Wwu. McDougaLL.
Secretary of State for the Provinces, .
&e. &e. &e.

( Copy A. )
To General HunT, or the Officer Commanding at Fort Abercrombie.
S, Pembina, United States, 22nd November, 1869.
I have the honour to inform you that certain French half-breeds, of the Red River Settlement,
have asgsembled with arms, and in sufficient force to overawe, for the time, the Authorities at Fort
Garry. They have also erected a barricade to prevent me from proceeding to that place to assume the
Government on the transfer of anthority from the Hudson Bay Company to the Dominion of Canada.
A small band of their men met me at the Hudson Bay Company’s Post, near Pembina, and ordered
me to return beyond the Boundary Line; as I had no Force to resist them, I was obliged to obey
the order, and am now at Pembina, in American Territory. ‘
I have just had information from Fort Garry that these outlaws have decided to send a pa.rtg1 of men
to Georgetown, in Minnesota, for the purpose of burning the Hudson Bay Company’s Store-house at
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that place. The avowed object of this “raid” is to destroy certain property of the Government of
Canada, now stored there, consisting of arms and ammunition, and also clothing and goods belonging
to me and to members of my party. .

I have the honour to request that you will take such means as may be in your power to prevent
this unlawful destruction of property. .

1 have directed the removal of the arms and other property to Fort Abercrombie, in the hope that
you will allow storage in the Fort until this émeufe is suppressed.

Any expense which may be incurred in the removal, protection, or storage of this property I shall
be ready to make good as soon as I am advised of the amount. I bave. &

ave, &c.,

General Hunt. (Signed) W McDougALr.

Notes, by J. W., between 4th and 22nd November, 1869.

I left Fort Pembina for Fort Garry on 4th November, 1869, with a Despatch for Governor McTavish.
I was furnished with a letter of “safe conduct ” from an American gentleman of this place. Arriving
at the Barricade, at Rividre Salé, I was conducted by armed men to the Catholic Church, which I
understood to be Headquarters of the Insurgents. In an upper room I found President Bruce,
Secretary Louis Riel, Mr, O’Loan, Mr. McKinney, junr., and five half-breeds, whom I did not know.
On presenting my “pass” to Riel, he read it in French to Father Ritchot, and said, It is all right; ”
but that, although sorry to trouble me, must request me to shew any documents I might have in my
possession. None were in view. Several questions were then asked, and én'om tly answered, as to
the position and designs of Governor McDougall and his party. I then passed to Fort Garry, where I
found means to have the Despatch placed in the hands of Governor McTavish. On the strength of it,
the Council of Assiniboine was called for Tuesday the 8th. Mr. Bannatyne is a Member of ‘that
«Council, and was present at that Meeting. He told me that when Mr. McDougall’s Letter was read
McTavish (although sick) raged furiously, and asked what Mr. McDougall meant; that, up to that
moment, no official information had reached them of any change having been made in the ownership
of Rupert’s Land, and that he would let Mr. McDougall know that no such dictation as that indicated
by the Letter would, for a moment, be tolerated.
Mr. Mulligan, a Pensioner, and a Police Constable in Winnipeg, told me that he had warned the
Hudson Bay Company, on several occasions, that the half-breeds were to rise. This he did, through
-Judge Black and %r. Cowan, and suggested that the Pensioners be called out to guard the Fort, but

that they declined doing anything in the matter. Mulligan also informed me, that on the 8th inst.,

-after the Fort had been in possession of the Insurgents for several days, that he heard from one of the

rebels, whom he could rely upon, that the Arsenal was to be broken open, and the arms taken possession
of in a day or two, and informed Dr. Cowan, who replied, ¢“ What can we do?” Mulligan answered,
* Call out the Pensioners, and others willing to join them, and let them take possession of the Fort.”
The Judge, who was present, said, ¢ A Council will be called, and an answer given to you at 3 o’clock
to-morrow.” Next day Mulligan was told that his services were not required, and that evening the

-arms were taken possession of.

I had several conversations with Mr. McKinney, senior. At first he was somewhat shy—stated that
as yet he had nothing to do with the Insurgents, but that he might have; that the United States was the
‘natural outlet for the Settlement, and the people wanted nothing else, as he believed; and that they
would never submit to the injustice about to be forced upon them by the Canadian Government
in appointing a Council from Canada, &e., virtually ignoring the people of Red River; that if
Governor McDougall had come alone, he would have got in and would Lave been heard; and, if his
views did not suit, they would have told him to go. Again, on another occasion, he corroborated what
Bannatyne said about the want of official notice, &c.; that the people would not submit to taxes, that
they wanted control over their own affairs, and that he approved of the course the half-breeds had
taken in keeping the Governor out; and that they had about 700 men under arms, Our other
-conversations were something similar, until T went in on the Saturday morning before I left, and had
-about an hour with him. He was reading the Imperial Act ceding the North-West Territory. He
opened out frankly, and stated that a blank he saw in the Act meant neither more nor less than that,
.after a certain time, Canadians could fill it up as they wished ; that he was a Delegate for Fort Garry,
but that very little would be done by the Convention, unless to draw the two parties closer together ;
that he would like to see the Country at peace, so that trade might go on as usual, but that he had no
‘hopes so long as the Governor and suite remained at Pembina. What the people now wanted, he
-said, was complete control over their own affairs; and that, as soon as the Delegates had closed their
work, he believed orders would be given to have the census of the people takken—elections to be held, and
.a Parliament established that the Canadian Government must respect. 'Why, he asked, should we be
.any worse dealt with than British Columbia, Newfoundland, or Prince Edward Island ? Mr. Howe, he

-:said, told us plainly.ihat we were entitled to the same rights, and that by perseverance we would get

them. He further remarked that, “if we fail in our efforts to arrange with Canada, another element
would be called in, and the men at the head of this movement just know how to get them—and that
is, the Fenians.” "

I conversed with Hugh Donaldson, of Fort Garry, who was very violent, and stated, with an oath,
that a Canadian Giovernment should never rule the Settlement, and threw out hints what they could
do in the ifrinn'. Mr. O’Loan, Mr. George Evelyn, hotel keeper, and several others, expressed views
similar to Mr. l\?cKinney. I talked with many others on that'sidé (I mean of the French half-breeds),
and they nearly all spoke to the same purport. A great part of the foregoing was drawn out by
questions carefully put by myself. ‘ '
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Mr. * * saysthe English and Scotch half-breeds are with the Canadian Government, but does
not think they would take up arms until they have an army to fall back upon, and some security from
the Government that they would be paid for the destruction of their propery by fire or otherwise; that
he has the promise of 300 stout Indians at any time they are reguired, but tgle people generally do
not think well of letting the Indians loose until other means have been exhausted.

Mr. Taylor, a wealthy merchant, 12 miles up Assiniboine River presented me with the ¢Globe’ news-
paper, and said, that paper condemns what you say. I must confess that paper has done infinite
harm to Canadian interests in the Settlement.

Colonel Robinson is in favour of Government (Canadian), but more so, I think, in favour of the
United States. He is an American,

* * * *  whose brother * * goes fully with Insurgents, is greatly attached to Canadian
Giovernment, and has very great influence amongst Indians, would be a most useful man in any treaty
with them, He hasput * * from the house he lived in. He said he was a half-breed, and gloried
in the name and race, and would never give up the rights he had in the lands. He wanted to see the
Governor, and hear what he had to say.  He was sure the Canadian Government would never take
their rights away.

Mr. William Tait was thought to be favourable to Canada, but from what he said in Hudson's Bay
Company’s Office to myself and Mr. Grant, we were of opinion that he was changing, as a great many
are in danger of doing, who visit the Company’s Office, and hear the sentiments and suggestions of
John McTavish and Mr. Hargrave. Mr., Tait said— You may talk; but in that Convention we sit
opposite to those who have been born and brought up among us, eat with us, slept with us, hunted
with us, traded with us, and are of our own flesh and blood. Gentlemen,” said he, I, for one, cannot
fight them. I will not imbue my hands in their blood.”

James Ross, another delegate, charged me with speaking against the Governor. He is believed by
most people to be staunch in favour of Canadians. He thinks some arrangement may yet be come
to by Convention, by which_the Governor can be safely brought in, His views do not coincide with a
great majority of Couneil.

Mr. Lowman, another delegate, thinks the present Convention will appease the French half-breeds
somewhat. ¢ We have met them,” he says, “treated them kindly, and, by continuing to do so, may
win them over; but it will take time.”

Mr. * * * *  {hinks no good will come out of the Convention; that nothing
but troops, and that immediately, will be of any use; and that if the Canadian Government
will send troops by middle of January the English and Scotch will, no doubt, organize. “If

troops are not sent, I, for one,” he said, “will at any time sign a Memorial to the United States °

Government, asking their permission to annex ourselves to them.” MNr. Boyd is of opinion, that the
Indians (Chippewa) will act with the Canadians, but that some steps should be taken at once to have
ahtreaty with them. Trade, he says, is gone, and everything unsatisfactory under the present state of
things.

. * * % g wealthy half-breed, and strongly opposed to the priests, says that soldiers
should be sent in immediately to save the Country ; that the English and Scotch half-breeds cannot
stand this reign of terror much longer, but from want of a leader they are very unwilling to take any
steps against their oppounents, the French half-breeds; and that 500 or 1000 now would bring the
Governor in, and, when once into the Scttlement, our people, he says, would rally round him; but,
until the Proclamation was issued, there would be nothing done. He had no faith in the working of
conventions, as long as McKinney, O’Loan, Riel, and the priests Ritchot and O’Donohue were
amongst them, and so long as Bannatyne gave them encouragement as he now does. The latter has
Eore influence amongst the French half-breeds than any one, or perhaps any dozen men in Fort

arry.

Dr).r Schultz says he does not approve of speaking anything of troops coming in until all the
Canadians have notice, so that they can leave the Settlement., He thinks also that the Convention
roay result in sending delegates to see the Governor at Pembina—is clearly of opinion that, had
proper mensures been taken by the Hudson’s Bay Company on the first sign of the outbreak, of which
they bad due notice, no insurrectionary movement would have taken place. He says the Chippewa
and Sioux Indians are with the Government, and willing to assist in suppressing the Revolt at any
time—that if the people there knew they were to be protected by the Canadian Government, there
would be no want of leaders amongst the English and Scotch half-breeds; but he thinks, on the first
sign of troops coming in, the Canadians will be all murdered.

Mr. Snow coincides in every particular with Dr. Schultz, was very active and willing to assist me in
carrying out the few little matters I had to attend to at Fort Garry—could not have got on well
without him.

* % % gys, if Governor would give him authority, he would organize the English and Scotch
half-breeds at once—that they could take the Fort any day, and hold it too—is not afraid of the
report of troops being sent—would rather like to hear of it—is very much afraid of delay, as he is
satisfied a number of Fenians are being raised to come in to the Settlement in the spring—could not
give me any reliable authority, but insisted it was a fact.

# £ # % yanted to see troops in at once, and the whole thing would be crushed
—the French were o noisy, brawling crowd, and would not stand fire—that 1000 men would be a
sufficient number to settle the dispute, and, in after times, keep back hostile Indians, if any should
turn up; bit that too much delay would or might cause a deal of bloodshed, and probably the loss of
the whole country. .

Mr. Bannatyne is a gentleman with whom, with the exception of Mr. McKinney, I have had
more conversation than with any other in the Settlement, He is clearly in favour of the measures
taken by the French half-breeds, although he told me one day “that be would rather have paid
£50 than have that rising taken place!” On every occasion he had some excuse for the hali-
breeds, and a word of sympathy at times for Governor McDougall and his family, but that the

H

Caxapa.
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Oanapa, sooner he left Pembina the better it would be for himself and the .Set_tlement; t_md hq hoped 1
—~—  would advise Colonel Dennis to leave, which I promised to do. I insisted on him going down
with me to see the Governor, and take Riel, or McKinney or O’'Loan, with him; but he would
not consent. By the bye, Mr. McKinney told me that no delegates would be sent from the Con-
vention to the Governor, for a particular reason that he was not at hbert{' to tell me at present.
I could give many other conversations with other parties, but they were all of the same cubstance;
and now, as you des're, I will give you my own opinion of the whole as concisely as possible,
The movement from the first has been of a Republican, Fenian kind. I am fully convinced that
no offer that could consistently be made by the Canadian Government would be accepted by the -
French half-breeds and their friends, the Americans; and that, unless' they are forced into it by
this Convention, and the threatening of the Euglish half-breeds and whites, or perhaps troops, they
will not accept a Governor from the Dominion on any terms. ) ) )
Further, I believe the English and Scotch will take no steps to bring the Governor into the Settle-
ment, but that, if once there, they will protect him. This has Leen expressed to me by many of
sicinorig.  them, I endeavoured on every occasion to parties, when I could do so with sqfety, that t}le present
Government or Conncil was only a provisional one—that, as soon as a franchise was decided upon,
a responsible Governent would be formed as understood in Ca}nada, that 1 understood the Govex:nor
had it in his power to appoint five of the Council at Red River. Bannatyne and others enquired
“ how this was not known ﬁefore?” The former said, «I would give anything rather than that this
fine country should fall into the hands of Americans.” I further think, from conversing with the
friends and foes of the Hudson’s Bay Company, that they could in the most easy manner have stopped
the whole affair by issuing their Proclamation—calling upon all to obey the laws, that ani rising
of the kind spoken of would be visited by the severest penalty the law could inflict, and that the
whole available civil force would be called out to sustain law and order. They did not do this, nor
issue any Proclamation, until in a manner forced into it by the Memorial of the inhabitants of Fort
Garry w{lo were loyal. On this Company’s head lies a full measure of blame,

The Indians, from what I can learn from * * * * *  and others, are with the
Canadian Government; but there is no trusting to them without a treaty. At present I think some
of them are endeavouring to get subsidies from both parties. * Chief Henry Prince,” I know has been
taking from both. _

In conclusion, I would say, if this Convention does not do something towards a settlement in a few
days, the cheapest and the safest course, and the one likely to prevent the destruction of life and

roperty, is for the Canadian Government to send a sufficient force at once to take the Governor in,
y “at once,” I mean, to have them at Pembina by the middle or end of January, for there is great

danger of Fenian hordes early in the spring,
To the Honourable William McDougall, C.B., Pembina. 22nd October, 1869,

Then follows letter from the Under Secretary of State for the Provinces, the Hon. William
McDougal, C.B., dated Office of the Secretary of State for the Provinces, 28th Sept., 1869, which will
be found printed as Enclosure to Governor’s despatch No. 182 of 17th Nov. 1869, page 2.

Enclosure 3 ‘ Enclosure 3 in No. 10.
_in No. 10,

From the SECRETARY of STATE for the PROVINCES to the Hon. WirLiaM McDougArLL.

SIg, Ottawa, 10th December, 1869.
This will be handed to you by Donald A. Smith, Esq., who goes to Pembina, on his way to
Fort Garry, at the special request of tgis Government. -

I have the houour to. enclose a copy of a Letter of Instructions which has been addressed to Mr.
Smith, and have it in command to desire that you will consult and co-operate with that gentleman, in
order that, if possible, some peaceful solution 'may be found of the difficulties which obstruct your
entrance to the new Territory.

I have &e., ‘
The Hon, William McDougall, C.B., (Signed)  JosErH Howek.
Pembina,

. Enclosure 4 - Enclosure 4 in No. 10.
in No. 10,

o fJé’g?“) the SECRETARY of STATE for the PROVINGES to the Hon. Witriax MoDovgarr.,

o. . :
S, Ottawa, 10th December, 1869.

I am commanded to call your attention to the exposed sifuation in which the arms, purchased
for Government Service at the Red River, have been placed,—Georgetown, where it is understood here
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they are stored, could so easily be surrounded and forced by any roving band of half-breeds or Indians, Caxapa.
0_1;i by ?ersons quite as unscrupulous coming in from the United States, that they can hardly be con-  ——
sidered secure,

If matters are not to remain for any length of time on their present footing, they would perhaps be
safe at St. Cloud or St. Paul.
: I have, &c.,

The Hon. William McDougall, C.B, (Signed) Joserr Howe.
Pembina.

Enclosure 5 in No. 10. _ Euclosure 5
in No. 10,

From the SECRETARY of STATE for the ProviNeES to the Hon. WiLriam McDouGALL.

(No. 1073.) Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
Si1g, Ottawa, 11th December, 1869.

I notice in the reports of certain persons, made to you, and forwarded to this Office, reference
to expressions said to have been used by me in conversations with inhabitants of the Hudson's Bay
Territory ; and I think it proper that you should be authorized to contradict all such statements, so
far as the in!erence can be drawn from them, that anything said by me, at Winnepeg, or anywhere
else, gave countenance or sanction to breaches of law and order, or to resistance to the peacetul
istabllishment of the Authority of the Dominion in the Territory, under the sanction of Imperial

egislation.

]o)uring my visit to the Red River, I never saw Riel, Bruce, Father Ritchot, or any persons said to
be the leaders of the insurrectionary movement, but I conversed freely with all clusses and orders of
the people, from Governor McTavish downwards, and to them all held the same language: That the
same Constitution as the other Provinces possessed would ultimately be conferred upon the Country,
that in the provisional arrangements to be made the feelings and interests of the resident population
would be considered, that leading men enjoying their confidence would be at once taken into the
Government, and that the young men, without distinction of blood, would be drawn into the public
service, as they were fitted by education, to fill places of trust and emolumeni;.h &

ave, &c.,
The Hon William McDougall, C.B,, (Signed)  JoserE HowE.
Pembina.

Enclosure 6 in No. 10. Enclosure 6
in No. 10.

From the SEORETARY of STATE for the ProvINCES to D. A. SmiTH, Esq.

(No. 1043.) Department of Secretary of State for the Provinees,
Sir, Ottawa, 10th December, 1869,

T have the honour to inform you that His Excellency the Governor-General has been pleased
to appoint you Special Commissioner, fo enquire into, and report upon the causes and extent of the
armed obstruction offered at the Red River, in the North-West Territories, to the peacable ingress of
the Honourable William Mc¢Dougall, the gentleman selected to be Lieutenant-Governor of that Country,
on its union with Canada. .

Also to enquire into and report upon the causes of the discontent and dissatisfaction at the proposed
change that now exists there. .

Also to explain to the inhabitants the principles on which the Government of Canada intends to
govern the country, and to remove any misapprehensions which may exist on the subject.

And also to take such steps, in concert with Mr. McDougall and Governor Mclavish, as may seem
most proper for effecting the peaceable transfer of the Country and the Government from the Hudson’s
Bay Authorities to the Government of the Dominion. You will consider this communication as your
letter of appointment a8 Government Commissioner. .

With this Letter you will receive a copy of the Letter of Instructions given to Mr. McDougall on his
leaving Ottawa. dated 28th September last.

Copy of a further Letter of Instructions to Mr. McDougall, dated the 7th instant. ) )

Copy of the Proclamation issued by His Excellency the Governor-General, addressed to the inhabi-
tants of the North-West Territories, by the express desire of Her Majesty.

These will enable you to speak authoritatively on the subject of your Mission.

You will proceed with all despatch to Pembina, and arrange with Mr. McDougall as to your future
course of action, and then go on to Fort Garry and take such steps as, after suth consultation, may
seem most expedient. You will, of course, consult Governor McTavish, and endeavour to arrange one
system of concerted action in the pacification of the Country, by Mr. McDougall, the Hudson's Bay
Authorities, and yourself. .

As the information received by the Government here is necessarily imperfect, and as the circum-
stances at the Red River are continually changing, it is not considered expedient to hamper you
with more specific instructions. You will therefore act according to the best of your judgment, in
doneert with Mr, McDougull, and you will keep me fully informed by every mail of the progress of
events,

H 2
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(/ANADA. In addition to the more immediate object of your Mission, you are requested to report on the best
- mode of dealing with the Indian Tribes in the Country, and generally to make such suggestions as
may occur to you as to the requirements of the Country for the future.
1 have, '&c.,
Donald A. Smith, Esq., (Signed)  Josern Howr,
&e. &e. &e., Secretary.
. Montreal.

No. 11, No. 11.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor the Right Hon. SirJ. Youxe, Bart., G.C.3,,
G.C.M.G., to the EarL GraNviILLE, K.G.

(No. 156.) Government House, Ottawa, December 17th, 1869.
: (Received 80th December, 1869.)
My Lorp, (Answered, No. 7, 8th January, 1870, page 173.)

1 have the honour to state that I lost no time in directing the attention of the

*Page 170. Privy Council of the Dominion to your Lordship’s Despatch, No. 214,* of the 30th ultimo,

16th Dec, Tecapitulating the series of negotiations about the Transfer of the North-West Territory,
1869. and deseribing the present state of the question. ' i _

I have just received in time for post, and transmit herewith, the Minute which, after

full consideration, the Council has decided upon submitting in answer, for your Lordship’s

consideration,
I have, &ec.,
The Earl Granville, K.G., (Signed) JOHN YOUNG.
&c. &ec. &c.
Enclosure in Enclosure in No. 11.

No. 11. :
Copy of a Report of a Committee of the Honourable the Privy Council dated 16th December, 1869.

The Committee of Council have had before them the Despatch of the Right Hon. the Secretary of
State for the Colonies, of the 30th ultimo, on the subject of the two Telegrams sent by your Excellency,
on the 23rd and 27th ultimo, to the Colonial Oflice, on the subject of the disturbances in the Red River
Settlement. :

The Committee readily acknowledge the correctness of the narrative, in the Despatch, of the
}()Jrocegdings which resulted in the final arrangements for the transfer of the North-Western Territory to

anada.

The circumstances which created the desire of the Government and people of Canada to acquire that
country have been so often and so recently stated, that they do not seemn to require reiteration. It
was alike the interest of Her Majesty’s Government, Canada, and the Hudson’s Bay Company, that the
transfer should be made. Canada still desires to acquire the Territory, and is quite ready to perform
all the obligations that she has incurred under the recent arrangements made with Her Majesty’s
Government and the Company, for the completion of the transfer.

At the same time, it would seem clear that, if Canada is bound to accept the transfer of the Territory,
the Company is equally bound to make it. It surely was never contemplated by any of the parties
engaged in the negotiations that the transfer was to be a mere interchange of instruments. It must,
from the nature of things, have been understood by all parties that the surrender by the Company to
the Queen, and the transfer by Her Majesty to the Dominion, was not to be one of Title only. The
Company was to convey not only their Rights under the Charter, but the Territory itself, of which it
was in possession, and the Territory so conveyed was to be transferred by Her Majesty to Canada.

That there would be an armed resistance by the inhabitants to the transfer was, it is to be presumed,
unexpected by all parties; it certainly was so by the Canadian Government.

In this regard, the Company cannot be acquitted of all blame. They had an old and fully organized
Government in the country, to which the people appeared to render ready obedience. Their Governor
was advised by a Council, in which some of the leading residents had seats. They had every means
of information as to the state of feeling existing in the country. They knew, or ought to have known, -
the light in which the proposed negotiations were viewed by the people under their rule. If they
were aware of the feeling of discontent, they ought frankly to have stated it to the Imperial and
Canadian Governments. If they were ignorant of the discontent, the responmsibility of such wilful
blindness on the part of their Officers must rest upon them.

For more than a year these negotiations have been actively proceeded with, and it was the duty of
the Compeny to have prepared the people under its rule for the change; to have explained the
precautions taken to srotect the interests of the inhabitants; and to have removed any misapprehensions
that may have existed among them.
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It appears that no steps of any kind, in that direction, were taken. The people have been led to
suppose that they have been sold to Canada, with an utter disregard of their rights and position.

‘When Governor McTavish visited Canada in June last, he was in communication with the Canadian
Government, and he never intimated that he had even a suspicion of discontent existing ; nor did he
mﬁkg.anyt suggestions as to the best mode of cffecting the proposed change, with the assent of the
inhabitants.

Lord Grapville states that, “Throughout these negotiations it has never been hinted that the
« Company is to be bound to hand over its territory in a state of tranquillity. Rather its inability to
« gecure that tranquillity, and the dangers resulting from that inability to the neighbouring Colony, is
“ taken for granted as a reason why its responsibilities should be adopted by Canada.”

Now the obvious reason why no express stipulation to that effect was made, was, that it was assumed
by all parties that the Company had both the right and the power to hand over the Territory. It was
in a state of tranquillity, and no suggestion was made of the possibility of such tranquillity being
disturbed. Canada did not allege, nor did the Company admit, any inability on the part of the latter
to secure the tranquillity of the country, in its present condition.

It is true that Canada had pointed out that in the future, with the population of the United States
rapidly pressing forward towards the boundaries of the North-West Territory, such pressure would
soon overflow into British Territory, and that the Company would, in such case, be unable to govern
o]r cgntro_l the large and alien population which might then take possession of the fertile country along
the frontier.

But this state of things has not yet arisen, and the resistance comes not from any strangers, or new
comers, but from those born and brought up under the Government of the Company, and who have
hitherto yielded it a willing allegiance.

These statements are not made as a matter of complaint against the Company, but simply as a
justification of the course taken by the Canadian Government which is observed upon in the Despatch.
That course has been governed solely by a desire to corry out the transfer under the arrangement in
the quietest and best manner possible and in a way that will not leave behind it any cause for discon-
tent or disquiet in the future.

The resistance of these misguided people is evidently not against the sovereignty of Her Majesty or
the government of the Hudson’s Bay Company, but to the assumption of the Government by Canada.
They profess themseves satisfied to remain’ as they are, and that if the present system of Government
were allowed to continue, they would at once disperse to their homes.

1t is obvious, then, that the wisest course to pursue is, for the present, to continue the authority of
the Company, which the Insurgents affect to respect, while steps are being taken to remove the mis-
apprehensions which exist and to reconcile the people to the change.

Any hasty attempt by the Canadian Government to force their rule upon the Insurgents would
probably result in armed resistance and bloodshed. Every other course should be tried before resort
is bad to force. If life were once lost in an encounter between a Canadian force and the inhabitants,
the seeds of hostility to Canada and Canadian rule would be sown, and might create an ineradicable
hatred to the union of the Countries, and thus mar the future prosperity of British America.

If anything like hostilities should commence, the temptation to the wild Indian tribes and to the
restless adventurers who abound in the ‘United States (many of them with military experience gained
in the late Civil War) to join the Insurgents, would be almost irresistible.. Already it is said that the
T'enian organization look upon this rising as another means of exhibiting their hatred to England.

No one can foresee the end of the complications that might thus be occasioned, not only as between
Canada and the North-West, but between the United States and England.

T'rom a sincere conviction of the gravity of the situation, and not from any desire to repudiate or
postpoune the performance of any of their engagements, the Canadian Government have wrged o
temporary delay of the transfer.

This is not a question of money; it may be one of peace or war. It is one in which the present and
future prosperity of the British Possessions in North America is involved, which prosperity hasty
action might permanently prejudice. Even were the £300,000 paid over, the impolicy of putting an
end to the only constituted Authority existing in the country and compelling Canada to assert her title
by force would remaiu.

It is better to have the semblance of a Government in the country than none at all. While the
jssue of the Proclamation would put an end to the Government of the Hudson’s Bay Company, it
would not substitute the Government by Canada, therefore such a Government is physically impossible
until the armed resistance is ended; and thus a state of anarchy and confusion would ensue, and a
legal status might be given to any Government de facto formed by the inhabitants for the protection of
their lives and property. :

On a review of the whole circumstances, the Committee would recommend that your Excellency
should urge upon Her Majesty’s Government the expediency of allowing matters to remain as they
arc until quiet is restored, or, in case of failure of all effort to do so, the time shall have arrived when
it islpossible to enter the country in force and compel obedience to Her Majesty’s Proclamation and
Authority.

As by);he terms of the late Act, the surrender to the Queen must be followed, within a month, by
Her Majesty’s Order in Council admitting Rupert’s Land into the Dominion of Canada, the proper
course seems to be that the swrrender itself should be postponed, and that the purchase-money should
remain on deposit meanwhile.

The Committee would also request your Excellency to assure Lord Granville that the Government
here have taken, and are taking, active measures to bring about a happier state of affairs, They have
sent on a mission of peace, to the French half-breeds now in arms, the Very Reverend Mr. Thibault,
Vicar General (who has laboured as a clergxrman among them for 39 years), accompanied by Colonel

de Salsbery, a gentleman well acquainted with the country and with the manners and feelings of
the inhabitants.

CaNavaA,
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informed of the beneficent intentions of the Canadian Government, and
G.A.NLDA' cm’f g?::b%ggt:ﬁgfnnirg: gltl‘]iﬁe eople of the misrepresentations made by designing f’orelqners.

They bave also sent Mr. Donald A. Smith', the_ thef Agent of the Hudson’s Ba)" Cmelsfn at
Montreal, as a Special Commissioner. From his position as an Officer ({f the Compan-y ﬁe Tls ’h};e y to
obtain ready access to Fort Gurry, where he can strengthen the hands of Gpvernipx c av1? ,fnow
weakened by long illness, and arrange with the loyal and well-affected portion of the people for a
resItg rglzg“(}if‘dzﬂ?; hoped that the measures taken will succeed; but, in the event of failure, the
Governmetl;t are making preparations, by the construction of boats and otherwise, for sending a Military
TForce in the early spring. In these efforts the ,Canadmn Government are glad to believe that they

will have the hearty co-operation of Her Majesty’s Government aud the Hudson’s Bay Company.

‘(Signed)  JomN A. MacDONALD.

No. 19. No. 12,

Copy of a DESPATCH from Governor The Right Hon. Sir J. Youx~1, Bart,, G.C.B,
G.C.M.G,, to the Right Hon. Earl GrasviLLy, K.G.

(No. 164.) Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
: 23rd December, 1869.
(Received bth January, 1870,
My Lorp, (Answered, No. 7, 8th January, 1870, %) 173.)
16ih Dec., I have the honour to enclose copies of the Letters and Reports by telegram from
1869. . _the Red River, containing the information received from the 25th November to the
18th Dee., A

1869. present date. . . . .

I am happy to state that the latest information is more hopeful in the interests of
peace than portions of the enclosed Correspondence might lead one to expect.

The Stone Fort, at which the loyal English and Scotch half-breeds have rallied, is
seventeen or twenty miles from Fort Garry, of which the French half-breeds hold
possession, so the two parties are at a considerable distance from each other.

It is denied that Mr. McDougall has invoked the assistance of the Indians, and Colonel
Dennis has not had more than fi{ty of them with him engaged to assist in the defence of
the Stone Fort. :

The most authentic accounts are that the Indians generally are disposed to stand true
to their allegiance to the Queen, and not to aid the French half-breeds ; and, lastly, we are
in possession of the fact that the first Despatches of the Canadian Government reached
Mr. McDougall on the 7th or 8th instant, and these Despatches deprecated, in earnest
terms, the resort to force,-and inculcated the .policy of not asserting even legal rights by
arms until further negotiation had been tried, and all hopes of effecting a peaceful arrange-
ment disappointed. :

Under these instructions it seems very unlikely that any collision can take place, and
if none take place before the envoys Le Grand Vicaire Thibault, Colonel de Salaberry,
and Mr. Smith arrive, as they are expected to do on the 24th or 25th instant, an opening
will be given for negotiating, which, seeing how small the difference is between what
the half-breeds ask and what the Canadian Government is prepared to grant, can scarcely
fail to terminate the difficulty in a peaceful and satisfactory manner.

I have, &e.,
The Earl Granville, K.G. (Signed) JOHN YOUNG.

Fuclesuros in Enclosures in No. 12,
No. 12,

''HE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE PROVINCES TO THE GOVERNOR-GENERAL'S SECRETARY.

' . . Secretary of State’s Department, Ottawa,
Sz, 16th December, 1869,

I have the honour to transmit to you herewith, for the information of his Excellency the
Governor-General, copy of a Despatch, with three Enclosures from the Hon. William Mc¢Dougall, C.B.,

giving an account of the occwirences which have taken place in the North-West Territories since the

Pembina, 29th date of his Despatch of the 25th ult,
Nov., 1869, :

e . . I have, &c., ‘
Francis Turville, Fsq., Secretary to the ‘ JosEre Howe,

Governor-General, "
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Larose’s Farm, Pembina, U.S,,
Sz, 29th November, 1869,

I have the honour to report that I am still at Pembina, in the territory of the United States
(Messrs, Richards, Provencher and Begg being with me). and unable, in consequence of the continued
occupation of the rond by armed men, to proceed to Fort Garry.

1 have further to report that I have not received any instructions for my gunilance on and after the
day of the Transfer of the Territory to Canada, nor any notice of the Order in Council, which has no
doubt been passed to effect it,

In these circumstances, I am compelled to act upon the general powers and directions of my
Commission, and of the Acts of Parlinment, Canadian and Imperial, which seem to bear upon
the case,

I have accordingly prepared a Proclamation to be issued on the first day of December, reciting so much
of the several Acts of Parliament as seemel necessary to disclose the requisite anthority, and stating,
by way of recital, the fact of surrender by the Hndson’s Bay Company, acceptance by Her Majesty, and
Transter to Canada, from and after the lst December, A.n. 1869. These fucts I gather from
the newspapers, from a private letter to me of the Deputy Governor of the Company, and
my own knowledge before I left Ottawa, that the Ist of December had been agreed upon as the date
of the Transfers,

“ In the present state of affairs in the Settlement, it is of the utmost importance to announce the
transfer of Authority in the most authentic and solemn manner possible, in order to give confidence and
the protection of legality to the acts of the loyal and well-disposed, and to put the malcontents and
their American advizers and sympathizers publically and technically in the wrong. Several messages
have been sent, urging me to assume authority and to authorize action af once against the Freuch half-
breeds ; but, as my previous Reports will show, I decided to keep strictly within my Commission, and
referred those persons to the Local Authorities for advice and direction.  On the 21th inst,, however,
Riel and his party took possesion, without resistance, of the Public Offices in_the Fort, seized the Public
Records and Papers, and made prisoners of the Treasurer and Officers in charge of the Public Funds.
I have not heard whether they have removed Governor McTavish from his official residence, but he is
evidently hors de combat personally and officially. I have had no communication from him since the
19th inst., directly or indirectly, although in his Jast note he promised to communicate further imme-
diately. As I have found no serious diffienlty in sending and receiving from the Settlement communi-
cations of a private character, I infer that the Rebels have imprisoned the Governor so closely that
nothing is allowed to reach him or proceed from him, of which they disapprove.

.. On the evening of the same day, Riel made a demonstration of the Government provisions under the
charge of Mr. Snow, pretending that he only wanted to make an inventory of them. Some Canadians
employed on the Survey being in the neighbourhood, and indignant at this move of the Rebels, as well
as apprehensive that the possession of these provisions by them would greatly strengthen their position,
determined to remove them, by force if necessary, to the Lower Fort of the Hudson’s Bay Company ; but,
on consideration, they felt that to bring on a collision at that moment, and on such a guestion, might be
impolitic, and as the Local Authorities could not, or would not act, they despatched Mr. Newcombe, a
young Canadian, to me the same night with the letter marked “A.” He got safely through. having
run about half the way on foot, making the whole distance of 67 miles in 20 hours. He was
ready to return on foot or on horseback after an homr’s rest, if I had deemed it necessary. His
energy, courage and zeal, and his account of the feelings of the loyal portion of the inhabitants,

and inactive Government was removed, a call might safely be made upon the loyal and well-disposed to
rally in defence of law and order. But, in view of the peculiar relations existing between the French
halt-brecds and the rest of the native population, I thought it very undesirable to allow a “fight” to
take place about Government property, until some collision had occurred which would excite the
feelings of the English and Scotch half-breeds and exasperate them against the Insurgents. The inter-
ruption to business, reducing thereby the price of grain, and enhancing the price of merchandise; the
arrest of men like Hallett, of local influence and extensive family connection ; the taking of provisions
without pay from the Settlers, and occupying their bouses withont their consent, and the chance of a fray
springing out of some of these circumstance, secemed to justify delay in organizing opposition to Riel's
designs upon the Government pork and flonr, which if seized by him, would not strike the half-breed
Settlers as a very heinous offence, or one which they ought to risk their lives to prevent or punish.
Moreover, the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Officers were still the nominal rulers of the Settlement, and as
their Sheriff (McKinny) was notoriously in the interests of the Rubels—advising, aiding, and abetting
them—it appeared to me better that none of my agents or avowed supporters should provoke or be
parties to a collision before the 1st December, and run the risk of finding the Sheriff and other
éutl:grities on the side of the Rebels, or, what would amount to the same thing, issuing warrants against
anadians.

Accordingly I detained Mr. Newcombe for future service, and despatched by a loyal French half-breed
the answer marked “B,” and by the same hand the letter « C,” to Governor McTavish. My plan was
to hold the Authorities to their duties and responsibilities as long as possible, and to delay, without
wholly prohibiting, the resistance of the employés and friends of the new Government. How far this
plan has succeeded I am not yet aware, but I suspect that Riel will have seized the provisions before
my directions reached Fort. Garry, or, at all events, before the action recommended by me has been
taken. I do not regard the possession of the Government stores by Riel and his party as of very much
consequence. They cannot eat them up at once, and if the measures I have taken to organize an armed
force to seize Riei7 and his colleagues, and disperse the rank and file of his followers should prove
successful, the provisions will soon be again in our possession.

ins(fired us all with the hope that a reaction had set in, and that as soon as the incubus of a moribund-

Oanava
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wo mails brought me only newspapers and two or three small private letters. I am much
afrt:i}(llet%)a:: gﬂ‘itial letters gre detaine?l at S(I))m% point between St. Paul and this place purposcly, and
perhaps read and destroyed. As the Postmaster here openly avows his sympathy 1w1tl}1] the Pallf-breeds,
and permits one Stuttsman, referred to in a former report, to distribute and handle the postal matter
in his office, I have no great faith that my letters to Ottawa have been forwarded, if at all, withont
being first read. I shall therefore abstain from all details as to the operations contemplated after the
Ist December. Their discovery and publication here would be sure to defeat them, . ) )

I have received a friendly letter from the Indian Chief “Pegwis,” who lives at Winnipeg, in which
he strongly condemns the conduct of the French half-breeds. He reminds me that they came from
my own country, and are “ very bad men.” He wishes to see me to shake hands and bargain about his
land. He has offered his services to the Canadians in the Settlement to put down Riel and his party,
evidently foreseeing that if they got the mastery the Indian title to theland in Assiniboine will not be
treated with much respect or realise much profif. . . . )

I have returned a verbal answer to his letter, expressing the most friendly feclings towards him and
his people, and my desire to see them at Tort Garry as soon as possible. I thonght it better to put
nothing in writing, and indeed to say nothing that should be construed into an invitation to the Indians
to arm or attack any class of the inhabitants—not even _those now 13nder arms and in a state qf insur.
rection. It is very satisfactory to find that the Indians in all directions, and under different chiefs, are
well disposed and unwilling to give any aid to the French half-breeds. Ihave taken pains, throngh the
agency of loyal persons having influence with them, to arouse the apprebensions of the Indians in
reference to the annexation features of the half-breed movement, and its effect upon them and their
land claims. They have been quick to perceive that the outbreak bodes no good to them, and they
cannot therefore be seduced into any kind of sympathy with it. This facf is already producing o markei
effect upon the plans and operations of the Insurgents. . )

A letter appeared in a newspaper published at Yankton, Dakotah, purporting to have been written
and delivered to me by two Indian Chiefs, making peremptory demands for a settlement with them
before entering the Territory. This letter was concocted by American schemers at Pembina, and read
to the Indians who were waiting to see me. At first they consented to it, but the next day went to
the village, asked to see it, and tore it up. The veracious correspondent of the Yankton newspaper
allowed it, nevertheless, to appear as a bond fide communication to me.

In the same newspaper IS a_communication, under date 23rd September, detailing the plans,
grievances, and demands, of the half-breeds with such particularity as to show that the plot has its
chief counsellor, if not its originator, in this village. One of "these conspirators, the man Stutts-
man, lately visited Fort Garry, and is known to be consulting and aiding the insurgents at that

lace.
¥ As far as T can learn, the priests have withdrawn latterly from active co-operation, and begin to
shake their heads and speak doubtfully of the consequences likely to result from the outbreak.

Until T have received more specific instructions for my guidance after assuming the government,
and learn the view which His Execellency and Council are likely to take of the events detailed in my
Reports, I do not feel myself in a position to make any special recommendation as to the measures
which ought to be adopted by the Government of Canada. ~ I have taken, and must continue to take, a
large discretion and responsibility in regard to measures which must be initiated and execnted within
the Territory, I have hesitated to call for troops or volunteers from Canada in mid-winter. The
difficulties in the way are enormous, and the chance of disaster, with the present means of transporta-
tion, is almost reduced to a certainty. But preparation should undoubtedly be made for a large
emigration in the early spring of such Settlers as were offered last fall by Colonel Barivig, of the town-
ship.of Halifax, and by another gentleman in the county of Bruce. Settlers of this class will be a
valuable, almost a necessary, addition to the population of the Territory, and any expense which their
transportation hither may involve ought to be readily furnished.

I have, &ec.,

The Hon, Joseph Howe, Secretary of State, &e., (Signed) W, McDouGALTL.
Ottawa, Canada, .
To Hon. JouN A. McDonarD. Toronto, 15th December, 1569,

St. Paul Minn., 15th.-—Private letter just received from Pembina gives the following information :—
The Rebels have placed Governor McTavish under close guard, on account of his recent Proclamation
advising them to lay down their arms and submit to the Government. In meantime they continue to
issue rations with a regularity which is making serious inroads upon the Hudson Bay goods at Fort Garry
and outposts. Captain Camapbell, of Governor McDougall’s party, attempted to go into Fort Garry,
but was confronted at the gate by a sentinel, who, with the assistance of a sergeant, forced him back
upon American soil, and, upon pain of being shot, was forbidden to re-enter the lines, '

(Signed) H. P. DwicHT,

-

(A

Drar COLONEL,. o ) Winnepeg, Wednesday, 24th November, 1869.
We require definite instructions how to act under the following circumstances :—To-day (about
4 »ar) we got information that the Government stores in Dr. Schultz were being secized. "Captain
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Bolton, Mr. Codd, and self, proceeded immediately to ascertain the truth of the matter. We found
Riel and an armed guard coming out of the back store with Dr. Schultz. I went up and asked what
particular business was going on? The Doctor said, “Mr. Riel is taking an invenfory of the stores.”
1 replied, looking at Riel, “ They are the Quesn's property.” He turned about and stamped, exclaim-
ing angrily, ¢ The devil's property!” moving away at the same time. On inquiring about the matter,
the Doctor told us that his carts had been stopped at the fort, and he went down to see about them.
Saw Riel, who said that it was merely a matter of form ;” but he wished to know, « if the duties had
« been paid, and there were no arms in the cases.” The Doclor answered, ¢ No, there were no arms.”
Tiiel, however, accompanied the Doctor to his store for the purpose of examining them. On entering
the store Riel said, “ Arc all these your goods?” The Doctor replied, “ No, Government property.”
Riel then said, © By-the-bye, that reminds me. I may as well take an inventory of them in case any
« parties should remove any portion, and it would be laid to us.” In the mean time an armed guard of
four men had come up (as Dr. Schultz says, “ A sly mode of getting access to the store”). Riel put
two of them in charge, and went off, intending to retmrn. While he was away the Doctor hired the
guard for 6d. a-piece, to assist in carrying the cases into the house. They left their arms in the store,
and accordingly went to work for the Doctor. While they were so employed, the Doctor sent Smith.
who removed the arms and locked up the store. Riel returned some couple of hours afterwards, and
found his guard “shouldering cases.” He demanded entrance to the store, after soundly rating his
men. The Doctor refused, and told them they would have to use force; this he repeated. Finally
the key was obtained by them from Smith. The Doctor then put his back to the door and refuseil
entrance, unless Riel promised upon his honour not to remove anything, which Riel did, The Doctor
further says that at this moment (that is, after they had entercd the store) Hallett showed his nose
round the corner,; when Riel all at once came to the conclusion that it was rather late to take the
inventory, and left an armed guard at the door. It was at this time, while they were coming out of
the Doctor’s store, that we arrived on the scene.

Now, there are Canadians here willing to protect the property of Canada, and vemove the stores to the
Stone Fort for safe kecping. "We propose the following plan :—We (the Canadians) to procced in a party
of twenty or thirty, with hired sleighs to be procured in the Scotch Settlement, and go to Schultz’s store
about noon, and remove them (the stores) down to the Stone Fort, and leave * * * (armed of course)
in charge. If we meet opposition we will defend the stores, and remove them against all comers. This
will have the effect, perhaps, of precipitating matters, Ou the other hand, if they remove the provisions,
which no doubt is their intention, yon will at once see that they will have gained a very important
advantage over the loyal inhabitants by the possession of thesc stores. Hallett says that he individually
will stand by us and assist. We await the advice and instructions of the Governor fo act. This will
also give us an excuse to occupy the Stone Fort, where a large amount of ammunition is stored.

Yours, &c.,
(Signed) D. A, Gravr.

P.S. It is understood that if we act in this matter, we act upon our own responsibility—not wishing
to compromise authority—we only desire to have advice.

Copy “B.” )
My DEAR SIR, Pembina, 25th November, 1869.

I trust this will reach you safely and in good time. The Governor has determined to retain the
bearer of your letter for reasons which will be apparent soon. I should have been with you again long
before now but that the Governor required me to remain here for a purpose of which you will soon also
be aware. With regard to the provisions and public property which you say are in danger of being
seized by a band of lawless men and removed from the custody of those who have been entrusted with
them, I am instructed to convey Mr. McDougall’s orders as follows :—-

1st. Apply to the local authorities for a sufficient police or other force to prevent it. :

2nd. If this is refused, or if no such force can be had, apply to Governor McTavish, or the officer in
charge of the Stone Fort, for permission to store the property there for safe keeping, and ask him to
give you authority to guard and defend it by the voluntary aid of the law-abiding inhabitants.

3rd. If this permission to store in the fort is granted, remove the provisions, &ec., there, and hire
a sufficient number of persons to remove and defend it against all illegal attempts at appropriation.

4th. But in the event of a seizure, or attempt at seizuve, by a considerable force of armed men either
lefore or during the removal above suggested and autlrorised, you are advised not to risk a collision
which may cause bloodshed unless the Local Authorities shall have sanctioned the organisation of an
armed force for the purpose of protecting the property.

Mr. McDougall has written to Governor MceTavish on the subject, and asked his interference on
your written demand.

Believe me, &c.,

D. A. Grant, Esq., Fort Garry. _ (Bigned) J. 8. Dexnis

CANADA,
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( Copy“C” )
My DEAR SIR, Pembina, November 5th, 1869.
The agents of the Dominion Government in charge of the provisions and other Yublic property
of that Government now at Winnipeg, have represented to me that an armed party of lawless persons
have attempted to seize and appropriate it. They have asked for instructions from me, and have
suggested that this property be removed under escort, if necessary, to the Stone Fort for safe

keeping. . o
T have instructed Colonel Dennis to communicate the following as my directions (see Letter to Mr.

Grant, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th.)
May I request that you will give Mr. Grant and Mr. Snow, and any other persons who may have in
such assistance as you can command to protect it from molestation

lawful custody any of this property, suc : t
by the lawless persons referred to. If in your judgment the proposal to remove it to the Stone Fort,
and to protect it there in the way proposed by the persons who will reply to you, is feasible, and under

the circumstances advisable, I should feel obliged if you will give them the desired authority.

I leave the matter for the present entirely in your hands,
I have, &e,,

W, McTavish, Esq., Governor Hudson’s Bay Company. (Signed) Wi, McDoUGALL.

Trom the GOVERNOR-GENERAL to Mr, SMiTH.

My DEAR Mr. Smitiy, Ottawa, 12th December, 1869.

I learn with satisfaction that you have placed your services at the disposal of the Canadian Govern-
ment, and that you are proceeding to the Red River to give, not to them only but to both the parties
that are at variance, the benefit of your experience, influence, and mediation.

In my capacity as Her Majesty’s Representative in Her North American Possessions, I have addressed
letters to Governor McTavish, the Protestant Bishop, and the Vicar General, who acts in lieu of the
R. C. Bishop during his absence in Rome.

I have sent them copies of the message received by telegraph from Her Majesty’s Secretary of State,
which forms the staple of the Proclamation I have addressed to Her Majesty’s faithful subjects in the
North-West. '

You will observe that it calls upon all who have complaints to make, or wishes to express, to address
themselves to me as Her Majesty’s Representative, and you may state with the utmost confidence that
the Imperial Government has 1o intention of acting otherwise, or in permitting others to act otherwise,
than in perfect good faith towards the inhabitants of the Red River district and of the North-West.

The people may rely that respect and attention will be extended to the different religious persuasions,
that title to every description of property will be carefully guarded, and that all the franchises which
have subsisted, or which the people may prove themselves qualified to exercise, shall be duly continued
or liberally conferred.

In declaring the desire and determination of Her Majesty’s Cabinet, you may safely use the terms of

the ancient formuls, that right shall be done in all cases.
Wishing you a prosperous journey and all success in your mission of peace and goodwill,
I remain, &e.,
- Smith, Esq., . (Signed) Jonx Youxna,
&e.  &e. :

TELEGRAM

From J. A, WiEeELock to Hon. JoserH Hows, Secretary of State, Ottawa.

Dated, St. Paul, Minn., 17th December, 1869,

I have just received news that Colonel Dennis, Surveyor-General, has succeeded in raising and arming
some two hundred swampy Indians, and a number of their Englished half-breed relations, that they
have garrisoned the Stone Fort, that McDougall has organized another force of the hostile Sioux of
Portage la Prairie, under the lead of Canadians, and that as soon as these forces form a junction they
will march on the Insurgent force at and near Fort Garry. General Riel has called in his reserve of
French half-breeds, who were temporarily absent. Over three hundred men reported at Headquarters
within a few hours from issuing the call, and a collision was hourly expected at the date of my advices.

(Signed) J. A. WHEELOCK,
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From the Hon. Joserr HowE, Secretary of State, for the Provinces, to
* (No. 1108.) F. TurviLLs, Esq., Governor’s Secretary, Ottawa.

X Ottawa, 18th December, 1869.

I have the honour to enclose, for the information of His Excellency the Governor-General, copy of a
Despatch, dated 2nd December, from Hon. William McDougail, C.B,, with Enelosures (2), also copies of
Telegrams received to-day referring to the state of affairs in the North-West Territories, and also copy
of a Despatch addressed to Mr. McDougall on the 17th instant.

I bave, &c,
JosePH Howe.

From the Hon. Joserr Hows, Secretary of State for the Provinces, to
The Hon. WirLiam McDovearr, C.B.

Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
SIR, Ottawa, 17th December, 1869.
Your_Despatch of the 20th November, reached this Office on the 15th instant, and created some
apprehensnons that you were about to issue a Proclammation announcing the formal transfer of the
Territory, which has not yet taken place, and to organize or countenance movements, which, however
- well intended, would have been without the sanction of law. The receipt of the Papers A, B, C, which

did not come to hand till the following day, relieved this anxiety; and I have now to convey to you the
satisfaetion with which the numbered paragraphs in the Paper marked “ B” were read by the Governor-
General and Council. '

The Despatches sent to you on the 19th and 29th November, and Tth, 8th, 10th, and 11th of
December, will, before this reaches you, have explained the views taken by this Government of
the situation of affairs in the North-West, and the nature of the Correspondence with the Imperial
Government which has not yet closed. No notice has yet been received here of the issue of the Queen’s
Proclamation annexing the Territory to Canada, or of the payment of the purchase money. By this
day’s Mail an elaborate Minute of Council goes to England.

You will, until further advised, abstain from all movements in excess of your authority, and do
nothing by which the Governor and Officers of the Hudson’s Bay Company may be relieved of the
responsibility which now rests upon them.

Should any Telegraphic notice of the issue of the Queen’s Proclamation reach you, I am commanded
to desire that you will refrain from any action thereupon, until you receive a copy of the Proclamation
through this Office.

I have, &c,,
Hon. W, McDougall, C.B., Pembina. (Signed) Joseru Howe,

SIR, La Rose’s Farm, Pembina, U.S,, December 2nd, 1869.

By the last mail, under date 29th November, I reported that I was still at this place, and that 1
had neither received ofticial instructions for my guidance after assuming the Government of the North-
West Territories, nor any notice of the passing of the Order of Her Majesty in Council for the T'ransfer
of the North-West Territory to the Dominion. I also detailed at some length the events which had
occurred since my previous Report, and indicated some of the measures I had prepared, and proposed to
adopt on and after the 1st December. I also enclosed, in a separate Letter, Copies of Correspondence
respecting the Government Stores at Fort Garry, and the steps I recommended to be taken for their
protection. I hope these letters have reached Ottawa safely, and, assuming they have, I proceed to
detail, briefly, what has since occurred.

Fearing, from information I received, that my messenger with copies of the Proclamation aunouncing
the 1st of December as the date of transfer of anthority from the Hudson’s Bay Company to the
Dominion had been intercepted, I entrusted additional copies in English and French to Colonel Dennis,
who, with a trusty guide, started on the night-of the 29th ultimo (the coldest we have yet experienced)
for Fort Garry. I also commissioned him to act as my *Lieutenant,” and as a “ Conservator of the
“Peace,” in raising the loyal inhabitants in defence of law and order. I gave him large powers, and, as
he is fully aware of my views and plans, and the nature of the authority under which he is to act, and
is, moreover, acquainted with the leading men of the Settlement, stands well in their estimation, and
knows the country, I have every contidence that he will execute his orders with promptitude,
discretion, and success. I do not deem it prudent to forward by this mail a copy of my commission to
him, as there is some danger that it might go in a wrong direction.

It will be seen from the Paper “ A ” herewith, that the English and Scotch Settlers and half-breeds
have at last discovered that they must choose between Riel and his American allies and advisers, and
the authority of Her Majesty and the Canadian Government. Meetings have been held, with more or
less secrecy, in all the parishes, except those exclusively French, and a ¢ Committec of P'ublic Safety ”
organized. The movement has been much aided by the Canadians connected with the Road and
Survey, the only persons of intelligence and apparent authority to whom the poor but well-disposed
Settlers could look for advice. Mr. James Xoss, a Scotch half-breed regently from Canada, and

meutioned in a previous Report as apparently in the confidence of the malcontents, has been exceedingly

I2
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active in refuting the false stories that certain influential traders and other érasfors have been busy iu
circulating. Captain Bolton, who was present at the meeting of the representatives of three parishes
when the enclosed letter to me was agreed upon, has also shown zeal and discretion, as well as courage,
in his efforts to arouse the loyal people of the Settlement. Colonel Dennis was charged with my
answer to these people in the shape of a Commission, which on and after the 1st December he could
make known to them. The Proclamation itself, so anxiously looked for by the friends of Canada, will,
£ trust, settle all doubts in the minds of the well-disposed, and dispel the false, preposterous, but never-
theless dangerous ramours sent out from day to day by the conspirators. One point of considerable
importance in the minds of the English and Scotch Settlers, hinted at in the enclosed Paper, but more
explicitly stated in other messages which have reached me—is the view which will be taken by
Government of the claims of loyalists serving against the Rebels, for any losses to person and property
which may result. I have not ventured to make a very specific answer to this question, as any rule on
the subject would be liable to abuse; but I have told Colonel Dennis to assure those who agree to serve
under his order that the Government will treat them in the same way, and with the same liberality as
in Canada, or in other parts of the Empire. I have, moreover, authorized him to al!ow ’ghe same rqtqs
of pay, &c., as are allowed under the Canada Militia Act, to Volunteers called out in aid of the Civil
ower.

P Yesterday evening, after finding that the road was clear, I took with me Messrs. Richards and
Provencher, and four others of my party, and proceeded to the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Post ncar
Pembina, in order to execute on British soil, and so far in a public manner, the Proclamation and other
documents which are to take effect within the Territory. 1 have resolved to do no officjal act on
American soil, and have made arrangements to occupy the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Post, and if
necessary repel by force the attack of any such party as the one that drove us from it on the 3rd of
November. It is surrounded by a high fence, and with a little improvement may be defended against
a considerable force by a few resolute men, with breech-loading rifles. Fortunately we have with us
a fow such rifles, and a small supply of ammunition, e number about a dozen, and are all good
shots. I shall not openly take this position and attitnde unless I hear from Colonel Dennis that he
has a force in the field, and is thus giving Riel and his party something to do at Fort Garry. In the
mean time we go to and from the “Lost,” well armed and prepared against surprise. The American
officials and ex-officials here are a little less jubilant and swaggering In their tone since they have
found that the English, Scotch, and Indians, have refused to join Riel, and that resistance is being
organized. T enclose a slip, cut from a St. Paul newspaper, which shows the feelings and designs of
these people. They assume in their correspondence the air of lookers-on merely, but they are in truth
the chief counsellors and directors of the movement. Stuttsman is still at Fort Garry, but will probably
nlllove south very speedily, when the loyal Settlers, with Colonel Dennis at their head, come upon
the scene,

I have heard from Fort Garry of the safe arrival of the letters conveying my instructions in regard
to the Government provisions. ~Riel had made two or three attempts to remove them, and had pointed
two of the guns of the Fort on Dr, Schuliz’s warehouse, in which a portion of them was stored, in
anticipation of resistance, but the firm attitude of the Canadians and others in the vicinity seems to
bave induced Riel to postpone his threatened seizare. I hope no collision has taken place over these
stores, as such an event might prejudice the movement progressing so favourably in the English and
Sceoteh parishes.

I enclose (Paper *“B”) copy of a second Proclamation which I deemed it my duty to issue. I hope
I am right in using the name of Her Majesty as prominently as I have done. The leaders of this
movement have studiously represented that they were only resisting the aggressions of Canada and nof
the Authority of the Crown. It is necessary to meet them on this point explicitly and promptly.

Anxiously awaiting some official directions and information from you,

I have, &ec.,
The Hon. Joseph Howe, (Signed) Wiiriam McDoveaLL,
Secretary of State, Ottawa,

( A)

S To the Honourable Mr, McDouGALL.
IR, ,
\ We, influential members of the English-speaking population and loyal subjects of the British
Crown, have heard that you are appointed Governor of this Territory, but we have had no certain or
official information that such is the case; in fact, we don't know officially that any change has taken
place in the Constitution of this Country. Under these circumstances there is no certainty of movement
or any chance of -co-operation. "We will be glad to be informed officially what is the position of affairs
--wlt1at are the intentions of the Canadian Government, and what support will be given from Govern-
ment.

Circumstances are such that names cannot be given, at least it is not advisable; but * * * will
testify to the genuineness of this communication.
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(B )
Tue NorTH-WEST TERRITORIES.

(L.S) By His Excellency the Honourable William McDougall, a Member of Her
Majesty’s Privy Council for Canada and Companion of the Most
Honourable Order of the Bath, Licutenant-Governor of the North-
West Territories, &e. &e. &e.

To all to whom these Presents shall come, GREETING.

A ProcranaTion! !

WHeREAS Her Majesty THE QUEEN, by Letters Patent under the Great Seal of the Dominion of
of Canada, bearing date the fwendy-ninth day of September, in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and sizty-nine, in the thirty-third year of Her Majesty’s Reign, has been graciously pleased to
constitute and appoint me, on, from, and after the day to be named by Her Majesty for the admission
of Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory into the Union or Dominion of Canada, to be
Lieutenant-Governor in and over the North-West Territories during Her Majesty’s pleasure, and did
thereby anthorize and empower and require and command me, on, from, and after the day aforesaid, to
Do and Execute all things in due manner that shall belong to my said Command and the Trust reposed
in me, according to the several powers and instructions granted or appointed me by that Her Majesty’s
Commission, and of the Act of Parliament passed in the thirty-second year of Her Majesty’s Reign,
intituled *“ An Act for the Temporary Government of Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory
“when united with Canada,” and the Instructions given me with such Commission or by such further
Instructions as may hereafter be given me in respect of the North-West Territories and the Govern-
ment thereof by Her Majesty’s Governor-General in Council, under his Sign Manual, or through one
of Her Majesty’s Privy Council of Canada, and according to such laws as are now and shall hereafter
be in force in the said North-West Territories.

And whereas Her Majesty has declared and named the first day of December instant as the day for
the admission of Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory into the Union and Dominion of
Canada; and wherees, by virtue and in pursnance of “ The British North-America Act, 1867,” “ The
“ Rupert’s Land Act, 1868,” the said “ Act for the Temporary Government of Rupert’s Land and the
« North-Western Territory when united with Canada,” and the said Declaration and Order of Iler
Majesty, Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory have been admitted into Union with and
liave become and are notv part of the Dominion of Canada, and are henceforth to be styled and known
as “ The North-West Territories.” '

Now, know ye, that I have thought fit to issue this Proclamation to make known Her Majesty's said
Appointment to all Officers, Magistrates, Subjects of Her Mujesty and others within the said The Novth-
West Territories; and I do hereby require and command that all and singular the public Officers and
Functionaries holding Office in Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory at the time of their
admission into the Union as aforesaid, excepting the Pnblic Officer or Fuuctionary at the head of
the administration of affairs, do continue in the execution of their several and respective Offives, duties,
plans, and employments, until otherwise ordered by me under the authority of the said last-mentioned
Act. And I do hereby further require and command, that all Her Majesty’s loving Subjects and all
others whom it may concern, do take notice hereof and govern themselves accordingly. ‘

Given under my hand and Seal-at-arms at Red River, in the said Territories, this second day
of December, in the year of Our Lord one thousand eight hundred and sixty-nine, and in the
thirty-third year of Her Majesty’s reign,

By Command, (Signed) Wat. McDouGALL,

(Signed)  J. A. N. PROVENCHER,
Secretary.

TELEGRAM
From Mr. H, P. DwienT to Sir Joux A. McDoxaty.

Dated "loronto, 18th December, 1869.

Letter dated Pembina, December Gth, says the Red River Mail, just in, brings the most exciting
news. Governor McDougall has succeeded in raising body of Indians, who are marching to the Stone
Fort, under Colonel Dennis, and it is feared collision has already taken place. The writer says Mail is
just closing, and no time to write further particulars. A Letter, same date, from Governor McDongall,
says, on December 1st the Government of the Queen was announced through its Canadian Represen-~
tatives. On same day a force of Loyal men occupied Stone Fort,and the Loyal Whites and halt-breeds
began rapidly to rally and organise. The Insurgents were beginning to disperse, and had withdrawn
their forces from the Printing-office and other places in Winnipeg. Riel, the Chief of Insurgents, still
remeined in possession of Fort Garry, with 400 of his followers. Another Letter says Mail just in from
Garry brings news that Colonel Dennis has a-force of 300 men, consisting of Swampy Indians and their

CaNaDa.
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Caxapa, half-breed relations, that they have garrisoned the Stone Fort, and are expected to form junction with
— Canadian and Sioux of Porfage la Prairie, and march against Insurgents at Fort Garry. - Riel had
called in his reserves, who were temporarily absent, and 300 men reported at his headquarters in few

hours after issuing the call. A collision was soon fooked for. The reports current that McTavish had

been taken by Insurgents from his sick-bed, and together with his subordinates confined in prison, and

that Insurgents had helped themselves to property of Hudson’s Bay Company, was not generally
believed. The St. Paul press of this morning editorial on Red River trouble says Governor McDougall

has assumed a fearful responsibility in thus subjecting the Settlement to the terrible risks involved in

Indian War. It is but just to say that as our Correspondent at Pembina evinces a natural sympathy

for the Insurgents, and obtain his information doubtless from Insurgents’ side, it is possible they may

be to some extent misled. We publish, of course, only such information as we get, and must neces-

sarily base our remarks on the state of affairs as presented to us. There are grounds for belief that
McDougall is entering into Indian trouble without consultation with Canadian Government, as it is

stated in Ottawa Despatch of yesterday that Dominion Government may not complete purchase of

North-West until spring. (Signed) LP.D
1gne . Iy DWIGHT.

No. 13. ' No. 13,

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor the Right Hon. Sir J. Youxe, Bart,, G.C.B.,
G.C.M.G,, to The Earr GraxviLig, K.G.

Government House, Ottawa, Canada,

(No. 170.) 30th December, 1869.
My Lorbp," (Received 13th January, 1870.)
Secrotary of I have the honour to enclose, for your Lordship’s information, copies of Despatches

State for the g, . . : . Ve . i .
P e tie from Mr. McDougall, which give an account of his proceedings and the state of affairs

Mr. Turville, at the Red River up to the 8th instant.
Dec. 24,1809, The resort to force, which Mr. McDougall announces he had sanctioned in these

Do o t®® Despatches, did not meet the approval of the Canadian Government, aud instructions
were sent to him deprecating it.
Our latest advices state that he has retired from Pembina, and is on his way back to
Canada. On other points we have no certain intelligence.
The two parties of envoys had left Fort Abercrombic, aud expected to reach Fort
Garry on or about Christmas-day.

I have, &c.,
The Earl Granville, K.G., (Signed) JOHUN YOUNG.
&ce. &eo &
Enclosures iu Luclosures in No, 13.

No. 13,

The Hon, Joseru Howe, Secretary of State for the Provinces, to I, TuzviiLe, Esq.,
Governor’s Secretary, Ottawa,
(No. 1129.) :
Sir, Ottawa, 24th December, 1869.
Adverting to my letter of the 16th instant, I have the honour to transmit to you herewith, for
the information of His Bxcellency the Governor-General, a copy of a Despatch, with enclosures from
Gt Do, 2 A to 2D inclusive, from the Hon, William McDougall, C.B,, giving an account of the cvents which

1869. have occurred in the North-West Territories since the date of bis Despatch of the 29th ultimo.
1 have, &c.,
F, Turville, Bsq,, Joserr Hows,
Governor’s Secretary, Ottawa. Secretary of State for the Provinces.

Hou. Wirrian McDoueatL to thie Hon, Joszrr Hows, Secretary of State, &c., Ottawa.

Sig, Pembina, 6th December, 1869.
... T have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch of the 19th November, trans-
mltte'd, under cover, from St. Paul to the Deputy Collector of this Fort.

It is very satisfactory to me to find that the Privy Council entirely approves of my conduct under
the trying circumstances in which I was placed on my entrance into the North-Wost Territories.
The events and the difficulties with which I have had to deal, since the date of the letter to which
your Despatch is a reply, have been very fully detailed in the several Reports I have had the honour
to forward to you; aud I hope my conduct may, in all these difficult circumstances, be found to have
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equally deserved the approbation of His Excellencr in Council. The large discretion and *freedom
of action,” Whl-cl.l almost of necessity have been allowed to me, I have endeavoured to exercise to the
best of my abllltcy in the interest of the Canadian Government, and for the maintenance of the
Authority of the Crown in this part of the Dominion.

It is not easy, amid the confusion and discomforts of camp life, and the building of winter
quarters on the prairie in November, to make a clear and adequate statement of all the facts and eircum-
stances which have from day to day formed the basis of judgment, or supplied the motives for action. I
trust, however, that the Papers, Letters, and Reports I have forwarded, with my own obscrvations, have
enabled the Privy Council to understand the difficulties of the situation, if not in every case to
pronounce as to the best means available for overcoming them.

I enclose herewith (marked 2 A) Colonel Dennis’s first Report, from his headquarters at the Stone
Fort, 15 miles below Fort Garry. A reference to one of Mr. Dawson’s maps will show his position,
and its relation to the other places mentioned in his Report. In my Despatch of the 2nd instant, I
stated the purpose for which le was sent, and in general terms the powers I had given him. It
appears he found that the English and Scotch half-breeds, and the Indians of the Mission, as well as a
considerable number of the I'rench half-breeds, were ripe for a movement in support of order and
authority. From a confidential report by a person who had access to Riel’s council, I learn that the
news of the movement at the Stone Fort, and the reading of my Proclamation (which was opportunely
produced and read in their meeting on Wednesday) had a most tranquillizing effect. Riel said, “ This
puts a different face on the matter,” and, as my informant says, “expressed much loyalty.” Ho
appealed to the English Delegates (some of whom still remained in his Convention, to watch its pro-
ceedings), to “ help them peaceably to get their rights” The English demanded a statement in
writing of ¢ what these rights were;” the French said they must have an hour to consider. At the
expiration of the hour they presented a paper, of which a copy is enclosed (marked 2B). The
English refused to be parties to this demand, alleging that the Proclamation showed they had no right
to make it, that they must accept the new Government, and trust that all they could justly ask
would be granted. Xiel was indignant at their refusal to join in a deputation to me with his ulti-
matum, and declared he would bear it himself. Nothing, however, was decided up to Thursday at
noon, Riel’s armed guards were withdrawn from the town after the posting of the Proclamation, and
also from the Store-house containing the Government provisions. Fort Garry was still held by a
force of thirty or forty men.

I enclose (Paper 2C) a letter of a private character from Mr. Mair, which mentions some further
perticulars, and also confirms some of the statements I have detailed on the authority of their
correspondence.

I feel very confident that this prompt display of vigour, and the determination to assist and
maintain by force, if need be, the authority of the New Government from the day and hour of its
expected birth, will inspire all the inhabitants of the Territory with respect for your Representation,
and compel the Traitors and Conspirators to cry, “God save the Queen,” or beat a hasty retreat.
The ¢ prime conspirator,” Stuttsman, as I anticipated in my last Despatch, did not wait for Colonel
Dennis to get his hands upon him, but made his appearance here the day after the Proclamation was
issued, very subdued and crest-fallen.

I notice the remark in your Despatch, that T can “claim or assert no authority in the Hudson’s
% Bay Territory until the Queen’s Proclamation reaches me through this (your) Office.” If I had so
read my Commission and the Acts of Parliament, the Rebel Government would have been formall
inaugurated during the interregnum which must have occurred between the 15c of December (whic

the Rebels, as well as the Hudson’s Bay Company’s Agents knew and believed to be the date of the
transfer), and the time when your messenger could reach me. He probably would have met me at
St. Cloud or St. Paul, if I had lived to get so far, with no disposition or power to return without an
army at my back. You can judge, from the tone of the American newspapers, and the action of the
Legislature of Minnesota, at its last session (Extract 2 D), to say nothing of the Fenians who have
their emissaries here and at Fort Garry, what facilities would be given for the transportation of a
Canadian force in such an event as that stated. DMy conviction is that we would have had to fight
at a much later date, and at a great disadvantage, a very different enemy from that which now melts
away before a Proclamation and a “ Conservator of the Peace.”

I'shall await the arrival of your messenger before taking the oaths of office, or performing any but
necessary acts for the protection of life and property. I must trust that the same necessity will be
my justification, if I have committed an error in assuming that the Transfer of the Territory to the
Dominion did actually take place on the 1st December, and that my Commission came into force at
the same time.

I have, &ec.,

The Hon. Joseph Howe, Wirriam McDouGALL,
&e. &e. &e.

(24)
Colonel DENNIS to the Hon. WirLianm McDouvgarr, C.B. |

My pEAR Mi, McDouGALL, Stone Fort, Lower Settlement, Decem})er 2nd, 5 par.
I arrived at William Hallett’s, on the Assiniboine, at 5 A.M. yesterday morning, after a more

than usually disagreeable trip. I immediately sent up for Mr. *  * * and Mr. * * %

Caxapa.
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ortly after, I goathered from their conversation that there was ll.ttle doubt that
1‘:,\1111?11(? zmitioe‘rvxg “S'})uld z,)ow sustain 4 movement to put down by force of arms the refractory Fi‘_renph.
At the same time, it was clear that, personally, they deprecated a movement in that direction, fearing
that people like themselves of large property would suffer much injury should hostilities ensue.
* # * ] found of the opinion that the people would now respond to a call. )

I read my Commission, as also the Proclamation, one of the Engllsll copies of _whlch I gave to My,
* * * to be produced at the meeting with the Insurgents, and then ¢ame to the*vl.ltlz:ge.

On my way up, I should have mentioned, I spent a eopple of hgurs with Mr, L and was leased
to find that his views of the situation, as regards the feelings of his people, .had.qn.dergone considerable
change : so much so that he had been busying himself for the last few daysgn visiting among his people
and tx=nal<ing a list of those whe were willing to take up arms against Riel's party. ~These he to£(1 me
amounted to 96. I arranged with him that, should I find t_he same feeling to exist among. the bqotch
and English I would let him know, when he was to organize his men and hold himself in readine:s
fo&?o?s;&' an uneasy and excited state of feeling in the village. Dr.ﬁqhultz felt that himself and
family and property, so he told me, were in imlpment danger, and advisedl me not to l_)e seen about
the village, and to get out of it as soon as possxb}e, or T would i\ssure'dly be made a prisoner. Aften:
seeing Mr. * * * and other Canadians, and showing them my Commission, I left, for the purpose of
satistying myself further as to public opinion in the Scttlement,

* ) *

* * * *

By this time it was six o’clock P, and I came on, introduced myself to Mr. Ilett, the Master of
this Fort, showed him my Commission, and took possession, }Ie was very _kmd, and showed every
desire to further the object in view, placed one large building entirely at my disposal, and undertook at
once to see to the lighting and heating of it. ) . o

By eight o’clock there were some 70 young men assembled in a ]a’rge room in an upper part of this
building, and one of the gentlemen of * * ¥ gave them an ho_ur§ drill. i
. Iread the Queen’s Proclamation to them, which was cnt!tusmst:cully rece_xved. A guard for t]m_
Fort volunteered for the night from those present, which was increased by a remforcemenp from Cll‘lef
Prince’s band of some 70 men to 120 men. I have sent the Indians home, all but 50, who, with the Chief,
I have retained for the present to serve as a permanent guard to the Fort, I proposed to avail myself
of their services in that way rather than by allowing the Indian element to be mixed up in any actual
fighting just at present. :

* 3

There was an excellent feeling exhibited by these poor men. They cheered and fired off their guns
enthusiastically on being called upon to cheer the Queen, and a distribution of provisions and tobacco
sent them away happy. . )

The Chief relieves his guard without the imposing ceremony observable among regular soldiers; but
I doubt not, nevertheless, it will take a very active enemy to get into the Fort without the knowledge
of the Red-skinned sentries, . ) . _ .

This place is capable of easy defence against anything but artillery, and it muet have been nothing
but fear of arousing the English half-breeds that prevented its being seized and occupied by the
Insurgents.

I h%\'e taken pains to make known to-day through the Settlement my presence here, and that my
intention is to raise a force from amoug the people, with which to enforce a restoration of public order,
and I expect a response of from 100 to 200 people this evening when I shall commence to enrol and
organize,

%ﬁnd Major Bolton of great service, and have called in Mr. Hart’s party, with a view to using
himself and the other members of his party, who are all cadets, in drilling and otherwise assisting,

I have ordered 20 fat cattle, which will be ready for use by Monday next, and will have no dilliculty
in procuring.other necessary supplies. )

have sent Mr. Webb, who is surveying up the Assiniboine, and who is a volunteer officer of very
considerable experience, full instructions to proceed to the Portage without delay, and there to organize
4 companies of 50 wen each, equip and provision them, and then report to me, drilling them in the
meanwhile industriously. The other gentlemen in his ﬁarty, including Mr. Newcombe, are all cadets
of the Military Schools, and I have therefore directed him'to take them up to assist them in organ-
izing and drilling the companies. I shall, fortunately, have o Military School-man to command each
of the companies in the wiole force. The other and subordinate officers I will let the men select from
among themselves.

The companies will be thrown into one battalion, of which I shall take the immediate command, with
Major Bolton as second. '

1 hope and believe your delivery from the humiliating situation you are now in is a mere matter of
adverydshort time. You had, therefore, better get things in readiness to move in when you may be
advised.

I sent Judge Black a request last evening that he would call upon me, and he has accordingly been
here a good part of the day. T wished to consult him as to the expediency of my proclaiming Martial
Law in the Territory, so as to enable me to seize upon Stuttsman, who still remains at Winnipeg—no

# * * * *

doubt aiding and abetting the rioters. The idea of such a thing seemed to frighten him, and he

begged of me to delay it for a day or a day or two, as he thought there was strong hope that the Council
—still, I suppose, in “session (as’we have not heard the result)—taking steps to dissolve the whole
thing. T agreed to the suggestion; but so soon as I may have a force to back me up, without I am
satistied on consulting Mr. Ross that it would be undesirable, I shall take that course.

Should we succeed in getting hold of the prime conspirator named, I shall put him in a strong room
in this place, under the charge of m friend Pima, the Indian Chief, and his warriors, until he may be

delivered by some due, but, we shall ope, tedious, course of law.
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I should have liked to have ascertained the result of the Council referred to before closing this

letter ; but it is now six P.M. of the 2nd, and I am loth to detain the messenger longer, as I know your
anxiety to hear from me.

The Hon. William McDougall, C.B,,
Lieutenant-Governor, Pembina.

Believe me, &ec., ,
: (Signed) J. S. DENNIS.

P.8. I have written Mr. * * * by this messenger to notify his men, and then come to me for orders.

Have also reported my arrival and intentions to Governor McTavish, and sent him copy of my

Commission.
(Signed) J. 8. D,
( 2B. )
Letter from D. 8. Muskins, Esq, to the Hon. WiLriam McDouearz, C.B.
SIR, ‘Winnipeg, December 2nd, 1869.

Having received a Letter from Colonel Dennis, from the Stone Fort, where he arrived last
night, instructing me to forward a Report of the proceedings of Riel's Council, I enclose the
Resolutions passed by the French Delegates, without any concurrence from the English-speaking
portion of the Council,

* * * came up this afternoon for Volunteers, and collected all the Canadians to the number of

about 22. Riel got wind of the movement, and has guards on the road to Pembina, believing it to be .

an arrangement to bring yourself in. I am in hopes they will reach the Stone Fort in safety.
Mzr. Caldwell states that Riel’s Council were deserting him, and that twenty-four hours would settle
the thing, if no blood was spilled to-night.
The Rebels seized both of the Printing Offices, and the Proclamation had to be written,
I have, &e,, in haste,
The Hon. William McDougall, C.B. (Signed) D. S. Muskins.

Cory of REsoLUTIONS.

1. The right to elect our own Legislature.
2. The Legislature to have the power to pass all Laws local to the Territory, over the vefo of the
Executive, by a two-third vote.
3. No Act of the Dominion Parliament (local to the Territory) to be binding on the people until
sanctioned by their Representatives.
4. All Sheriffs, Magistrates, Constables, and School Trustees to be elected by the people.
5. A Free Homestead and Freehold Law.
6. A portion of the public Lands to be appropriated for the benefit of Schools, the building of Roads
and Parish Buildings.
7. A guarantee to connect Winnipeg by Rasl with the nearest line of Railroad ;—the Land Grant for
such Road or Roads to be subject to the Legislature of the Territory,
8. For a given number of years all public Expenses of the Territory, Civil, Military, and Municipal,
to be paid out of the Dominion Treasury. ‘
9. The Military to be composed of the people now existing in the Territory.
10. That the French and English languages be common in the Legislature and Courts; and all
public Documents and Acts of Legislature be printed in both languages.
11. That the Judge of the Supreme Court speak French and Xnglish.
19, 'Treaties to be concluded and ratified between the Government and the several Tribes of Indians
of the Territory, calculated to insure peace on the Frontier.
13. That these Rights be granted to us by Mr. McDougall, before he be admitted into the country. If
he have not the power himself to grant them, then he must get an Act of Parliament passed, expressly

securing us those Rights; and, until such Act be obtained, stay outside the Boundary Line of the
Territory.

( 2D. )

“ REsoLvED by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota :— .

« That, we regret to be informed of a purpose to transfer the Territories between Minnesota and

% Alaska to the Dominion of Canada, by an Order in Council, at London, without a vote of the people

“of Selkirk and the Settlers upon the sources of the Saskatchewan River, who largely consist of
K

CaxapA.
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“ Immigrants from the United States ; and we would respectfully urge that the President and Congress
« of the United States shall represent to the Government of Great Britain, that such action will be an
“ unwarrantable interference with the principle of Self-Government, and cannot be regarded with
% indifference by the people of the United States. )

“ That the Legislature of Minnesota would rejoice to be assured that the cession of North-
“ West British America to the United States, accompanied by the construction of a Northern
¢ Pacific Railroad, are regarded by Great Britain and Canada as satisfactory provisions of a Treaty
# which shall remove all grounds of controversy between the respective countries.”

The Hon. Joserr HowE, Secretary of State for the Provinces, to F. TurviLLy, Esq.,
Secretary to the Governor-General.

Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
Sig, Ottawa, 26th December, 1869.

I have the honour to transmit to you herewith, for the information of His Excellency the
Governor-General, a copy of a Despatch, with three Enclosures, from the Hon. Wiiliam MeDougall,
C.B., giving an account of the occurrences which have taken place in the North-West Territories since
the date of his Despatch of the 6th instant.

I have, &e.

F. TurviLLE, Esq, (Signed) JoseprH Hows.
- Secretary to the Governor-General. Secretary of State for the Provinces.

Governor MoDougALL to the Hon. Joserr Howe, Secretary of State for the Provinees, Ottawa.

Sir, Pembina, Sth December, 1869.

I have the honour to inform you that no message or messenger from Fort Garry or from Colonel
Dennis has reached me since my Despatch of the 6th instant. A rumour is current here, based on a
statement of the mail-carrier (who only travels half the distance to Fort Garry), that there were
600 men under Colonel Dennis at the Stone Fort, and 300 under Riel in Fort Garry. As none of us
received letters by the last Mail from the North, I infer that the road, or some part of it, was, up to
Sunday at least, under the control of Riel. I did not expect that Colonel Dennis would move from
the Lower Fort until the people of “The Portage” had joined him, which could not well have been
accomplished before Monday or Tuesday. I am not, therefore, surprised to find the road still obstructed
between this place and Fort Garry.

On Monday last Mr. Richards, who lodged with a Mr. Rollette, Deputy United States Marshal at
Pembina, reported to me that the officials and residents of the village were very much excited in
consequence of a rumour that the Indians were being armed by the Loyalists, and that the aid of the
Sioux had been sought by some of the Canadiens at Fort Garry. Knowing that the Indians had
refused to join Riel's party, and that the Sioux would like an excuse for attacking them, and knowing
also that we were aware of the complicity of some of them in the outbreak, it was natural that they
should be alarmed by such a rumour. lyhad previously heard of their attempts to organize a forco
for the purpose of attacking us in our *“winter quarters,” ostensibly for the purpose of * driving us out
“ of the country,” but really, I have no doubt, with a murderous intent. I had private information of
the designs of two or three desperadoes and outlaws, who have found it convenient to reside in this
neighbourhood, and who are concerned in the present movements. They had become aware of Colonel
Dennis’ occupation of the Stone Fort, and of the determination of the English and Scotch half-breeds
to resist Riel's party, and they feared for their own safety. They pretended to believe that I had given
orders to employ the Indians, and they threatened immediate reprisals unless I revoked the supposed
order. Mr. Richards was very much alarmed by these threats, and suggested the immediate return to
Fort Abercrombie of the females and children. While this was a humane, I felt it was not a politic,
and, at the moment, not a practicable suggestion. 'We had not yet constructed a sufficient number of
sleighs for the journey, although they were in process of construction. I therefore determined to go
down to the village and have a conference with the Officials, who I knew would soon make known the
result to those more deeply implicated in the Conspiracy. I took Messrs. Richards, Provencher, and
my son, with me, and drove to the Custom House. Mr. Nelson, the Deputy Collector, is a very
intelligent and respectable person,’and, I have reason to believe, bas kept himself aloof from Stuttsman
and his co-conspirators. I found some of these assembled in his office, evidently much alarmed, and by
no means in'a friendly mood towards me. I at once explained the object of my visit, and requested
that the Postmaster and other official persons in the neighbourhood should be assembled. This was
soon done, and I frankly explained their situation. and my own, as I understood it. The enclosed
thette_r “3 A”), which I afterwards addressed to Mz Nelson, sufficiently details what took place at this
interview.

I found on inquiry the next day that Mr. Nelson and one or two of his neighbours were re-assured
by the statements and explanations I had given them, and expressed themselves pleased with my

‘candour and firmness. Stuttsman and Rolette, however, were still talking of vengeance. Messrs,

Richards, Provencher and Begg having removed to my house, we established a military #égime and
prepared to resist an attack from any quarter. We kept watch by night and by day, and had all our
arms ready for action. Not having i;eard from Colonel Dennis since the date of his Report, forwarded
with my last Despatch, I deferred my proposed removal from American Territory, but kept up daily
communication with the Hudson’s Bay }()Jompany’s Post.
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I enclose (Paper “ 3 B”) a translated copy of a Letter received two or three days since by Mr. Pro-
veneher, from, as he supposes, the Roman Catholic Priest at Scratching River. It is without signature,
_and is evidently intended to frighten usaway ; but we feel that our departure for Canada at the present
juncture, much to be approved on personal grounds, would be fatal to the retention of the North-West
as a part of the Dominion, and with that view of the case we have determined, at all hazards, to remain
a little longer, in the hope of a peaceful solution of the present difficulty. .

The friendly disposition of the Indians of this Territory to us, and their antipathy to the Americans,
is the great anchor by which we shall be enabled to hold it. While they are with us and properly
handled, no enemy from the South will ever venture into these great Plains. This fact is fully com-
prehended by the Military Authorities at Washington, as well as by the Fenians in New York. “Great
efforts were made by the Leaders of the present Conspiracy to secure an alliance with the Indians,
especially with the bands in the neighbourhood of Red River, befure taking the field. Their first step
was to persuade them to make demands upon me of such a character that compliance would be impos-
sible, and thus create a casus bell between the new Government and the Indians at the very outsct.
With this view they kept Chief Ka-wi-ta-osh and a part of his band in and about Pembina for some
weeks—much longer than they had bargained for—to meet me at the Boundary Line and to prescut
these demands. I have already, in my Report of the 29th November, referred to the publication in
the ¢ Yankton Dakotian’ of the Letter prepared for the Indians by the American plotters here, but
repudiated by the Indians as soon as they understood its purport. I observe that this Letter has
nppealﬁad in several Cenadian newspapers, and do doubt has attracted the attention of the Privy
Council.

The next step was a summons to the Chiefs of the large Bands to meet Riel and his Confederates at
Riviere Salé, for consultation and treaty, with a view to an armed alliance against us. The Chiefs
“Fox” and ¢ Gros Oreille ” obeyed the summons ; but though tempted by very large promises, they
wisely and promptly refused to join or aid the half-breed movements, but intimated to our friends that
they would be ready to obey a sumimons from the Authorities,

In these circumstances it was felt to be a wise, as well as a loyal and humane policy, to threaten the
Insurgents and their annexation leaders with an Indian as well as a Civil War, if they persisted in
their rebellious designs. The alarm, real or pretended, of the neutral and respectuble people, few
though they are, in this Settlement, as well as the exasperations and murderous threats of the Con-
spirators themselves, show the power of the cngine that they believe has been worked. I believe they
have called for troops from the nearest American Post (Fort Abercrombie) to protect them from the
dreaded Sioux. I may add that small bands of the Sioux have lately been seen only three or four
days’ journey from here. Two Chippewa Indians, and a half-breed boy who had gone towards Pembina
Mountain on a hunting expedition, were met by six Sioux, who, pretending friendship, suddenly rushed
upon the carts of the Chippewas, seized their arms, and fired upon them ; one of the Indians fell dead,
the boy ran, apparently wounded, while the other escaped unhurt, and, running for his life towards this

lace, came to the .'g[udson Bay Company’s Post nearly exhausted with hunger and cold—they

elonged to the Ke-wi-ta-osh’s band, and I hear that, according to Indian custom, a war party has started
out to recover the carts and the wounded boy, and to avenge the death of one of their warriors. These
attacks and reprisals by hunting parties of the two Tribes are not uncommon ; but the present case
shows a degree of boldness on the part of the Sioux, and a propensity to travel North instead of West,
which are not pleasant to the imagination of our Frontier neighbours, I could not refrain from telling
them at our Meeting of Tilonday evening, when the desperate character of the Sioux was portrayed to
me, and I was urged to give immediate orders to the Loyal Settlers not to accept the help of Indians,
that the possible consequences of an Indian War, ought to have been thought of by some people in the
neighbourhood of Pembina, a few weeks ago. The remark was delivered in a serious tone, and with
proper emphasis, and was received in solemn silence. The shot took effect, and seeing they could
not frighten me into issuing orders dictated by them, they expressed themselves satisfied with my
declaration, as reported in my letter to Mr. Nelson.

I waited for two days and nights after this interview, anxiously expecting a second Report from
Colonel Dennis, which I hoped would inform me of the dispersion of Riel and his party, or of a joint
deputation to me, and an armistice in the mean time; but as none came, and as the story of the
employment of the Indians might, though untrue except as to Prince’s band, grow into truth by its own
circulation, I thought it well to address a letter (“3 C I) to Colonel Dennis on the subject, and entrust
it to the Mail ander cover of Mr. Nelson’s envelope. I instructed the Messenger to allow Mr. Nelson
to read it before he sealed the letter; in order to convince him of my desire to avoid as long as possible
an appeal to the Indians.

I received a Note from General Hunt, who commands at Fort Abercrombie, informing me that he
could not find storage for my goods in the Fort, but he was informed that Mr. McCaulay, a merchant
there would store them, and apply to him for protection if (which he did not think likely) any one
attempted to molest them. 1 have also heard from the person sent to remove the arms, &c., from
George Town, of their safe arrival at Fort Abercrombie.

Thursday 9th.—I have just heard, as I am closing this Despatch, that two Messengers from the
Settlement have been intercepted near this, and their Papers taken from them by Stuttsman and
Company, or half-breeds employed by them. I am taking measures to make this operation unavailable
for the future.

' I have, &c.,
The Hon, Joseph Howe, Secretary of State, &c., Ottawa. (Signed)  Wintiam McDovaaLL,

CANADA.
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LETTER from Governor MoDovuearr to N. E. NeLsoxN Esq.,
Depaty Collector of Customs, Pembina.

Hudson’s Bay Company’s Post Pembina,
DEAR Srix, 8th December, 1869.

1 think it my duty to you as well as to myself to put in writing, though not formally or officially,
the principal points of our conversation on Monday evening last. Serious events and complications
may possibly arise out of the disturbances which unfortunately still prevail at the Red River Settlement.
Exaggerated, and I fear in some cases wilfully false statements, as to the extent, origin, aim, and
tendency of these disturbances, have been spread far and wide through the American Press, on the
alleged authority of persons living in this vicinity. I have some apprehension that the interview of
last Monday evening, and the statements made and views expressed on both sides may be misrepre-
sented through the same channels, and therefore I take the precaution, while the matter is fresh in our
minds, to set down the material points of our conversation. ) o

Mcr. Richards having reported to me that you had expressed great apprehensions that an Indian War,
and consequent danger to the lives and property of American Citizens in this Territory, would grow out
of the efforts of the Magistrates and Loyal people of Red River Settlement to disperse the armed
half-breeds under Riel, and that you seemed to think I might by some exercise of authority prevent
or lessen the danger of these consequences, I thought it only due to you as the Principal Officer of the
American Government at this Post, to confer immediately with you. Living for the moment under
the protection of American Law, I could not be indiffcrent to the wishes of one of its most efficient,
honourable, and obliging administrators.

I proceeded to your office about 5 o'clock .M. (of the 6th instant), and explaining why I had come,
requested the presence of the other Officials of the place, Mr. Cavelier, the Postiaster ; J. Rolette, one
of your officers, J. Rolette, his father, who I understand is, or acts as Deputy Marshal ; Mr. Harrison,
Justice of the Peace; Mr. Lemay, Ex-Collector, and three or four other residents of the village were
present. Mr. Richards, Mr. Provencher, and my son were present with me. \

After you had finished writing a letter, on which you were engaged when I entered your office, I
directed my remarks to you, and steted that Mr. Richards, having reported to me your apprehensions,
as already mentioned, I wished to explain the legal position of affairs in the North-West Territories. I
stated, that on the 1st December, the powers of Government passed from the Hudson’s Bay Company
and its Officers, to the Representative of Her Majesty the Queen, appointed by the Governor-General of
the Dominion. That this was the result of various Acts of Parliament, and the proceedings lawfully
had under them ; that I had been commissioned and empowered to represent the Crown as Lieutenant-
Governor ; but while on my way to Fort Garry, before the transfer had teken place, I was met and
ordered away from the Territory by a body of armed men, acting without—and as I subsequently
learned, in defiance of—authority; that I had remained on American soil, under the protection of
American law up to the present time; that the Proclamations announcing the change in the Govern-
nment, and notifying public Officers, &c., of the fact were executed at the Hudson’s Bay Post, on British
soil, and that 1 had not done, and did not intend to do, any official act, except when in my own jurisdiction.
That the movements of the Loyal people of the Territory against the Rioters under Riel were in a
great degree spontaneous, and under the direction of Local Authorities as ¢ Conservators of the Peace ”
exercising only civil power. I stated that in every civilized community the Magistrate and Peace,
Officer has power to raise the posse comitatus, or whatever force he needs to put down mobs and riots,
acting in breach of the public peace, and that so far as I knew, or had sanctioned, this was the only
“War” now going on. That I had not authorized the employment of Indians, and, except in the last
resort, did not intend to do so ; that Ihad received messages from several Chiefs, expressing disapproval
of the conduct of the French half-breeds under Riel, and offering their services-in the cause of order
and law; that I had sent verbal and brief replies, thanking them for their goodwill, evading the offers
of service, and putting off the questions they wished to consult me about, until my arrival at Fort
Garry, and, that to be frank and explicit, having seen what I had in the Press, and having heard of
various expressions and actions by persons who I knew were listening to me, I must give it as my
deliberate judgment, that those white persons on both sides of the line, who had advised, countenanced,
and aided the lawless outbreak of the French half-breeds, and had rejoiced at their success in keeping
out of the Territory the Representative of authority and law, and the only power which the Indians
would be likely to obey or respect, will be held responsible before God and man for any destruction of
life or property which may result. '

You stated that you had given no countenance to the half-breed movement, had expressed no
opinion one way or the other, but had performed the duties of your office with strict impartiality—
that you deprecated the putting of arms into the hands of Indians, or raising them in any civil
contest,and were much coneerned when you heard that they were being employed by the Authorities in
the Settlement, and you questioned whether, if I had authorised it, I had not violated the laws of
neutrality. That you were glad to hear me say I had not done so, and hoped I would exert my
authority to prevent it.

I at once acknowledged your fair and honourable conduct, and my belief that you had neither said
nor done anything to provoke or encourage the lawless proceedings of the half-breeds, but I said I
feared there were others, on the American side of the Line, of whom the same thing could not be said.
That as to using my authority to restore order and restrain the dangerous elements of the country,
that was the very thing I was trying to do; but as I had no sufficient force at my command to
overcome the armed men who barricaded the road,I was unable to use my authority in the most
cffective way, and the Local Magistrates and Officers were, therefore, left to their own judgment as to
the use of means, and it would be very unreasonable to hold me responsible for their acts until I had
an opportunity of controlling or preventing them,
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Mr, Cavelier, Postmaster, asked me if I did not know that Dr. Schultz had sent one © Sherman”
with goods of a certain kind to the Sioux in the vicinity of Turtle Mountain, and that the purpose was
to use them against Riel's party. I said I had not heard of any such thing, and moreover did not
believe it. I thought Dr, Schultz too sensible a man, believed he had too much at stake to incur any
risk so dangerous. Mr. Cavelier said he knew the statement was true, and in reference to my remark
as to Dr. Schultz’s position, said he was a reckless and selfish man whose doctrine was that “you could
“ trust no one as a friend, except so far as interest moved him,” &ec., &c., that “Sherman” was an
outlaw, dared not come into American territory, and would be hanged if he did. That the Sioux
referred to were not yet reconciled to the Government, and would not hesitate to murder American"
citizens if they were encouraged by such a man as Sherman to do so, &c., &e.

Mr. Lemay remarked with much emphasis, that if the Indians took part in the war, as he called it,
my life would not be safe for five minutes. Mr. Harrison added that, in such an event, I and my
party would find ourselves in the hotfest place we had ever been in, &c. Mr. Lemay wanted an
explicit answer to his question, whether in any case I would countenance or authorize the use of
Indians? I declined to make any statement of what I would or would not do, when I assumed the
functions of my office, but that I had not authorized, and did not wish to employ even half-breeds in
warlike operations. That I was a good deal startled by the statement of Mr. Cavelier, in regard to the
Sioux at Turtle Mountain, and I enquired whether they lived in American or British Territory. M.
Cavelier said they were sometimes on one side and sometimes on the other side, but were known
to be hostile to Americans. After some further general remarks, I concluded my interview by
observing that, in view of the dangerous position we were all in, I thought the best thing we could do
was to restore order and authority at Rec{‘ River Settlement as soon as possible. And I believed the
persons were then in the room, or immediate neighbourhood, who could do it; and that at all events
that was my duty and mission, and to the best of my power and ability I intended to execute it. To
Mr. Lemay’s and Mr. Harrison’s remark—some will call it a threat—that if Indians, whom I have never
seen, and am in no way responsible for, should go to war, my life would not last five minutes, I replied
that such an observation or possibility would not affect my action or course in the least. I had
accepted an important office, knowing well its perils, but I meant to do my duty regardless of all
gersonal considerations. I was but one man, and after me would come another, and perhaps one

etter skilled in the operations of war. I had come to cultivate the arts of peace, to establish
telegraph lines, build roads, and encourage emigration, and organise a civilized community. But those
who thought it would serve their purpose better to stir up disorder and riot among the French half-
breeds—next to the Indian the most dangerous element in the country—must not imagine that they
lc{?ndltxg,nsfer to me the responsibility of a conflagration which they have fanned, if they have not
ndled.

The above is the substance of what was said in your Office, in the presence of the principal inhabi-
tants of the village, and which I desire to remain of record in your hands.

Since my conversation with you I have heard some statements, which I deem it proper to mention
in connection with the foregoing. I am told that a person to whom I entrusted copies of a Proclama-
tion, continuing and confirming the authority of all peace and other officers, was arrested on British
Territory by two American citizens living in this vicinity, and that these papers were taken from him
without law or authority, and in violation of their duty as persons under a temporary allegiance to the
Sovereign of the country in which they were travelling. If this outrage has been committed, as
reported to me, by those in whose behalf I am asked to exercise my anthority over the Indians, I ask
you, Sir, how am I to get my orders obeyed if they are not allowed to reach those to whom they arc
addressed. I can assure you that the persons who have sought to confer with me from the Settlement
—official as well as unofficial —have experienced little difficulty, and felt no serious apprehension of
obstruction or danger, until they approached the American border, and their fears were, not that they
would be interrupted on their peaceful and lawful visits, by Indians or half-breeds, but by whdfe men,
one of whom, at least, is an official under your direction. It is in evidence before me that the person
alluded to has been endeavouring to incite the half-breeds and others hereabouts “to drive me and
“ my party out of the country.” I can hardly suppose that these are done, and threats made, by the
son of a Deputy Marshal, and an employé of the Customs Department of the United States, without
the knowledge and approval of some one higher in authority. Do not suppose for a moment that I
imagine you’iuwe countenanced, or will countenance, the acts or threats of your subordinate, but it is
well you should know what has been communicated to me respecting him. :

I send you the enclosed Letter addressed to Colonel Dennis, in hopes that you may find some means
of forwarding it safely. Perhaps you can address it under cover to some one at Fort Garry, who will
be able to place it in his hands. You will see by the contents which I have left for your (private)
perusal, that my wishes and orders are against the employment of Indians in the present crisis.
shall send a duplicate of the order by the first opportunity, but as my letters have been so often
tampered with, I cannot trust the regular post. A letter addressed by you, and to an unsuspected
correspondent, might reach its destination more speedily and safely.

In conclusion let me add that, in the event of a “raid” upon this Settlement by the Sioux Indians,
you and any other American citizens placing yourselves under my protection may rely upon it that
all the influence and authoriiy of my office and all the means of defence at my command will be put
forth in your behalf. If that office and authority are as potent with the Indians on the British side of
the Line, as some of the gentlemen present at our interview admitted them to be, the threatened
danger will be averted. :

' Believe me, &c.,
. N. E. Nelson, Esq., (Signed) WirrLiam McDougALL,
Deputy Collector of Customs, Pembina.

OANADA,
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When Mr. McDougall arrived here a month ago there were five hundred men under arms; if he had
then left the difficulties could have been settled quite easily, now the whole population is on a war-
footing, and a serious character of opposition is getting deeper and deeper in the minds as long as Mr.
McDougall is giving the Insurgents more trouble. Every attempt at coercion made by Canada, or
even by England, will result in the loss of all advantages that you could draw from this country. The
half-breeds will take again the road of the prairie, and from there they will prevent any improvement
that can be attempted or tried—telegraphs, railvoads, settlements; war can be made against them, but
the armies will never meet them. There will be thousands who will be elsewhere and nowhere. 1Ir
the people were left quiet they would soon be ready to listen to propositions that conld be made
to them by the Canadian Government ; but the longer Mr. MeDougall will attempt to come in by
measures of violence the more diffienlt it will be. For himself, if he comv. ") to ‘the territory, he
will be shot immediatcly. His principal friends and supporters here are .a the ecve of being

massacred,

( 3C. )

My pEAr CoLovEL, ‘ Near Pembina, December 8th, 1869, -

I commit to the post, under cover to a third party, this Letter, which I trust you will receive
and act upon without delay. It has been represented to me that the Authorities who are endeavouring
to quell tfle outbreak of the French hall-breeds, have contem{ﬂatod the employment of Indians for that
purpose, and that n band of Sioux, on the Assiniboine, are drilling, with & view to military or warlike
gervice of some kind. 1 desirc and direct you to prevent, as far as you ean, any project of this kind. Tf
Indians are sent upon the war-path by any person acting with authority it may be found very diflicult
for the same, or even a higher authority, to recall them, or to restrain them within the limits allowed
to forces acting in aid of the Civil power. It is said, also, that goods © of a certain kind,” by which I
understand ammunition and arms, }mve been sent from the Settlement to the Sioux, near Turtle
Mountain, with an invitation to them to aid in the suppression of the half-breed disturbance. I can
bardly believe this story; but I hope you will inquire into it, and take immediate steps to counteract
any movenient of the kind. The American residents here are very much disgusted at the prospect of
a visit from the Sioux, and it would indeed be deplorable if they should be drawn into a contest that
might give them a pretext to re-enact the scenes of 1862.

With regard to t}le Indians of the Mission under Chief “ Prince,” a few of whom, I understand, are
employed to gnard the Stone Fort, I will be glad to hear that their services in that capacity are dis-
pensed with,  They may be intelligent and subject to control, but-the fact of their employment will
soon rcac%x the ears, and possibly excite the war-spirit, of more distant bands, who may not be so easily
restrained. ’

Extreme necessity in a time of riot and anarchy will justify extreme measures, but I hope the loyal
inhubitants, who have risen in defence of law and order, will be able to accomplish their object without
the active aid of their Indian allies.

I trust to your discretion in the mean time, but hope soon to be nearer the scene of action, and in a
position to judge and command.
Iam, &e,

Licutenant-Colonel J. S. Dennis, (Signed) W. McDougALL.
Red River Settlement. :

No. 14, No. 14.

Cory of a DESPATCH from Governor The Right Hon. SirJ. Youxse, Bart., G.C.B.,,
G.C.M.G., to the KaRL GRANVILLE, K.G.

(No. 4.) Government House, Ottawa, Canada, 5th January, 1870,
(Reccived 19th January, 1870.)
My Lop, (Answered, No. 21, 26th January, 1870, page 174.)

Dee. 30, 1869, With reference to previous Correspondence on the same subject, I have the
~—=—— honour to transmit herewith two Letters from the Secretary of State for the Provinces,
Jon.3, 1870, covering copies of Correspondence relating to the state of affairs at the Red River

Settlement.
' I have, &c.,
The Earl Granville K.G- JOHN YOUNG.
&c. &e. &e. :
. Enclosure 1 (No. 1717.) Enclosure 1 in No. 14. :
in No, 14.
Srtr, Ottawa, 30th December, 1869.

I have the honour to enclose, for the information of His Excellency the Governor General,
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copy of a Despatch (No. 1147) from the Ion, Willinm McDougall, C.B,, dated Pembina, 13th December,  Canapa,
detailing occurrences which have taken place since his Despatch of the 9th inst. —_
I have, &e,
‘ (Signed)  Josern Howg,
F. Turville, Esq., Governor’s Secretary. Secretary of State for the Province.

(No. 4.)
Sig, Pembina, Monday, 18th December, 186!).

I have the honour to acquaint you that I have received no communication from you since vour
Despatch of the 19th ult. Two Letters, marked “ private,” from Sir John MeDonald, date of the
23rd November, came to hand safcly on the evening of the 11th inst. 1 have received newspapers
from Ottawa and Montreal of 27th and 29th respectively, and from more western cities of a date one
or two days later. If the Mails are not delayed on the way, they will arrive here from Ottawa in
about fourteen days.

I regret to state that the Insurgents under Ricl have developed more streneth and determinatioun of
purpose in their rebellious movement than the reports from Fort Garey —of every kind—had led me
to believe they possessed.  They have been able, with the help of their allics on the American side of
the Line, to intercept and prevent all communieations from bolonel Dennis to me, sinee his _.eport
of the 2nd inst. f have, thercfore, had 4o trust to tho statements of the enemy, and such flying
rumours as we could gather from friendly “half-breeds,” for the occurrences and movements at Fort
Garry and the Stone Fort since the 2nd inst.  From these various sourees of information I learn that
on the &th or 6th inst. & number of persons (the report says forty or fifty) were assembled in the house
of Dr. Schnltz, as a guard, or as a portion of the posse comitatus about to join the Foree under Colonel
Dennis, when they were suddenly surprised by a party of Riel’s men and made prisoners. It does not
appear that an;' resistance was made by the Schultz party, whether from the suddenness of the attack
or their unwillingness to be the first to shed blood, I cannot learn. 1t is said they were armed, and
had in the house 400 rounds of ammunition. The prisoners were marched to the Fort and detained
there, but have been allowed to supply themsclves with provisions from the villawe. The number of
Insurgents now under Riel’s orders 15 said to be 400 or 500—as large a body as his friends have at
any time claimed for him. If this story should be confirmed, it would indicate great confidence in
Riel and his plans by the bulk of the French, and the continued support of tie Clergy, and the
American and other traders in the Settlement, who are known to have advised and assisted him in
the earlier stages of the movement. The same report tells us that this sudden display of force by
Riel has discouraged the Canadians and their friends, and that the English and Scotch half-breeds
have refused, in any number, to join the party of law and order. This representation of the state of
affairs receives some confirmation from the fact that Ricl was able to send a force of twenty men to the
Hudson Bay Post here, who, since Friday last, have held it, and preveuted any of our party from going
there. The Americans in our vicinity concerned in the movement are less excited sinee the arrival of
this force, and talk of our being obliged to remove in a few days towards Canada,  Iearing that Mr,
James McKay, a wealthy and inflnential resident on the Assiniboine, and one of those whom Colonel
Dennis was to consult before taking any decisive measure, had reached the house of Mr. Dease, about
twenty-six miles up the Pembina River, on the American side of the Line, I sent my son on the 11th
inst. with a verbal message to him, and in the hope that he would be able to give me reliuble informa-
tion of the operations of Colonel Dennis, since I%md heard from him; and also whether the story of
the arrest at the house of Dr. Schultz was true.  The road to the place where Mr. Melay was staying
runs, in some places, on British Territory, and the people here (except Mr. Nelson) being all openly
leagued with the Insurgents, and keeping guard at night at the bridge over the Pembina River to
prevent any messenger from reaching me, I was apprehiensive that my son would be intereepted, and
therefore directed lim to bring no letters or written communications unless Mr. McKay assented. e
succeeded in finding Mr. McKay, and getting his version of affairs in tho Settlement down to the Sth
inet. 1 enclose his Report to me (4 A).

On reference to Colonel Dennis’ Report, forwarded with my Despatch of the Gth inst. (<2 A™), it
will be secn that he saw Mr. McKay before taking possession of the Stone Iort, and found him of
opinion that the time hal come for some kind of opposition to the French; but afraid that people
“of large property,” like himself, would sufler injury, I am disposed to think he ran away as much on
accomnt of the danger to his person as to his property. DLut his case illustrates the position and
feelings of many others who have no sympathy with the French half-breeds, and no objection to the
new Government. They will accept the latter, if some oune clse will do the fighting and pay all the
money necessary to establish it.

Major Wallis, who is staying with Peter Hayden, not far from the Hudson Bay Post, reported to me
last night that Riel was expected to arrive there during the night. I thought, in view of all the facts as
they now present themselves, and especially the fact that communication has been effectually cut oft
with Colonel Dennis, that I would be justified in opening communication with Riel if he appeared in
this neighbourhood. T accordingly wrote the Letter enclosed (4 B) and sent it to the Captain of the
party in possession of the Hudson Bay Post. It reached him this morning; but up to the present
time (5 r.a) I have not heard of Ricl’s arrival, nor whether they have sent the letter forward to hin.

Dr. Jackes, who belongs 1o our party, was sent for in great haste this morniig by Mr. Rolette,
Deputy United States Marshal, and onc of our most bitter opponents here, for his professional aid.
Ro{)ctte’s wife was dying (in childbirth). The Indian midwife had given her up; and her relatives,
some of whom had been threatening our lives, were now applying to us to suve the life of Mrs, Roletie,
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The Doctor hurried to her bedside, and, by the exercise of his skill, overcame the difficulty, and
probably has saved her life. They all professed to be full of gratitude, and when the danger was over
showed him a Proclamation, issued by Riel since the 1st December, in which he announces that the
French have established a Government of their own, and intend to resist, by force if necessary, the
attempt of any other power to impose one upon them. It denies the right of the Hudson Bay
Company to transfer them to Canada, &c.,&e. The Doctor could not obtain a copy, as Rolette had
only one and would not part with it. )

beg again to express my opinion, that the suggestion I had the honour to make in my Despatch
of 29th November, and more fully in previous letters to Sir J. A. Macdonald, is the only practicable
plan for establishing the authority of the Dominion Go;e}zl'nmelg in this Territory.

ave, &c.,
The Hon. Joseph Howe, (Signed) Wiriam McDouGALL.

Secretary of State, &ec., Ottawa.

(4 A).
MEMORANDUM.

Left Pembina on the morning of 11th December for St. Joe, 26 miles distant, for the residence
of Mr. * * * a half-breed born in Oregon, and a man of considerable wealth and influence
amongst the half-breeds at St. Joe. He informed me that Mr. Gingras of St. Joe had, on the evening
of the 10th inst., tried to get the half-breeds there to join the Red River insurgent party. He
(Gingras) had agreed to raise a party of 130 halt-breeds, and, with a portion of them, to drive
Governor McDougall away fromn his Eouse at Pembina. Mr. * * * treated the proposal with contempt,
and tried to persuade Giingras not to attempt such a movement. These halt-breeds at St. Joc are
principally connected with those at Red River Settlement, and many of them were inclined to fall in
with Mr. Gingras’s plan. Mr. * * * believed that if there was any bloodshed at Red River Settle-
ment, the Governor and his whole party would be in imminent danger and run the risk of losing their
lives. Mr. * * * sympathized much with the Governor and his party, and declared his willingness to
assist us in any way in his power. I ascertained from him that Mr. McKay, frora Red River Settle-
ment, was at a Mr. Charles Grant’s, about seven miles distant from Mr. Dease’s. I drove there to see
him, and found he had brought his family, and had left the Settlement with the intention of remaining
amongst his relatives at St. Joe during the present troubles. He informed me that fifty Canadians
who were guarding Government provisions at the residence of Dr. Schultz at Fort Garry, were taken
prisoners ; that Dr. Schultz and wife, Dr. Bown, Mr. Mair, and Mr. Hallett were amongst them. Mr.
Hallett was taken prisoner while endeavouring to procure some medicine for his wife. Mr. McKay
also informed me that Colonel Dennis, on his arrival from Pembina, first called on him, and that he
(McKay) advised him strongly not to incite the one portion of the population to take up arms against:
the other, and that one hundred of the principal French half-breeds had signed a document agreeing to
allow the Governor to come in. He also stated that if hostilities were commenced and blood spilt,
the lives of the Governor and his party would almost certainly be sacrificed. He said that other men
of property and wealth in the Settlement held the same views and expressed opinions similar to his
own. Mr. McKay intended to have called on the Governor at Pembina, but was overtaken on his way
by a party of insurgents going totake possession of the Hudson Bay Company’s Post at Pembina, and
was forced to change his course and cross the prairie to St. Joe. ~He was under the impression that
Colonel Dennis had gone to Portage la Prairie, and that Stone Fort was still held by the Indians and
others under Colonel Dennis.

Pembina, December 13th, 1869, , (Signed) WiLniam B, McDougALL.

4 B.

(Private.) ®5)
SIR, Pembina, December 13th, 1869.

) I hear from the Hudson’s Bay Post that you are expected to arrive there from Fort Garry to-
night. Isend this note to inform you that I am anxious to have a conversation with you before
answering Despatches which I have recently received from the Dominion Government.

I have not yet had any communication from you or from any one else on behalf of the French half-
breeds, who have prevented me from proceeding to Fort Garry, stating their complaints or wishes in
reference to thenew Government.

As the Representative of the Sovereign, to whom you and they owe, and, as I am told, do not wish
to deny, allegiance, it is proper that some such communication should reach me. Itwill be a great
misfortune to us all, I think, if I am obliged to return to Canada and hand over the powers of
Government here to a Military Ruler. -

This will be the inevitable result unless we find some solution of the present difficulty very soon.

I have full powers from the Government, as well as the strongest desire personally, to meet all just
ﬁzltxgls ?of every class and section of the people. Why should you not come to me and discuss the

er

I beg you to believe that what occurred will not affect my mind against you or those for whom
you may be authorized to speak.
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The interview proposed must be without the knowledge or privity of certain American citizens here ~ Canapa.
who pretend to be en rapport with you. _ _—
I trust to your honour on this point.
Very faithfully yours,

Louis Riel, Esq., (Signed)  WirLiax McDouGALL.

Enclosure 2 in No, 14. Enclosure 2

in No. 14.
Sz, Ottawa, 3rd January, 1870.
I have the honour to transmit to you, for the information of His Excellency the Governor-
General, Copy of a Despatch (No. 5), with seven Enclosures, from the Honourable William McDougall,
C.B., dated Pembina, 16th December, 1869.
I have, &e.,
T. Turville, Esq., Governor’s Secretary. (Signed) Josern Howe,
Secretary of State for the Provinces.

(No. 5.)

S1R, Pembina, 16th December, 1869.

I have the honour to acknowledge the receipt of your Despatch of the 29th November. Events
have occurred since that Despatch was written which, when the account of them reaches you, will
justify, I think, the decision I have arrived at, to return as far as St. Paul, and communicate with you
from that point,

The state of affairs at and near Fort Garry, which was described in my last Despatch (13th
December) on the information of persons not much to be depended upon, is now substantially confirmed
by the arrival last night and report of Colonel Dennis, He left the Stone Fort on Saturday morning
at 2 o’clock, having ordered the payment and discharge, at noon of that day, of the persons who had
voluntecred to hold and defend it.

I enclose two short Reports (“5 A ” and “5 B ”) which were, with other papers, safely brought to me
by two of Chief ¢ Prince’s” messengers, two nights ago. I was on the look-out for the Colonel himself
sooner than he promised, because I was satisfied his attempt to arrange a deputation to me from the
leaders of the Riel party would fail. I detained the Indians as recommended, secreting them from
observation as much as possible, and bhave found them of very great service. AsIintend to start on
my return journey to-morrow, I shall defer until I arrive at Fort Abercrombie, the communication of
further details, which might, if known here, interfere with our future operations.

I enclose a Letter (8 C”) from Mr. * * * who knows well the character and habits of the half-
breeds of both origins. He has acted as guide to several expeditions into the interior, and was my
guide from St. Cloud to this place.

As soon as I had decided to quit this neighbourhood I thought it ﬁ)rudent, in view of future possible
questions and responsibilities, to write the enclosed Letter to Mr. McTavish (¢5 D), which I have
committed to the custody of my faithful Indians, who will find the means to put it in proper
hands.

We are still closely watched, and prevented from obtaining supplies from the Hudson Bay Company’s
Post, I have heard nothing in answer to my private Letter to Mr. Riel, and have no reason to believe
that he will soon come near me. '

I enclose (“5 E”) a Copy of the Declaration of Independence, which was adopted on the 24th
November, and printed on the 8th instant. Also (“5 I ”) a “List of Rights,” which was distributed
two or three days before the “Declaration,” and produced a cooling effect upon many of those who
had professed a day or two before a willingness to put down the Riel party by force of arms. As soon
as it had served its purpose the “Declaration” was issued, and the English found themselves caught
in a trap. In the mean time parties had been sent to all the important points, and the arms of the
English-speaking Settlers were taken from them.

None of the messengers mentioned in your Despatch have yet arrived.

I have, &ec.,
"The Honourable J ose}gl Howe, Secretary of State, &c., (Signed) W, McDouGALL.
ttawa.

. P.S.—Please find enclosed (“5 G”) Copy of Notice issued by Colonel Dennis at the Stone
fort,

W. McD.

(Copy 5 A.)

Stone Fort, Red River Settlement, Norih-West Territory.
Sig, . December 9th, 1869, -

I beg to report my proceedings under the Commission which I had the honour to receive from
you on the lstinstant, and would refer you to the accompanying record thereof, in which full details
are given, .

L
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It is o matter of sincere regret to me to be obliged to express the opinion, deliberately given, tiut
as a body the English-speaking portion of the Red River Settlement proper, in their present frame of
mind, camot be counted on in any measures of an aggressive character which may be necessary to
put down the I'rench party now in arms against the Government. . ' )

I shall remain here a few days longer, to be at hand should there be any prospect of arranging with
the French to send a Delegation to you, of which, however, I have little expectation, and, on finding
that no further ohject is to be gained by my remaining, will return to Pembina, :

I have, &ec.,

The Hon. W. McDougall, C.B., (Signed) J. 8. DENNIs.

Tieutenant-Governor, &c.

(Copy 5 B.)

My pear Mz, McDougaLy, . Sth December, 1869.
I expect to learn this evening yet, finally, whether there is any chance of the Rebel party
showing any disposition to send you a Delegation. '

If satistied that there is none,—that they have gone in fully for their new Government as an
independent people, then I shall at once discharge the gusrd from this Fort, and leave for Pembina.
T'his will be taken by Chief Prince’s messenger, and he had better remain with his friends the Indians
below Fort Pembina for a few days, till I get down, so that any Letters or Instructions may be carried
back here for the guidance of the Canadians in the Settlement.

1 shall be with you in a week, even supposing I delay to have an interview with the Rebel Council,
as I should leave immediately after. Let this messenger wait therefore for a week at Pembina. You
may rely upon it these people are fully in possession for the winter, and say themsclves that, with the
promiscs they have of Fenian and Filibusters’ support, they.will be able to hold the country. I should
not be surprised but they may get many people here to join them too. I think they would do anything,
rauny of them, rather than oltend the French now (as they say) they see per “list of xights” that the
Irench ask nothing very unreasonable.

"Phere is nothing for 1t but to submit on our part till the spring,

Believe me, &ec.,
The Honourable William McDougall, (Signedy J. S, DENNIs.
Lieuatenant-Governor.

{Copy 5 C)

Red River, December 8th, 1869.

Your Excellency will no doubt learn from other sources the state and feelings of the English-
speaking population of this Settlement just now. I should have written you before this time, but, I
postponed the matter, as I at one time was made to believe that I should see you personally; but as
matters stand at present, I am extremely sorry to inform your Excellency that I fear my prospects are
hopeless. Siuce the past two days the people, I fear, have made a dead stop in taking any steps
whatever. What their objects are I cannot say at present. I tried my best to get a force formidable
ennugh to assist in carrying out Colonel Dennis’s orders, but I fear the whole scheme will be a fatlure.
Even among our English-speaking population we have to contend with worse characters than the French
half-breeds, which I am sorry to inform you, but nevertheless too true. The Scotch Settlement wou’t
join us or any other parish of the Protestant population, so that it would be the height of folly for us
to take any aggressive steps, for we would be overpowered by numbers. We have in these two
parishes all the disadvantages, both in numbers and arms. I think it is on no other foundation the
people stand—for standing back is want of arms,—as a matter of course the half-breeds have taken
possession of all our arms. However, if the people were willing, they could muster arms enough to
put down the half-breeds, but they will not do it. The fact of the matter is they are cowards, one and
all of them. Although they are my countrymen, I must speak the truth about them.

Colonel Dennis is writing you, and your Exeellency will learn from him the present political
state of affuirs, I was sorry to hear of the accident to your son, but I hepe he is better, and not
suffering now, '

Will your Excellency allow me to remain,
Yours, &e.,

His Excellency the Honourable W, McDougall, &e., (Signed)
Pembina. \

L * * #
.

. o (Copy 5 D.) .

My pEAR Sin, Pembina, 16th December, 1869,
In consequence of the continued occupation of Fort Garry by the Insurgents, under Mr. Louis

Riel, and the submission of the Local Authorities to his orders, and having no force at my command
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to re-establish the supremacy of the law in that neighbourhood, I have determined to return as far as
St. Paul, and await there the Orders of Her Majesty’s Imperial and Canadian Governments,

I have not had the honour to reccive from you any message or communication since your
private Note of the 19th of November. The roads at this point Lave heen so effectually watched
and gnarded by the Insurgents that T have not ventured to send to you any oflicial or other com-
munication that could, it it fell inte their hands, betray the situation or give information or
encouragement to them. I send this by the hands of Indians whom I have found loyal and
faiftli]ful where so many others have proved the reverse. I have little doubt it will reach you
safely.

I am advised by the Secretary of State for the Provinces that His Excellency the Governor-
General has communicated to Lord Granville my Despatches up to the 9th of November, and has
also telegraphed the more recent events, including, I presume, the occupation of Fort GGarry by the
half-breeds under Riel. I observe by a paragraph in the ‘Montreal Gazette’ that the Dominion
Government have telegraphed their Agent in London to withhold the payment to the Hudson Bav

~ Company of the purchase money agreed to be paid to them for the transfer of their rights in Rupert’s
Land. 1 have no official confirmation of this statement, but will not be surprised if it should
prove true.
! Under these circumstances, it becomes important to consider carefully the legal position of all
parties in the present crisis, I venture to submit my views of the case as it stands in the North-
West Territories. '

If, in consequence of the action of the Dominion Government, the surrender and transfer of the
Country did not take place on the first day of December, as previously agreed upon, then you
are the ‘Chief Execntive Officer as before, and responsible for the preservation of the peace, and
the enforcement of the Law.

If, on the other hand, the transfer did take place on the first day of December, then, I take
it, my Commigsion came into force, and the notice in the form of Proclamation issued by my
anthority on that day, correctly recited the facts and disclosed the legal status of the respective
parties, I learn from Colonel Dennis that a Notice or Proclamation issued Ly me on the nd
duy of December, confirming and continuing all Public Officers in the duties and functions excepting
(in the words of the Canadian Act, “ the Public Officer or Functionary at the head of the Adminis-
“tration of Affairs)” was duly printed and published in the Settlement, although it was reported
here that the messenger who carried it forward was arrested, and his papers taken from him by
Riel's party. You will observe by reference to the 5th Section of the Rupert’s Land Aet, that * until
“otherwise enacted by the Parliament of Canada” all the Powers, Authorities, and Jurisdiction of the
several Courts of Justice now established in Rupert’s Land, and the several Officers thereof, and of ali
Magistrates and Justices, are continued in full force, and by the Gth Section of the Cunadian Act
« for the temperate Government of Rupert’s Land,” &e., « all Public Officers and Functionaries holdiner
«offices in Rupert’s Land and the North-Western Territory, with the exeeption already mentioned,”
shall eontinue to be “ Public Officers and Functionaries of the North-West Territories, with the same
« duties and powers as before, until otherwise ordered by the Lieutenant<Governor.”

My Proclamation of the 2n instant, intended to notity all these Ofticers that I had not ¢ otherwise
“ordered,” and that by force of both Acts they still held and were bound to exercise their “powers,”
¢ jurigdiction,” and “ duties” as before. 'Whether the transfer has been delayed or not, I think it is
¢lear that the present “Magistrates” and “ Authorities ” are still legally in office, and bound, as far

- as-they can, to perform the duties of their respective offices, as before. In your case, the continuance
of your powers and jurisdiction as Governor depends npon the transfer. If, as I am inclined to think,
Las happened, the Company surrendered, and Her Majesty transfexred, on the 1st day of December,
notwithstanding the events occurring on this side of the Atlantic, the gentleman who acted as Deputy-
Governor, or would have assumed that Office under the laws of Assiniboia prior to December 1st will
in my -absence, and without special deputation by me, be and become the Chief Xxecutive Ofticer of
the Territories.

T have thought it my duty to explain to you, as I understand it, the legal position of affairs within
the Territory at the present time. I do mot know whether Judge Black will concur with me, but I
trust you will show him this Letter, and be guided, as I have no doubt you will, very much by
his view. -

T notice ithat Riel, in his printed papers, speaks for a very large part of the earth’s surface, as well
as for:all the people whe now inhabit #t. You will no doubt agree with me that he rules only the
“« Territory ” within the range of his guns, and such “ people” as take service in his ranks, or willingly
submit to his orders,

I am, &e.,
W. McTavish, Esquire, &ec., : (Signed) W. McDovGALL,
Fort Garry.

(Copy 5 ¥.)
DECLARATION OF THE PEOPLE OF RUPERTS LAND, AND THE NORTH-WVEST.

Whereas it is admitted by all men as a fundamental principle that the Public Authority commands
the obedience and respect of its subjects. It is also admitted that a people, when it has no Govern-
ment, is free to adopt.one form of Government in preference to another, to give or refuse allegiance to
that which is proposed. Tn accordance with the above first principle, the people of this country had

L2
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obeyed and respected that authority to which the circumstances surrounding its infancy compelled it
to be subject. A company of adventurers, known as the Hudson Bay Company, and invested with
certain powers granted by His Majesty Charles I1., established 1tse!f in Ruperts Land and the Norlbh~
West Territory for trading purposes only. This Company, consisting of many persons, required a
certain constitution, but as there was a question of commerce only, the Constitution was framed in
reference thereto ; and yet since there was at that time no Government to see to the interests of g
people already existing in the Country, it became necessary for judicial affuirs to have recourse to the
Officers of the Hudson Bay Company. Thus inaugurated that species of Government which, slightly
modified by subsequent circumstances, ruled this country up to a recent date. Whereas that Govern-
ment thus accepted, was far from answering to the wants of the people, and became more and more so as
the population increased in number, and as the Country was developed_and commerce extended until
the present day, when it commands a place among the Colonies ; and this people, ever actuated by the
above-mentioned principies, had generously supported the aforesaid Government, and gave to it a
faithful allegiance, when, contrary to the laws of nations, in March, 1869, that seid Govel.rnment
surrendered and transferred to Canada all the right which it had, or pretended to have, in this
Territory, by transactions with which the people wers considered unworthy to be made acquainted. And
whereas it is also generally admitted that a people is at liberty to establish any form of Government it
may consider suitable to its wants, as soon as the Power to which it was subject abandons it, or
attempts to subjugate it without its consent to a foreign Power, and maintain that no right can Lo
transferred to such foreign Power.

Now, therefore, first, we, the Representatives of the people in Council, assembled in Upper Fout
Garry, on the 24th of November, 1869, after having invoked the God of nations, relying on theso
fundamental moral principles, solemnly declare, in the name of our constituents, and in our own names
before God and man, that from the day on which the Government we had always respected abandoned
us, by transferring to a strange Power the sacred authority confided to it, the people of Rupert’s Land
and the North-West became free and exempt from all allegiance to the said Government.

Second: That we refuse to recognise the authority of Canada, which pretends to have a right to
coerce us, and impose upon us a despotic form of Government still more contrary to our rights and
interests, as British Subjects, than was that Government to which we had subjected ourselves, through
necessity, up to a recent date.

Third : That by sending an expedition on the 1st of November ultimo, charged to drive back
Mr. William McDougall and his companions, coming in the name of Canada to rule us with the rod
of despotism, without previous notification to that effect, we have but acted conformably to that sacred
riglit. which commands every citizen to offer energetic opposition to prevent his country being
enslaved. '

Fourth: That we continue, and shall continue, to oppose with all our strength, the establishing of
the Canadian Authority in our country, under the announced form, and in case of persistence on the
}mrt of the Canadian Government to enforce its obnoxious policy upon us by force of arms, we protest
heforehand against such an unjust and unlawful course, and we declare the said Canadian Government
responsible before God and man for the innumerable evils which may be caused by so unwarrant-
able a course.

Be it known, therefore, to the world in general, and to the Canadian Government in particular,
that as we have always heretofore successfully defended our Country in frequent wars with the
neighbouring tribes of Indians, who are now on friendly relations with us, we are firmly resolved
in future, not less than in the past, to repel all invasions, from whatsoever quarter they may come,
and furthermore we do declare and proclaim, in the name of the people of Rupert’s Land and
the North-West, that we have on the said 24th of November, 1869, above-mentioned, established
a Provisional Government, and hold it to be the only and lawful authority now in existence in
Rupert’s Land and the North-West, which claims the obedience and respect of the people ; that mean-
while we hold ourselves in readiness to enter into such negotiations with the Canadian Government as
may be favourable for the good Government and prosperity of this people. In support of this
Declaration, relying on the protection of Divine Providence, we mutually pledge ourselves on oath,
our lives, our fortunes, and our sacred honour to each other.

Issued at Fort Garry, this eighth day of December, in the year of our Lord one thousand eight
hundred and sixty-nine.

CANADA,

. JoaN BRUCE, President.
(Signed) { Lours RiEL, Secretary.

LisT oF RiGHTS.

1. That the people have the ri%ht to elect their own Legislature,

2. That the Legislature have the power to pass all Laws local to the Territory over the veto of the
Execative by a two-thirds vote.

3. That no Act of the Dominion Parliament (local to the Territory) be binding on the people until
sanctioned by the Legislature of the Territory.
pegi)l'.]?hat all Sherifts, Magistrates, Constagles, School Commissioners, &e., &e., be elected by the

e. )

g. %hfrfe Homesteac} a}x:d pre-emption Land Law.

O. That a portion of the public Lands be appropriated to the benefit of Schools, th ildi
Bridges, Roads, and Pablic BI:ﬁldings. PPIoP ° enefit of Sehools, the building of
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7. That it be guaranteed to connect Winnipeg by Rail with the nearest line of Railroad within a  Caxapa.
term of five years ; the Laud Grant to be subject to the Local Legislature. -—

8. That for the term of four years all Military, Civil, and Municipal expenses be paid out of the
Dominion Funds.

9. That the Military be composed of the inhabitants now existing in the Territory.

10. That the English and French languages be common in the Legislature and Courts, and that
all Public Documents and Aects of the Legislature be published in both languages.

11. That the Judge of the Supreme Court speak the English and French languages.

12. That Treaties be concluded and ratified between the Dominion Government and the several
Tribes of Indians in the Territory to ensure peace on the frontier.

13. That we have a fair and full representation in the Canadian Parliament.

14. That all privileges, customs, and usages existing at the time of the transfer be respected.

All the above Articles have been severally discussed and adopted by the French and English
Representatives without a dissenting voice, as the conditions apon which the people of Rupert’s Land
enter into Confederation. The French Representatives then proposed, in order to secure the above
Rights, that a Delegation be appointed, and sent to Pembina to see Mr. McDougall, and ask him if he
could gnarantee these Rights by virtue of his Commission ; and if he counld do so, that then the French

eople wonld join to a man to escort Mr. McDougall into his Government seat. But on the contrary,
if Mr. McDougall could not gnirantee such Rights, that the Delegates request him to remain where
he is, or return till the Rights be guaranteed by Act of the Canadian Parliament.
¢ The English Representatives refused to appoint Delegates to go to Pembina to consult with Mr.
McDougall, stating they had no authority to do so.from their constituents, upon which the Council
was dissolved.

The Meeting at which the above Resolutions were adopted was held at Fort Garry, on Wedunesday,
December 1st, 1869.

Winnipeg, December 4th, 1869,

(5G.)
ARMS,

To all whom it may concern.

Lower Fort Garry, Red River Settlement,
December 9th, 1869.

By certain printed Papers of a late date, put in circulation by the French party, communica-
tion with the Lieutenant-Governor is indicated with a view to laying before him the alleged rights on
the part of those now in arms. I think that course very desirable, and that it would lead to good
resnlts. Under the belief that the party in arms are sincere in their desire for peace, and feeling that
to abandon for the present the call on the loyal to arms, would, in view of such communication, relieve
the situation of much embarrassment, and so contribute to bring about peace, and save the country
from what will otherwise end in ruin and desolation. I now call on and order the loyal party in the
North-West Territories to cease further action under the appeal to arms made by me; and I call on
the French party to satisfy the people of their sincerity in wishing for a peaceful ending of all
these troubles, by sending a Deputation to the Lieutenant-Governor at Pembina without unnecessary
delay.

Given under my hand at the Lower Fort Garry, this 9th day of December, 1869.

(Signed)  J. S. DENNIS,
Lieutenant and Conservator of the Peace
in and for the North-West Territories.

No. 15. No. 15.

Extract from a DESPATCH from Governor The Rt. Hon. Sir J. Youwe, Bart., G.C.B.,
G.CM.G., to The Earr GrawviLre, K.G., dated Government House, Ottawa,
Canada, 8th January, 1870. (Confidential.)

I send extracts from two Newspapers, the Toronto ‘Globe, and the Ottawa
¢Citizen. The latter is a Ministerial paper; the former bitterly the reverse, but very
influential in Ontario.

Mr. McDougall has arrived in Canada, and is expected to reach Ottawa in a day or
two.
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We learn from American sources that Dr. Tupper, who went up with Mr, Smith in
order to bring his daughter back, is on his way home from Pembina, and, though we
have no certain intelligence, the inference is that the cnvoys have been permitted to

continue their route to Fort Garry.

ExTRACT from the Toronto ¢ Globe,” Newspaper, Dec, 31st, 1869.
THE NORTH-WEST.

It is no pleasant task to pass in review the recent policy of the meiniop of Canada towards the
North-West Territory ; yet, under the circumstances, it cannot be avoided. The original fundamental
error of the Government lay, in ignoring altogether the opinions and feclings of the inhabitants of the
Selkirk Settlement. The people may be divided politically “into three classes: the Hudson Bay
Company officials and adherents; the English and Scotch Settlers, with their halt-breed con-
nections; and the French, principally half-breeds. The Hudson Bay Company were naturally
inclined to view with jealousy the introduction of 2 new order of things, forced upon them by Imperial
Authority. The other two classes, although, in the main,_fhvourable to C‘vanadm.n Ann?xatlon, were
jealously on the watch lest the new system should fail to give them the perfect right of self-govern.
ment whiclh they had been hitherto denied ; and for the attainment of which they had gladly welcomed
the change. The French were doubly jealous, however, inasmuch as some of them feared to be over-
run by British Canadians, aliens to them in race and religion. )

It 1s impossible to say whether the Ottawa Authorities had any sinister motives for so acting;
whether they desired to parcel out the Lands of the Territory to suit their own purposes, without
interference from its old occupants; but certain it is that they ignored the people of Selkirk altogether
in the formation of the first Government. In spite of the warnings of the Opposition in the House of
Commons, and of this Jonrnal, they refused to introdunce at once a Representative system of Govern-
ment, and left the control of the affairs of the Territory, for an indefinite period, to a Governor and
Council. In the selection of a Governor they were guided by motives of temporary political expe-
diency ; Mr. McDougall had answered all the purposes for which he was retained in the Cabinet, after
the retirement of Mr. Brown ; the elections of 1867 were carried by the Conservative party; Mr.
MeDougall had no friends in the House of Commouns, and he not only was troublesome in matters of
policy within the Cubinet, but his presence caused jealousy and ill-will among the Conservative
followers of the Premier ju Parlizment. The time had arrived for getting 1id of Mr. McDougall, and
he was shunted off to the North-West, without consideration for the feelings of the people there. No
one can deny that Mr. McDougall has some qualities of head which, under favourable circumstances,
would render him a fair Governor ; but one more unsuitable for the erisis could hardly have been
seleeted.  There is a considerable body of Reformers in the Settlement, who are the truest friends of
Canada there; but no enthusiasm was excited among them by the presence of one whom they were
accustomed to regard as a traitor to his party and the principles he formerly professed. As to the
Hudson Bay Company’s officials, unfriendly as they are to Canadian rle, there was nothing in Mr.
McDougall’s antecedents, character, or position, to recommend him to them ; while to the French he
was specially obnoxions, on account of the old quarrel about Manitoulin lands. M. MeDougall’s dack
of frankness and bonkommie was an effectnal stop to the removal of any of the prejudices, ill or well
founded, which had been formed against him in the Settlement. His appointment was generally
received in Canada with the remark, that if the people.of the North-West were satisfied 1o receive him,
we could have no objections, since we were about to get 1id of him,

In the choice of a Council, the Government were equally unfortunate. They undoubtedly designed
at one time to form it by the selection of two Representatives from the larger Provinces, two from
Selkirk itself, and one each from the smaller Provinces. The Government organ at Ottawa openly
defended this.scheme when it was assailed by the Reform press. As it was, two Members of the
Couneil, the Attorney-General, and the Secretary, one from Ontario, and the other from Quebee, were
sent mp with Mr. MeDougall. Captain Cameron, Dr. Tupper’s son-in-law, went up as a kind of Chief
of Police, we believe, and it is to be presumed was intended to represent Nova Scotia. The Surveying
party, which preceded the Governor and began work, was exclusively composed of Canadians; and,
evidently, it appeared to the people of the Territory that every good thing in the gift of the new
Government was to be absorbed by strangers, and that those who had penetrated far from civilization,
and lived for forty or fifty years in the hope of attaining the blessings of self-government, were about
to be placed under the control of a sct of foreign officials, as grasping as those of the Hudson
Bay Company. Let our readers in Ontario put themselves in the place of the people of Selkirk, and
say whether they also would not have felt indignant when so treated,

It 18 unquestionably true that—whatever might be the motives of the Government, or the character
of their proceedings—the people of Canada would never have $olerated any injustice being inflicted
upon the people of Selkirk. Themore intelligent people of the Settlement were well aware of the fact,
and were willing, in spite of the errors of the Government, to receive Mr. McDougall ; but their hands
were weakened by those errors, and they have been compelled to succumb to the rule of the less
intelligent and more headstrong.

The-errors which 3na,rked the inception of the new Government are, however, less than those of its
after progress. 'Without any intimation to Governor McTavich of his approach, Mr. McDougall
was sent up to the Territory. " If he had gone when first appointed in summer, he woulil have been
comparatively well received, the half-bresds being then on the plains; but he waited to sir his honours
through Ontario, the buffalo-hunters returned, the causes of discontent festered and rankled in +the
minds of the people, and he was stopped at the frotitier. Before he left Toronto, 3r. McDougall was
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told what wonld happen if his Counmcil was not better constituted ‘than the Government journals

roposed that it should be ; but he disregarded the warning. Mr. Howe had been at Red River before

im, and surely could not have failed to perceive the extent of the dissatisfaction which esisted. There
is a eharaeteristic- story told of him which shows that, at all events, some portion had come under his
otice. It is said that a resident of Red River declaiming lJoudly against Confederation, appealed to
him as one of its ancient opponents. ¢ Yes,” said the member for Hants, “I did oppose it, till I got
a fat office, and so, I suppose, will you.” The Government did not hold out to the people of Red
Rfiveli.e.ven a prospect of the fat offices which have so great an effect upun the opinions of the Howes
of politics.

Mr. McDougall was stopped at the frontier, and then commenced a series of remarkable proceedings
at Ottawa and Pembina. It had been agreed that, on the 1st December, the purchase money of the
Territory should be paid over to the Hudson Bay Company, the Queen’s Proclamation should issue,
annexing the North-West to Canada; and that Mr. McDougall should on that day assume the duties
of his Governorship. Mr. McDougall faithfully carrfed out the programme laid down for him. Although
he was cooped up in the village of Pembina, unable to enter the promised land; although his subjects
were in rebellion azainst his authority, and his messengers obliged to steal mto: his seat of Government
under disguise, he boldly proclaimed the trausference of the Territory to Canada, and claimed the loyal
obedience of the inhahitants. Dut what, in the mcan time, had been the course of the Government at
Ottawa? While McDougall was issuing his Proclamation of the annexation of the Territory to Canada,
they had put a stognto- the annexation altogether l—they had prevented the payment of the meney in
Fngland, and indefinitely postponed the issue of the Queen’s Proclamation. 'We look upon this aet as
a wrong to Mr. McDougall ; but, what is much more important, a great injury to the Dominion. It
has been said by one Government Journal that, as Cunada is purchasing the Territory, it is the duty
of the Hudson Bay €Company and the Imperinl Government to give peaceable possession; but our
claim has always bcen that the eountry has belonged to Canada since the Conquest, and that the
anment of £300,000 is made to extinguish the claims which the Huilson Bay Company had acquired

y temporary occupation. To ask the Hudson Bay €ompany to give us possession of the Ferritory, is
to ask an impossibility—they have not men nor money enough at command. Te ask the Home
Government to put down the Insurrection, is to ask what will not be granted. The answer will be,
“You did not wait for us to hand over the Territory ; you sent in your Surveyors, and other officials,
“in the most injudicious way you could have chosen; the difficulties which exist, you have yourselves
“ ereated—get out of them the best way you can.”

This is the aspect in which the Government have placed us before the Imperial Authorities. But,
in regard to the people of Red River, the position they have selected is still more disastrous. Counting
upon the co-operation of the Government, Mr. McBougalt issued his Proclamation, and called upon
the loyal people of the Settlement to support this anthority. But whilst preparing his organization,
intelligence of the change of policy at Ottawa scems to have reached him. The proffered services of
the loyal people of Winnipeg were declined, and the Insurgents allowed to pursue their career
unckecked. The Territory does not belong to Cunada; the Hudson Bay Company has cecased to
govern, and Messrs. Bruce and Ricl may hoist any flag they please without special charge of disloyalty
being raised against them. A third of the series of Letters from a Hudson Bay Company source,
which we publish to-day, expresses as strongly as ever the absence of any desire for annexation to the
United States on the part of the Insurgents; and, in fact, the absence of any other desire except for
union with Canada on fair terms. But the end, of an insurrection eannot be predieted from the views
of the actors at the beginning. The first Declaration of the American Revolutionists of 1776 was filled
with expressions of loyalty to George the Third. We eanunot, therefore, view without alurm the
present position of affairs.  The Ministry, appavently, have entirely abandoned the North-West for the
time being. One of their Journals, in Kingston, declares that Canada does not want the Red River
Settlement ; that the idea of building a Pacific Railroad through British Territory is chimerical; and
that the Territory can never be aught else than a bill of expense, with no prospect of future berelit.
Another organ in. Toronto, the ¢ Leader,” thus treats the matter :— )

“Back AcaiN—* The King of France marched up the hill, and then marched back again” M.
« Albert Richards, with some members of Mr. McDongall’s family, have already left St. Panl en voufe
«for Canada, the implacable half-breeds having refused to let them cross the border.  Mr. McDougall
“«himself is expected at St. Paul in a few days, and will probably be in Foronto next week. It would
“be a ludicrous affair altogether if it had not a serious side. But it will be all right when the trces
“begin to bud. Then Canada will own the Ferritory, and then, teo, Mr. McDougall, or some one else,
“ as Lieutenant-Governor, will surely exercise gubernatorial powers in the new Territories, Till then
“ Bruce, Riel, and Co., may make high carnival unmolested.’

The actors in the scenes of the last two months have certainly placed themselves in a position
ludicrous enough, but we can not find it in our hearts to laugh at folly which has endangered the
future of this country. Mr. McDougall’s position may furnish many a merry jest for boon companions
at Ottawa; but the people of Ontario cannot view without indignation and alarm the fair hopes of
securing the North-West Territory for themselves and their children blasted by the recklessness and
incapacity of their rulers. ) ) ) )

The policy of abandonment, of relinquishment of the Territory for an indefinite period, will not
satisfy public opinion. The Government selected a bad Governor and a bad Council to carry out a
bad system. A portion of the people of Red River have committed grave crrors, but the Ottawa
Giovernment were the first to do wrong, and ought to be the first to acknowledge it, and make restitu-
tion. When Mr. McDougall’s progress was stopped at Pembina, we pointed out that it was the duty of
the Grovernment to recall him, and send up in his place a British Officer of rank and position, who
would command the respect of all classes of the people. - .

That was our advice six weeks ago, and it would have been well if it had been followed then. It is
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our advice still. Judging by the communication published to-day from one who understands, and i,
to a certain extent g: ﬁeas);, in sympathy Withpthe disaffected at Red River, a_British Officer,
empowered to listen to the complaints of the peoEIe at Red River, and to grant redress—subject, of
course, to the decision of our Parlisment—would be willingly received, and all danger would be passed.
To leave the matter as it is until s ring, with a1l the dangers that may intervene in jche meanwhile, is,
in the last degree, unwise. Euougﬁ nistakes have already been committed. We sincerely hope the
Government will acknowledge these errors in the past by adopting a very different policy in the

future.

From the ¢ Ottawa Citizen, Jan, 6, 1870.

We give elsewhere an article respecting the Red River difficulty, which appears to be written in a
fairer and more moderate spirit than most of those which have appeared. The reports have been, as
our readers would see for themselves, contradictory, and for the meost part written from an American
point of view, and therefore by no means too favourable to Canada. 'Whilst we have published most
of the statements that have appeared, we have felt it necessary to warn our readers that they onght
not to be accepted implicitly. Many or most of them resemble the story of # The Black Crows,”
which had for its foundation “as black as a crow.”

In the large number of articles and letters that have been written respecting the Red River trouble,
some grains of trath have no doubt been mingled; the difficulty has been to separate the wheat from

" the chaff. We have ourselves abstained, in the present state of affairs, from any remarks calenlated

to throw difficulty in the way of the negotiations now going on with the inhebitants of Red River.
In the ahsence of positive information, it is difficult to arrive at any satisfactory conclusions respecting
the origin and extent of the difficulty, and the claims of the Insurgents. The Members of the Govern-
ment are particularly reticent with respect to Red River matters, and evidently desire to preserve a
discreet silence during the progress of the pending negotiations, It might be as well, perhaps, if the
press were to observe the same caution. A little patience and discretion now may save a vast amount
of trouble hereafter. When Parliament meets the whole matter will, no doubt, be thoroughly investi-

ated. Meantime, it is the part of prudence, as well as of patriotism, to refrain from any utterances
which might hamper the action of the Government, or tend to increase the irritation which prevails
amongst a considerable section of the inhabitants of Red River.

THE RED RIVER TROUBLE.

. From the <St. Paul Despatch,” 81st.

. Governor McDougall, appointed by the Dominion Governor of the Red River Country, his Commis-

sion dating December 1st, reached this city at 1 p.i, to-day, on his way from Pembina to Ottawa,
having been unable to assume the duties of his office. He was accompanied by Colonel Dennis, Sur-
veyor-General of the Territory, and Alexander Begg, an officer of the Canadian Customs. The party
left Pembina on the 19th, and had a comparatively comfortable journey.
. A representative of the ‘ Despatch ’ promptly called upon the Governor to learn his version of affairs
in the politically tempestuous country from whence he came. Governor McDougall is a tall, large-
framed man, of commanding appearance, and evidently an able gentleman. He received our reporter
cordially, and, in reply to an enquiry relative to hig side of the difficulty, said he had not much to
report, as his duty was to state the situation to his Government, and there was much he would not be
Justified in now making public. A very entertaining conversation followed, wherein he gave an in-
teresting statement of affairs, of which we give an outline.

He characterized the reports sent by the correspondents at Pembina as false in many respects, and
said they were mainly gotten up by Enos Stuitsman and Joseph Lemay, who were really in the
insutrection over the border, though Americans, and living on American soil. All manner of false
reports were circulated among the Red River half-breeds, to iriduce them to take up arms against him.
Among other ridiculous reports, was one that he had killed two priests on his way up, and had insulted
the Pope and Bishop Taché, two personages he says he never saw. The Catholic Priests used their
influence against him, and more than all gave a practical turn.to the Rebellion.

He was accordingly met by a delegation when he reached the Border, and informed he must not
enter the Territory, When he did enter, he was met by.a party of twenty armed horsemen, who
made him a prisoner and escorted him back. All was done very politely, no insulting language being
used. The Governor said he was not, of course, prepared to use force. His party consisted of non-
combatants, there being ladies among them, and alsé gentlemen visiting the country, having no con-
gzitlon with the Dominion. He had, accordingly, no alternative but to return to the American

He considers that the real origin of the difficulty lies in the fact of the dissatisfaction of the Hudson
Bay Company’s agents in the Red River Territory with the division of the profits, made by the Officers
of the Company m England. This has existed for some time, and has been a source of controversy.
The English Officers finally sold their interest in_the Territory to the Dominion, without in the least
consulting their Agents at Winnipeg. The Dominion knew only the officers in England in the trans-
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fer, and could, of course, have no official communication with the Company’s Agents in the country
itself. He admits that the English Officers erred in not consulting their 'Agents at Red River, but
this was a matter over which the Dominion had not control.

In addition to this, the priesthood of the Territory were fearful that the change of Government
would be disastrous to their spiritual power, that the half-breeds, so fully under their control, would
be crowded back, and a different class of Settlers be introduced. Designing men, ambitious of political
power, made use of these agencies to stir up the revolt.

The Governor gives Colonel Stuttsman, of Pembina, credit of having organized the Insurrection, and
says he is really the brain of the movement, and Riel’s documents are sent to him before they are
issued for revision. When the Governor was captured, Colonel Stuttsman was present in a buggy
counselling and directing the movement. The (Eovemor talked with his captors, stating his inten-
tions, &c., and they were inclined to allow him to proceed to Fort Garry, but, after gathering at the
village with Stuttsman, adhered to the original order of expulsion. Stuttsman’s connection with the
affair is entirely open and unconcealed.

The English and Scotch Settlers sent the Governor word that, if he would so direct, they would take
up arms, and put down the Insurgents. The Governor shrank from taking the responsibility of causing
bloodshed among former friends and neighbours, and argued that, as no troops could be brought there
this winter, all efforts should be to prevent violence.

He did send Colonel Dennis to advise with the friendly Settlers and see what could be done. If
the diffieulty could be overcome by a show of authority, he was anxious it should be, but did not
wish to precipitate a conflict.

With this end in view, Colonel Dennis organized an armed force of about 150. He armed fifty of
what the Governor said were improperly called Swamp Indians, but who, he alleges, are civilized, and
living on and cultivating farms. These Indians were placed in possession of the Stone Fort, and told
to hold it, but instructed not to go outside. Colonel Deunnis had a small printing press, and issued a
proclamation from the Fort.

Heretofore the Insurgents had made no statement of what they desired ; but, in view of this situa-
tion of affairs, they published what they called a Bill of Rights. Many, in fact most of their requests,
would have been complied with by the New Government, if it had gone into operation, and knowing
this, Colonel Dennis arranged for a conference between them and Governor McDougall. He ordered
the Indians to disband, and return to their homes. Some Sioux Indians, who were engaged in the
Minnesota massacre and fled across the Border, learning that there was no danger of annexation,
offered their services to Colonel Dennis, but he very positively declined their aid.

When, by this strategy, the supporters of Governor McDougall were off their guard, they were
taken prisoners, some fifty in number, and taken to Fort Garry, where nearly all are still held in con-
finement. Colonel Dennis both entered and left the Territory secretly, and at one time was within
twenty feet of General Riel, but, being unknown, was not captured.

Learning, as he supposed according to Colonel Dennis’ arrangements, that Riel was coming down
to meet him, Governor McDougall sent him a private note inviting an interview. It proved that he
was not on the way down ; but the note reached Riel at Fort Garry, and though he had had it a week
when the Governor left, he had deigned no reply whatever.

It was the programme of the malcontents throughout to prevent any conference with the Governor,
a8 they feared that an explanation would result in their overthrow. Those who came individually
said they did not think the leaders of the movement would object to his assuming control, if they
understood his intentions. :

In reply to our enquiry, relative to the annexation'feeling, the Governor said he did not think
it existed to any extent. Stuttsman was anxious to bring that about, and he thought General Riel
was similarly inclined ; but the priests, who really have more control than either, were opposed to it,
because it would be disastrous to their power, as though they were governed by the Dominion.

All the Awerican officials at Perhbina were uneivil and discourteons, except the Deputy Collector
of Customs, Mr. Nelson. The-Postmaster was*notoriously in the interests of the Insurgents, and
tampered with the mails, C . : .

The Governor said, with & quiet twinkle in his eye, that there had been some remarks in relation to
his remaining upon: American s6il, but fie did not know what the people of Maine would say if residents
of Canada should. conduet an insurrection over the Border. He did not think it would be international
courtesy. He said, of course, he did not hold the Government responsible for the acts of a few
individuals. :

Another trouble was that all the Local Authorities were in sympathy with the Insurgents. The
Sheriff was one of the prominent movews, and no legal steps could be taken to put down the Insurrec-
tion, though there were never more than 150 men under arms at one time.

Governor McTavish’s illness prevented his doing anything, though it is claimed that he would have
been unable to have quelled the trouble if he had been well. .

‘When the news reached the Governgr that his Government declined to complete the purchase of
the Territory while it was in insurrection, itgplaced him in a position where he felt that he had no
authority to proceed further. His situation at Pembina being extremely unpleasant, he resolved to
return, report the situation, and ask further instructions of the Dominion Government.

As one of the results of this difficulty, he said the Dominion would abandon all idea of trade in this

" direction over our railroad lifies, but would be obliged to incur more expense than had been intended,
and open routes through their own Territory. He had made a contract with Mr. Simmons of the
North-Western Telegraph Company, to construct a line of telegraph to Fort Garry next summer, but
that would not now %e done. - ,

The Governor thinks all will be settled by spring. He met Governor Smith going up as be came
down, and also Vicar-General Thibault. :

Governor Smith is sent by the Hudson Bay Company to succeed Governor McTavish, and endeavour

M
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{OANapa, ‘to settle the trouble. The Vicar-General will urge the priests to change their course, and portray
~——  the consequences which will result from a continued revolt. These efforts, the Government thinks,
' ill be successful. . ,
" Go:ernor MecDougall joined his family in this city, whose previous arrival had been noted, and
is stopping at Park Place Hotel. He will remain here till some time next week, and is awaiting the
arrival ofiaggage from Pembina, when he will leave again for Canada. :

No. 16. _ , No. 16.

VereaTIM CopY of a TELEGRAM from the Hon. Jor~x Youne, Ottawa, to
The Earr GranviLLE, Colonial Office, London, England.

Ottawa, 2nd February, 1870.
(Received 2nd February, 1870.)

Rumours through American sources and private Letters from Fort Garry say that
Riel has been deposed, and the old Hudson Bay Company’s Government veinstated.

No. 17, No. 17.

Copy of a."lA)ESPATCH from Governor the Rt. Hon. Sir Jorx Youne, Bart., G.C.B.,
G.M.C.G., to The EarL GrANVILLE, K.G.

23 Decs (30) e Government House, Ottawa, Canada,
' - Tebruary 9th, 1870.
lsggd Feb, My Lorbp, (Received 24th February, 1870.)

- 1. I have the honour to forward herewith copies of further communications with
rveference to the North-West Territory, which complete the correspondence down to
the present date.

2. The Letter of the 24th December, from Mr. Howe to Mr. McDougall was des-
patched by a special messenger. A day or two, however, after he had left Ottawa, the
Government received news of Mr. McDougall’s departure from Pembina. The Messenger
was therefore recalled by telegraph, and the Letter handed to Mr. McDougall on his
arrival here.

3. This Letter, as your Lordship will perceive, expresses strong disapproval of certain
acts of Mr. McDougall. In justice, therefore, to that gentleman, I kept it back until I
could send you his reply along with it. But the Ministers inform me that Mr.
McDougall has not yet made any reply. Probably, he is reserving his statement for
what he deems a more fitting opportunity. However this may be, I feel that I can no
longer delay sending the correspondence to your Lordship.

4. T also enclose a Copy of a portion of the former Correspondence, which the
Ministers have published through the Papers; and extracts from Papers which give. an
account of the proceedings at Fort Garry on the 19th and 20th January. A further
Meeting was to be held on the 25th January, but we have not yet received the account

of it, :
. I have, &c. o
" The Earl Granville, K.G., ~ (Signed)  JOHN YOUNG.

&ec. &ec. &e.

Enclosnresjin‘N%; 17. % L
The SECRETABY of STATE for the PROVINCES, to the GOVERNOR-GENERAL'S SEORPAARY,
- ' | - V Department of Ségﬁretér,gdf State for the Provinces,
I have the honour to transmit, for the information of His Excellency the Governor-General,
Copy of a Despatch addressed to the Honourable William McDougall, C.B,, on the 24th instant, -
SR ‘ - ) . , I have,:&ec., ~ - - A
J. Turville, Esg., Govem%zr’s Secretary, (Signed) ~ JOSEPH HOWE,
‘ & - R, A APEEEEN | [
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: Department of Secretary of State for the Provinces,
Sm, , 4 Ottawa, 24th December, 1869.

Your Despatch, dated Pembina, 2nd December, and its Enclosures, A and B, reached this office
on tho-18th instant, and were promptly laid before the Governor-Geeneral and Council. o

As it would appear, from those documents, that you have used the Queen’s name without Her
authority, attributed to Her Majesty acts which she has mot yet performed, and organised an armed
force within the Territory of the Hucson Bay Company without warrant or instructions, I am
.commanded to assure ‘you that the grave occurrences which you report have occasioned here great
anxiety. ‘

Theyexertion of Militar% force against the misguided jpeople now in arms, even if under the sanction
of law, was not to be hastily risked, considering the fearful consequences which might ensue, were the
Indians—many of them but recently in contact with the white inhabitants of the neighbouring States
—drawn into the conflict. But, as the organization and use of such a Force by you was, uuder the
circumstances, entirely illegal, the Governor-General and Council cannot disguise from you the weight
.of responsibility you have incurred. ‘

Acting on the belief that the country would be quietly transferred, with the general assent of the
inhabitants, all the preparatory arrangements were made, as you are aware,in anticipation that on or
about the 1st of December the Territory would be surrendered by the Company to the Queen ; and

that, thereupon, Her Majesty would issue Her Proclamation, fizing a day for the union of the country

'with Canada.

The Proclamation, when officially communicated to you, would enable you, under the commission
and -authority .given in anticipation of that event, to enter legally, upon the appointed day, on the
discharge of your official duties .as Governor of the North-West. _

In-the Commission, issued on the 28th September, you were empowered to enter upon the duties of
government only “on, from, and after the day to be named ” in the Queen’s Proclamation ; and in the
Instructions handed to you with the Commission, you are directed to proceed to Fort Garry and “be
“ ready to assume the Government of the Territories on their actual transfer to Canads.”

That you clearly understood this limitation of authority was hoped from your Letter from Pembina,
of the 7th November, addressed to Governor McTavish, and -communicated to this Department, in
‘which you say, “I shall remain here until I hear officially of the transfer of authority, and shall then
“be guided by circumstances as to what I shall sayand do;” and, because in your Letter of the 14th
November, addressed to this Department, you thus refer to some “injudicious proposal made by your
friends :— The recommendation that I should issue a Proclamation .is not made for the first time;
“but I have uniformly replied that, until the transfer of the Territory has taken place,-and I am
«notified of the fact, I shall not assume any of the responsibilities of government.” _

The ful surrender of the country was assumed throughout the negotiations, and this Government
never claimed, or pretended to exercise, any -authority -within the North-West, until invested with
‘the Sovereignty by the terms of the Queen’s Proclamation. :

The transfer of the Territories would, no doubt, have been proclaimed on .or about the 1st day .of
December, had not your Report of the 31st October, and the Documents which accompanied it, changed
the whole position-of affairs,:and thrown ngon this Government grave responsibilities of .a very novel
character. In those Papers you represented that serious obstruction had been opposed to your entrance
into the country ; that a large number of persons were opposed to the establishment of the authority of
the Dominion ; -that @ Provisional Government had geen formed, and the roads barricaded and

uarded; that some of the “Catholic Clergy” were openly abetting these movements; and that the
flicers of the Hudson Bay Company, if not aiding the revolutionists, were unable to control them.

Your Despatch was received here on the 19th November; and, on the 26th, those of the 5th and
17th November came to hand, from which it appeared that the insurrectionary movements still
continued without check; that the Hudson Bay Officers were powerless; and that you had been driven
out of the country. ‘ :

The facts disclosed in those Despatches entirely changed the basis upon which the negotiation—in

rfect good faith upon the part of the Dominion—had, up to that time, been conducted with the

udson Bay'-COmpan)l'),e;and with the Tmperial Government. ' :

If, with those facts before them, the Canadian Government accepted the responsibility of goveriing,
or rather of ‘assuming the Government, & country that could only be recovered by conquest, at a vast
distance from the base of operations, and which, for many months, could only be approached throngh
the United States, they could hardly justify an ‘act of such precipitancy: to Parliament and the country;
while it 'was equally clear that, if you were invested with the legal title to govern without being able‘to
.get into Rupert’s Land, or exercise any authority, the revolutionary government would be strengthened
v%y_.yopryv ess, and would, in fact (the Proclamation having superseded Governor McTavish), be
the only Government in the Territory till put-down by the force of arms. o T

It was a matter of necessity then, rather than of choice, to delay the issue of the Queen's Proclama-
,ggn,, ;airid it was assumed here that ‘the necessity would be as apparent.to you as.it was to the Privy

110l . ' T - ’ . ’ B N

To postpone the surrender by the Company until it was able to transfer not only its own rights but
the Territory itself to Her Majesty, to stay the issue of the Queen’s Proclamation, and to leave with the
Hudson Bay Company and the Imperial Government the obligation of enforcing order, and assertin
the rights of the Sovereign, was the first duty of this Government, and the Governor-General and
Council had hoped that this would be as obvious to you as to them. ‘

They had another duty, and to that they addressed themselves without delay. It was to disabuse
the .minds of the peogﬁe of Rupert’s Land ‘of the erroneous impressions under which there was too
-much reason to fear that they had acted, and to restore tranquillity by peaceful means, The measures
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taken with this view were explained to you in my Despatches of the 19th and 29th November, and of
the 7th, 8th, 10th, 11th, and 17th December. In none of these Despatches will there be found any
warrant or authority for the proceedings reported in your Despatch of the 2nd December. It is to be
regretted that they had not reached you sooner, but the sanguine hope is entertained here that if no
co%lrisions have taken place, or blood been shed, till you have read those Despatches, and conferred
with the gentlemen wﬁo have been sent to the Red River, matters inay yet wear a more cheerful
aspect, and the government of the Territory be assumed with some guarantee for order, and with all
the formalities of law. Whether this hope is realised or not your duty is plain, and I am commanded
by His Excellency to instruct you to remain at Pembina until you can get peaceable access to Fort
Garry, with the assent and under the protection of the Tiudson Bay Company’s authorities, that you
are to take every means of removing the misapprehensions that exist in the minds of the residents, by
explanation and otherwise, and that you are to exercise no acts of authority on behalf or in the name
of the Government of Canada until officially informed that the Queen’s Proclamation has issued, and
until you shall have assumed the Government and taken the oaths of office, on or after the day fixed
in it for the union of the countries. - '

As the course of action proposed by you in your Despatch of the 2nd of December was to be carried
out before an answer could possibly reach you. I have delayed reBlying for some days, in order to
lear, if possible, the result of your policy ; bat the receipt of your Despatch of the 6th instant, which
reached me on the 28:d, wit]}a' its enclosures 2 A, 2 B, and 2 C, and the course taken by Colonel
Dennis, as described in those papers, make it necessary without further delay to send this Despatch by
8 gpecial messenger. ‘ : Ce K

wish I could inform you that this Report hiad entirely relieved the Governor-General and Council
from the anxiety already expressed. It is true that no blood had been shed up to the 6th, and you
had not carried out your intention of occupying the stockade near Pembina with an armed party ;- but
the proceedings of Colonel Dennis, as reported by himself, are so reckless and.extraordinery that
there can be mo relief from solicitude here while an officer so imprudent is acting under your
authority. : : oo '

Had tie inhabitants of Rupert’s Land, on the breaking out of the disturbances, risen and put an end
to them, or had Governor McTavish organised a force to occupy his forts and maintain his authority,
all would have been well, and Riel and his people would have been responsible for any bloorlshed, or
property, destroyed. But Colonel Dennis, with no legal authority, proceeds to seize a-fort then in

ession, not of the insurgents, but of the Hudson Bay Company, and to garrison it with a mixed
orce of whites and Indians, and proposes to give battle to the insurgents, should a junction be formed
with some forces which he has ordered to be drilled on the Assiniboine. He appears never to have
thought that the moment war commenced all the white inhabitants would be at the mercy of the
Indians, by whom they are largely outnumbered, and, divided as they would be, might be easily
overpowered. .

Itpis impossible to read the Colonel’s account of his attempt to persuade Judge Black to aid him in
proclaiming martial law without strong feelings of regret that you should have been represented in the
settlements by a person with sc little discretion. It 1s no wonder that Judge Black was “ frightened ”’
at the proposal, as he must have known that Colonel Dennis would have to answer at the bar of
Jjustice for every life lost by such an assumption of authority, and that the illegal seizure of.an
American citizen, would at once provoke interference in the quarrel and lead to very serious
-complications, : : . :

I have, &e., s
‘ (Signed) Josera HOWE. - -
Hon. Wm., McDougall, C.B., Pembina. ) _Secretary of State for the Provinces.
( No.8 )

Ottawa, 20th January,-1870.
I have the honour to transmit herewith the Report of Col. Dennis (A 8), detailing his proceed-
ings in the Red River Settlement from the 1st to the 10th December, under instructions from me,
which I supposed I had authority under my commission to issue.. The copies of the papers referred to
in this Report did not reach me until yesterday, in'consequence of the illness of Col. Dennis, from an
injury he received on his journey from Pembina. ‘ T

SIR,

I have also received and enclose herewith (B 8) Colonel Dennis’ final Report, detailing the arrange-
ments he made for storing and disposing of the supplies, &c., collected at the Stone Fort, and his' visit
to theSioux, who were said to be making preparations f01:‘[ “l-lar on gheir own account. = . T -

o : . B ave,&c., . 07 T 0
The Hon. Joseph Howe, Secretary of State (Signed) . 'Wwu. McDoveazr. -
c for the Provinces. - . = - , ot
: &C., “ b—l &Ci’, E . &C.
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" TRecord of Proceedings under Commission from Lieutenant-Governor McDougaALL, dated
1st December, 1869.
Wednesday, December 1st.

Arrived at Mr. William Hallett’s, on the Assiniboine, at five o'clock oM. Sent messengers for
Mr. James Mackay and Mr. Robert Tait, with whom and Mr. Hallett discussed the present situation of
affairs in the Settlement. Read them the Proclamation of 1st December and my Commissioners.
Explained to them that my orders from Mr, McDougall were to ascertain the state of feeling at the
present time among the loyal people, and should it be found such as'to warrant the belief that an
appeal with a view of organizing a force to put down the malcontents would be responded to in such
& manner a8 to leave little or no doubt of & avourable issue, I was to make such an appeal, organise a
force, and put down the outbreak. On the other hand, should there be any doubt in my mind as to
the result, I was not to make any call, but return to Pembina and report accordingly.

Learned that the English-speaking delegates were to attend a meeting of the French Council called
for to-day, to make kmnown the result of a reference to the several parishes of the French proposition
to form a Provisional Government. It was said this result would show a majority of some hundreds
over the French party. Mr, Tait said he intended being present at the meeting, and I gave him a
copy of the Proclamation, with the understanding that he would have it read on the occasion.

r. Hallett was decided in his opinion that the English-speaking people would now eagerly turn out
to put down the emeufe. The other two gentlemen agreed with him that the people were not disposed
to tolerate any longer the rule of that party, but feared the result of any appeal to arms would be
certain ruin to men of property, whose stock, crops, &c., the French would be sure to destroy. They
admitted at the same time, that there would be no other course open if the French insisted on
establishing their Provisional Government. :

The interview at Mr, Hallett’s over, Mr. Tait drove me down 1o the town of Winnipeg.

1 found Dr. Schultz and the rest of the loyal party in the village, in a condition of much anxiety in
regard to the immediate future. The French party had, a day or two previously, pointed two six-
pounder ‘guns on Dr. Schuliz’s house, and the men stood with port-fires lit ready to fire into his
Premises, in consequence of the Doctor’s refusal to hand over to Riel’s possession the provisions in his
charge belonging to the Canadian Government., Riel, however, thought better of it, and finding that
the Doctor was not to be intimidated, withdrew the guns.

Public feeling was in a very excited state. Both printing offices had been seized, and were in
possession of Riel's party ; Mr. Grant, however, of my office, aided by a number of other Canadian
gentlemen, ‘made a lot of manuscript copies, which were distributed during the afternoon and
evening, some being despatched to Prairie Portage and others posted up in the town of Winnipeg.

Called on the Bishop, Archdeacon McLean, Mr. James Ross, Rev. Mr, Black, Judge Black and
others, in the Lower Settlement. Mr. Rose and the Rev. Mr. Black, of Skidmore, were not in when 1
called, nor did I see Judge Black, who was up at Fort Garry. * * » *. @ * *
1 learned that Major Boulton, of Mr. Hart's surveying staff, had been in communication with these
gentlemen ; that men had been enrolled and had commenced to drill at several places in the settle~
ment. -

I met, at the Rev. Mr. Gardiner’s, in the Parish of St. Andrews, Archdeacon Cowley of St. Peter’s,
below the Stone Fort. Both these gentlemen had previously given proof of a strong desire to assist
in bringing in and establishing the Government. =Their opinion agreeing with:those previously
expressed ; and furthermore, having had the assurance from Mr. William Dease, who represents the
loyal French, at whose house I passed a couple of hours last evening on my way to Fort Garry, that
over ninety men of that party could be relie(;) on to fight alongside of the loyal English and Scotch for
the establishment of order, I concluded it to be a duty under my commission to makc the call,
satisfied that there was every prospect that it would be very generally responded to. I may say here
that in answer to my question, Mr. Dease informed me that he did not think that the reliable men in
Riel’s party would exceed three hundred in number. ‘

Under the conviction that the Insurgents would seize upon the Stone Fort, so soon as my arrival
-in the Settlement, and the nature of my orders became known, I proceeded on to that point, arriving
about 6 o'clock P.M. - A guard was raised for the night through the exertions of. * * *
* * * o few other loyal people, who sent messengers through this part of the Settle-
ment. . The locality, considering the short notice, turned out very well. The parish of St. Peter’s
particularly, in which the people consist for the most part of civilized and christianized Indians, under
the Rev. Archdeacon Cowley and Mr. Cochrane, and who acknowledged Henry Prince as their Chief,
were prompt in-responding. By the morning there were about 120 men in the Fort, a majority of
whom came from below. A num{mr of young men, some forty in all, had been in the habit for several
days back of assembling for drill in one of the Company’s stores here; the drill-instructor being Mr.
William Durie, a Military School Cadet, also of Mr. ﬁart’s surveying party, who had been working in
this part :of the Settlement. These men also had remained in the %’ort for the night. I read the
Proclamation, having assembled those in the Fort for the purpose, which was well received, and also
explained the object of the present call upon them, and desired that they should make the same
known as widely as possible. ‘

Thursday, 2nd December.

I find that many of the men are deficient of arms, and those who have arms have only the
trading gun.. Have sent requisitions to whatever points I have reason to believe arms are to be
obtained, but anticipate that. before sufficient can be had will have to send from house to house

through the Settlement.

Canava.
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Despatched a messenger to Mr. Hart and party to cease surveying operations, and join me to assist
in organising. Reported my arrival and occupation of the Stone Fort to Governor McTavish,
mentioning the object of such occupation, and enclosing him also 2 copy of my Commission. Com-
munication with the officer named 18 with much difficulty effected, as no letters are permitted, if
known, to pass in or out of Fort Garry. .

Sent for Major Boulton, who has been very active lately assisting the people to organise, and gave
him definite instruction as to -enrolment. With his aid, together with that of Mr. Inkster for St.
Jobn's, Mr. Gardiner for St. Andrew’s, Mr. Bunn for Mapleton and St. Peter, divided the parishes into
Company districts, fixing the central points in-each for meeting to drill. . ]

" Some twenty-one Canadians reported themselves in a body from the town of Winnipeg this evening,
and enrolled their names, They tell me the Canadians in -the town number about thirty, and are all
apxious to serve. 1 have therefore instructed Dr. Lynch, a Military School Cadet, to enrol a company
in Winnigeg, to be made up of Canadians and other meu in the vicinity. 'As the Canadians are all
more or less acquainted with drill, I directed Dr. Lynch simply to organise, and then let the men
remain quietly in their usual lodgings until further orders. Their presence tliere in that way, baving
fully instructed them to avoid being any cause of offence to the French, it seemed to me could be no
cause of jrritation, and the knowledge that they were there might tend to preveni any outrage on
person or_property of loyal people in the town. The enrolment here 1 placed under Mr. William
Dwire, and charged Mr. A. N. Muckle, Military School Cadet, with that duty in the upper part of St.
Andrew’s and the north end of St. Paul's. XKildonan and the south end of St. Paul's I entrusted to
Mr. Cowland, an English volunteer officer. ,

Judge Black was with me for several hours during the day.

Sent Captain Webb, a Canadian volunteer officer and M.S.C, who was surveying up the
Assiniboine, full instructions to cease surveying, and with the staff of his party, who are all
cadets, proceed to Prairie Portage and organise a force of four companies there. "When organised,
equipped, and provisioned, to advise me express and await orders—drilling industriously in the
meantime.

Assembled Chief Prince’s men in :the Fort to-day. * * * . F
* * * * * * * The Proclamation was read and explained

by * * * to the men in Indian; it was also read in English, manyof the men having a fair
understanding of that language ; after which 1 explained, as interpreted by * * * the manner
in which the country ha(ﬁ)ecome connected with Canada, and tge object of the incoming Govern-
ment. They all seemed loyally disposed, cheering heartily for the Queen, and those of them who had
guns firing them off with evident enthusiasm, ‘

Knovwing the views of the Lieut.-Governor to be opposed to the employment at the present time of
the Indians in putting down the Insurgents, and such being my own feelings also, while at the same
time it would not be politic to dampen the dawning loyalty of these men by refusing iheir services
entirely, I made the Chief select fifty of his best men to come into the Iyort, a8 a guard. I have
explained to him that neither he nor his men will be called upon to fight excepting in case the Fort
is attacked, and as he is an intelligent man I made him acquainted with the reasons. He expressed
himself-as perfectly satisfied, and deft me with his pride evidently gratified by being entrusted with the

.service, The rest of his men I paid and sent limme, having thanked them in the name of the
Government for their promptness in turning ouf. o

Wrote to the Lieutenant-Governor (see letter to him of this date). Mr. Dease and Dr. Schultz
were with me during the evening. Mr. Desse still sanguine as to the stand which will be faken by

-the loyal French. . ‘ o ‘ _ o

The printing presses in the town remaining in the armed custody of the French, sent Mr, Laurie,
8 practical printex, up to Winnipeg for s-small hand press and type, gent by Dr. Schultz. .

Friday, December 3rd.

 Made inspection of the Fort, investigating conténts of magazine, &e. Crdered ‘removal of some
Jarge Hudson Bay boats, which had -been laid up for winter, close'to outside of ‘Fort walls. Diretted
bastions to-be clegred out. Made working ‘drawings of a ‘sled for mounting & brass six ﬁbundeﬂgun
found in a corner 'of ove of the stores. Gave order for this sled to:be built by Mr. Avel, the
Company’s engineer at Lower Fort. '

The return ‘of men enrolled in the several ‘gm’shes, é{ving ‘s’ satisfactory assurance that ‘the
‘requisite force would be raised, I gave orders ‘for ‘the delivery of beef and other supplies to be
stored in the Fort, Mr. Hart, P.LS., an excellent man of business, was appointed quarter-master,
and ‘entered at ouce upon lis duties. The hand printing-press having arrived this morning, ‘Mr.
Laurie set up and- printed the Proclamation, & ntumber-of which were ‘at once distributed- through
-the Settlement. ' - : 4 e

There would -appear to ‘bave been a good ‘deal of excitement in the town of Winnipeg :last
night, judging from :a ‘note received from Dr. Schultz, in which ‘he states that: his ‘premiges were
‘entered about midnight by Riel, with twenty-four men; -but -having delayed a few hours:at-Mr.
Jobn Tait’s on his way up, lie thus escaped being made “prisoner. He-states also 'that sesrch was
made throughout the town for Dr. Brown, but Brown had escaped, and was in hiding, where no
one appeared to know.

About, the ‘middle of the day, Dr. Brown arrived, in company with Mr. Stewart Mulkins, of my
office, in a room over which he. (Brown) had been concealed during last night, and had escaped
‘détééﬁlbp;’altﬁéﬁ‘ih th"e‘tﬁ’femisés had been searched by Riel and'hisparty. -~ =~ 4
.. Wrote Dr. Schulti; that ‘the 'Canadians in Wininipeg 'were o' keep ‘perfectly quiet; and “réiain
‘in'their lodgings, and “ntt to ‘invite either by word ‘or déed, aily attack Troln ‘the’ French' to béar
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even insult without resenting it, not to fire upon any of the insurgents without Leing first fired upon.
1 represented to him that a collision at present would, in consequence of our not being fully prepared,
possibly result disadvantageously.

Wrote Governor McTavish, asking orders to receive such arms as were at the following posts of
the Company, viz., 1st. Fort Alexander; 2nd. White Horse Plains; 8rd, Prairie Portage; 4th, Oak
Point, Manitobah. In. the evening received his reply, marked «B.” '

Received numerons calls from people in the Settlement, expressing a strong desire to co-operate in
putting down the French now in ¥ort Garry. ‘

Learning that Mr. Boyd, of Boyd and Inkster, had a larﬁe supply of powder, a lot of arms, stock of
blankets, and a considerable quantity of beef; sent an order for them, and they arrived during the
day; the guns were at once distributed among the men who were deficient in arms, I also made it
}énown thattwhetever there were any spare arms, I wished them sent to the Fort for the use of the

overnment.

Saturday, December 4th.

Received & note from Dr. Schultz this morning, in which he states that a number of the enrolled
Canadians and others collected at his house last evening, it is presented on his request, anticipating
a possible attack upon his property and the Government provisions in his charge.  That in the course
of the night, bodies of men of the French party repeatedly made their appearance around the outside

of his house and premises, evidently inviting attack from the party inside. That they repeatedly -

adjourned for liquor to O’Lone’s saloon. That they were there harangued by Riel ; finally, that they
came to the front of his bouse, went through various manceuvres, detaching parties to the rear, &c.,
and then went off to the Fort, leaving the Doctor and his party, between one and two o'clock A,
unmolested. ~

From the occurrences of last night it is evident to me, that a very critical condition of affairs exists
at Winnipeg. A single shot which may be fired by eithellhparty would precipitate possible deplorable
resulis. As yet the force [ am organising is not, nor will it be probably in a condition to justify a
collision for ten or twelve days. 1 shall, therefore, give orders to the Canadians to withdraw from
‘Winnipeg, and with that view bave written to order, & copy of which is marked “A 1.” Wrote also
instruciions to Major Boulton on this subject, marked “A 2" Wrote also Dr. Schultz to same effect
(see copy marked <A 3.”)

» * * * * * * * *

Towards evening, Mr. James McKay and a Mr. Nolin, a French half-breed, arrived, bringing a copy
of the French List of Rights—the first I had seen—and stating, that their object was, as indi-
viduals, anxious to see peace restored, to ascertain how far I could put them in position to assure
the French party that these Rights would be granted by Mr. McDongall.

1 explained to them, that I could §ive no assurance whatever—that I could only say that some of
those ¢ Rights ” as they were called, I had reason to believe it was the Grovernor’s intention to have
embodied 1n his policy, but that others of them could not in my opinion be allowed.

Mr. McKay begged that the order to arm on the part of the restof the Settlement, should be
delayed further, as his belief still wag that matters could be settled amicably, and represented in
strong language the outrages that would ensue owing to the savage and revengeful instinets of these
men in_case of hostilities. He expressed the opinion that if blood were shed in the Settlement,
Mr. McDougall and his family at Pembina, would be murdered; and further, that even at the present
time my own life was in danger from assassination, and cautioned me from what had come to his
knowledge to be very careful in my movements outside of the Fort, :

With regard to the prospect of a peaceful settlement, he said he was convinced that even now,
if the French party could be satisfied that Mr. McDougall actually held a parchment Commission
under the Great Seal, and that he had been duly sworn into office as Lieutenant-Governor, they
would no longer oppose his entry into the Settlement. ' '

I then %a.ve Mr. McKay the Memorandum marked “A 4,” and he and Mr. Nolin left the Fort,
sanguine that my proposition might lead to the disbanding of the French, :

© Mr. Alexander McKenzie, of Mapleton Parish, a Scotch half-breed, who had formerly been for
‘some. years the master of o post in the Hudson Bay service, was introduced to me to-day, and
expressed his willingness to enrol a company in that parish, and I gave him the requisite authority.
ceived note from Major Boulton, marked “¥;” also another from Dr. Schultz, marked “ F.”

| ! Supday, December 5th.

Sent. up orders for enrolment of a company in St. James, also one in Headingly, that for the
latter being enclosed to Rev. J. Carrie (see Mr. Carric’s note previously reneived, marked «G,”
enclosed with Mr. Carrie’s letter to me, was an address of welcome from inhabitants of High
Bluff, Assiniboine, to Lieutenant-Governor, marked “ G. H."”) ,

Mr. Joseph Marion, French half-breed of the loyal party, * * S *
* * '* and who:had been"sént to. Prairie Portage with Mr. Farmer, to post the Proclamation

on:ithe’1st, arrived: during the day. Sent him up to Mr. Dease’s, directing the latter to have his

men armed and await.orders. . ' . ‘

- Received- a-second: letter from Major Bouiton,:marked “L” This oﬁicer and Mr. Spow cp,lled ‘

in the evening,—~Mr. Snow very desirous. to.have Canadisns allowed. to remain. in Winnepeg to
ﬁuml Government provisions, &c. 'I told him that whoever staid there .after-the orders that 1

ad’ given, -assumad: the gesponaibﬂitﬁ,:that as. representing. the. Government, I did. not desire a
guard continued on the provisions at the risk of its causing a collision at the present time,

Canapa,
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'Mohday, Decembér Gth. :

It having been represented that the response would be more complete if I would make a public
call, and accompany it with evidence that all could see as to my authority, I put the same in
type yesterday, on the C. M. S. press coming to hand, and to-day it was printed and distributed
(see copy marked “ K 1.”) | g -

Received letter from Major Boulton as to state of affairs at Winnipeg, marked “K.”: .At once
wrote and sent off- peremptory orders, reiterating those-of the 4th inst, for the Canadians to.
leave the town (see copy marked “K 2.”) ‘ : .

Wrote Mr. James Ross, in reply to his note (copy marked “XK 4.”) Reply marked “K 3.7 '

Understanding that Mr. Grant, of Sturgeon Creek had a small howitzer—wrote him, -sending &
messenger for it. S o

Judge Black was with me for an hour or two to-day. Mr. Sutherland, a member .of the
Counci% of the Colony, and an officer of the Kildonan Company, with Mr. McBeth, called also..
Mr. Sutherland seemed strongly of opinion, that if I would meet the French Council, it might
result in their sending 'a delegation to the Lieutenant-Governor. I expressed my willingness to
do so, and be left with the understanding that he was to see the French leaders to-morrow mon-

. ing, and if possible, arrange for a meeting.

Tuesday, December' Tth.

" Last evening, about eight o'clock, a Mr. Alexander Black and his wife called upon me. _

Mrs. Black had been up to town to consult Dr. Schultz professionally, and had iiad much diffi-
culty, so she informed me, in getting into the village, and still more in getting access to the:
Doctor, in consequence of close investment of the place, and particularly of the house of the
latter, by the French party. , I S

She brought a verbal message from Dr. Schultz to me, as he told her he was afraid to trust a
letter, to the effect that some forty Canadians were in a state of siege in his house. That they
could not go out either to get food, wood, or water, and bgg%ed for help. This, it is clear, would
not have occurred, had my previous orders, repeatedly given for the Canadians to leave the town,
been obeyed. My force in the Settlement was not as yet organised, and not having heard so far
from Captain Webb, I felt that the crisis was one involving very grave consequences,

Thinking, however, of the moral effect on the object I had in view, should the Canadians be
captured, it seemed a duty to relieve them if possible, and believing, as Mrs. Black said, the French
in the town were not more than fifty in number, that on the mere appearance of a considerable body
of men coming up from the direction of the Lower Fort, the French guard would fall back on Fort
Garry, and so leave time for the besieged party to come out and return with us, and that the relief
could be effected in this way, without necessarily having had a collision, I determined on that course.

About forty men of the Company, the headquarters of which are at the Stone Fort, were drilling at.
the time, and expressed their readiness to go, and I then got & sleigh and drove up the Settlement to
gather, if possible, sixty additional volunteers from among the enrolled men, believing that I should
have little or no difficulty in getting that number in St. Andrew’s. I found, however, that the
requisite force would not be forthcoming. Indeed, there appeared to me to be an entire absence of
the ardour which existed previously. Some of the leading men in St. Andrew’s, who are filling the
E{):ition of officers in the two companies in this parish, viz., Mr. 1. Gunn, Mr. Joseph MecDonald,

. Thomas_Sinclair, met me at the Rev. Mr. Gardiner’s, and it became evident that the project for

I expressed a conviction that some agency was at work which had produced a change in the feelings
of the people, and the gentlemen present agreeing with me, remarked, that it might probably be ac-
counte&) for by the distribution, through the parishes, during yesterday, of the French “List of
“ Rights, It was stated that up to the time of the dissemination of this document, no one but
themselves knew what the demands of the malcontents were, and now that they had been pub-
lished, some of them proving reasonable in their character, and the whole accompanied by ex-

ressions of a willingness to send a deputation to Pembina, to treat with the Lieutenant-Governor,
1t might readily be conceived that the effect on the rest of the people would be to make them
less jealous of French domination, and more hopeful of seeing peace brought about by other means.
than by a resort to arms. o o o L

Returned to the Fort at 2 A.M, finding a messenger had arrived during my‘absehce,Ab‘ringihg

from the Lieutenant-Governor a Proclamation, directing the former officials of the Colony to con-

tinue to discharge their several duties, as previous to the first instant. As the messenger returned
at_once, I wrote the Lientenant-Governor hurriedly in retum,giving an account of ttie changed
Situation, and the "evident effect of the French «List. of Rights,” a- copy of which, as also a copy
of note received from Mr. James Ross, I enclosed with letter. . ~: . =~ - .~ AT
“Sent off at 3 A.M. & verbal message to be conveyed, if  possible, to the besieged party, telling them
oﬁ my iﬁlisbﬂity to relieve them, and that if ‘obliged to surrender, they must only get the best terms.
they could. ‘ ! ' I R I NN 1
" Desiring “to’ investigate further the evident change in the feeling: of ‘the ‘pedple: in re%ard ‘to

aggressive measures, I drove up to the Rev. Mr. Black’s, and convened a meeting ‘there of;leading
men in the Scotch Settlement. There were present Judge Black, Rev. Mr. Black; Mr. James Ross,
Mr. Berfiard Ross, Chief Factor, H. B..C., Mr.: Sutherland, Meémber - of - Council,  Messrs.; Jobn and
‘William' Fraser; also members of the Council, and Mr. Polson.::.. = = CNICE LI .

drillywould-be to act strictly on' the defensive. . Indeed, I.was informed that & public:meeting held in
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the vicinity, had just broker up, at which delegates were appointed to visit me at the Stone Fort,
without delay, to request that agzressive measures might for the present be abandoned. This attitude
on their part, just at the present time, strengthened the conclusion I had come to as to the change in
sentiment of the people of the lower parishes.

A strong desire was expressed by those present that I should agree, if the Rebels were willing, to
meet their Council, and see if communication could be opened up with the Lieutenant-Governor, in
hopes that it might bring about peace. :

explained that Mr. Sutherland was authorized by me last evening to see the leaders of the French
party, and arrange for such meeting this morning, Mr. Sutherland said there was so much excitement
among them all n reference to the seizing of Dr. Schult’s house, that he had found it impossible to
-get an interview with Riel. It was settled then that Mr. Sutherland should arrange such meeting, if
possible, to-morrow morning, and, in any case, let me know what had been done in that direction.

Taken altogether, it appears to me probable that the resort to arms to put down the French party at
the present time must be given up. I shall not, however, discontinue the drill going on in the several
parishes, believing that such will not be without good moral effect on probable negotiations.

‘While at the meeting at Mr. Black’s, the town was represented as being in a state of great excite-
ment; and, before I left, news came that the Canadian party had been obliged to surrender, and were
taken to Fort Garry as prisoners.

As regEg.rds this unfortunate affair, there was no force with which the party could have been relieved ;
and the French, being in overpowering numbers, there was no alternative but to surrender; indeed, it
was an act of folly their remaming there to be made prizoners of, as I have reason to believe they
could have made their escape a few hours previously, without danger or difficulty (see Major Boulton’s
re%c{rt on this subject, marked « L.”)

' My constant anxiety since issuing my first orders, on. Saturday last, for them to leave the town, has
been to get them away quietly, feeling that at any hour, through their indiscretion, the entire objects
of the Government might have been frustrated.

A young gentleman, Mr. Mulkins, belonging to one of the surveying parties, and whom I sent up to
Fort Garry during the forenoon to convey 2 message in connexion with the besieged Canadians, I
learned had also been taken prisoner, and confined with Dr. Schultz’s party. )

‘While at Mr. Black’s, Mr. Caldwell arrived from the town, bringing a Copy, in French, of what may
be styled a * Declaration of Independence,” and bearing, unmistakably the mark of American manu-
facture. Mr. Caldwell said he had been forced to print it; that the French were not satisfied with
keeping his press from him, but, in addition, forced Yum to work for them by threats from armed men
who were placed in possession. :

‘Wednesday, December 8th.

Received a Letter from Bishop Macrae this moming (see Copy marked “N”). This Letter,
evidently, corroborates the fact of the change of sentiment among the people. This is further
strengthened by the remarks of people who called upon me; these, however, I observe, are few in
number compared with those of last week. In the course of the day received another Letter from the
Bishop, marked « Q,” in which his Lordship is joined by Archdeacon McLean, in begging that no
aggressive measures may be taken. It is unnecessary to say that measures of this character are out of
the question, as the people.evidently will not sustain them at present.

ﬁiPrini:ed. and distributed the Lieutenant-Governor’s Proclamation, confirming the former officials in
office. :
Have heard nothing as yet from Mr. Sutherland regarding the prospect of a meeting with the
French Council. :

Thursday, December 9th.

Having become convinced that it is useless longer to entertain any expectation of being enabled to
et a reliable force with which to put down the party in arms, decided to abandon the call upon the
%Hsh—speaking eople, and take advantage of the disposition of the French, as expressed by them, to
send Delegates to iieutenanb—Governor, and so withdraw from a situation which the change in senti-
ment during the last few days has rendered a false one. I therefore, this morning, issued a notification,
" marked “P,” sending a manuscript Copy early in the day to Mr. Bannatyne, at Winnipeg, with a note
(see Copy, marked “ K 5 ”), asking him to lay it before the French Council.
. Shall getain Chief « Prince,” ang his fifty men, to guard the Fort for a few days until events further
develop themselves. . : : " A
In couise of day received Copy of French “ Declaration of Independence,” marked “R.” Received,
this evening, Joseph Marion’s ‘Letter, containing message from Mr. Dease,-marked “S8;” by it the
French party, it will be seen, have also determined to act only on the defensive. - ‘
. Gave orders to cease drill ‘and stop receipt of any further supplies. ' ) o
_Gave Major Boulton orders to go to Prairie Pbrta‘ﬁe and stop -the drilling there; also to convene a
Council of the Indians in that neighbourhood, particularly of the Sioux, whoI’have been informed, are
disposed to anticipate a call from the Government, by making war on the French party, and tell them
to e:qlligt.v~ RPN Vel . ST e - ‘ | N
* No'coinmunication has, as yet, reached me from Captain Webb, and the only conclusion I can arrive
at is, that his message has been intercepted. - : ‘ S

~ Two of the chief warriors of Henry Prince’s Band were introduced by him to-day. = There were the

i

usual protestations of loyalty to the Queen, and readiness to fight her enemies. These men live up on-
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the Red River, in the disaffected district, and say that their families are in fear of the French half-

breeds. . S

To do the Indians justice, they will, I believe, be found loyal to the Government throughout. the
Territory. - o ,

Messrz. Arkland and Elwood arrived from Winnipeg to-day. They report the French continuing to
arrest Canadians wherever they find them, and that even they themselves, although having taken no.
part, feel that they may be arrested any moment. They bring no news regarding. the. imprisoned
Canadians, but report that the French have commenced the search for and taking possession of, arms
in private houses, asserting their intention of going through the Settlement for that purpose..

ported to the Lieutenant-Governor sending this Record up to the present time; and stating: my
intention to join him at Pembina at an early day ; and trusted the Papers to two of Henry Prince’s
Indians, selected by him for that: purpose.

I have, &e. ) )
Hon. William McDougall, CB., : - , (Signed). J.S.DENIS. .
- &e. &e. &e, Lieutenant and Conservator of the Peace.
: in and for the N.W. Territories..

( B& )
Pembina, December 17th, 1869.

I have the honour to report my arrival at this place on the evening of the 15th instant, having
come from Prairie Portage across the Plains. '

Having received, on the evening of the 10th instant, a message from Mr. Sutherland, to say that.
there ‘was no prospect of getting the French leaders to agree to a.meeting, I decided to leave the
following day to report to you in person, in accordance. with my instructions, and completed the
necessary arrangements, engaging a guide, &c. &e..

In informing Mr. Hart as to my intentions, I.directed bim to pay off Chief “Prince,” and his Band,
the day of my leaving, and vacate the Fort. With regard to the supplies which had been obiained,
the provisions, Mr. Hart was given to understand, would. be taken and credited in. account by the.
Hudson Bay Cempany. '

All blankets issued were to be collected and stored. The arms and ammunition which had been
distributed, where the parties were reliable men, to be allowed to remain in possession, individual
receipts being given therefor, as being held subject to Government order. The powder and bullets
whieh had been called in I directed Mr. Hart to say to the parties from whom obtained, that they were
at-their service again, not being required. by the Government; that if thought safer at the Magazine
at-the Fort, they could remain there till expedient te be removed.. o

. I directed Mr. Hart to return to the survey upon: which he had previously been engaged, advising
him not to go beyond the limits of the English portion of the Settleraent. At the same sime, I .fear
he:may have been interrupted, and, possibly, arrested by the French party. ‘

During the night a report reached me that a body of Sioux, said to be 500, were on their way to the
Settle];(ment, and had got as far as Poplar Point, bent upon commencing; war “upon their own
“ hook.” , ' .

Believing that matters in the Red River Settlement were sufficiently complicated without adding in
a raid‘from the Sioux ; and. fearing that, should the report have had good foundation, Major Boulton,
who left at 4 A.M. on the 10th instant, might not meet the “war party,” as he was to go straight.
through to the Portage by the “ Gros Isle,” I decided to investigate the matter, and, if the report proved
true, to use my best endeavours to turn the Indians back, and thus prevent a calamity in which, probably,
French and English might all be involved. I therefore left the Fort at 2 A.M., changed horses at the
town. of Winnipeg, -and. drove through, without. meeting interruption of any kind, to Poplar Point,
arriving at Mr. Geoxge Taylor's about 1 p. m. . o

At DEr Taylor’s I met Captain Webb, and Mr. Newcombe, actively engaged in connection with.the
Gompany, which had its-head-quarters at this point. ' o

. Captain Webb handed me his Report (see Copy herewith, dated 11th December), which he had.
prepared, and was intending to send-off to-day. o ‘ : R

I found about 100 Lodges of .Sioux encamped here and between here and Prairie Portage; and at
the time:of my arrival Major Boulton, .who reached this point the evening previous, and at once.acted
upon the orders given him, was holding a Council with them, at which “Little Fox,” Head Chief of
the Cree nation, was also.present.. ~ = .. , o ,

-{The reports:which had - reached the Settlement. as to-the Sioux were entirely without foundation.
They asserted themselves.as-on.the'Government.side, but said,they had had no intention .of “ making:

SIR, -

““war” without being first asked to do'so-by thé Governor. -

« Little Fox,” wha visited me at Mr. Taylor’s, after.the Council, is & man.of considerable mind, and
may be fully.relied on as.loyal. He'is much respected.by both whites and Indians; and, indépendent.
of* he %introlﬂhe-has:over his own people,-has a.great deal of influence with the Sioux, and other tribes
of the Plains, ‘ N o o

-Major: Boulton, 4t my request, distributed some presents to. the:Chiefs, dividing among, them, also, a
small supply of provisions. L L : o ‘ T

Wishing to call on the leading people at High Bluff and the POrt'age, to explain‘the reason whythe
movement was to be given up, I continued my journey, and called, during the afternoon, on some of
the principal men"at the first-named place, who took part in the address to the Lieutenant-Governor,
and who'have latierly identified'themselves: with- theVdlunteertmovement., - RS
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Mr. Hamilton, M.S.C., under Captain Webb, was zealously drilling the Company here, and reported
very favourably of the men. . T -
Arrived at the Portage at 6 p. M. * o * . . . .
In view of abandoning the call, it is fortunate that Captain Webb had, so far, accumulated no
surplus supplies. The beef and flour, not more than a barrcS or two was presented to the “Fox” and
the Sioux. - I gave:Captain Webb instructions similar to those of Mr, Hart as to blankets, guns, and
ammunition. ‘
1t was.evident that the abandonment of the mavement did not meet with much favour in that
Settlement ; the numbers of men enrclled, however, were only ninety-nine, and alone would have been
insufficient to.effect anything of consequence. '
~ The Force altogether orgarized, and, more or less, drilled under my commission, stands very neaily as

Jollows :—

No. Head Qunrteré. Officers. Mea. Appml;ir;lmlaﬁ. Days’
1 Stone Fort ., - 3 71 4%
2 .St. Andrew’s 3 50 3
3 ' St, Paul’s 3 35 1
4 Kildonan o 3 74 3}
g ;Vn;nip:)g_(s;lpposed) 3 a0 uengin or DriL
oplar Poin .
7 High Bluff ., . . . . .8 32 4
- 8 Portage La Prairie .. . o . 3 36 4
Chief Prince and Men . 1 50 10
' ' i 25 419 Average 4-days.

Gave Captain Webb instructions similar to those of Mr. Hart as to continuing the survey through
the present winter. His operation, however, will necessarily be limited to that part of the Settlement
from Poplar Point to Prairie Portage. .

Finding that a guide could be obtained to take me direct from the Portage to Pembina, I made the
necessary arrangements, and left the following morning at 7 A. M.

The trip across the Plains occupied more time than expected, the ponies being in many places
:impeded by crust on the snow. The third day, also, was stormy, and it was not till the evening of the
fourth day that I arrived at my destination.

' : T have, &ec.,
Hon. William McDougall, C.B., (Signed) . J. S. DENNIS. :
&e. &e. &e. Lieutenant-Colonel.

( B )
Copy of Papers referred to in the foregoing Record of Proceedings.

Sir, "Fort Garry, 4th December, 1869.

I have the honour to.acknowledge the receipt o: your Letter of the 3rd instant, making
inquiries as to the number of guns which might be had from the Hudson Bay Company’s posts near
-the Settlement. In reply I beg to say that at present I cannot give any very definite informstion, as
‘the ‘stock, at no time very large at any of ‘those posts, will at present entirely depend on what-the
wants of the Indians have beenin the autumn,but' there-may be still on‘hand at those posts:as follows :—
‘At*Fort ‘Alexander, possibly ten; at'White Horse Plain, fromten to fifteen ; at Poiut du Chine, from
‘four to six ; atPortage la Prairie must be very'few. From here I could supply a very'large number
if I could get them out, which for more than a-week past 1 have ‘been watching an opportunity ito do.
Had it not been.for the excitement about the pork there would have been in all probability sixty guns
‘in ‘one’ of *thesouthouses ‘here, which is without the wall, besides a good supply -sent to Qalk Point, but
which, owing to the ,appearance of the-people here, Dr. Cowan caused to'be countermanded when the
‘Sledges were loading. I enclose four ordersfor the delivery of all arms to your messengers:having
‘authority from you-to receipt for them. \ ‘ S

: . . : T have, &ec., S
. Lieutenant-Colonel J. .S. Dennis, < -{Bigned) = Wm. MoTavsm..:
o&e, . &e. . &
... Lower Fort Garry.
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( AL )
Memorandum of Orders for the Enrolled Canadians now in the Town of Winnipeg.

Stone Fort, December 4th, 1869, -

~ -These men are not in a position where they can be supported by any force of which I am at present
aware should they be attacked by the rioters under Riel, which seems to me likely to occur. ' I am

“convinced ‘the object of the latter is now to provoke them beyond endurance, and so precipitate a

collision, in which he would try to show that the Canadians were the aggressors, with the hope that in

"such case he might obtain the aid of the rest of the French party.

I have therefore to request that the Canadians will withdraw from the village and come down to the
Scotch Settlement, where I will meet them, and establish them in defensible quarters, in which

‘they will serve as an outpost, and under circumstances where they can be readily reinforced if

necessary. : ) )
They had better come down this evening, and report to me or to Major Boulton at the Rev.

* I have, &c,,

To the Enrolled Canadians at Winnipeg. ; " (Signed) J. §. Dexxs,
B , h ' Lieutenant-Colonel.

" Mr. Black’s.

( A8 )

My pEAr Dg. ScHULTZ, ‘ Stone Fort, December 4th, 1869,
From the oceurrences of last night the anxiety of Riel is evident to have the Canadians draw
the first blood, which latter would be anything but desirable just now. I have come to the conclusion
that they must be withdrawn, and have therefore ordered it by bearer. I shall go up and meet them
at the Scotch Church, and establish them there as an outpost, under Major Boulton. I see no other
course for you to Eursue but to send Mrs. Schultz to a friend’s house as you propose, shut up your
Eremises, and let the property take its chance. As to the Government provisions, should the guard
e still over them, Ipsha.ll not, as represeniing the Government, require them to remain there
any longer. They had better therefore lock up the place and leave. . I would be glad to- have
them come down with the others and enrol in the force at the outpost, but will leave that to

themselves. . 4 ' .

Were my force organized I would not allow Canadians to be used as you have been there, but T am
not at all in a position to act, and regret to say things move but slowly here. You speak of enthusiasm.

I have not seen it yet with any body but Prince’s men.
- I have, &c., '
Dz, Schultz. -(Signed) J. S. DENNIs,

(A2)
MemoranDuM from Major Boulton.

‘ ‘ ‘ R Lower Fort, 4th December, 1869..
~~_ Ihave instructed Canadians to withdraw from the town, and propose to put them,—say in the
Scotch Church, if the Rev. Mr. Black is willing. They will remain there with as many additional men
as you may think necessary, obtained in the neighbourhood. Theg will serve as an outpost and a
rendezvous for the loyal in case of any demonstration being made by Riel’s lserty in the Lower
Settlement. This post will be under your immediate command. I have sent forward a supply consisting
of fifty blankets, 20 guns, 2 quarters of beef, 4 bags of flour, 1 cooking stove, furniture and: pipes, 10
Ibs. of tea, 1 bag of bullets, 2000 caps. _ , ‘ R
. A,nythi::ifurthen required you can probably procure there ; if not let me know. Organize the men
a8 you think best. Report to me every day if possible. - Should Mr. Black not be willing, and you
can.find any other easily defensible house take ¢ instead of the Church. Let your‘sentries be
Earticular to note movements along the high road, and send forward advices of any such at once. I

ave received from parties now with me wﬁo left Fort Garry late this afterroon information that such
a move in this direction is contemplated. S : o
' o (Signed)  J. 8. DENNIs.
P.8S.—Write me fully and candidly the present feeling in the Scotch Settlement to-morrow. Hire
any transport necessary. : ' . :
‘ : o (Signed) J. 8. D..
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( A4 )
MEMORANDUM.

Stone Fort, Lower Settlement, December 4th, 1869.

Mr. James McKay tells me the French party say they are willing to obey the Queen’s Commands,
but assert that the Honourable William McDougall is not duly appointed and sworn into office as Her
Majesty’s Representative, and he thinks if they could be satisfied of this they would offer no further
opposition to that honourable gentleman entering the Settlement. :

If there is any doubt upon this point humiliating to the Queen’s Representative to be called on to
show his Commission, Mr. i[cDougal], I think, would be disposed to consent to even this rather than
be the cause of bloodshed among the people.. I would, therefore, make the following proposition. I
will go to Pembina and obtain the Commission, and place the same in the hands of Governor
McTavish, together with the Certificate of the Crown Law Adviser at present with the Lieutenant-
Governor, that the latter has been duly sworn into office; upon this &e French party at once to
disband, and offer no further cpposition to Mr. McDougall’s entering the Settlement. Upon the
leaders of the French party signing an agreement to the above effect, I will give orders to cease
any further steps toWar«fs arming by the English-speaking people in the Territory.

(Signed{ J. S. DENNIs,
ieut. and Conservator of the Peace.

(B
Sim. Winnipeg, December 4th, 1869.

I have the honour to inform you that I have received (f'our communication containing
Memoranda to the Canadians. Dr. Lynch, Mr. Snow, Dr. Schultz, and myself have consulted together,
and have.come to the conclusion that under the circumstances (that we have 70 men and 65 good
arms on the premises), we have a strong position, and could resist successfully a strong attack. It is
now 9 o'clock, the men are all posted, and the Rebels know it. There are no men moving about, and
no indications of any attack, and a retreat would or might inspire the Rebels with more confidence
than they ap]}l)ear at present to possess. Your Memerandum to the Canadians ‘says “they had better
come down this evening,” which apparently gives us the ]cy)ﬁportunity of using our own judgment under
existing circumstances. I wrote to you this afternoon Mr. Prudhomme’s Touse is o large one and
empty, and could be occupied and filled with provisions and stores. I will go down to-morrow and see
you, and receive your further orders. I have written a letter to Mr. Pinkham, at St, James’s, to call
a meeting, that 1 might enrol volunteers and drill them,

‘ I have, &ec.,
Lieutenant-Colonel J. S, Dennis. . (Signed) C. W, BourroN.
&e. &e.  &e
( F)
DEear CoroXEL DENNIS, Town Winnipeg, Saturday night.

Events have a good deal changed since the writing of this morning. The firm stand seems to
have had its effect, an to-day nothing of moment occurred. This afternoon President Bruce visited
me (no guard) at 4 .M.  Said he had come to explain to me and to ask explanation, reminded me of
the “ bon accord ” in times past, and of the services I had rendered in times of sickness, and he asked
me where was the sticking point in their resolutions. On my mentioning the insulting nature of the
last one he said that they not so meant it, and that { must have an incorrect copy,—spoke
slightingly of Riel ; said they could not go to see Governor at Pembina, but would like to see you, I
told him that I thought you would see him alone, as he proposed, without Riel, but thought that Riel
would spoil everything; assented to this, and said that after he returned from Stinking River
to-morrow he would see me and arrange a meeting. I give this for what it is worth ; other indications
point to its probability ; with thanks for your kind wishes as to Mrs. Schultz,

o . ‘ 1 have, &e.,
Lieutenant-Colonel J. S. Dennis, . (Signed) J. Scrurtz. -

&e. &e. &e.

" P.8—Captain Boulton writes the news of most of the Canadians here, and I think the altered
circumstances will probably induce you to countermand or modify order. 1§ "

- ( G ) -

Dear Sm, - B : Headingly, December 3rd, 1869,
~ .+ As Mr, Farmer, who brought the Proclamation here, intimated to me that you wished me to
give some information concerning the loyalty of this parish, I have the honour to inform you that
nearly all the people are loyal to the Queen, and wish to become a part of the Dominion of Canada.
I have spoken to a number of persons lately about the matter, and all have expressed their willingness
to enlist as volunteers, to bring in and establish the Honourable William McDougall as Governor in

. Oaxavpa,
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<“Oaxara,  these Territories, and also to assist in preserving British law and order amongst us. A paper to that
“——  effect ia now being signed at Mr. John Taylors house. I am sure if you were only to come among
us, or if any one were to come with proper authority to call out volunteers, I do not think any one in
the parish would refuse to go, except a few.individuals.who are of no account anywhere, and who
wouls do well to vanish into-*thin air” as soon as possible. I enclose a copy of Resolutions passed at
.8 public meeting held at Mr. Tait’s honse, November 28th, <.¢., before the Proclamation was :issued.
You will see from them ithat the parisk proved loyal :then—it is sxmch .more .80 .now :since the
‘Proclamation has been issued. '
I may remark that in reference to -the first Resolution it is :spparently defective. . To express the
wish of the meeting-the latter part of it would read thus :—“until the entry of the Canadian Govern-
*“ment, and then we will :support and strengthen the said Canadian Government.”
With ‘best nvishes for the success of your undertaking,

Lieutenant-Colonel J. . Dennis, . ' (Signed)  .JaMEs CARRIE.
™ &e. &e. ‘ cumbent of [Headingly Parish,
:GOD SAVE THE QUEEN!

o (L)
Sz, Winnipeg, Deceraber 4th, 1869.

I have the honour to inform you I proceeded to Kildonan School-House. Owing to a break
down on the road I was detained an hour. T found the School-House full, and proceeded at once to
explain the object of my coming. Iread your commission and Service Roll heading. After concluding
speaking, some of the older men questioned me as to the legality of it. I argued the point, and failed
quite to-satisfy them, though-the majority were against the legal -quibble, but I judged it best to
satisfy parties, and agreed to postpone the meeting till 10 o'clock .this morning, to allow said parties
to get Judge Black’s opinion (I told them the only legal authorities—the Governor, Mr. Richards,
-and Judge Black-—were satisfied of the legality).

‘I met them again this morning at 10 o’clock, though not so numerous. Judge Black had given his
opinion. These men were perfectly satisfied, and came forward and headed the roll. I took down
sixty names then and there, formed a company, appointed officers and four sergeants. One officer and
two sergeants to the district in which their squad or subdivision reside. The people were numerous,
and are to assemble on Monday at 1 o'clock, when I expect over 100 men to be there, and I
will have two companies officered and formed, and ready to turn out at a call from their lieutenants
and ensigns. I have come up here to assist Dr. Schultz and the party. I shall put the men here.in a
thorough state of organisation, and find out the amount of ammunition and arms. We are going to
assemble here and keep guard all night, and resist attack, but I shall not allow any one to provoke it.
‘Will you send up ammunition, &c., to Mr. * * *, as we ought to.have it handy near here. 1 think
we ought to have provisions, &c., stored there for necessity. It will hold a great nuinber, and when
the Portage people come down it will be required.

The people here are very anxious, and everywhere wish the organisation to be completed as soon as
possible, for the French gamn strength by time. There was quite a demonstration last night. Mr. Boyd's
place also was placed at our disposal for stores or men. B ‘

If you:'send me any orders to carry out I will do so without delay. We shall have :about -seventy
to-night to defend this place, I think. Owing to my break down last night and hurry I had not time to
Jeave your letter for Judge Black, but sent.it this moming. Everything is cheering for numbers.
:Guns .are wanted. If the spare arms from the Fort were sent to Mr. * * * or -elsewhere,
'they* would be handy, and many men want them. I will take steps to have them securely.stored when

<they .arrive. '

. ' T have, &c., -
Lieutenant-Colonel J. 8. Dennis, (Signed) :C. 'W. BourTon, Major.
“&e. &e. &e. : o
( K )
Siz, Mr.* * * December 6th, 1869.

I have the honour to inform you I arrived here last night about 11 o'clock, and was met by a
megsenger telling me to be careful how I went into town. I accordingly left my horse and cutter at
Mr,*. * * and went on foot and got around by the river, and rentered Dr. Schultz’s.house-about
12 o’clock. The town was full of Frenchmen, and they. kept parading about, and placed.sentries all
arouny the Doctor’s, and kept us on the alert all night. There were about seventy or seventy-five in
the Doctor’s house. The greatest number of French who left the Fort and entered the town was
ninety-six. They were counted -as-they passed -up. - They -kept-coming and going all night. I
assembled the officers of the company, with %r. Schultz and Mr. Snow, and told them your orders, and
})ointed out the reasons why they should not remain on the premises any longer, so they agreed to
eave. I left directions as to their mode of procedure, and gave strict orders not to be later than two
or three d’clock at the outside in leaving, _ , oo
-« Tthen'léft with Hallett to go to :St. James’ Parish - meeting at nine o’élock, and came across the
‘Prarie to Kildonan, and T drilled -about 100 men, and had the provisions, blankets, &e., put-into Mr.
*.’* “*-as‘the most convenient ‘place to put them in to await yourfurther orders. T fhen went
‘back ‘to town about four ¢'clock, but could ‘not .enter to-see what was [délaying them, and'heard that
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Dr: Schultz house was closely invested, at least that men were all around it. I met Mr.* * ¢
going in, and asked him to let me know what was going on.

I went over to his house, and he tells me he did not get in either, at least he thought it imprudent
to enter; I feel a little apprehension about them. I do not know why they have not come out. If
they were to leave, I do not think the French would fire the first shot, but they are beginning to look
very ugly, and Bishop McCrae tells me there cannot be less than 600 armed men in connection with

-the Fort, It is thought that some attempt at a peaceful solution should be made by a discussion of
their rights as printed. Riel has showedp such strength of force, that as an enemy he is now not to
be despised. I am only giving now to you opinions that I hear in conversations. The people about
here express willingness to take a stand—but apparently a panic is easily created. There will be two
companies nearly in this parish, St. Paul’s had forty-three names subscribed, Hallett’s Parish only
gave sixteen names—all good ones.

The meeting was small. Mr.* * * gays that the Parish is a good deal in the hands of Banna-
tyne and Mr. McKenny, which accounts for it. I was intending togointotown to night to see if I could
reach Dr. Schultz’s house, or hear anything of them, but s Mr.™ * * has gone in I have thought
better to remain here, as I am an object of susp‘icion, and would be detained a prisoner.

‘I have strictly enjoined repeatedly all the Canadians to suffer insult rather than provoke attack
or fire & shot; and I think they all see the necessity of it, and will be very careful. 1 heard they do
not number over twenty-five or thirty to-night, as several left, I suppose, when it became known it was
decided to evacuate—though I told Dr. Lynch not tolet it be known till the preparations were made..
I enclose a letter from the Bishop. The French apparently wish to avoid clashing with the English.
and Scotch, and if 2 bold stand is made through the organization it may bring about a peaceful
solution. They say the French cannot continue in force as their families will be left or are left
in a very destitute state. I will be about in the morning to find out the state of affairs. If the
Canadians do leave, the town as well as the Fort will be entirely in the hands of the French. I have
given you an account of everything I think of worthy of note. I have. &

ave, &c.,

Lieutenant-Colonel J. S. Dennis, (Signed)  C. W. BouLrtov,
&e. &e. &e.

( K1 )
(Recites Commission from Licutenant-Governor McDoueALL to Lieutenant-Colonel DENNIS). .

By virtue of the-sbove Commission from the Lieutenant-Governor, I now hereby call on and order
all loyal men of the North-West Territories to assist me by every means in their power to carry out
the.same, and thereby restore public peace and order, and uphold the supremacy of the Queen in this
part ofHer Majesty’s Dominion. Given under my hand at the Stone Fort, Lower Settlement,
this 6thday of December, in the year of our Lord, 1869.

(Signed) J. S. DENNIs,

Lieutenant-Colonel.

( K2 )

MEMORANDUM. Stone Fort, 2:30 par., 6th December, 1869.

" Tam told the rebels are paraded in force in the Town of Winnipeg, and are acting in a manner
calculated to provoke a collision with the loyal party.

. I camnat be a party to precipitating such an event just at the present time, and must therefore
reiterate my orders of the 4th instant to the enrolled Canadians to leave the town, and establish them-
selvesat Kildonan School-House, where there is a supply of provisions, and where they will have
assistance at hand if attacked. '

- ‘Major Boulton or, in his absence, Dr. Lynch, must see to this being done. Of course, if the attempt
to come down would bring. on a fight, they may remain where they are, but not encouraging hostilities.
Liet'them come down under cover of the evening.

- (Signed) J. S. Dexnis,

. To the Enrolled Canadiars at the Winnipeg. ‘ Lieutenant-Colonel.

L (K4 )
Dear.Stm,,.. = ‘

" As an opportunity offers, I drop_you this line to express my strong conviction that you
should not make any aggressive movement at present.

6th November (December), 1869,

Canapa..
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' Pray do nothing aggressively, I am still lopeful of peace; a civil war is altogether too dear a price
to pay for anything wanted on either side—many others think so too. ’ ‘
. _ - ' ) Yours, &e., . ‘
Lieutenant-Colonel J. 8. Dennis, ‘ " (Signed)  James Ross.
" &e. &e. &e. - o ‘

P.8.—You may have a deputation from the English-speaking people to-day or to-morrow, urging
that you should make no aggressive movement. 1say you may. I cannot tell till this afternoon.

In haste, &e, ‘
(Sigped) ©  J. R.’

( K3 )
My DEAR Sin, Stone Fort, 6th December, 1869,

I have this moment received your note. I think it my duty, under my Commission, not fo
relaw preparations, to put down, by force of arms if necessary, the present outrageous condition of
things in the Settlement. At the same time, I will be glad to see the gentlemen of whom you speak.
I will not act on the aggressive so long as there is to my mind o satisfactory reason for further delay.
It would be the greatest possible relief to me to see peace restored without resorting to force, but
there has been so much temporizing that it would almost seem to me the Insurgent party are now
actually drawing moral strength from that very source. ’ '

Believe me, &e.
James Ross, Esq., Winnipeg. (Signed)  J. S. DENNIs.

( L)
Sir, : Lower Fort Garry, December 9th, 1869,

I have the honour to state for your information my knowledge of the occurrences of the past
few days. According to instructions, I proceeded, on Friday the 3rd, to the Scotch Settlement for
the purpose of organizing coinpanies in the parish. The following day I received a letter asking me
to come up to Dr. Schultz’s—that a number of men had assembled there the previous evening to
defend the place, as an attack was feared from the French. I arrived there in the evening after my
other duties had been performed, and found they had been re-inforced, and numbered about sixty
men, Canadians and others. The cause assigned to me for the assembling was that the French had
been drinking in the Saloons, and in that state might make an attack. I took down the names of all
the men, and divided them into subdivisions and scctions, They chose their officers and non-
commissioned officers, and I distributed them about the houses so that they might all be held in-
command. Between nine and ten your orders came for the men to withdraw. As it was late, and the
town was quiet, and there were a number of ladies and women in the house, I thought better to

"remain where we were. The Memorandum was not communicated to all the men, as they were

distributed and sleeping in three houses. The town was quiet all night, and the following morning I
went down with Mr. Snow, to see you, leaving everything quiet. ' :

As it was Sunday, I told those who had no houses to go to, to remain quiet till I returned. I did
not return that night until 12 o’clock, owing to my horse breaking down. I got into Dr. Schultz’s
and found that the French had increased in nnmbers, and the position was assuming an aspect of
hostility, and one detrimental to the interests of the cause you were engaged in, and that night
ninety-six French left the Fort, and entered the town and paraded about. I gave all the men orders
on no account to provoke attack. The night passed away without any demonstration on the part of
the French. On the following morning I assembled the officers of the company, and some others, and
communicated your orders, and pointed out the futility of remaining there. That they were acting on
their own responsibility and contrary to your orders. I took the (()Einion of each. one, and they all
agreed to leave. I accordingly requested Dr. Schultz to take immediate steps to remove his family
and the other ladies, and told the officers to let the men either go singly with their arms throughout
the day, or, if not with their arms, to wait till all was ready, and murcﬁ out in a body, which I was
satisfied could be done with ease, as the French wanted them to leave the premises and nothing more,
I told the officers not to give the orders to the meén till all was réady, lest it might get out and a
demonstration be made Uy the French; and as there was a number of females on the premises, they
had to be looked after first. I told them to leave as soon as possible, but on no. account to be later

- than three o’clock. I then left with Mr, Hallett to attend a meeting at St. James's Parish, and after-
- wards to drill some companies ot Kildonan Parish. I took possession of Mr. Prudhomme’s house for

the reception of the men, and made a few arrangements. I then made an attempt to get into town
in about four o’clock, but could not. I then wrote a letter to you, informing you of the state of
airs, and that I felt a little apprehensive about them but not much, as I was satisfied if they would -
retire they might do so.  Knowing the French would not fire the first shot. When the position was
first assumed it was only to protect the premises and Government property from a comgarati\?ely few
French, but ou-Sunddy night they appear to have increased greatly. PSevetal men left,* on Monday,

* Supposed from Dr. Schultz’s house,
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but were not allowed to return. Of subsequent events you are already in possession. I do not know
why they do not leave, after my orders of the morning.

) ‘ I have, &, :
Lieutenant-Colonel J, S. Dennis, (Signed)  C. 'W, Bourtox,
fe. &e, &,
( N.) i
DeAR CoroNAL DENNIS, Bishop’s Court, December 6th, 1869,

I dgrieve to say that the state of things is assuming daily & graver aspect. I am greatly dis-
appointed at the manifestations of loyalty, and & determination to support the Government of Mr.
‘McDougall on the part of the English population. Instead of a breaking down of the force of the
Insurgents, I feel certain from my observations at Fort Garry to-day, and from information from Mr.
McTavish, and others, I can fully rely on, that over 600 men are now in arms, and that they are well
armed. I see no reason to depend upon want of courage or determination on the part of these men.
In addition to this strong exhibition of force, there is a belief, apparently on good authority, of a
determination to revenge %oss of life if they are attacked, by house to house massacreing, or at any
rate by individual assassination.

I feel, thercfore, that success in an attack with such forces as you can bring together, with nothing
of the common action the Insurgents have, is very problematical, and that the warfare is likely to be
such that a victory will only be less fatal to the Settlement, and the interests of the Canadian Govern-
ment than a defeat. '

You must not suppose that this comes from one who is timorous; though I never said it before, I
went to the first meeting of the Council of Assiniboia prepared to recommend a forcible putting down
of the Insurrection, and when you came in I hoped that the exhibition of force would be sufficient,
but the force of the Insurgents has only grown with opposition, and is now, I believe, quite a match
for all that can be brought together against them. f would earnestly advise, therefore, the giving
up of any idea of attacking the French position at Fort Garry at present, and also any idea of
seizing by stealth on any rebel. Put away such counsels for a time at least. I feel that the result
to be anticipated would be very disastrous. Isee everything to be gained by delay—at any rate,
there wounld be some opportunity perhaps of bringing about some direct communication between
Governor McDougall and the disaffected people. Ithink you should on every account bring that
about—further it would be well not to act till you ascertain clearly the mind of the Canadian
Ministry and people on the way of settling this affair; and I think something is due to the people
from Governor McDougall. I’: for one, am this moment, perfectly ignorant of any ' detail of
the character or policy of his Government. Personally, I do not care for this, I am not only
fervently loyal to the Queen, but I have unquestioning confidence in the management of Canada.
I know all will be right, still there is not less a great want—a very conciliatory attitude is what is
wanted from Governor McDougall, and a plain setting forth of how the Government is to be con-
ducted, meeting as far as possible any of the wishes expressed by the disaffected persons, and
perhaps referring others to Canada—bu? promising a generous consideration of the whole grievances.

This may not be altogether palatable, but the crisis is a grave one for Canada, and much wisdom
is needed. I would not so write, did I not feel certain that if the present numbers of Insurgents keep
up, an attack is not feasible; and did I not also feel that some attempt should be made by those
having authority and knowledge to enter into explanations with them before making any attack.
The late Government of Assiniboia could not do this, for it had no information—all that could be
done was to counsel loyal obedience, but at this time something more is called for than that.

_ With kindest regards,
’ T am, &e., .
Lieutenant-Colonel J, S, Dennis, : . (Signed) . R., Rupert’s Land. ",
&e, &e. &o.
| (0., |
DEeAR CoroNEL DENNIS, H iBishop’s Court, December 7th, 1869, ;

There is a report that you think of coming up at once with the force you have. I do not
suppose that this is the case, but I am sure any effort at present is hopeless. They now hold about 60
prisoners, and are more than 600 in number, and elated. You must be quiet, probably the lives of the
prisoners may depend upon this; the truth is I am afraid nothing can be done by you, only evil is now
to be apprehended from action, ,

I am very sincerely, &c.,
: (Signed)  R., Rupert’s Land,
DEear CoroNEL DENNIS,

T most fally concur in all the Bishop says. '
: (Bigned)  J. McLEAN, Archdeacon,

Caxapa,
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(P ) .
* Lower Fort Garry, Red River Settlement, December 9th, 1869.
To ArrL WHOM IT MAY CONCERN, o o e
By certain printed papers of late put in circulation by the F;ench party, communication with
the Lientenant-Governor is indicated, with a view to laying.before him alleged rights: on the part of
those now in armes.

1 think that course very desirable, and that it would lead to good results. )

Under the belief that the French %arty are sincere in their desire for peace, and feeling that to
abandon for the present the call on the loyal to arms, would, in view of such eommunication relieve the
gituation from much embarrassment, and so contribute to bring about peace and save the country from
what will otherwise end in universal ruin and devastation, I now call on and order the loyal party in
the North-west Territory to cease from further action under the appeal to arms made by me, and I
cell on the French party to satisfy the people of their sineerity in wishing for a peaceful ending
of all these troubles, by sending a deputation to the Lieutenant-Goyernor at Pembina, without ynne-
cessary delay. - : o -

. ~Giy);n um}irer my hand, at the Lower Fort Garry, this 9th day of December, 1869.
s (Signed) J. S. Dexnis,

LI

( K5) N
DEAR ME. BANNATYNE, T .

I hope the enclosed will satisfy the French party of my desire not to see the country made deso-
late upon & question which I am confident admits of a peaceful solution. Be good enough tomalke it
lmown to the parties in arms, if I can contribute in any way to bring about a settlement, I shall
be glad to do so. The paper will be printed and distributed to-day. ,

' I have, &e., , o
- (Signed) . J, S. Dennis, -
A, E. B. Bannatyne, Esq., Winnipeg. : o A

(8)

To Colonel DENNIs,

‘ : 4 St. Boniface, December 8th, 1869,

I wes at Dease’s. I made my commission, and Mr. Dease took the letter and told me he could not

do it because it was too late, that he could not move without some one behind him to watch what

he was after. He would not give any letter. He was afraid that I might be arrested. He told me

to tell you that he did not know what to do at this present time. The only thing they decided at

their meeting was that they should keep themselves together, so that the French should not be able

to force them ynless by war with their party ; and more, that his party did not like to go against the
French to fight, but they would neyer fight against the Government, , o :

- That is all he told me, he said he had no newgatall. - = =~

L T T S *

- Service Rors signed by Red River Force at Stone Fort, Red River Settlemént, North-Wes
. Territories, December 1st, 1869. ‘ oL S

Whereas large bodies of armed men unlawfully banded together have during the last few weeks
committed sundry acts of violence against the public peace and the protest of the existing authorities,
‘We, whose names are subgeribed hereto, have agreed and do hereby agree, to enrol ourselves and to
serve under the orders of Lieut.-Colonel Dennis, and the officer or officers he may appoint while
employed in arresting and putting down, by force of arms if necessary, the armed parties so unlaw-
fully assembled and acting as aforesaid, and we do agree to furnish such arms and ammunition as we
possess to be used in the said service :— ‘

Name. " Porish - Witness to Signsture,
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( G.H. )

Po the' Honourablé: Wirrran McDoveary, CB., Lieutenant-Governor of the British North-West
: " Territoriés in' Americs.

We the undersigned inhabitants of High Bluff, desire to express to' yonr Excellency, as Her
Majesty’s Representative, our sentiments of loyalty 1o Her Majesty the Queen of Great Dritain and
Ireland, and also our ardent desire that your Excelloncy may speedily arrive safe amongst us, deeply
regretting that untoward circumstances have so long deprived us of your Excellency’s presence.

(Bigned by sixty-one persons.)

THE RED RIVER MASS MEETINGS,
OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS.

(From the report of the < New Nation.”)

A grand mass meeting of the inhabitants of the Settlement was held at Upper Fort Gairy on the
19th ult. Somany were present that the assembly had to be held in the open air, and this, when the
thermometer stood at about 20 deg. below zero. The meeting lasted some five hours.

hQn motion of President Riex, seconded by Prerre LEeviELLe, Mr. THOMAS BuNn was called to the
chair,

In opening the meeting, the CHAIRMAN expressed it as his opinion that this was the most important
meeting ever held in the Settlement. The most vital interests were at stake, and he therefore hoped
that the utmost order and good humour would prevail. ‘ i : )

Mr. Rier was elected Interpreter; and, on” the motion of Mr. ANcus Mc¢Kay, seconded by Mr.
0’DoxNoGHUE, Judge BLACK was appointed Secretary to the meeting. '

Colonel DE SALABERRY was present both days. A B ) o

' The CHAIRMAN introduced to the meeting’ Mr. DoNALD A. ST, who came forward and read the
following document, which, he said, had been handed to him in Canada :—

“Sm, ‘ " _ «QOttawa, Dec. 10th, 1869, -

«T have the honour to inform you that His Excellency the Governor-General has been pleased

“ to appoint you Special Commissioner to inquire into and report on the cause and extent of the armed
“ obstruction offered at Red River, in the North-West Territory, to the peaceable entrance of the Hon.
% W. McDougall, the gentleman selected to be Lieut.-Governor of the Territory, and to bring about its
¢ union with Canada. Also, to inquire into and report on the cause of the discontent and' dissatisfaction
% at the proposed changes which exist there. Also to explain to the inliabitants the principle upon which
“ % the Government of Canada intend to govern the country, and remove any misapprehensions which may
“ exist on the subject. And also to take such steps, in concert with Hon. Mr. ]!EcDougall and Governor
« McTavish, for effecting the peaceable transfer of the Government from the Hudson Bay authorities to
"¢ the Government of the Dominion. ' o
"“You are to consider this communication as a letter of appointment as Government Commissioner.
“With this letter you will receive a copy of the letter of the instructions given to Mr. McDougall on
% leaving Ottawa, dated the 28th September. Also a copy of a further letter to Mr. McDogall, dated
“the Tth inst., and a copy of the Proclamation issued by His Excellency the Governor-General, addresse
“to the inhabitants of the North-West Ferritory by command of Her Majesty. = -
“You will proceed with all despatch to Pembina, and arrange with Mr. McDougall as to your fature
% course of action, and then go on to Fort Garry, and take such steps, after such. consiltation, as. may
“geem most expedient. . You will, of course, consult with Governor McTavish, and endeavourto arrange
“one concerted schieme between Mr. McDougall, the Hudson Bay authorities, and yourself, for' the
¢ pacification of the country. , L v o
"¢ Ag the information coming here is necessarily imperfect, and the circumstances at the Red River
“are continually. changing, it is not considered expedient to hamper you with more specific
 instructions. . = _ L 4 ; .
" e You will therefore act, according to the best of your judgment, with Mr, McDougall, and keep me
¢« fully informed as to the progress of events there. You will also offer suggestions as to the best mode
% of dealing with the Indian tribes in the country. . o '
S T o o . ”“‘Ihavel,&c'o, L
T o ' ‘ .« Joserd Howg,
P S O “ Secretary of State for the Provirices.”
" Mr. Riex translated the letter into French. g 3 T

.02
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Mr. SmirH then read the following letter sent by the Governor-General of Canada to him (Smith)
personally. It was handed to him in Ottawa :—

« My DEAR MR. SMITH, - ~ «QOttawa, Dec. 12th, 1869,

«] learn with satisfaction that you have placed your services at the disposal of the Canadian

«¢ Government, and that you are proceeding to Red River to give the parties that are at variance the
“ benefit of your experience—-—

Mr. RieL is that letter public or private ?

Mr. Suita.—It is a letter to me as Commissioner, , o

Some confusion ensued, several people spoke at the same time, and ultimately the CHAIRMAN ordered
silence, and said that the document was public and ought to be read.

Mr. Smire continued the reading of the letter: “ Give the parties
your experience, influence, and mediation. . . . )

“In my capacity as Her Majesty’s representative in the British North American possessions, I have
“ addressed letters to Governor McTavish, the Protestant Bishop of Rupert's Land, and the Vicar
“ General, who acts in lieu of the Roman Catholic Bishop, during his presence in Rome. I have sent
“ them copies of the message received by telegraph from Her Majesty’s Secretary of State, which forms
“the staplo of the Proclomation addressed to her subjects in the North-West Territory. You will
“ observe that it calls upon all who have any comxlaints to make or wishes to express, to address them-
“ selves to me as Her Majesty’s representative. And you may state, with the utmost confidence that
“ the Imperial Government has no intention of acting otherwise—or permitting others to act otherwise
“—than in perfect good faith towards the inhabitants of the Red River district of the North-
“ West.

“The people may rely upon it that respect and protection will be extended to the different religious
« persuasions, that titles to every descrililtion of property will be perfectly guarded, and that all the
“ franchises which have existed, or ‘which the people may prove themseives qualified to exercise,
“ghall be duly continued or liberally conferred. , _ ’

“In declaring the desire and determination of Her Majesty’s Cabinet, you may very safely use the
“terms of the ancient formula, that ¢ right shall be done in all cases.’

“ Wishing you a prosperous journey and all success in your mission of peace and good will,

: “ T remain faithfully yours,
“ JonN Young."”

that are at variance the benefit of

3

Mr. Rier.—It is not signed « Governor.” .

Mr. Smura.—Tt is written and signed “in my capacity as Her Majesty’s representative.

Mr. RieL translated the letter into French. E

Mr. Smara then asked Vicar-General Thiebault for some letters from the Government of Canada to
Governor McTavish and the Bishop of Rupert’s Land, which had been confided to his (the Vicar-
General’s) care in Canada. I (said My, Smith) have been authorisrd by Governor McTavish to make
this request. In explanation I would say that the Vicar-General and Colonel De Salaberry preceded
me from Canada by a few days. It was intended that we should have had communication on the
way, and that being the case, for convenience sake the letters were given to the Vicar-General. The
letter to Mr. McTavish is explanatory of the views of the Canadian Government, and shows what the
Queen wished to say to her faithful subjects here. L :

Mr. Rien—I do not want the documents to be read. (Cries of “ We will have it,” and cheers.)

CuamrMaN.—Rilence. ' «

Judge BLACK protested against the documents being withheld from the meeting.
. A VoicE—Who has the documents ?

AnoTHER VOICE.—Mr. O’Donoghuv has them. :

CHAIRMAN.—The Vicar-Greneral states that Mr. O'Donoghue seized them, and has got them.

A Vorce.—We want them.

- Mr. Rigt.—I ask the Vicar-General if either of the letters alluded to belong to Mr. Smith ?

The VicAr-GENERAL~No. _ o

Mr. SurrE.—Mr. McTavish authorised me to ask for his letter, , o

Bishop MacurAy.~1I will ask my letter from Mr. O'Donoghue, and I think he will give it.

Judge Brack urged the production of the letters, - ‘ o o

Mr. Rier said that the Judge was out of his 7dle as Secretary in addressing the meeting.

Judge Brack seid he had no idea that Mr. Riel could teach him his duty.

The CrAIRMAN addressed the meeting, and Mr. O'Donoghue protested.

Judge Brack.~—If business is not allowed to procéed regularly, I will resign.

Mr. O’DoxoGHUE complained that the Chairman would not a{low him to address the meeting.

The CHAIRMAN said he had no objection to Mr. O'Donoghue’s doing so, when he was in order.

Mr. BALLANTYNE.—As & Red River settler, I ask the Chairman to put the question ‘to the meeting,
whether Mr. O'Donoghue is to be requested to produce the letters. N
s+ The CHAIRMAN put the question in the form of 2 resolution, and it was carried amid cheers. ,

Mr. BALLANTYNE, in the name of the people of Red River, then demanded of the Vicar-General :
that he should ask Mr. O'Donoghue for the letters.- =+ - -~~~ - "7
" Mr. RIeL seconded the demand, - : ‘ ‘ S

'.11\‘]1:19 gigAR-GENErﬁIS. madehthz requiged demand. ‘

r. O'DoxoaHUE.—Since the demand is made in its' present form, I may say that I

by order and delivered them to Sccrotary Schmidt. P , ’ y say that I took the letters

Some debate ensued as to whether it would not do to hunt. up these letters next day. But ulti~
mately Mr. 0’Donoghue and Pierre Levielle went in search of the documents and found them. He.
then delivered them up to the mecting. ' ‘ o , T
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 Before reading any additional documents, Mr. SarrH said he wanted one which was in Mr. McTavish’s
possession and had been sent for. - :

Mr. RieL moved that any other documents Mr. Smith had to produce should be read in
the meantime. ‘
“Bishop MAcHRAY moved in amendment that if it did not suit Mr. Smith to proceed with the reading
. he should be allowed to await the arrival of the documents he wanted.

Rev. Mr. Brack seconded the amendment. ‘

Mr. SmMiry.—The paper I want is a Proclamation from the Governor-General, copies of which came
into the Settlement, but where they are I do not know.

Archdeacon McLuAN said that if Mr. Smith was willing it might be well to hear what he had to read
at once. :

Mr. Spr1rH.—One of the documents I have is a copy of & paper delivered to me. Itis a communica-
tion from the Queen, our Sovereign. It is the telegraph message referred to in one of the papers
addressed to me, and which was put in my hands in Canada, very shortly after being reccivef from
England. It is & message from Earl Granville to Sic John Young, dated * Nov., 26.°

-« Make what use you think best of what follows :—¢ The Queen has heard with surprise and rogret
“that certain misguided persons have banded together to oppose by force the entry of the future
“ Lieutenant-Governor into our Territory in Red River. Her l\{m !

“her subjects in that Settlement ; and can only ascribe to misunderstanding, or misrepresentation, their

“ opgosition to a change planned for their advantage. : ' ‘
+ 4 8he relies on your Glovernment to use every effort to explain whatever misunderstandings may
# have avisen,~—to ascertain their wants, and conciliate the goo£will of the people of Red River Settle-
“ment. DBut, in the meantime, she authorizes you to testify to them the sorrow and displeasure with
¢ which she views the unreasonable and lawless proceedings which have taken place, and her expecta-
“ tion that if any parties have desires to express or complaints to make respecting their condition and
“ prospects, they will address themselves to the Governor-General of Canada.

“The Queen expects from Her Representative that, as he will be always ready to reccive well-

% founded grievances, so will he exercise all the power and authority she entrusted to him, in the
support of order, and the suppression of unlawful disturbances.””

On motion of Mr. RoseRrT TA1T, seconded by Mr, MERCER, the Mecting adjourned till 10 o’clock the

following day.

At noon, the following day, a still Jarger assemblage gathered at Fort Garry, further to hear Mr.
Commissioner Smith.

Mr. THOMAS BUNN was again called to the chaiv, '
Messrs. C. Norin, Grant, Jose MineN, Toussaist Lucig, VEruer, C. Laroneg, Xavier PaGeT
and C. LAFONTAINE were appointed to keep order in the crowd.
-Mr. RIEL moved that JUDGE BLACK resume the office of Secretary.
JupaE Brack declined.
5 On motion of Mr. R, M¢BEATH, seconded by Mr. A. Dang, Mr, A. G. B. Baunatyne was appointed
ecretary. ' ' : '
FATHE);R Liestane came forward and said, amid cheers :—We have been good friends to this day in
the whole Settlement, and I want to certify here that we will be good friends to-night.
Mr. Riel translated the romarks into French, and the Rev. Heury Coch